

 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
AND WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT AGENDA 


 


SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 
 


5:00 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION   
6:00 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING 


 


Council Chambers 
23873 Clinton Keith Road Ste 106 


Wildomar, CA 92595 
 


OR 
 


Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357 


 
OR 


Dial in: 1 (669) 900 6833 | Webinar ID: 848 0169 9357  
 


The Meeting will be conducted in person and electronically via video 
teleconferencing pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-08-21. 


 


 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor/Chair, District 2 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, District 1 
Bridgette Moore, Council Member/Trustee, District 4 
Joseph Morabito, Council Member/Trustee, District 3 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member/Trustee, District 5 


 
Gary Nordquist              Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager /General Manager         City Attorney/District Counsel 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357





 


 


The City of Wildomar encourages your 
participation in the meeting; however, to 
minimize the spread of the COVID-19 
virus, this meeting is being conducted in 
person and via video and 
teleconferencing with the following 
options available for participating: 
 
1. You may view the Regular Session 
meeting live on the City of Wildomar’s 
website at http://www.cityofwildomar.org or 
on cable TV through Frontier Channel 36 or 
AT&T channel 99. To view from the website, 
select the live stream link on the top of the 
front page. 
 
2. You may participate via the ZOOM 
Webinar Telephone and Videoconferencing.  
 
3. You may participate in person; however, 
masks are recommended for all individuals, 
and seating may be limited as the City is still 
participating in the 6-foot social distancing 
seating procedure. 
 
Instructions for Electronic Participation  


 
Please Note: During the meeting all 
participants videos will be turned off 
during the entire meeting and you will be 
placed on Mute by the host. You will not 
be able to mute or unmute your lines 
manually. The host will unmute your line 
when you are called to speak.  
 
1. Log in or call into ZOOM via 
desktop/laptop, smartphone or telephone. 
You must download the ZOOM app to access 
the link from an Apple smartphone or IPAD. 
 
2. During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Mayor will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak, please raise your hand virtually to 
be placed in the queue.  
 
3. When your name or the last 3 digits of your 
phone number are called, the host will 
unmute you. Public Comments will be limited 


to 3 minutes or such other time as the Council 
may provide.    
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 
• At the bottom of the list, please click on the 
grey “Raise Hand” button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
SMARTPHONE: 
• Look for the “Raise Hand” button on the 
screen and click the button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
TELEPHONE line only: 
• Dial *9 on your keypad to signal that you 
would like to comment. When the Host 
unmutes you, Dial *6 to unmute. 
 


Instructions for In Person Participation  
 
During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Mayor will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak on that item, please line up on the 
marked spaces in the center of the 
Chambers. 
 
When it is your turn to speak, please state 
your name for the record. Public Comments 
are limited to 3 minutes or such other time as 
the Council may provide.  
 
In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, you 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 951-
677-7751 x210. 
 
The City of Wildomar thanks you in advance 
for taking all precautions to prevent 
spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
  
NOTICE: City Council meetings may be 
live-streamed, photographed and/or 
videotaped. Participation at the meeting 
constitutes consent by members of the 
public to the City’s and any third party’s 
use in any media, without compensation 
or further notice, of audio, video, and/or 
pictures of meeting attendees. 
 


 
 
 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


3 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) to confer with legal counsel with regard 
to the following matters of pending litigation:  
 
In re:  National Prescription Opiate Litigation (U.S.D.C. Case No. 1:17-CV-2804) 
 
 


RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 


 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


4 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


FLAG SALUTE 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


 
2.1 Public Hearing to Receive Input from the Community Regarding the 


Redrawing of Election District Boundaries 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council:  
 
1) Receive a report from staff on the redistricting process and permissible 
criteria to be considered to redraw district boundaries; and  
 
2) Conduct a public hearing to receive public input on district boundaries.  


 
 


PRESENTATIONS 
1. Recognition - Keep It Clean Volunteers 
2. Proclamation – Constitution Week September 17-23 
3. New City Employee Recognitions 
4. Other City Recognitions/ Presentations 
 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
No reports scheduled.  
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Council receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction that do not appear on the agenda.   
 
 


 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


5 


  
 


 


COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 


1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 


 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 


The City Council to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it is the 
desire of the City Council, the agenda can be reordered, added to, or have items 
tabled at this time. 
 
 


1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Council, the Public, or Staff request to have specific items 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- June 9, 2021 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Minutes- June 30, 2021 Special Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


6 


  
 


 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $328,302.25; 
2. Warrant Register dated 08-12-2021 in the amount of $20,733.16; 
3. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $25,966.18; 
4. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $29,380.46; 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
 
5. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $80,039.55; 
6. Warrant Register dated 08-12-2021 in the amount of $89,028.71; 
7. Warrant Register dated 08-12-2021 in the amount of $8,415.00; 
8. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $42,076.98; 
9. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $125,682.76; 
10. Payroll Register dated 09-01-2021 in the amount of $205,636.13. 
  


1.5 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Treasurer’s Report for July 2021. 


 
1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 201 and 202 – Oak Springs Ranch 


Specific Plan Amendment Project 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends that 
the City Council adopt the following Ordinances entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 201 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT 


NO. 20-0044 FOR THE OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 
340 LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF INLAND VALLEY DRIVE 


APPROXIMATELY 550 FEET SOUTH OFF CLINTON KEITH ROAD 
(APN: 380-250-038) 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 202 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE 


AMENDMENT NO. 2021-05 (PA 20-0044) DELETING IN ITS ENTIRETY 
CHAPTER 17.110 (SP ZONE REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS FOR 


SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


7 


  
 


 


 
1.7 Annexation No. 22 into Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 


(Services) for Beazer (TR 31667) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY 
TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES), OF 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ADOPTING A MAP OF THE AREA 
PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED (ANNEXATION NO. 22) AND 
AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 


 
1.8 Cooperative Agreement with Riverside County Flood Control and 


Water Conservation District and Beazer Homes Holdings, LLC a 
Delaware Limited Liability Company - Project No.14-0093, Tract Map 
No. 31667 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council:  
 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Cooperative Agreement with 
Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (RCFC) 
and Beazer Homes Holdings, LLC a Delaware Limited Liability Company 
(Developer). 
 
2. Authorize the City Manager to make minor changes to the Cooperative 
Agreement if deemed necessary.     
 


1.9 Tract Map 31667 – Boulder Creek Final Map Approval, Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement, Offsite Public Improvement Agreements, 
and Stormwater Management/BMP Agreements 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City recommends 
that the City Council: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE TRACT 


MAP 31667 BEAZER HOMES AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT 


AGREEMENT 
 



https://p1cdn4static.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9894739/File/Government/Agendas%20&%20Action%20Minutes/City_Council/09-8-21/1.9%20SR%20and%20Attachments.pdf





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


8 


  
 


 


2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Final Map, Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement, Offsite Public Improvement Agreements, and the 
Stormwater Management/BMP Agreements with Beazer Homes Holdings, 
LLC for the Tract No. 31667 – Boulder Creek. 
 
3. Authorize the developer to defer recordation of the CC&Rs to prior to first 
Certificate of Occupancy. 
 


1.10 Update Participation in the TUMF Program: Resolution Adopting a 
TUMF Schedule 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - __ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 


REPEALING RESOLUTION 2020-16 AND ADOPTING APPLICABLE 
TRANSPORTATION UNIFORM MITIGATION FEES (TUMF) 


APPLICABLE TO ALL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


1.11 Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Canyon Lake for 
Building Staff Services 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
authorize the City Manager to execute the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 


1.12 Pre-Qualification for Municipal Financial Advisory Services and Bond, 
Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services 
RECOMMENDATION: The Administrative Services Department 
recommends the City Council: 
 
1. Approve the following vendors for pre-qualification to provide Municipal 
Financial Advisory Services: 
 a. CSG Advisors, Inc. 
 b. Urban Futures, Inc; and  
 
2. Approve the following vendors for pre-qualification to provide Bond, 
Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services: 
 a. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth 
 b. Nixon Peabody LLP 
 c. Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


9 


  
 


 


 
1.13 Adopt a Resolution to declare a public nuisance and abate all weeds 


growing upon private property in the City  
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution Entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -  ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA DECLARING WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT 
UPON PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC RIGHTS OF 


WAY A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND INITIATING ABATEMENT 
PROCEEDINGS 


 
1.14 Annexation No. 21 into Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 


(Services) for Omni/McVicar (TR 32035) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ___ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY 
TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES), OF 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ADOPTING A MAP OF THE AREA 
PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED (ANNEXATION NO. 21) AND 
AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 


 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


 
2.2 Wildomar Trail Town Center Mixed-Use Project (PA 20-0039) – City 


Council review of the Wildomar Trail Town Center Mixed-Use project 
located at the southwest corner of Wildomar Trail and the I-15 
Freeway 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends the 
City Council take the following actions: 


 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, CERTIFYING AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 


(SCH# 2020090408), INCLUDING ADOPTION OF FINDINGS OF FACT, 
STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS AND MITIGATION 



https://www.cityofwildomar.org/cms/One.aspx?portalId=9894827&pageId=17981953





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


10 


  
 


 


MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM (MMRP) FOR THE 
PROPOSED WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN CENTER MIXED-USE 


PROJECT, LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF WILDOMAR 
TRAIL AND THE I-15 FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 AND 376-190-002) 


 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2021-


02 (PA 20-0039) TO CHANGE THE EXISTING LAND USE 
DESIGNATION FROM BUSINESS PARK (BP) TO HIGHEST DENSITY 


RESIDENTIAL (HHDR) FOR THE NORTHERLY 10-ACRES OF THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT APN 380-250-019 TO COMPLY WITH SB 166 


“NO NET LOSS” STATE LAW PROVISIONS LOCATED ON THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF PRIELIPP ROAD AND YAMAS DRIVE 


  
3. Introduce for first reading an Ordinance entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 20-


0039 TO: 1) REMOVE THE MIXED-USE OVERLAY ZONE 
DESIGNATION FOR THE ENTIRE WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN CENTER 


PROJECT SITE, AND CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 
FOR THE 6.07-ACRE RESIDENTIAL PORTION OF PROJECT SITE 


FROM C-P-S (SCENIC HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 


WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-15 FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 AND 
376-190-002); AND 2) CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 


FOR THE NORTHERLY 10-ACRES OF THE JAMES CARTER 
PROPERTY FROM I-P (INDUSTRIAL PARK) TO R-3 (GENERAL 


RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF YAMAS 
DRIVE AND PRIELIPP ROAD (APN: 380-250-019) TO COMPLY WITH 


THE PROVISIONS OF SB 166 
 


4. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 37494, 
SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, TO SUBDIVIDE A 25.8 ACRE PROJECT 


SITE INTO NINE (9) LOTS TO DEVELOP THE WILDOMAR TRAIL 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


11 


  
 


 


TOWN CENTER MIXED-USE PROJECT LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-15 


FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 AND 376-190-002) 
 


5. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 20-0039, 


SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS TO ESTABLISH A GAS STATION/MINI-
MART WITH CONCURRENT BEER AND WINE SALES IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17.248 OF THE WILDOMAR 
MUNICIPAL CODE, AND APPROVAL OF PLOT PLAN / FINAL SITE 


PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 20-0039, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, 
TO DEVELOP THE WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN CENTER MIXED-USE 


PROJECT CONSISTING OF 41,609 SQUARE FEET OF 
COMMERCIAL/RETAIL USES, 72,000 SQUARE FEET OF 


PROFESSIONAL OFFICE SPACE AND A 109-UNIT FOR-SALE 
TOWNHOME COMMUNITY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 


OF WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-15 FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 
AND 376-190-002)City Council 


 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 Allocation of Non-Profit Replacement Funding for Fiscal Year 


2021/2022 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 


Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE BUDGETED ALLOCATION OF 
$17,500 FOR NON-PROFIT/CDBG REPLACEMENT FUNDING FOR 


FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 
 


3.2 COVID-19 Update  
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 
and file the COVID-19 update and provide direction as desired. 
 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


12 


  
 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. SFR/MFR Parking Code Update - Moore – September 2021 October 2021 
2. Weed Abatement Process- Benoit – September 2021 October 2021 
3. Salary and Benefits Survey- Benoit – March 2022 
4. Litter/illegal Dumping Fees and related signage- Moore – December 2021 
5. Campaign Contribution Limits- Nigg – October 2021 
6. Appoint Subcommittee to discuss Homeowner Associations – Swanson -  
7. Update from MSJC College regarding 2014 Measure AA Funding -Morabito 
 
 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING   







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


13 


  
 


 


In accordance with Government Code Section 54952.3, I, Janet 
Morales, City of Wildomar City Clerk, do hereby declare that the 
Board of Trustees will receive no compensation or stipend for the 
convening of the following regular meeting of the Wildomar 
Cemetery District. 
 
 
 


 


Dustin Nigg, Chair 
Ben J. Benoit, Vice Chair 
Bridgette Moore, Trustee 
Joseph Morabito, Trustee 
Marsha Swanson, Trustee 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Gary Nordquist               Thomas D. Jex 
General Manager              District Counsel 
 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


14 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Board of Trustees to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or if it is 
the desire of the Board, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 
 
 


4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
4.1 Minutes – August 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 


approve the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
1. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $715.28; 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
2. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $1,224.62; 
3. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $9,425.15; 
4. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $410.66. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for July 2021. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
September 8, 2021 


15 


  
 


 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There are no items scheduled. 
 
 


6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
There are no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


 
 


ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING   
 
 
REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review at City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at the following address: 
http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes.  Any writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) will be made 
available by appointment for public inspection at City Hall during regular business 
hours.   
 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 
 
Any person that requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting, 
may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by contacting the 
City Clerk either in person or by phone at 951-677-7751. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes





City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


September 8, 2021 


16 


I, Janet Morales, Wildomar City Clerk, do certify that at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at Wildomar City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road; U.S. Post Office, 21392 Palomar Street; Wildomar 
Library, 34303 Mission Trail Blvd; and on the City’s website at 
www.cityofwildomar.org. 


______________________________ 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
Dated: September 2, 2021 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.1 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Receive Input from the Community Regarding the 


Redrawing of Election District Boundaries 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council:  
 
1) Receive a report from staff on the redistricting process and permissible criteria to be 
considered to redraw district boundaries; and  
 
2) Conduct a public hearing to receive public input on district boundaries. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Every ten years, cities with by-district election systems must use new census data to 
review and, if needed, redraw district lines to reflect how local populations have 
changed. This process, called redistricting, ensures all districts have nearly equal 
population. The redistricting process for the City of Wildomar must be completed by 
April 17, 2022. 
 
At the January 27, 2016 City Council Meeting, the City Council took action to establish a 
single member district election system for the City Council. The City adopted its current 
district boundaries on March 9, 2016, based on 2010 census data as required by law. 
The districts must now be redrawn using the 2020 census data and in compliance with 
the FAIR MAPS Act, which was adopted by the California legislature as AB 849 and 
took effect January 1, 2020. 
 
Under the Act, the council shall draw and adopt boundaries using the following criteria 
in the listed order of priority (Elections Code 21601(c) for general law cities / 21621(c) 
for charter cities): 
 
1. Comply with the federal requirements of equal population and the Voting Rights Act 
 
2. Geographically contiguous 
 







3. Undivided neighborhoods and “communities of interest” (socio-economic geographic 
areas that should be kept together) 
 
4. Easily identifiable boundaries 
5. Compact (do not bypass one group of people to get to a more distant group of 
people) 
 
6. Shall not favor or discriminate against a political party 
 
Once the prioritized criteria are met, other traditional districting principles can be 
considered, such as: 
 
1. Minimize the number of voters delayed from voting in 2022 to 2024 
 
2. Respect voters’ choices / continuity in office 
 
3. Future population growth 
 
By law, the City must hold at least four public hearings that enable community members 
to provide input on the drawing of district maps: 
 


• At least one hearing must occur before the city or county draws draft maps 
• At least two hearings must happen after the drawing of draft maps 
• The fourth hearing can happen either before or after the drawing of draft maps 


 
City or county staff or consultants may hold a public workshop instead of one of the 
required public redistricting hearings. 
 
To increase the accessibility of these hearings, cities and counties must take the 
following steps: 
 


• At least one hearing must occur on a Saturday, Sunday, or after 6 p.m. on a 
weekday 


• If a redistricting hearing is consolidated with another local government meeting, 
the redistricting hearing portion must begin at a pre-designated time 


• Local public redistricting hearings should be made accessible to people with 
disabilities 


 
The purpose of this public hearing is to inform the public about the districting process 
and to hear from the community on what factors should be taken into consideration 
while creating district boundaries. The public is requested to provide input regarding 
communities of interest and other local factors that should be considered while drafting 
district maps. A community of interest under the relevant Elections Code for cities 
(Section 21601(c) / 21621(c)] is “a population that shares common social or economic 
interests that should be included within a single district for purposes of its effective and 
fair representation.” 







Possible features defining community of interest might include, but are not limited to: 
 
A. School attendance areas; 
 
B. Natural dividing lines such as major roads, hills, or highways; 
 
C. Areas around parks and other neighborhood landmarks; 
 
D. Common issues, neighborhood activities, or legislative/election concerns; and 
 
E. Shared demographic characteristics, such as: 
  
 (1) Similar levels of income, education, or linguistic insolation; 
 (2) Languages spoken at home; and 
 (3) Single-family and multi-family housing unit areas. 
 
Next Steps: 
On November 10, 2021, the City Council will conduct Public Hearing #2 to seek 
additional public input and provide direction on criteria to be considered while drafting 
district maps.  
 
Following that hearing, draft district maps and proposed election sequencing will be 
posted to the City website and available at City Hall. 
 
The dates for Public Hearings #3 and #4 to consider draft maps are tentative and yet to 
be determined depending on release of the delayed U.S. Census data and state 
prisoner population adjusted counts. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Janet Morales      Gary Nordquist 
City Clerk       City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
1. NDC City of Wildomar Introduction to Redistricting 2021 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.1 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Receive Input from the Community Regarding the 


Redrawing of Election District Boundaries 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council:  
 
1) Receive a report from staff on the redistricting process and permissible criteria to be 
considered to redraw district boundaries; and  
 
2) Conduct a public hearing to receive public input on district boundaries. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Every ten years, cities with by-district election systems must use new census data to 
review and, if needed, redraw district lines to reflect how local populations have 
changed. This process, called redistricting, ensures all districts have nearly equal 
population. The redistricting process for the City of Wildomar must be completed by 
April 17, 2022. 
 
At the January 27, 2016 City Council Meeting, the City Council took action to establish a 
single member district election system for the City Council. The City adopted its current 
district boundaries on March 9, 2016, based on 2010 census data as required by law. 
The districts must now be redrawn using the 2020 census data and in compliance with 
the FAIR MAPS Act, which was adopted by the California legislature as AB 849 and 
took effect January 1, 2020. 
 
Under the Act, the council shall draw and adopt boundaries using the following criteria 
in the listed order of priority (Elections Code 21601(c) for general law cities / 21621(c) 
for charter cities): 
 
1. Comply with the federal requirements of equal population and the Voting Rights Act 
 
2. Geographically contiguous 
 







City of  Wildomar
Introduction to Redistricting 2021


9/8/2021 Todd Tatum
National Demographics Corporation







City of  Wildomar
Introduction to Redistricting 2021


9/8/2021 Todd Tatum
National Demographics Corporation







2


Redistricting Process


2*SB 594 would explicitly confirm maps may be adopted by resolution.


Step Description
Two Initial Hearings


September 8 & November 10
Held prior to release of  draft maps. 
Education and to solicit input on the communities in the Districts.


Census Data Release
Mid/Late August


Census Bureau releases official 2020 Census population data.


California Data Release
Early October 2021


California Statewide Database releases California’s official ‘prisoner-
adjusted’ 2020 redistricting data.


Two Draft Map Hearings
December 15 & January 12


Two Public Hearings to discuss and revise the draft maps and to 
discuss the election sequence.


Map Adoption
By April 17, 2022


Final map must be posted at least 7 days prior to adoption.
Map adopted via ordinance.*







3


Equal Population
Federal Voting Rights Act
No Racial Gerrymandering


Minimize voters shifted to 
different election years


Respect voters’ choices / 
continuity in office


Future population growth


Preserving the core of  existing 
districts


1. Federal Laws 2. California Criteria for 
Cities (rank ordered)


1.Geographically contiguous


2.Undivided neighborhoods and 
“communities of  interest” 
(Socio-economic geographic areas that 
should be kept together)


3.Easily identifiable boundaries


4.Compact
(Do not bypass one group of  people to 
get to a more distant group of  people)


Prohibited:
“Shall not favor or discriminate against 
a political party.”


3. Other Traditional 
Redistricting Principles


3


Redistricting Rules and Goals







4


Demographic Summary of  Existing Districts


Estimates using official 2020 demographic 
data and NDC’s estimated total population 


figures. 


Each of  the 5 districts must contain about 
7,375 people.


Wildomar - Current Districts


District 1 2 3 4 5 Total


2020 2020 Census 7,072 6,450 7,572 6,684 9,097 36,875 


Deviation from ideal -303 -925 197 -691 1,722 2,647


% Deviation -3.29% -10.03% 2.14% -7.50% 18.68% 28.71%


2010 Total Pop


% Hisp 57% 38% 35% 45% 32% 41%


% NH White 34% 50% 46% 43% 45% 44%


% NH Black 3% 3% 5% 2% 7% 4%


% Asian-American 3% 4% 9% 4% 11% 7%


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Total 4,182 4,286 5,012 4,516 5,559 23,556


% Hisp 42% 30% 32% 34% 25% 32%


% NH White 49% 64% 53% 59% 52% 55%


% NH Black 4% 2% 7% 2% 9% 5%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 3% 2% 7% 4% 12% 6%







5


Latino CVAP







6


Defining Neighborhoods


1st Question: What is your neighborhood?
2nd Question: What are its geographic boundaries?


Examples of  physical features defining a neighborhood boundary:
 Natural neighborhood dividing lines, such as highway or major 


roads, rivers, canals and/or hills
 Areas around parks or schools
 Other neighborhood landmarks


In the absence of  public testimony, planning records and other similar 
documents may provide definition.


6







7


Beyond Neighborhoods:
Defining Communities of  Interest


1st Question: What defines your community?
 Geographic Area, plus
 Shared issue or characteristic
 Shared social or economic interest
 Impacted by county policies


 Tell us “your community’s story”


2nd Question: Would this community benefit from being “included within a 
single district for purposes of  its effective and fair representation”? 
 Or would it benefit more from having multiple representatives?


Definitions of  Communities of  Interest may not include relationships 
with political parties, incumbents, or political candidates.


7







8


Beyond Neighborhoods: Communities


8


Under the California Elections Code, “community of  interest” has a very 
specific definition in the context of  districting and redistricting cities and 
counties:


A “community of  interest” is a population that shares common social or 
economic interests that should be included within a single district for 
purposes of  its effective and fair representation.


Communities of  interest do not include relationships with political parties, 
incumbents, or political candidates.
(emphasis added)







9


Story Map
 Easy to use “story” of  demographic and other data


 Similar to PowerPoint, but interactive 
 Used to identify “communities of  interest”
 Sample map from Goleta 



https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/15df1ac9b585488b87ec74575934dd6f

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/15df1ac9b585488b87ec74575934dd6f





10


Simple Map Review Tool


Online Interactive Review Map
 ESRI’s “ArcGIS Online” – similar to Google Maps in ease of  use
 Used to review, analyze and compare maps, not to create them
 Includes overlays of  “community of  interest”  and other data


10



http://www.arcgis.com/apps/View/index.html?appid=f311a464f12c4ed78690d55f0d98d14a





11


Public Hearing & Discussion


11


What is your neighborhood and what are its boundaries?


What other notable areas are in the City, and what are their 
boundaries?







12


Share Your Thoughts


Website
www.cityofwildomar.org


Phone
951-677-7751 x210 


Email
jmorales@cityofwildomar.org


12



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/

mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





Agenda Item #1.2 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


JUNE 9, 2021 
 
CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 4:00 P.M. 
The City Council Closed Session to be held on June 9, 2021, at 4PM at the 
Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith Road Ste. 106 Wildomar, CA 
92595 and remotely pursuant to Governor Newsome’s Executive Orders N-25-20 
and N-29-20 was canceled. 
 
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Regular meeting of June 9, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was conducted 
in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 
106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the provisions of 
Governor’s Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and was called to order by 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit at 5:01 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit. 
 
Members absent: Mayor Nigg 
 
Staff in attendance: City Manager Nordquist, Assistant City Manager York, City 
Attorney Jex, City Clerk Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services 
Director Howell, Project Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director 
Davidson, Associate Engineer Luna and Parks, Community Services and 
Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
The flag salute was led by Councilmember Morabito. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. Wildomar Library Manager Brautigam presented the Library Update. 
 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
There were no reports scheduled. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


2 


  
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Veronica Langworthy, resident, provided public comment on Agenda Item #1.5. 
Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment on Agenda Item #1.6. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by Councilmember 
Moore to approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


3 


  
 
1.2 Minutes- April 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 


Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 
  
1. Warrant Register dated 05-06-2021 in the amount of $250,946.68. 
2. Warrant Register dated 05-13-2021 in the amount of $368,691.32. 
3. Warrant Register dated 05-20-2021 in the amount of $320,320.44. 
4. Warrant Register dated 05-27-2021 in the amount of $232,475.71. 
5. Payroll Register dated 04-01-2021 in the amount of $159,823.75. 
    


1.4 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for April 2021. 
 


1.5 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 198 (ZOA No. 2021-01) 
Adopted an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 198 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND APPROVING ZONING 


ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-01 AMENDING TITLE 17 
(ZONING) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD SECTION 
17.12.060 PROHIBITING INDUSTRIAL HEMP CULTIVATION IN ALL 


ZONING DISTRICTS 
 


1.6 FY 2021-22 List of Projects for the SB1: Road Repair and 
Accountability Act of 2017 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 20 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021-22 FUNDED BY SB1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY 


ACT OF 2017. 
 


1.7 St. Frances of Rome Catholic Church – Public Improvement 
Agreement, Grading Agreement and BMP Agreement  
Authorized the City Manager to execute the Public Improvement 
Agreement, Grading Agreement and the BMP Agreement with Roman 
Catholic Diocese of San Bernardino for the St. Frances of Rome Catholic 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


4 


  
 


Church project. 
 


1.8 Annual Statement of Investment Policy  
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 21 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 
 


1.9 Appropriations Limit for FY 2021-22 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 22 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL 


YEAR 2021-22 
 


1.10 Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 89 1-
Consolidated-Approval of Engineer’s Report and Intention to Levy 
1) Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 23 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE ANNUAL ENGINEER’S REPORT 
REGARDING THE PROPOSED LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 


ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL ZONES OF LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 89-1-CONSOLIDATED, FISCAL YEAR 


2021-22 
 
2) Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 24 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT 
ASSESSMENTS FOR ALL ZONES OF LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 


MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 89-1-CONSOLIDATED, FISCAL YEAR 
2021-22 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


5 


  
 


 
1.11 Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 89 1-


Consolidated-Initiating Proceeding for Levy and Collection of 
Assessments 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 25 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, INITIATING PROCEEDINGS FOR THE LEVY AND 


COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 FOR 
ALL ZONES OF LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 


DISTRICT NO. 89-1-CONSOLIDATED OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
PURSUANT TO THE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ACT OF 1972 


 
1.12 County Service Areas Notice of Intent to Establish Charges for FY 


2021-22 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 26 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE PUBLIC HEARING TO ESTABLISH 
SERVICE AREA CHARGES WITHIN THE CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 


2021-22 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Trash Collection Services Liens 


 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  
 
Project consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Michael Swanson, resident, provided public comment. 
 
There being no further testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit closed the public 
hearing.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


6 


  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 27 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CONFIRMING THE REPORT OF DELINQUENT TRASH 
ACCOUNTS AND REQUESTING THE DELINQUENCIES BE PLACED 


ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 


3.1 Western Community Energy Update 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  
 
Western Riverside Council of Governments Interim Executive Director Gray 
presented the Western Community Energy Update. 
 
The following residents provided public comment: Gina Castanon, Veronica 
Langworthy, Kenny Mayes, Monty Goddard.  
 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the update. 
 


3.2 COVID-19 Update  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  


 
 City Manager Nordquist presented the staff report. 
 
 The following residents provided public comment: Robert, Veronica 


Langworthy. 
 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the COVID-19 
update and provide direction to staff to bring back the Resolution to 
establish the City Council Meeting start time to 6PM for Open Session and 
5PM for Closed Session. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


7 


  
 


 
3.3 Wildomar Municipal Code Update: City Council review and update the 


Wildomar Municipal Code 3.32.050 Contract Retention for Public 
Projects  


 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  
 
Associate Engineer Luna presented the staff report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to introduce and approve the first reading of an 
Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 199 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING A CODE UPDATE PURSUANT 
TO PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 7201(B), AND AMENDING 


TITLE 3 (REVENUE AND FINANCE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO REVISE SECTION 3.32.050 


 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 


3.4 Graffiti Abatement on Private Property (Morabito) 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  
 
Assistant City Manager York and Councilmember Morabito presented the 
staff report. 
 
The following residents provided public comment: Kenny Mayes, Robert, 
Monty Goddard, Greg Langworthy. 
 


 It was the consensus of the City Council to provide direction to staff not 
make any changes to the Wildomar Municipal Code; Prepare a Right of 
Entry Authorization Form and commence graffiti abatement on private 
property. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


8 


  
 


 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL OF THE WILDOMAR 
CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
At 7:45 p.m. Vice Chair Benoit called the Wildomar Cemetery District to order with 
Trustee Moore, Morabito, Swanson and Vice Chair Benoit present. Chair Nigg was 
absent. 


 
3.5.A FY 2021-22 & 2022-23 Biennial Budget  
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title.  
 
Administrative Services Director Howell presented the staff report.  
 
Monty Goddard, with time donated by his wife, provided public comment for 
a total of 6 minutes. 


 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to:  
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 28 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AN ADOPTION OF THE FY 2021-22 & 
2022-23 BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES, SCHEDULE OF 


AUTHORIZED POSITIONS FOR FY 2021-22 & 2022-23 AND THE FIVE-
YEAR FY 2021-2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


 
2. Approve and authorize the City Manager to sign agreements with 
Riverside County Sheriff’s Department for law enforcement services for the 
period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024 and with Riverside County Fire 
Department for fire and fire marshal services for the period of July 1, 2021 
to June 30, 2024. 
 
3. Approve the following decision packages: 
 
Clinton Keith Corridor Specific Plan - $50, 000 
ERP Replacement - $200,000 
Traffic Calming Improvements - $25,000 
New Fire Station Conceptual Plan - $50,000 
CIP 88 Grant Match for Bundy/Harvest Signal - $27,000 
CIP 89 Traffic Signal Retrofits - $38,000 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


9 


  
 


 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 


3.5.B FY 2021-22 and 2022-2023 Biennial Budget  
A MOTION was made by Trustee Moore seconded by Trustee Swanson to 
adopt a resolution entitled:  


 
 


RESOLUTION NO. WCD2021- 01 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WILDOMAR 


CEMETERY DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING AN ADOPTION OF THE FY 
2021-22 and 2022-23 BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES 


 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Chair Nigg 


 
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING 
There being no further business, Vice Chair Benoit adjourned the Wildomar  
 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
City Manager Nordquist presented the report. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Added: Weed Abatement Process- Benoit 
 
 
ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit declared the meeting 
adjourned at 7:57 p.m.  
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 09, 2021 


10 


  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
City Clerk     Mayor 
 
 
 


 







ITEM #1.3 
 


 
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
JUNE 30, 2021 


CALL TO ORDER – SPECIAL SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Special meeting of June 30, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was conducted 
in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 
106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the provisions of 
Governor’s Executive Orders N-08-21 and was called to order by Mayor Nigg at 
Benoit at 5:00 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg. 
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant City Manager York, City Attorney Jex, City Clerk 
Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director Howell, Project 
Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, Associate Engineer 
Luna and Parks, Community Services and Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
The flag salute was led by Mayor Nigg. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The following residents presented comments on items not on the agenda: Kenny 
Mayes, Mari Bacon, Gina Castanon, Veronica Langworthy, Monty Goddard.  
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Gina Castanon and Mari Bacon provided public comment on Item #1.1. 
 
1.1 Santa Rosa Plateau Nature Education Foundation (SRPNEF) Special 


Event Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to table item until the July 2021 City Council 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 30, 2021 


2 


  
 


Meeting. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by Councilmember 
Moore to pull Agenda Items # 1.2 and 1.3 and approve the remainder of the 
consent calendar. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
1.2 Homeless Services Contract-Social Work Action Group (SWAG) 


 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to approve and authorize the City Manager to 
execute a contract with Social Work Action Group (SWAG) to provide 
homeless services to the City of Wildomar for the fiscal year 2021-22. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
 


1.3 Consulting Services Contract -FoBro Consulting, LLC 
 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 30, 2021 


3 


  
 


Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to approve and authorize the City Manager to 
execute a contract with FoBro Consulting, LLC to provide project-based 
developer billing, CDBG project administration and Homeless program 
services. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


1.4 Wildland Fire Protection Agreement for FY 2021/22 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 29 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH THE 
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION (CAL FIRE) 
FOR WILDLAND FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES FROM JULY 1, 2021 


TO JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There were no items scheduled. 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 
3.1 Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) Policy and Resolution 


Implementing an ALPR System within the City’s Jurisdictional 
Boundaries 


 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Associate Engineer Luna presented the staff report. 
 
Veronica Langworthy, resident, provided public comment. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 30, 2021 


4 


  
 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit to: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 30 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A LICENSE PLATE CAMERA/ALPR USAGE 
AND PRIVACY POLICY AND APPROVING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 


AN ALPR SYSTEM WITHIN THE CITY’S JURISDICTIONAL 
BOUNDARIES 


 
2. Authorize the City Manager to execute documents and agreements for 
fourteen (14) Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) Cameras from Flock 
Group Inc. in an amount not to exceed $38,500 annually based on the sole 
source purchasing process noted in Wildomar Municipal Code Section 
3.24.080 (B). 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.2 Wildomar Active Transportation Plan 
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Associate Engineer Luna presented the staff report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 31 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A STATUTORY CEQA EXEMPTION PER 


SECTION 15262 (FEASIBILITY AND PLANNING STUDIES) OF CEQA 
AND ADOPTION OF THE WILDOMAR ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION 


PLAN 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 30, 2021 


5 


  
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


3.3 Wildomar Mobility Element Draft 
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Associate Engineer Luna presented the staff report. 


 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the Wildomar 
Mobility Element Draft Document. 


 
3.4 FY 2020-21 4th Quarter Budget Report 
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Administrative Services Director Howell presented the staff report. 
 
Monty Goddard, resident, provided public comment. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to approve the Fiscal Year 2020-21 4th Quarter 
Budget Report, and adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 32 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2020-21 
BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
3.5 Position Classification Schedule Update 
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 30, 2021 


6 


  
 


Administrative Services Director Howell presented the staff report. 
 
Monty Goddard, resident, provided public comment. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 33 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION 
SCHEDULE, UPDATING THE BUILDING INSPECTION I/II/III AND 


COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTOR POSITION CLASSIFICATION 
DESCRIPTIONS, AND APPROVE NEW POSITION CLASSIFICATION 
DESCRIPTIONS FOR THE ACCOUNTANT, BUILDING INSPECTION 
SUPERVISOR, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TECHNICIAN, PUBLIC 


WORKS INSPECTOR, PURCHASING & CONTRACTS COORDINATOR, 
AND SENIOR ENGINEER POSITIONS ; with the following change:  


 
Position Classification Schedule with a correction to the Building 
Department section. There will be one Analyst and one Senior Analyst. 
 
MOTION carried 4-1, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   Morabito 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report.  


 
 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg declared the meeting adjourned at 
6:55 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 30, 2021 


7 


  
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
City Clerk     Mayor 
 
 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.4 


  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant and Payroll Registers 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the following: 
 
 For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 


 
1. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $328,302.25; 
2. Warrant Register dated 08-12-2021 in the amount of $20,733.16; 
3. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $25,966.18; 
4. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $29,380.46; 


 
 For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
 


5. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $80,039.55; 
6. Warrant Register dated 08-12-2021 in the amount of $89,028.71; 
7. Warrant Register dated 08-12-2021 in the amount of $8,415.00; 
8. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $42,076.98; 
9. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $125,682.76; 
10. Payroll Register dated 09-01-2021 in the amount of $205,636.13. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The City of Wildomar requires that the City Council audit payments of demands and direct 
the City Manager to issue checks. The Warrant and Payroll Registers are submitted for 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant, Wire Transfer and Payroll Registers will have a budgetary impact in the 
amount and fiscal year noted in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2020/21 and 2021/22 Budgets. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director              City Manager 







  
 


  


ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 08/04/2021 (2)   Voucher List 08/19/2021 (2) 
Voucher List 08/12/2021 (3)       Voucher List 08/26/2021 (2) 
Payroll Register 09/01/2021     







08/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:31:14AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213968 8/4/2021 000080  BURKE, WILLIAMS AND SORENSON,, LLP 271179 JUNE 2021 LEGAL FEES  57,580.25


Total :  57,580.25


 213969 8/4/2021 000037  DATA TICKET, INC. 126496 JUNE 2021 ONLINE/SSN CITATION 


PROCESSING


 200.00


 150.00JUNE 2021 DAILY CITE PROCESSING127136


Total :  350.00


 213970 8/4/2021 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP 66816BAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT MGMT - JAN 2021 


BAL.


 926.25


 100.00LLMD 89-1C ZONE 52 - APRIL - 


CORRECTION


69272BAL


 79,425.00JUNE 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP -70765


 111,135.75JUNE 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC -70766


Total :  191,587.00


 213971 8/4/2021 000131  WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY, RCA 80321A MSHCP MITIGATION FEES: APRIL 2021  2,234.00


 2,234.00MSHCP MITIGATION FEES: MAY 202180321B


 74,317.00MSHCP MITIGATION FEES: JUNE 202180321C


Total :  78,785.00


Bank total :  328,302.25 4 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 328,302.25Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 4







08/12/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:42:06AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213989 8/12/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 305741/3 NON-DEPT DEPT SUPPLIES  7.84


 65.05NON-DEPT DEPT SUPPLIES305761/3


 10.32PUBLIC WORKS DEPT SUPPLIES305804/3


 26.83PARKS SUPPLIES305893/3


 14.44COVID-19 SUPPLIES305905/3


Total :  124.48


 213990 8/12/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 36619 JUNE 2021 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


ZONE


 135.00


 14,735.66JUNE 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE36657


 360.00JUNE 2021 LANDSCAPE REPAIR 


WINDSONG


36702


 1,525.34JUNE 2021 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


ZONE


36723


Total :  16,756.00


 213991 8/12/2021 000836  KOA CORPORATION JB93120-10 PROF SVC 11/02/20-11/29/20 WILDOMAR 


SSAR


 1,861.50


 1,532.00PROF SVC 02/01/21-02/28/21 WILDOMAR 


SSAR


JB93120-12


Total :  3,393.50


 213992 8/12/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER63021 VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE  250.00


Total :  250.00


 213993 8/12/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER62321 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPT 


SUPPLIES


 140.29


 68.89ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MEETING62321


Total :  209.18


Bank total :  20,733.16 5 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 20,733.16Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 5







08/19/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:26:27AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214016 8/19/2021 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 74730 BLOOD DRAW (3)  165.00


Total :  165.00


 214017 8/19/2021 001437  CENTER AGAINST SEXUAL ASSAULT 1162 POLICE DEPT - DOM. VIOLENCE EXAM 


05/21/2


 800.00


 300.00POLICE DEPT - FOLLOW UP EXAM 06/15/21 


CA


1187


Total :  1,100.00


 214018 8/19/2021 001686  COAT DESIGN REMODEL 30221 REFUND OF UNUSED DEVELOPERS 


DEPOSIT #20-


 43.68


Total :  43.68


 214019 8/19/2021 001210  MURRIETA/WILDOMAR CHAMBER, OF COMMERCE38078 MEGA MIXER - ECON. DEV.  200.00


Total :  200.00


 214020 8/19/2021 001306  SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP 06302021 JUNE 2021 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  9,600.00


Total :  9,600.00


 214021 8/19/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-547 06/01/21-06/30/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


 14,857.50


Total :  14,857.50


Bank total :  25,966.18 6 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 25,966.18Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 6







08/26/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:46:26AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214048 8/26/2021 000054  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SL220230 APRIL 2021-JUNE 2021 SIGNALS & 


LIGHTING


 3,133.17


Total :  3,133.17


 214049 8/26/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76091 JUNE 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP 028-1  675.13


Total :  675.13


 214050 8/26/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-489 05/01/21-05/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  4,450.00


 500.0003/01/21-05/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-490


 1,890.0006/01/21-06/30/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-512


 14,142.1606/01/21-06/30/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-545


 4,170.0006/01/21-06/30/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-546


 420.0006/01/21-06/30/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-579


Total :  25,572.16


Bank total :  29,380.46 3 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 29,380.46Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 3







08/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:32:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213972 8/4/2021 001102  BEE GUY TRAVIS 1254 BEE REMOVAL FROM FALL TREE @ 


LEMON/LOST


 1,000.00


Total :  1,000.00


 213973 8/4/2021 001671  BERROTERAN, RAUL 73021 REIMBURSE - OFFICER SAFETY UNIFORM  297.83


Total :  297.83


 213974 8/4/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 5068756270 MARNA OBRIEN FIRST AID & SAFETY  207.26


Total :  207.26


 213975 8/4/2021 000700  CPRS 72021 MEMBER ANNUAL - DIST 11 - B MOORE 


THRU 1


 100.00


Total :  100.00


 213976 8/4/2021 001338  DEANZA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC573589A PEST CONTROL (07/14/21)  25.00


Total :  25.00


 213977 8/4/2021 000342  FENCE MASTERS 1202917 INSTALL NEW HINGE ON EXISTING WALK 


GATE


 462.00


Total :  462.00


 213978 8/4/2021 001682  FREELANCE ASL INTERPRETING 001 INTERPRETER - WILDOMAR BIRTHDAY 


EVENT


 150.00


Total :  150.00


 213979 8/4/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 36768 JULY 2021 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE - 


MAL


 77.20


Total :  77.20


 213980 8/4/2021 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 73121 07/01/21-07/31/21 PROJECT CONSULTANT  7,232.50


Total :  7,232.50


 213981 8/4/2021 001683  PARKER, JOHN 80321 REIMBURSE - OFFICER SAFETY UNIFORM  195.76


Total :  195.76


 213982 8/4/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 286763 07/22/21-08/18/21 - PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WIND


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 213983 8/4/2021 000149  RIVERSIDE COUNTY EXECUTIVE, OFFICE2022-01WIL JULY 2021-SEPT 2021 QTRLY ANIMAL 


SHELTER


 69,890.00







08/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:32:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  69,890.00 213983 8/4/2021 000149 000149  RIVERSIDE COUNTY EXECUTIVE, OFFICE


Bank total :  80,039.55 12 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 80,039.55Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 12







08/12/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:42:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213994 8/12/2021 000210  ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES 212932 COMMONS @ HIDDEN SPRINGS MND  3,357.00


Total :  3,357.00


 213995 8/12/2021 001002  ARCHITERRA DESIGN GROUP 28552 06/25/21-07/24/21 LANDSCAPE DESIGN 


GUIDE


 2,270.00


 806.0006/25/21-07/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - SITE28558


 743.5006/25/21-07/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - SITE28559


 625.0006/25/21-07/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 2ND P28560


 1,000.0006/25/21-07/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 2ND P28561


 750.0006/25/21-07/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 2ND P28562


 500.0006/25/21-07/28/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - REVIE28563


Total :  6,694.50


 213996 8/12/2021 001145  BENNETT BUILDERS 72921 FRONT COUNTER TI - CONF. RM. WINDOW 


- CO


 2,800.00


Total :  2,800.00


 213997 8/12/2021 000022  EDISON 71921A 06/17/21-07/18/21 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR 


31


 9.36


 20.5906/15/21-07/18/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO71921B


 75.2106/15/21-07/18/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO71921C


 35.3106/28/21-07/27/21 ELECTRIC - BASEBALL FI72821A


 917.1406/22/21-07/27/21 ELECTRIC72821B


Total :  1,057.61


 213998 8/12/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11184620 06/08/21-07/08/21 WATER ZONE 52 LOC 01  167.35


 39.3006/08/21-07/08/21 WATER ZONE 29 LOC 0211184676


 395.3706/08/21-07/08/21 WATER ZONE 71 LOC 0111184953


 77.0806/08/21-07/08/21 WATER 32637 GRUWELL -11185153


 4,666.3406/08/21-07/08/21 WATER MARNA OBRIEN11185234


 86.5306/11/21-07/11/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 7 M111189915


 157.0706/11/21-07/11/21 WATER HERITAGE PARK 


(A


11189928


 926.7806/12/21-07/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M1


11193036


 2,552.0406/12/21-07/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M2


11193038


 897.7706/12/21-07/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 24 


M1


11194807







08/12/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:42:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213998 8/12/2021 (Continued)000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 329.4306/12/21-07/12/21 WATER CFD 2013-1 ZONE11195978


 181.0806/12/21-07/12/21 WATER MALAGA 


GATEWAY P


11196138


 1,992.8106/15/21-07/15/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 01 


M


11196804


 283.6706/15/21-07/15/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 03 


M


11197053


 498.6006/15/21-07/15/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 02 


M


11197054


 306.3506/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 23 


M1


11199752


 98.0306/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 211199961


 88.1306/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 49 


M1


11200001


 190.8706/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 51 LOC 111200256


 570.9806/18/21-07/18/21 WATER BASEBALL FIELD11200422


 832.7706/18/21-07/18/21 WATER WINDSONG PARK11200463


 495.0106/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M1


11200973


 236.2706/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M2


11201051


 302.6306/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 111201054


 308.8706/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 42 &11201152


 151.6706/18/21-07/18/21 WATER 22450 1/2 


CERVER


11201547


 189.7906/18/21-07/18/21 WATER 22450 CERVERA11201789


 263.0306/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 62 - 2293311202884


 132.2106/18/21-07/18/21 WATER ZONE 67 - 


ARNNET


11202969


 326.4206/19/21-07/19/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 35 


M1


11203525


Total :  17,744.25


 213999 8/12/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 117 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,412.00


Total :  3,412.00


 214000 8/12/2021 000941  FRONTIER 72221 07/22/21-08/21/21 FIOS INTERNET 


CHARGES


 175.98







08/12/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:42:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  175.98 214000 8/12/2021 000941 000941  FRONTIER


 214001 8/12/2021 001636  GARVEY EQUIPMENT COMPANY 139271 FS61 EQUIPMENT PO 0000317  1,629.08


Total :  1,629.08


 214002 8/12/2021 000876  GATES SOUND 21-1129 FRONT COUNTER TI TV/MEDIA - COVID - PO 


0


 4,320.47


Total :  4,320.47


 214003 8/12/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 29788804 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. #25-1249376  214.24


Total :  214.24


 214004 8/12/2021 001685  HARVEY, TAMARA 001 INTERPRETER - WILDOMAR BIRTHDAY 


EVENT


 150.00


Total :  150.00


 214005 8/12/2021 001666  INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 58 0000351 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT 


SERVICES


 8,000.00


Total :  8,000.00


 214006 8/12/2021 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 232476 COPIER SUPPLIES  234.35


Total :  234.35


 214007 8/12/2021 001210  MURRIETA/WILDOMAR CHAMBER, OF COMMERCE38702 ANNUAL AWARDS CELEBRATION  500.00


Total :  500.00


 214008 8/12/2021 001071  SHRED-IT USA 8182468624 CONTRACTUAL SHREDDING SERVICE 


(JULY PICK


 166.90


Total :  166.90


 214009 8/12/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5620035946 GRAND & VIRGO INSTALL KD RADAR 


SPEED SIG


 15,189.22


Total :  15,189.22


 214010 8/12/2021 001422  SOLORIO, TRAVIS 80221 07/19/21-07/30/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 44.08


Total :  44.08


 214011 8/12/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 72421 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


07/24/2


 134.91


Total :  134.91







08/12/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 9:42:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214012 8/12/2021 000437  VERIZON WIRELESS 9884651609 07/23/21-08/22/21 DATA INTERNET CHARGE  2,714.07


 76.0207/23/21-08/22/21 DATA INTERNET CHARGE9884651610


Total :  2,790.09


 214013 8/12/2021 001661  WORKSPACE INTERIORS BY OFFICE, DEPOT186049332 FRONT COUNTER FLOORING - COVID - PO 


0000


 20,414.03


Total :  20,414.03


Bank total :  89,028.71 20 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 89,028.71Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 20







08/12/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:56:54AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214014 8/12/2021 001273  COMFORT ELECTRIC INC. 99826 FRONT COUNTER TI ELECTRIC & LIGHTING 


- C


 8,365.00


Total :  8,365.00


 214015 8/12/2021 000283  RIVERSIDE COUNTY CLERK 81221 FILING - NOE CIP 057-1 & 058  50.00


Total :  50.00


Bank total :  8,415.00 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 8,415.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







08/19/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:27:01AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214022 8/19/2021 000554  AT & T 72821 TELEPHONE LONG DISTRANCE P/E 


07/28/21


 44.63


Total :  44.63


 214023 8/19/2021 001671  BERROTERAN, RAUL INVF57B3718191 REIMBURSE COVID-19 TEST  165.00


Total :  165.00


 214024 8/19/2021 001678  CALIFORNIA INTERGOVERNMENTAL, RISK AUTHORITY (CIRA)INV-1095 ANNUAL CYBER, CRIME, POLLUTION & 


PROPERT


 16,509.14


Total :  16,509.14


 214025 8/19/2021 000698  CITYBYAPP INC 07292021 CITY MOBILE APP - HOST / ANNUAL 


RENEWAL


 2,574.00


Total :  2,574.00


 214026 8/19/2021 000785  CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 82091148 JULY 2021 CODE ENFORCEMENT 


SOFTWARE


 165.50


Total :  165.50


 214027 8/19/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 2696 07/01/21-07/31/21 STREET & BIKE LANE 


SWE


 603.08


 880.607/28/21 DUMP 40 YD BOX & DISPOSAL FEE338473


 166.5208/01/21  3 YD BOX - BASEBALL FIELD338497


 166.5208/01/21  3 YD BOX - FIRE STATION #61338556


Total :  1,816.72


 214028 8/19/2021 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 803I AUGUST 2021 JANITORIAL SERVICE - CITY 


HA


 2,380.00


Total :  2,380.00


 214029 8/19/2021 000075  DOGGIE WALK BAGS, INC. 0094587-IN DISPENSER BAGS - PARKS  567.92


Total :  567.92


 214030 8/19/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 29832801 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. #13-1228588  214.24


Total :  214.24


 214031 8/19/2021 001687  HADLEY, BRIAN INV58E0C5149D9 REIMBURSE COVID-19 TEST  165.00


Total :  165.00







08/19/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:27:01AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214032 8/19/2021 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 232815 07/01/21-07/31/21 CONTRACT COPIER SVC 


MA


 576.23


Total :  576.23


 214033 8/19/2021 001210  MURRIETA/WILDOMAR CHAMBER, OF COMMERCE38702-ADD ANNUAL AWARDS CELEBRATION - ADD'L  125.00


Total :  125.00


 214034 8/19/2021 000778  PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GRP INC 2108A930 05/29/21-07/30/21 PROFESSIONAL SVCS 


AGRE


 544.16


Total :  544.16


 214035 8/19/2021 000185  PITNEY BOWES 80621 POSTAGE METER REFILL 08/02/21  503.50


Total :  503.50


 214036 8/19/2021 001393  SOCALGAS 81121 07/09/21-08/09/21 GASS - FIRE DEPT 32637  50.66


Total :  50.66


 214037 8/19/2021 001306  SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP 07312021 0000350 FACILITATE & LEAD THE OVERALL SCOPE 


OF H


 15,435.00


Total :  15,435.00


 214038 8/19/2021 001422  SOLORIO, TRAVIS 81621 07/31/21-08/13/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 35.96


Total :  35.96


 214039 8/19/2021 001593  THE HR SPECIALIST LT0303 HR SUBSCRIPTION - ANNUAL  199.00


Total :  199.00


 214040 8/19/2021 001495  TIME WARNER CABLE 2318080821 CABLE THROUGH 09/07/21 - FS61  5.32


Total :  5.32


Bank total :  42,076.98 19 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 42,076.98Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 19







08/26/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:46:53AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214051 8/26/2021 000760  ARMADA ADMINISTRATORS 167352 SEPTEMBER 2021 PREMIUM  3,152.00


Total :  3,152.00


 214052 8/26/2021 000008  AT&T MOBILITY X08202021 08/13/21-09/12/21 COUNCIL MOBILE PHONE  57.00


Total :  57.00


 214053 8/26/2021 001671  BERROTERAN, RAUL 82321 REIMBURSE - RUGGED BOOK IPAD COVER  174.98


 82.65REIMBURSE - IPHONE COVER82321B


 60.00REIMBURSE: SEWN PATCHES82421


 39.81REIMBURSE: ID PATCHES82521A


 198.45REIMBURSE: SHIRTS82521B


 48.80REIMBURSE: CAR ADAPTER82521C


Total :  604.69


 214054 8/26/2021 001330  BMW MOTORCYCLES OF RIVERSIDE 6028032/1 BMW MOTORCYCLE MAINTENANCE - 


SHERIFF


 235.27


Total :  235.27


 214055 8/26/2021 001669  COMCATE SOFTWARE INC 7634 0000344 CODE ENFORCEMENT SOFTWARE  9,998.00


Total :  9,998.00


 214056 8/26/2021 000027  DIRECT TV 082317220X210813 08/12/21-09/11/21 CABLE SERVICE - CITY H  160.99


Total :  160.99


 214057 8/26/2021 000022  EDISON 81321A 06/15/21-08/11/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #  453.25


 196.5807/14/21-08/11/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #81321B


 56.8707/14/21-08/11/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #81321C


Total :  706.70


 214058 8/26/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 118 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,300.00


Total :  3,300.00


 214059 8/26/2021 001690  GALLS, LLC 18882305 CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPT SUPPLIES  91.32


Total :  91.32


 214060 8/26/2021 001325  GEOCON WEST, INC. 721070429 CIP 026-1 THROUGH 07/11/21  4,105.50


Total :  4,105.50







08/26/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:46:53AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214061 8/26/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 29861008 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. 


#003-1585799


 214.24


Total :  214.24


 214062 8/26/2021 001047  INTERPRETERS UNLIMITED 280525 SPANISH INTERPRETER 07/05/21 


WI211860029


 32.00


Total :  32.00


 214063 8/26/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-14116 0000357 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


 5,044.50


0000357  88.00WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


0808-14130


0000357  5,054.00WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


0808-14156


Total :  10,186.50


 214064 8/26/2021 001555  NBS 721000041 JULY 2021 PROFESSIONAL SVCS  2,513.75


Total :  2,513.75


 214065 8/26/2021 001543  NPPW SERVICES 11664 0000345 COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


 808.04


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


11665


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


11666


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


11715


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


11716


 65.007/19/21 GRAFFITI REMOVAL11717


Total :  3,297.16


 214066 8/26/2021 000526  PRINT POSTAL 16044 RECALL ELECTION SIGNAGE  102.73


Total :  102.73


 214067 8/26/2021 000042  PV MAINTENANCE, INC. 005-244 JULY 2021 CITYWIDE MAINTENANCE 


CONTRACTU


 46,819.10


Total :  46,819.10


 214068 8/26/2021 001689  RATHBUN, CY 20203 0000360 PHOTOGRAPHY SERVICE FOR CITY 


EVENTS, $10


 100.00







08/26/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:46:53AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  100.00 214068 8/26/2021 001689 001689  RATHBUN, CY


 214069 8/26/2021 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000039450 RIVERSIDE CAL-ID FY 21/22 MEMBER 


AGENCY


 37,183.00


Total :  37,183.00


 214070 8/26/2021 001021  SPICER CONSULTING GROUP 857 FY 21/22 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1-C/CSA 


22/


 2,791.67


Total :  2,791.67


 214071 8/26/2021 001624  STENO SOLUTIONS 43471 07/01/21-07/31/21 TRANSCRIPTION  31.14


Total :  31.14


Bank total :  125,682.76 21 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 125,682.76Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 21







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


8/5/2021 Heartland Payroll 07/17/2021-07/30/2021 78,959.69$    


8/19/2021 Heartland Payroll 07/31/2021-08/13/2021 84,568.88


9/1/2021 Heartland Payroll 08/01/2021-08/31/2021 1,690.76


TOTAL 165,219.33$  


City of Wildomar


Payroll Warrant Register


9/1/2021







 
CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 


Agenda Item #1.5 
CONSENT CALENDAR 


Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 
 


TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Treasurer’s Report for July 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of July 2021. 
The City utilizes both the California State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) for its city investments. 
Utilizing the two investment programs allows the City to potentially increase the interest 
earned on the money held.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 


 







BEGINNING + (-) ENDING
FUND ACCOUNT INSTITUTION BALANCE DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS BALANCE RATE


All All WELLS FARGO # 11,000,504.72  $ 6,146,081.11 (2,638,433.51)  $ 14,508,152.32 0.000%


TOTAL  $ 11,000,504.72  $ 6,146,081.11  $ (2,638,433.51)  $ 14,508,152.32


PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


FUND BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


All  $ 3,662,540.25  $ 3,662,540.25  $ 3,662,540.25 100.00% 0 0.221%
All  $ 5,592,466.98  $ 5,592,466.98  $ 5,592,466.98 100.00% 0 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 9,255,007.23  $ 9,255,007.23  $ 9,255,007.23 100.00%


CITY $ 23,763,159.55


(-)
+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
FUND BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


All  $ 3,659,552.33  $ 2,987.92  $ 0.00  $ 3,662,540.25 0.221%
All  $ 5,592,226.60  $ 240.38  $ 0.00  $ 5,592,466.98 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 9,251,778.93  $ 3,228.30  $ 0.00  $ 9,255,007.23


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR
TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
July 2021


TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENT


CITY INVESTMENT


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the City of Wildomar, I hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues 
are available to meet the City's expenditure requirements for the next six months, and that all investments are in compliance with the City's Statement of Investment Policy.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the City's Bank Balances.


CITY CASH


ISSUER


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CITY INVESTMENT (Continued)


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS


ISSUER


Robert Howell
Robert Howell
City Treasurer


Date


9/1/2021







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.6 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Matthew C. Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 201 and 202 – Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan 


Amendment Project 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the following Ordinances 
entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 201 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING SPECIFIC PLAN 


AMENDMENT NO. 20-0044 FOR THE OAK SPRINGS RANCH 
SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340 LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF 


INLAND VALLEY DRIVE APPROXIMATELY 550 FEET SOUTH OFF 
CLINTON KEITH ROAD (APN: 380-250-038) 


 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 202 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENT NO. 2021-05 (PA 20-0044) DELETING IN ITS 


ENTIRETY CHAPTER 17.110 (SP ZONE REQUIREMENTS AND 
STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340) OF THE WILDOMAR 


MUNICIPAL CODE 


DISCUSSION: 
The City Council approved the first readings of Ordinance No. 201 and 202 at the August 11, 
2021 City Council meeting for the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan Amendment project (PA 
20-0044). At this time, it would be appropriate for the City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 201 
and 202. 
 


Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Matthew Bassi     Gary Nordquist 
Planning Director     City Manager 


ATTACHMENT: 
A. Ordinance No. 201 


Exhibit 1 - Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan Document  
B. Ordinance No. 202 (ZOA 2021-05) 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Ordinance No. 201 
 


 
 
 
  







ORDINANCE NO. 201 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING SPECIFIC PLAN 
AMENDMENT NO. 20-0044 FOR THE OAK SPRINGS RANCH 
SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340 LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF 
INLAND VALLEY DRIVE APPROXIMATELY 550 FEET SOUTH 
OFF CLINTON KEITH ROAD (APN: 380-250-038) 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and 
California Government Code, Section 65450, et seq., the City Council has the authority to take 
action on the proposed Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-044; and 


WHEREAS, Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044 is proposed in conjunction with 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 to implement the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan 
regarding the Oak Springs Ranch Phase II apartment project; and  


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2021 for 
Specific Plan Amendment No. 2020-0044, and adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-07 
recommending City Council approval of Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.208.100 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the Planning Department on July 28, 2021 mailed out a public hearing notice to all property 
owners within a 600-foot radius (and parties requesting such notice) of the project boundaries 
notifying said property owners of the August 11, 2021 City Council meeting where the Council 
would review Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Ordinance No. 135, the Planning Department on July 
30, 2021 posted tow (2) public hearing notice “sign boards” on Inland Valley Drive (near the 
entrance to the proposed project) notifying the general public of the August 11, 2021 City 
Council meeting where the Council would review Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044; and    


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the 
Planning Department, on July 30, 2021 published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, a local 
newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the August 11, 2021 City 
Council meeting where the Council would review Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044; and   


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the City 
Council conducted the duly noticed public hearing on August 11, 2021, at which time interested 
persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to, the proposed Specific Plan 
Amendment No. 20-0044 for the Oak Springs Ranch Apartment project, and at which time the 
City Council received public testimony concerning Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044. 


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1:  CEQA ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
The approval of Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044 is in compliance with 


requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on August 11, 2021, 
at a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council, upon recommendation from the Planning 
Commission certified the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2004071076), 







including adoption of the Statement of Facts and Findings, Response to Comments and 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program reflecting its independent judgment and analysis 
and documenting the environmental impacts and mitigation measures related to the proposed 
Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044 for the Oak Springs Ranch Apartment project.  The 
documents comprising the City’s environmental review for the project are on file and available 
for public review at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 
92595.  


SECTION 2.  REQUIRED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT FINDING. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Wildomar Zoning Ordinance, the City Council, 


upon recommendation from the Planning Commission, hereby makes the following finding 
approving Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044: 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and Oak 


Springs Ranch Specific Plan. 
 


Finding:  The proposal to amend Specific Plan (SP No. 340) to modify the development 
and design standards for a proposed 288-unit apartment project community, including 
private open space/recreational amenities is consistent with the City of Wildomar General 
Plan and Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan in that the proposed Oak Springs Ranch 
Phase II apartment project will provide additional/new housing opportunities for residents 
of Wildomar and surrounding areas.  The proposed density of 22.3 units/acre is consistent 
with the GP land use designation of HHDR and is within the allowable units outlined in 
Specific Plan No. 340, as amended.  Further, the project is designed to be compatible 
with, and enhance, surrounding neighborhoods.  The development standards and design 
guidelines ae remain consistent with  the adopted Specific Plan No. 340 which will provide 
for a unique residential development that will provide a variety of housing opportunities.  
The proposed project also furthers the following land use and housing element policies: 
 
LU 2.1 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development that is in 


accordance with patterns and distribution of land uses that are depicted on 
the General Plan Land Use map proposed for the subject site. 


 
LU 4.1 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development proposal 


that is located and designed to visually enhance and not degrade the 
character of the surrounding area. 


 
LU 6.1 The proposed project will be developed in accordance with the proposed 


General Plan land use designation that ensures compatibility and minimizes 
impacts. 


 
LU 22.1 The proposed project will accommodate the development of single family 


detached dwellings in an area that is appropriately designated by the General 
Plan with approval of the GPA. 


 
LU 22.4 The proposed project will provide a specific housing type, style and density 


that is accessible to and, meets the needs, of a range of lifestyles, physical 
abilities and income levels. 


 







LU 22.10 The proposed project is designed to consider the surrounding areas to visually 
enhance, and not degrade, the appearance of adjacent residential structures. 


 
LU23.6 The proposed project will have proper mitigation measures to protect the 


neighboring residential areas from Noise, light, fumes, odors, vehicular traffic, 
parking and operational hazards.  


 
LU23.7 The proposed project will be served by water and sewer along provided by 


EVMWD to meet the project demands.  
 
H-1.1 The proposed single family project will help ensure a sufficient supply of 


properly planned land to meet housing needs identified in the City’s Regional 
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) required in the Housing Element. 


 
H-6.1 The proposed single project will utilize energy conservation measures in that 


each enclosed garage space has an EV charging outlet for electric vehicles, 
and will be designed to meet Cal Green Building code standards. 


SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340 
Section 3.2 of Specific Plan No. 340 is amended as shown in Exhibit 1 attached hereto 


and incorporated herein by reference. 


SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY 
If any Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance, 
and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, subdivisions, sentences, 
clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 


SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City Council. 


SECTION 6.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published within 


fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and circulated within 
the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to cause this Ordinance 
to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative summary and posting 
procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 
  







 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2021. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg  
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
  







Exhibit 1 
 


Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan Amendment Document 
 
 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH 
Specific Plan No. 340 
April 2007 (Original Adoption) 
August 2021 (Amended by City of Wildomar) 
 


 
 
 


Prepared for: 
City of Wildomar 


Planning Department 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 


Wildomar, California 92595 
(951) 677-7751 


 
Proposed by: 


Trammell Crow Residential 
5790 Fleet Street, Suite #140 


 Carlsbad, CA 92008 
Jessica Cassolato, Development Associate 


 


 
Prepared by: 


PlaceWorks 
3 Macarthur Place, Suite 1100 
Santa Ana, California 92707 


Contact: Jorge Estrada, Senior Associate 
(714) 966-9220 


 
Adopted: December 2007 (Original Specific Plan) 


August 2021 (Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044) 
____________ 











OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Section Page 


AUGUST 2021 Page i TABLE OF CONTENTS 


   


1.0 SUMMARY ...................................................................................................................... 1-1 


1.1 Project Location ......................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Project Overview ....................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.3 Purpose and Objective .............................................................................................................. 1-2 
1.4 Relationship to the California Environmental Quality Act ................................................. 1-2 


2.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................... 2-1 


2.1 Purpose and Intent .................................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Authority and Scope ................................................................................................................. 2-1 
2.3 Specific Plan Consistency with the General Plan .................................................................. 2-2 
2.4 Discretionary Actions and Approvals .................................................................................... 2-2 


2.4.1 Original Entitlement Approvals – County of Riverside ...................................... 2-2 
2.4.2 Subsequent Entitlement Approvals – City of Wildomar ..................................... 2-3 


3.0 LAND USE PLAN ............................................................................................................ 3-1 


3.1 Planning Area 1 – Attached Multi-Family Residential ...................................................... 3-2 
3.2 Planning Area 2 – Attached Multi-Family Residential ........................................................ 3-7 
3.3 Planning Area 3 – Open Space/Trails/Pedestrian Connections/Amenities.................... 3-8 


4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN ........................................................................................................ 4-1 


4.1 Roadways ................................................................................................................................... 4-1 
4.2 Regional Community Trail....................................................................................................... 4-2 


5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING ........................................................................................ 5-1 


5.1 Water Distribution ..................................................................................................................... 5-1 
5.2 Sewer Services ............................................................................................................................ 5-1 
5.3 Drainage Plan ............................................................................................................................. 5-2 


5.3.1 Hydrology .................................................................................................................. 5-2 
5.3.2 Detention Analysis .................................................................................................... 5-7 


6.0 COMPREHENSIVE MAINTENANCE PLAN ............................................................................ 6-1 


6.1 Residential Property Maintenance .......................................................................................... 6-1 
6.2 Project Roadways ...................................................................................................................... 6-1 
6.3 Open Space and Parks .............................................................................................................. 6-1 


7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES ....................................................................................................... 7-1 


7.1 Development Guidelines .......................................................................................................... 7-1 
7.2 Massing Criteria and Site Planning Concepts ....................................................................... 7-3 
7.3 Grading Criteria ......................................................................................................................... 7-4 
7.4 Siting Criteria ............................................................................................................................. 7-7 
7.5 Fencing/Walls/Gates/Monuments ....................................................................................... 7-8 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Section Page 


AUGUST 2021 Page ii TABLE OF CONTENTS 


7.6 Architectural Features ............................................................................................................. 7-25 
7.6.1 Architectural Theme ............................................................................................... 7-25 
7.6.2 Building Form, Mass, and Height ......................................................................... 7-26 
7.6.3 Shade and Shadow .................................................................................................. 7-31 
7.6.4 Building Relief ......................................................................................................... 7-31 
7.6.5 Building Materials ................................................................................................... 7-32 
7.6.6 Roof Form and Materials ....................................................................................... 7-33 
7.6.7 Accessory Structures ............................................................................................... 7-33 


7.7 Landscaping, Open Space, Recreation, and Lighting ......................................................... 7-35 
7.7.1 Coverage ................................................................................................................... 7-35 
7.7.2 Plant Palette ............................................................................................................. 7-36 
7.7.3 Drought Tolerance .................................................................................................. 7-36 
7.7.4 Spaces (Patios, Green Space, Trails, Recreation Areas) ..................................... 7-39 
7.7.5 Special Treatments/Buffer Area ........................................................................... 7-40 
7.7.6 Lighting .................................................................................................................... 7-40 
7.7.7 Site Furnishings ....................................................................................................... 7-51 


8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ............................................................................................ 8-1 


8.1 Development Guidelines .......................................................................................................... 8-1 
8.2 Planning Areas 1 and 2 Permitted Uses ................................................................................. 8-2 
8.3 Planning Area 3 Permitted Uses.............................................................................................. 8-2 
8.4 Multifamily, Apartments, and Attached Multi-Family Residential Development 


Standards (Planning Areas 1 and 2) ....................................................................................... 8-3 
 Residential Development Standards ...................................................................... 8-3 
 Parking Standards ..................................................................................................... 8-4 


8.5 Conditions of Development for Planned Residential Development .................................. 8-4 
8.6 Site Layout .................................................................................................................................. 8-5 
8.7 Pedestrian Access ...................................................................................................................... 8-5 
8.8 Signs ............................................................................................................................................ 8-5 


 Permanent Signs ........................................................................................................ 8-6 
 Temporary Signs (present until the completion of project construction) ......... 8-6 
 General Sign Standards and Specifications ........................................................... 8-6 
 Inappropriate/Prohibited Signs ............................................................................. 8-7 
 Address Numerals .................................................................................................... 8-7 
 Directional Signage ................................................................................................... 8-7 
 Leasing and Temporary Signs ................................................................................. 8-7 


 
 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


LIST OF FIGURES 


Figure Page 


AUGUST 2021 Page iii TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Figure 1-1 Regional Location Map ............................................................................................................. 1-3 


Figure 1-2 Local Vicinity Map .................................................................................................................... 1-5 


Figure 3-1 Land Use Plan ............................................................................................................................ 3-3 


Figure 3-2 General Plan Land Uses Designations.................................................................................... 3-5 


Figure 4-1 Circulation Plan ......................................................................................................................... 4-3 


Figure 4-2  Street Section – Clinton Keith Road ................................................................................................ 4-5 


Figure 4-3 Street Sections – Inland Valley Drive & Wildomar Trail ..................................................... 4-7 


Figure 4-4 Internal Private Drive Plan ....................................................................................................... 4-9 


Figure 4-5 Community Trail Plan ............................................................................................................ 4-11 


Figure 5-1 Water Plan .................................................................................................................................. 5-3 


Figure 5-2 Sewer Plan .................................................................................................................................. 5-5 


Figure 5-3 Drainage Plan ............................................................................................................................. 5-9 


Figure 5-4 Fire Stations & School Sites Map ........................................................................................... 5-11 


Figure 5-5 Phasing Plan ............................................................................................................................. 5-13 


Figure 6-1 Maintenance Responsibility Plan ............................................................................................ 6-3 


Figure 7-1 Grading Plan .............................................................................................................................. 7-5 


Figure 7-2 Wall, Fence, & Monument Plan ............................................................................................... 7-9 


Figure 7-3 Wall & Fence Elevations ......................................................................................................... 7-11 


Figure 7-4 Corner & Entry Monument Walls ......................................................................................... 7-13 


Figure 7-5 Vehicular & Pedestrian Gates ................................................................................................ 7-15 


Figure 7-6 Community Entry - Inland Valley Drive ............................................................................. 7-17 


Figure 7-7 Community Entry – Clinton Keith Road ............................................................................. 7-19 


Figure 7-8 Community Entry – Wildomar Trail .................................................................................... 7-21 


Figure 7-9 Community Exit – Wildomar Trail ....................................................................................... 7-23 


Figure 7-10a Multifamily Product Elevations ............................................................................................ 7-27 


Figure 7-10b Multifamily Product Elevations ............................................................................................ 7-29 


Figure 7-11 Landscape Plan ........................................................................................................................ 7-37 


Figure 7-12 Recreation Plan ........................................................................................................................ 7-41 


Figure 7-13a Multifamily Neighborhood Recreation Center (PA 1) ....................................................... 7-43 


Figure 7-13b Multifamily Neighborhood Recreation Center (PA 1) ....................................................... 7-45 


Figure 7-14 Multifamily Neighborhood Recreation Area 2 (PA1) ........................................................ 7-47 


Figure 7-15 Typical Par Course Station ..................................................................................................... 7-49 


 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


LIST OF TABLES 


Table Page 


AUGUST 2021 Page iv TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Table 3-1 Comprehensive Land Use Summary ............................................................................................... 3-2 


Table 5-1 Utility Providers ............................................................................................................................. 5-7 


 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 1-1 1.0 SUMMARY 


1.0 SUMMARY 


1.1 Project Location 


The development area covered by the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (Plan Area) is located in the City 
of Wildomar in Riverside County, California. Wildomar officially became a city on July 1, 2008. Prior to 
this date it was an unincorporated community of the Riverside County. With its incorporation as a city, 
Wildomar became the official overseer and administrator of the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (SPA 
No. 340). Wildomar is approximately 40 miles easterly of the Pacific Ocean coastline, north of the City of 
Murrieta and south of the City of Lake Elsinore. Wildomar is separated from the coastline by the Santa 
Rosa mountain range.  


Regional access to Wildomar is provided in a north-south direction via Interstate 15 (I-15) and in an east-
west direction via Bundy Canyon Road from I-215 (through city of Menifee). Figure 1-1, Regional Map, 
shows the regional location of the Plan Area. 


Locally, the Plan Area is immediately east of Wildomar City Hall and north of the Inland Valley Regional 
Medical Center. More specifically, the site is situated on the south side of Clinton Keith Road between 
Wildomar Trial and Inland Valley Drive, as shown in Figure 1-2, Local Vicinity Map.  


1.2 Project Overview 


Implementation of the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (Specific Plan or Oak Springs Ranch) entails 
residential development on a 48.15-acre site. The gross grading area of the Plan Area is approximately 
34 acres. The Specific Plan consists of three planning areas that combined, will function as a single 
residential community. The plan calls for the development of up to 600 multifamily apartment dwelling 
units and 14.35 acres of natural open space. The existing open space acreage will remain undisturbed in 
order to preserve and improve the value of the existing open space habitat. The residential and open 
space areas will be unified through the implementation of circulation, utility, drainage, and design 
elements and improvements. The site plan proposes a development configuration consisting of up to 600 
multifamily apartment residences and a wide range of passive and active recreation facilities and 
amenities, which include a community trail with amenity stations, a multi-use trail, recreation/amenity 
buildings and fitness centers, picnic and barbecue areas, basketball half courts, communal swimming 
pools and spas, a dog park, and tot lots. The project is defined in more detail in Chapter 3, Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 1-2 1.0 SUMMARY 


1.3 Purpose and Objective 


Throughout the planning of the Specific Plan, the underlying design philosophy has been to create a 
strong community character and quality that reflects the context of the region and the surrounding 
community and protects the site’s environmental features. The integration of quality site planning, 
architecture, and landscaping into neighborhood design is a fundamental goal of the Specific Plan and 
the City’s Multi-family Design Standards and Guidelines. The Specific Plan includes a detailed 
discussion of design guidelines and development standards for each planning area to ensure the 
philosophy of Oak Springs Ranch is fulfilled. The development design objectives include: 


 Create a high standard in neighborhood design and implement it consistently over an entire new 
community. 


 Create neighborhood designs that integrate quality architecture, site planning, and landscape. 


 Design neighborhoods that connect with the community at large, yet are sensitive to the human scale 
and encourage pedestrian activity. 


 Provide a trail system that encourages pedestrian activity and alternative means of transportation:  
walking or biking on-site and in the community at large. 


 Preserve the natural amenities that are present on-site:  native riparian habitat including the variety 
of California oak trees. 


 Ensure that streetscapes and street spaces are attractive and comfortable. 


 Provide local open space areas where neighbors can meet, and children can play. 


 Incorporate and connect into the regional bus system to further encourage alternate means 
of transportation. 


 Implement the goals and policies of the Wildomar General Plan. 


1.4 Relationship to the California Environmental Quality Act 


The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) was adopted to maintain the quality of the 
environment for the people of the State of California. Compliance with CEQA and its implementing 
guidelines requires that any agency considering action on a project must evaluate its potential 
environmental effects/impacts before granting an approval. Further, the state adopted a policy "that 
public agencies should not approve projects as proposed if there are feasible alternatives or feasible 
mitigation measures available which would substantially lessen the significant environmental effects 
of such projects."  


When applied to a specific project, such as the construction and operation of Oak Springs Ranch, the City 
is required to identify the potential environmental impacts of the project and where potential significant 
impacts are identified the City must determine whether there are feasible mitigation measures or 
alternatives that can be implemented to avoid or substantially lessen significant environmental effects of 
a project.  







REGIONAL MAP


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 1-1


N


not to scale


Lake
Elsinore


15


215


*Project
Site


Murrieta


Bundy Canyon RoadSkylark
Airport


Clinton Keith Road


Wildomar


Murrieta
Hot Springs


Antelope
Hills


To 
SR-74


Wildomar Trail







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 1-4 1.0 SUMMARY 


This page intentionally left blank. 







LOCAL VICINITY MAP


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 1-2


N


not to scale


15
215


*
Project


Site


Murrieta


La Estrella St


Clinton Keith Road


In
la


nd
 V


al
le


y 
D


riv
e


W
ild


om
ar


 T
ra


il


Wildomar


Murrieta
Hot Springs


Antelope
Hills


Lake
Elsinore


to


Prielipp Road


Palomar Street







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 1-6 1.0 SUMMARY 


This page intentionally left blank. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 1-7 1.0 SUMMARY 


CEQA requires that the City of Wildomar acting as the Lead Agency consider the environmental 
information in the project record, including an environmental impact report (EIR), prior to making a 
decision on the proposed project. Pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, California Code of 
Regulations, Chapter 3, Section 15000 et seq.), the City, as Lead Agency under CEQA, prepared a Draft 
EIR (EIR No. 478) for the original Specific Plan to determine if approval of the Specific Plan and 
subsequent activities and development accommodated by the Specific Plan would have a significant 
impact on the environment. The decision that was considered by the County of Riverside (County) at the 
time of the SPA No. 340 adoption, the prior Lead Agency that oversaw adoption of the original Specific 
Plan and certification of the accompanying Draft EIR (State Clearinghouse No. 2004071076), was whether 
to adopt the Specific Plan with its land use plan and development guidelines for the project site and 
certify the Draft EIR. In December 2007, the County of Riverside Board of Supervisors adopted the 
original Specific Plan and certified the Draft EIR under Resolution 2007-514. The original Specific Plan 
was adopted and the Draft EIR was certified in compliance with the requirements of CEQA (California 
Public Resources Code, Section 21000 et seq.). 


Subsequent to adoption of the original Specific Plan, Wildomar officially became a city on July 1, 2008. 
With its incorporation as a city, Wildomar became the official overseer and administrator of the original 
Specific Plan and Draft EIR, as well as any subsequent development of the project site that would be 
accommodated by the Specific Plan. Starting in January 2021, the City commenced the process to amend 
the original Specific Plan (amended Specific Plan) to change the SP PA2 Detached Residential land use 
designation to SP PA2 Multifamily Residential. This change in land use designation would allow for 
development of a new multifamily residential community on the portion of the project site (Planning 
Area 2) that was originally designated for single-family residential development. Along with the 
amended Specific Plan, the City undertook preparation of a Subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 15163 
of the CEQA Guidelines. The City, as lead agency under CEQA, determined that a Supplemental EIR to 
the certified Draft EIR was appropriate to satisfy CEQA requirements by fully disclosing new impacts or 
changes in impacts that would occur as a result of the amended Specific Plan. In August 2021, the 
Wildomar City Council adopted the amended Specific Plan and certified the Supplemental EIR. The 
amended Specific Plan was adopted and the Supplemental EIR was certified in compliance with the 
requirements of CEQA (California Public Resources Code, Section 21000 et seq.). 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 1-8 1.0 SUMMARY 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 2-1 2.0 INTRODUCTION 


2.0 INTRODUCTION 


2.1 Purpose and Intent 


The Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan No. 340 (Specific Plan or Oak Springs Ranch) is designed as a 
master-planned community on 48.15 acres in the City of Wildomar (City), Riverside County. The Specific 
Plan will contain a variety of multifamily residential housing types and recreational facilities and 
amenities integrated into individual neighborhoods. Infrastructure improvements are also planned to 
service the Oak Springs Ranch community. Development of the Specific Plan will enhance the image of 
the Plan Area (development area covered by the Specific Plan) and its surroundings through the 
provision of roadway improvements, entry monuments, and well-designed architecture and 
landscaping.  


This Specific Plan serves as a long-range plan for the development of Oak Springs Ranch. It provides 
detailed text and exhibits that describe the various land uses, amenities, and infrastructure 
improvements that are envisioned for the new community. Chapter 3 of this document sets forth the 
comprehensive land use plan. Design guidelines and development standards contained in Chapters 7 
and 8 will guide site planning, architectural design, and landscaping to create a cohesive community 
identity. In-depth thought and analyses have been undertaken to ensure that implementation of the 
Specific Plan’s design standards result in the construction of a high-quality community. This Specific 
Plan serves as the guide to all development within the boundaries of the Plan Area. This document will 
also guide build-out of the Specific Plan in a manner that is consistent with City and state policies and 
standards and assures that the various community elements will be developed in a coordinated manner.  


2.2 Authority and Scope 


The Specific Plan, and Amendment #1 (adopted in August 2021), has been prepared pursuant to the 
provisions of California Government Code Section 65450, which grants local government agencies the 
authority to prepare specific plans of development for any area covered by a general plan, for the purpose 
of establishing systematic methods of implementation of the agency's general plan. The Specific Plan was 
also prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 17.08.080 (Specific Plans) of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code. The Specific Plan is designed to address site-specific issues and to create a bridge between the 
Wildomar General Plan and a specific development proposal. California Government Code, Sections 
65450 through 65454, establishes the authority to adopt a specific plan, identify the required contents of 
a specific plan, and mandate consistency with the general plan.  







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 2-2 2.0 INTRODUCTION 


2.3 Specific Plan Consistency with the General Plan 


The Specific Plan was originally adopted by the Riverside County Board of Supervisors and amended 
by the Wildomar City Council via Ordinance 195—it serves as the zoning for the Plan Area. The Specific 
Plan provides a site-specific and detailed description of standards, guidelines, and development criteria 
that implement the Wildomar General Plan goals and policies, and results in the overall relationship 
between Oak Springs Ranch and the Wildomar General Plan. To achieve this, the Specific Plan must be 
in conformance and consistent with the Wildomar General Plan. The California Government Code states 
that a “Specific Plan shall include a statement of the relationship of the Specific Plan to the General Plan, and 
further, that it may not be adopted or amended unless found to be consistent with the General Plan.”   


Consistency with the Wildomar General Plan is achieved when the various land uses of the Specific Plan 
are compatible with the objective, policies, general pattern of land uses, and programs contained in the 
Wildomar General Plan. Consistency is defined by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) 
as, “An action, program, or project is consistent with the General Plan if, considering all its aspects, it 
will further the objectives and policies of the General Plan and not obstruct their attainment.”  


In response to government requirements, this Specific Plan has been prepared to provide the essential 
link between Wildomar General Plan policies and actual development within the 48.15-acre Plan Area. 
By functioning as a regulatory document, the Specific Plan provides a means of implementing the 
Wildomar General Plan and detailing a specific development proposal for the Plan Area. It creates a 
comprehensive vision, theme, and land use plan that supports the policy direction that is identified in 
the Wildomar General Plan. In this regard, all future development plans, tentative parcel and/or tract 
maps or other similar entitlements, shall be consistent with regulations set forth in this document and 
with all applicable City regulations. As such, the Specific Plan is consistent with the goals and policies of 
the Wildomar General Plan.  


2.4 Discretionary Actions and Approvals 


Prior to the commencement of any development, the City must provide the developer of this Specific 
Plan with the land use entitlements needed to implement the Specific Plan. It is these approvals that will 
allow the proposed development to proceed and cause the corresponding changes to the physical 
environment. A Draft EIR and Supplemental EIR were prepared (see Section 1.4 of Chapter 1, Summary, 
for more detailed information regarding the CEQA documentation and process undertaken for the 
Specific Plan) and will be utilized as the information source and CEQA compliance document by the 
CEQA lead agency, the City of Wildomar, for the discretionary actions or approvals described below. 


2.4.1 Original Entitlement Approvals – County of Riverside 


Following are the discretionary and non-discretionary actions and approvals that were considered and 
approved by the County of Riverside Board of Supervisors prior to Wildomar being incorporated as a 
City on July 1, 2008. Prior to its incorporation, Wildomar was an unincorporated community of the 
County, which was the official overseer and administrator of the Specific Plan.  







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 2-3 2.0 INTRODUCTION 


 General Plan Amendment No. 754 (from Light Industrial on southern portion of the Plan Area to 
Community Center) 


 Specific Plan No. 340 


 Certification of EIR 478 


 Change of Zone No. 6922 (From C-P-S, Scenic Highway Commercial and I-P, Industrial Park to SP 
Zone, Specific Plan) 


 Tentative Tract Map No. 31736 


 Plot Plan No. 18966 


 Any associated Open Space Maintenance Plan and/or Agreement 


 Issuance of Grading, Stockpile, Encroachment, and Building Permits 


2.4.2 Subsequent Entitlement Approvals – City of Wildomar 


Wildomar officially became a city on July 1, 2008. With its incorporation as a city, Wildomar became the 
official overseer and administrator of the Specific Plan. Following are the discretionary actions and 
approvals that were considered and approved by the Wildomar Planning Commission and City Council 
under Amendment #1 of SPA No. 340. 


 General Plan Amendment (GPA No. 20-0044—to change the existing land use designation of 
Planning Area 2 from Medium High Density Residential [MHDR, 5-8 units/acre] to Highest Density 
Residential [HHDR, 20+ units/acre]); 


 Specific Plan Amendment (SPA No. 20-0044—to change the SP PA2 Detached Residential land use 
designation to SP PA2 Multifamily Residential); 


 Plot Plan (PA No. 20-0044) to develop the PA 2, 288-unit multi-family apartment complex with 
related on- and off-site improvement and amenities; and 


 Certification of the Supplemental EIR (PA No. 20-0044) 


In addition to the above discretionary and non-discretionary actions and approvals, the associated Draft 
EIR and Supplemental EIR may also be utilized by the following responsible agencies, dependent on the 
review, approval, or permit requirements of each in regard to the Specific Plan: 


 California Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), Region 9, San Diego 


Issue a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit for construction activities 
and/or Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan; and 


Issue a 401 Certification to discharge fill into the impacted 0.098 acre of the overall 0.44 acre of “waters 
of the United States.” 


 California Department of Fish and Game 


Issue a 1600 agreement for impacts to the 0.79 acre of the overall 6.37 acres of “Streambed” that would 
be affected. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 2-4 2.0 INTRODUCTION 


 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 


Issue an individual permit (404) to dredge and fill within the impacted 0.098 acre of the overall 
0.44 acre of “waters of the United States.” 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 3-1 3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (Specific Plan or Oak Springs Ranch) is a master-planned community 
on 48.15 acres in the City of Wildomar. The development area covered by the Specific Plan (Plan Area) 
will contain a high quality and aesthetically pleasing community comprised of multifamily residential, 
open space, and passive and active recreational land uses. The Specific Plan provides for a maximum of 
600 multi-family residential dwelling units. Public and private recreation amenities will enhance the Plan 
Area and include such facilities as neighborhood recreation centers, neighborhood recreation areas, a 
native riparian habitat open space area, and a comprehensive trail system that includes an internal 6-
foot-wide multi-use trail and a community trail, ranging between 8 and 12 feet in width, along the 
southern and eastern Plan Area boundary. The community trail will be accessible to the residents of Oak 
Spring Ranch as well as the surrounding communities. The proposed land use plan for Oak Springs 
Ranch is divided into three distinctive planning areas, which are illustrated in Figure 3-1, Land Use Plan, 
and are discussed in the following pages. The boundaries of the planning areas were dictated by the 
natural features of the site and by the application of various residential product types in the Plan Area. 


The Plan Area is situated on historic ranchland with ridges and valleys throughout the site. The Plan Area 
consists of dense foliage and trees containing riparian habitat and native open space areas, including a 
significant number of oak trees. The Plan Area contains approximately 244 oak trees. Of the 244 oak trees, 
47 specimen (2-inch diameter or more) trees are located within the Plan Area’s grading footprint. Of the 
47 impacted trees, 12 are proposed for retention in place and 8 are proposed for relocation within the Plan 
Area. As a result, a total of 27 trees will be removed and not relocated or retained onsite. The 27 trees to 
be removed are designated as California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) jurisdictional oak 
trees. According to the oak protection guidelines set forth by CDFW, the tree replacement ratio of 5 to 1 
shall be implemented for these 27 trees, for a total tree replacement of 135 trees within the 1.5-acre oak tree 
mitigation area of the overall 48.15 Plan Area. The environmentally rich landscape of the Plan Area will 
be protected as the heart of the community and will provide natural open space amenities and views. 


Through strong and cohesive community design and quality site planning, the Specific Plan will offer a 
diverse and convenient living environment for its residents. The Plan Area will be unified through the 
preservation of its natural environmental amenities and through the implementation of design elements. 
The architecture, landscaping, pedestrian network, walls, fencing, and entry treatments will be 
complementary to the native California landscaping that exists in the Plan Area. Variation of building 
designs will be permitted to allow individual neighborhoods to establish their own design character, yet 
maintain continuity within the Plan Area.  


The Plan Area has a land use designation of Very High Density Residential, VHDR, Highest Density 
Residential, HHDR (with approval of GPA 20-0044) and Open Space-Habitat Conservation (OS-CH) on 
the City’s General Plan Land Use Map (see Figure 3-2, General Plan Land Uses Designations). A change 
of the land use designations through the adoption of a specific plan amendment and a general plan 
amendment are proposed. 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 3-2 3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
The overall Oak Springs Ranch residential development will promote pedestrian activity by providing 
an extensive trail network that allows pedestrian access throughout each residential planning area, as 
well as the community at large. In addition, street furniture such as benches, streetlights, and landscaping 
that is pedestrian oriented will be incorporated throughout the Plan Area to further enhance the 
pedestrian nature of Oak Springs Ranch. Furthermore, design guidelines are included in the Specific Plan 
that ensures that the buildings will be designed with sensitivity to the pedestrian, and will bring about a 
human scale to the buildings and site planning. Table 3-1 provides a summary of the proposed land uses 
for Oak Springs Ranch. 


Table 3-1 
Comprehensive Land Use Summary 


Land Use Planning Area Acres 
Density Range 


(du/ac) 
Maximum 


Dwelling Units 


Attached Residential (MFR) 1 20.91 14–20 312 
Attached Residential (MFR) 2 12.89 20+ 288 
Open Space 3 14.35 — — 
Total  48.15  600 


 


3.1 Planning Area 1 – Attached Multi-Family Residential 


Planning Area 1 (PA 1) is a multi-family apartment community that includes up to 312 dwelling units on 
20.91 acres of land. This planning area is located on the southside of Clinton Keith Road, between 
Wildomar Trail and Inland Valley Drive and abuts the southwestern edge of Planning Area 2 (see Figure 
3-1). 


The residential density range in this planning area is 14–20 dwelling units per acre (VHDR designation). PA 
1 will accommodate attached multifamily units that display 360-degree architectural treatment in a 
Craftsman-style design with articulation on all building facades, with a higher emphasis on facades visible 
from streets and open space areas. The type of residential units permitted in this planning area may 
include, but not be limited to, apartments, townhomes, condominiums, and motorcourt. The overall number 
of dwelling units within this planning area may not exceed 312. 


The proposed layout of existing PA 1 is conceptual and is depicted in Figure 3-1, Land Use Plan. Any 
future changes to the approved site plan are permitted and anticipated; therefore, they will be approved 
administratively and will not require a specific plan amendment. 


 


 







WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 3-1


LAND USE PLAN


PA 1PA 3


PA 2


TABLE
ACRES DUs DENSITY


20.91 312 14-20


LAND USE
Attached Residential


Attached Residential


Open Space


12.89 288 20+


PA
PA1 


PA2 


PA3 14.35 - -


N200’100’50’0’


TOTAL 48.15+- 600


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 3-4 3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


 







GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS


FIGURE 3-2


N


not to scale


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Project
Site


Temecula     Freeway


15


W
ILD


OM
AR


 T
RA


IL
W


ILD
OM


AR
 T


RA
IL


CLINTON KEITH RDCLINTON KEITH RD


ProjectProject


SiteSite


HHDRHHDR


OS-CHOS-CH


OS-ROS-R







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 3-6 3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


  







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 3-7 3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
PA 1 contains private recreation facilities and amenities, which include a neighborhood 
recreation/amenity center intended for use by numerous patrons concurrently, neighborhood recreation 
areas, a portion of the Plan Area’s six-foot-wide multi-use trail, and par course stations. These recreation 
facilities and amenities are intended to exclusively service the Oak Springs Ranch community. Typical 
amenities within the neighborhood recreation areas include a swimming pool, spa, restroom and pool 
equipment building, fitness center, recreation building, outdoor fireplace and barbecue area, basketball 
half court, tot lot, picnic areas, open lawn areas, picnic areas, on-site parking, and similar neighborhood-
serving uses. 


The portion of the six- foot-wide multi-use trail within this planning area traverses along the edge of the 
open space habitat area (see Figure 7-12 in Chapter 7, Recreation Plan) and connects to the various 
recreation areas and par course/amenity stations. The par course/amenity stations are designed to 
provide exercise areas for the residents of the community (see Figure 7-15 in Chapter 7, Typical Par Course 
Station). A network of pedestrian walking paths is also provided throughout PA 1. 


3.2 Planning Area 2 – Attached Multi-Family Residential 


Planning Area 2 (PA 2) is a residential area that includes up to 288 attached apartment dwelling units on 
12.89 acres of land. This planning area is located south of PA 1, west of Inland Valley Drive, and east and 
north of the native riparian habitat open space area (PA 3) (see Figure 3-1). 


The residential density in this planning area is 20+ dwelling units per acre (HHDR designation. Similar 
to PA 1, PA 2 will accommodate attached multifamily units that display 360-degree architecture or 
articulation on all building facades, with a higher emphasis on facades visible from streets and open 
space areas. The type of residential units permitted in this planning area may include, but not be limited 
to, apartments, townhomes, condominiums, and motorcourt. The overall number of dwelling units 
within this planning area may not exceed 288. 


The proposed layout of PA 2 is depicted in Figure 3-1, Land Use Plan. The ultimate site layout is expected 
to change once final engineering, grading, and tentative maps are designed. Changes to the site plan are 
permitted and anticipated; therefore, they will be approved administratively and will not require a 
specific plan amendment. 


Similar to PA 1, PA 2 contains private recreation facilities and amenities, which include a neighborhood 
recreation center intended for use by numerous patrons concurrently, neighborhood recreation areas, a 
portion of the Plan Area’s six-foot-wide multi-use trail, and pedestrian trail amenity stations. These 
recreation facilities and amenities are intended to exclusively service the Oak Springs Ranch community. 
Typical amenities within the neighborhood recreation areas include picnic areas, swimming pool, spa, 
restroom and pool equipment building, open lawn areas, tot lot, outdoor fireplace and barbecue area, dog 
park, on-site parking, and similar neighborhood-serving uses.  


The portion of the six-foot-wide multi-use trail within this planning area traverses along the edge of the 
open space habitat area (see Figure 7-12 in Chapter 7, Recreation Plan) and connects to the various recreation 
areas and pedestrian trail amenity stations. A network of pedestrian walking paths to serve the residents 
is also provided throughout PA 2. 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 3-8 3.0 LAND USE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
3.3 Planning Area 3 – Open Space/Trails/Pedestrian 


Connections/Amenities 


Planning Area 3 provides 14.35 acres of open space land consisting of a native riparian habitat open space 
area that includes a variety of California oak trees and wildlife, a portion of the 12-foot-wide community 
trail, a comprehensive 6-foot-wide multi-use trail system, and par course/amenity stations. The 
community trail meanders along the open space area of the Plan Area’s southern boundary, from 
Interstate 15 to Inland Valley Drive, and traverses into a portion of the northern boundary of the adjacent 
site (Inland Valley Medical Center) as shown on Figure 4-5, Community Trail Plan, in Chapter 4. The 
portion of the six-foot-wide multi-use trail within this planning area traverses along the edge of the habitat 
open space area (see Figure 7-12, Recreation Plan, in Chapter 7 of this specific plan) and connects to the 
various recreation areas and par course/amenity stations. 







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-1 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


4.1 Roadways 


As the result of a thorough traffic analysis conducted by Urban Crossroads, a roadway concept was 
developed for Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (Specific Plan or Oak Springs Ranch) as illustrated in 
Figure 4-1, Circulation Plan. Circulation improvements constructed as a part of the Specific Plan will 
improve the functional efficiency of the surrounding circulation system and will enhance the aesthetics 
of the street network through the implementation of landscape and streetscape improvements along the 
Plan Area’s (development area covered by the Specific Plan) frontages. 


Access to the Plan Area will be provided via Clinton Keith Road, Inland Valley Drive and Wildomar 
Trail. The main objective of the circulation plan is to provide direct and convenient access to the Oak 
Springs Ranch community through a safe and efficient network of roadways. A description of the 
roadway improvements that will be implemented as part of the Specific Plan are described below. 
Typical street cross sections for Clinton Keith Road, Inland Valley Drive, and Wildomar Trail are 
illustrated in Figures 4-2 and 4-3. 


 Clinton Keith Road: Forms the northerly boundary of the Plan Area and is designated in the Wildomar 
General Plan Circulation Element as an Urban Arterial Highway, with a base right-of-way width of 152 
feet (55 feet centerline to curb) and a curbed or painted median. 


 Inland Valley Drive: Forms the easterly boundary of the Plan Area and is designated as a Secondary 
Roadway per the Wildomar General Plan Circulation Element, with a base right-of-way width of 100 
feet (32 feet centerline to curb). 


 Wildomar Trail: Forms the westerly boundary of the Plan Area. Wildomar Trail is an existing road 
fully improved when PA 1 was constructed in 2008/2009 (30 feet centerline to curb) as a collector 
roadway, from Clinton Keith Road to the southerly Plan Area boundary. The base right-of-way width 
for Wildomar Trail will be 60 feet. A traffic signal exists at Wildomar Trail and Clinton Keith Road 
and was constructed during development of PA 1. 


 Internal Streets and Cul-de-Sacs: These mobility features provide circulation within the individual 
planning areas (see Figure 4-4, Internal Private Drive Plan). The project entries will include access-
controlled gates, and the internal roadways and parking areas will be privately owned and 
maintained by the property owner and/or its agent (see Chapter 6, Comprehensive Maintenance Plan). 


In addition to the above on- and off-site roadway improvements, a bus stop and shelter will be provided 
along the southern side of Clinton Keith Road, near Wildomar Trail (see Figure 4-1, Circulation Plan). 


Nonvehicular circulation will be provided by the installation of trails, sidewalks, and painted bicycle 
lanes along the primary public roadways. The Specific Plan will comply with the City’s bikeway plan in 







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-2 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


effect at the time of Specific Plan approval. Turning radii for entrances and roundabouts shall be 
designed to the satisfaction of the City of Wildomar Public Works Department and the Riverside County 
Fire Department. 


4.2 Regional Community Trail 


The Plan Area is located in the Elsinore Area Plan of the County of Riverside’s General Plan. The area 
plan designates Oak Springs Ranch as a site providing a community trail connection. A community trail 
is a critical part of this area plan as it provides linkages to other trails within the region. Extensive systems 
of proposed trails exist within the area plan, connecting new and existing developments with the 
Cleveland National Forest, the regional trail system, and other community trails. 


As a part of the Specific Plan, an 8- to 12-foot-wide community trail will be provided to create a 
community trail linkage across and along the Plan Area to the trail locations designated in the Elsinore 
Area Plan. The community trail is illustrated in Figure 7-12, Recreation Plan. As illustrated in Figure 7-12, 
the community trail meanders along the open space area of the Plan Area’s southern boundary, from 
Interstate 15 (I-15) to Inland Valley Drive, and traverses into a portion of the northern boundary of the 
adjacent site (Inland Valley Medical Center). The community trail then continues north along Inland 
Valley Drive and terminates at the Clinton Keith Road/Inland Valley intersection. The community trail 
along Inland Valley Drive will connect to the future community trail that will travel east of the Plan Area 
along Clinton Keith Road, eventually connecting to other community and regional trails east of the Plan 
Area. Figure 4-3, Street Sections – Inland Valley Drive & Wildomar Trail, depicts the community trail along 
Inland Valley Drive. Additionally, per the Elsinore Area Plan, the community trail will also continue 
southwest of the Plan Area across I-15. Figure 4-5, Community Trail Plan, shows the location of the 
proposed community trail through the Plan Area and how it relates and links to existing and future trails 
as outlined in the Elsinore Area Plan. 


 







WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 4-1


CIRCULATION PLAN


LEGEND


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Urban Arterial (152’ ROW)


Secondary (100’ ROW)


Collector (60’ ROW)Bus stop and 
shelter







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-4 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


  







FIGURE 4-2


STREET SECTION
CLINTON KEITH ROAD


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-6 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


  







FIGURE 4-3


STREET SECTIONS 
INLAND VALLEY DRIVE &


OAK SPRINGS ROAD


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


WILDOMAR TRAIL







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-8 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


  







WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 4-4


INTERNAL PRIVATE DRIVE PLAN


LEGEND


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Internal Private Drive







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-10 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


 







W
ild


om
ar


 T
ra


il


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scaleN


LEGEND


Perimeter Multi-Purpose Trail


Proposed Project Trail


General Plan Community Trail


FIGURE 4-5







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 4-12 4.0 CIRCULATION PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-1 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


5.1 Water Distribution 


Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District (EVMWD) will provide water service to the development area 
covered by the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (Plan Area). Domestic water will service the residential 
and common landscape areas of the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan (Specific Plan or Oak Springs 
Ranch). EVMWD draws water to supply their service areas from stream flows in the San Jacinto River 
region, Canyon Lake and from numerous wells within the Elsinore Valley groundwater basin. EVMWD 
infrastructure consists of reservoir tanks, booster pump facilities and a network of pipeline facilities to 
deliver water throughout its service area. 


The primary connection points available for the Plan Area are located in both Wildomar Trail and Inland 
Valley Drive, as shown on Figure 5-1, Water Plan. The primary source of water will be provided by 
connecting to existing 12-inch mains located along Wildomar Trail and Inland Valley Drive, which are 
fed by an 18-inch transmission main in Clinton Keith Road. 


Within the internal roadways of the Plan Area, 8-inch lines designed to EVMWD standards will provide 
domestic service to each proposed residence as well as supplying sufficient water flows to fire hydrants, 
which will be placed in accordance with Riverside County Fire Department standards. 


5.2 Sewer Services 


EVMWD is responsible for the collection of wastewater for the Plan Area. In accordance with a study 
performed by Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (April 5, 2004), EVMWD determined that the recommended 
improvements to the existing collections system, required only in the ultimate (build-out) conditions, 
will be the same regardless of the impact of the of the wastewater flow generated by Oak Springs Ranch. 


An existing 18-inch gravity main sewer line in Clinton Keith Road will convey wastewater flow 
generated by Oak Springs Ranch to the McVicar lift station (see Figure 5-2, Sewer Plan).  


The Plan Area will be served by 8-inch gravity sewers flowing to the southerly end of the Plan Area to 
two lift stations, one for each of the multifamily areas. The lift stations will collect and pump the 
wastewater flows through a 6-inch force main to the aforementioned 18-inch gravity sewer line in Clinton 
Keith Road. Sewage disposal facilities shall be installed in accordance with the requirements and 
specifications of the State Department of Health Services and the Riverside County Health Department. 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-2 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


5.3 Drainage Plan 


The development area covered by the Specific Plan (Plan Area) is located at the southwest corner of 
Clinton Keith Road and Inland Valley Drive in the City of Wildomar (City), Riverside County (see Figure 
1-2, Local Vicinity Map). The Plan Area encompasses 48.15 acres. Proposed onsite improvements consist 
of the construction of multifamily dwelling units on approximately 33.8 acres. The remaining 14.35 acres 
will remain undeveloped open space and utilized for conveying on- and off-site drainage. 


5.3.1 Hydrology 


5.3.1.1 Off-Site Existing Conditions 


Under existing conditions, the Plan Area accepts runoff from off-site areas at several locations. Two 
culverts enter the Plan Area at the same location on Clinton Keith Road, approximately 300 feet west of 
Inland Valley Road. The tributary area at this point is approximately 299 acres. The calculated 100-year 
peak flow rate at this location is approximately 570 cubic feet per second (cfs). Under existing conditions, 
this runoff travels to the southwest corner of the Plan Area via natural drainage channels. 


Flows also enter the Plan Area from Inland Valley Drive. Two culverts convey offsite flow into the 
existing drainage course on-site. The total off-site area that is tributary to both culverts is approximately 
310 acres. The calculated 100-year peak flow rate is approximately 554 cfs. These flows also continue to 
the southwest corner of the Plan Area. 


Off-site drainage areas were acquired from Riverside County Flood Control topography maps. Off-site 
areas are assumed to be natural conditions. The off-site soil type is predominately “D” with smaller areas 
of soils “C” and “B”. Soil type “D” was used for offsite areas to yield a conservative peak flow rate. 


5.3.1.2 On-Site Existing Conditions 


Under existing conditions, runoff from the Plan Area generally drains to the two natural drainage courses 
that traverse the Plan Area. All flow discharges from the Plan Area at an existing pipe culvert located 
under Interstate 15 (I-15). Including all off-site areas, the 100-year peak flow rate at I-15 is approximately 
1148 cfs. 


The existing condition peak flow rates for the Plan Area were also calculated to determine allowable 
peak flow rates for developed conditions. The respective 10- and 100-year peak flow rates for the Plan 
Area were calculated at 37.7 cfs and 66.2 cfs. 


The Riverside County Rational Method program (Bonadamins CivilD) was used for the hydrology 
calculations. The Plan Area is composed of soil type “B” per the Riverside County Hydrology Manual 
(see Figure 2 of the manual). 


 







WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 5-1


WATER PLAN


LEGEND
Existing Water Main


Proposed Water Main 8”


Fire Hydrant


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 5-1







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-4 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


This page intentionally left blank. 


  







Cl
in


to
n 


Ke
ith


 R
oa


d


WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 5-2


SEWER PLAN


LEGEND
Existing Sewer Lines 18” SS


Proposed Sewer Lines 8” SS


18”


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-6 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-7 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


5.3.1.3 On-Site Proposed Condition 


A large portion of the natural drainage course that traverses the Plan Area from north to south will 
remain unchanged. The northerly portion of this drainage channel will be filled with a proposed storm 
drain conveying off-site flow through the Plan Area. The existing channel adjacent to the southernmost 
property line will remain unchanged. Under proposed conditions, overall drainage areas to the existing 
natural drainage courses will remain relatively unchanged. However, with proposed improvements, 
areas outside of the natural drainage course will discharge to the channels at controlled points. 


In general, runoff from the area west of the existing north/south drainage course will be conveyed to the 
southwest corner of the Plan Area via an on-site storm drain system (see Figure 5-3, Drainage Plan). 
Runoff from the northeast corner of the Plan Area will drain to the proposed storm drain that will carry 
off-site flow through the Plan Area. Runoff from the proposed multifamily housing area in Planning 
Area 2 will drain to the channel at one location via on-site storm drain. Off-site runoff tributary to the 
Plan Area from Inland Valley Road will continue to drain to the Plan Area in the existing drainage course. 
All flow from off- and on-site areas discharge under I-15 via an existing 120-inch pipe culvert. 


5.3.2 Detention Analysis 


For planning purposes, the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District requires 
that the difference in volume between the existing and proposed conditions be capable of being detained 
on-site for the 10-year event. Under the proposed conditions, runoff from the improvements will drain 
to the channel at two different locations (see Figure 5-3). 


Hydrographs for proposed conditions were generated at the various points of discharge using 
Bonadamins CivilD flood program. Lag time was calculated using the rational method time of 
concentration. Recommended defaults in the computer program were used for soil loss rates appropriate 
to the land use. A 5-minute interval for the 24-hour storm (10-year) was selected. The same parameters 
were used for the existing condition, with the exception of the use of the undeveloped loss rates. This 
yielded a hydrograph that would approximate existing conditions with the same area. Adequate area 
has been set aside for detention purposes. The volume expected to be detained is the difference between 
onsite existing and proposed conditions 24-hour hydrographs (10-year). 


5.3.2.1 Utilities 


The Plan Area will be served with telephone, cable, internet (data), electricity, natural gas, and solid 
waste collection from private companies as detailed below in Table 5-1. 


Table 5-1 
Utility Providers 


Electricity Southern California Edison 
Gas So. Cal. Gas Company 


Water Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 
Sewer Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 


Solid Waste Waste Management of the Inland Empire  
Telephone and Cable Verizon and Time Warner 


 







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-8 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


5.3.2.2 Police and Fire Protection 


The Riverside County Sheriff’s Department will provide law enforcement for the Plan Area. The 
Riverside County Fire Department (RCFD) will provide fire protection to the Plan Area (see Figure 5-4, 
Fire Stations & School Sites Map). More specifically, the Plan Area will be served by two RCFD stations 
located within the project vicinity, as follows: 


 Fire Station #75 (Bear Creek) located at 38900 Clinton Keith Road, Murrieta, CA 


 Fire Station #61 (Wildomar) located at 32637 Gruwell Street, Wildomar, CA 


5.3.2.3 School Facilities 


The Plan Area is located in the Lake Elsinore Unified School District (LEUSD) in the County of Riverside. 
The LEUSD contains three schools that would serve students of the Plan Area. The Ronald Reagan 
Elementary School is located at 25445 Porras Road and serves kindergarten through fifth grade. The 
David Brown Middle School is located at 21861 Grand Avenue and serves grades six through eight. The 
Elsinore High School is located at 21800 Canyon Drive and serves grades nine through twelve. The school 
site locations are depicted in Figure 5-4, Fire Station & School Sites Map. In addition to LEUSD public 
schools, prekindergarten and kindergarten services will be provided by “A Small World For Little 
People” day school, which is a private school. 


5.3.2.4 Phasing 


Development within the community of Oak Springs Ranch will occur in two phases, as shown in Figure 
5-5, Phasing Plan. Construction of Oak Springs Ranch will be phased in a logical sequence in response to 
market demands. Ultimate phasing through the recordation of phased final tract maps will be finalized 
at time of sale. Adjustments to the phasing sequence are permitted provided that adequate utilities and 
public facilities are available to service the phase in question. 


 The project proponent indicates that building construction will require approximately 15 to 18 
months to complete. As indicated above, the buildings will be constructed in the following order: 


 Site preparation and infrastructure improvements 


 Phase 1: 312 multifamily apartment units (including open space area) 


 Phase 2: 288 multifamily apartment units 


Actual implementation of the development phases may overlap, depending on market conditions during 
the period the project is implemented. This does not affect the impact analysis conducted for and 
provided in the Environmental Impact Report, since it addresses the buildout of the Specific Plan as the 
most conservative forecasting methodology. 


 


 







WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 5-3


DRAINAGE PLAN


LEGEND
Existing Storm Drain


Proposed Storm Drain


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


60”


84”







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-10 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIRE STATIONS & SCHOOL SITES MAP


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 5-4


N


not to scale


1. Elsinore High School
2. David Brown Middle School
3. Ronald Reagan Elementary School
4. Fire Station #61
5. Fire Station #75


Wildomar Trail







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-12 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







FIGURE 5-5


PHASING PLAN


PHASE 1


PHASE 2


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH
LEGEND


PHASE 1


PHASE 2


WILDOMAR TRAIL







 


AUGUST 2021 Page 5-14 5.0 PUBLIC FACILITIES & PHASING 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 6-1 6.0 COMPREHENSIVE MAINTENANCE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


6.0 COMPREHENSIVE MAINTENANCE PLAN 


The development area covered by the Specific Plan (Plan Area) is made up of two separate and distinct (but 
complimentary) residential neighborhoods, both consisting of multifamily attached products. In addition 
to the residential development, there is a natural habitat open space that divides the two residential project 
areas (see Figure 3-1, Land Use Plan). It is important, however, to ensure that the quality of the Plan Area and 
related improvements are maintained long term. To accomplish this will require that each multifamily 
development area and the natural open habitat be owned and maintained by the underlying property 
owner. The public rights of way (ROW) will be included in a Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance 
District (LLMD); therefore, the landscape improvements within the ROW will be maintained by the LLMD. 
Figure 6-1, Maintenance Responsibility Plan, illustrates the LLMD and privately maintained areas. 


6.1 Residential Property Maintenance 


Each multifamily development area (Planning Areas 1 and 2) shall be owned and maintained by the 
underlying property owner. 


6.2 Project Roadways 


All public roadways and private streets will be designed and constructed to City of Wildomar standards. 
Parkway greenbelts will be maintained by the property owner and/or its agent of the multifamily 
development areas (Planning Areas 1 and 2). 


6.3 Open Space and Parks 


The common open and park spaces within the multifamily development areas (Planning Areas 1 and 2) 
shall be maintained by the property owner and/or its agent. The natural open space habitat located within 
Planning Area 3 will be owned and maintained by the underlying property owner. 


  







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 6-2 6.0 COMPREHENSIVE MAINTENANCE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


 







WILDOMAR TRAIL


FIGURE 6-1


MAINTENANCE 
RESPONSIBILITY PLAN


LEGEND
Property Owner Maintained


Nnot to scale


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District







 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 6-4 6.0 COMPREHENSIVE MAINTENANCE PLAN 


 
OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 
This page intentionally left blank. 


 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-1 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


The design guidelines provide general criteria for architecture, landscaping, entry monumentation, and 
lighting design in order to ensure a high-quality development and strong community character. The 
overall goal of the design guidelines is to create a unique master-planned community nestled around an 
undisturbed natural open space with scattered oak trees and blue-line stream, all within the City of 
Wildomar (City). This Specific Plan recognizes that the development of Oak Springs Ranch will play a 
vital role in the growth of City and provide valuable housing opportunities for persons not able to 
purchase a home. 


These guidelines are intended to provide criteria for design while allowing flexibility for architects, 
landscape architects, developers, builders, and others involved in the design of community elements. 
Variation and customization by a builder within the context of the guidelines is encouraged to achieve 
individually distinctive neighborhoods complemented by recreational components and linked together 
with pedestrian paseos. Through collaboration and cooperation between the master developer, 
builder(s), and City, the Oak Springs Ranch master-planned residential community is destined to become 
a successful and desirable addition to the City. 


The specific objectives of the design guidelines are to: 


 Provide guidance to builders, engineers, architects, landscape architects, and other professionals in 
order to obtain a high quality of design. 


 Provide a framework for the formation of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) for the 
use of land in the specific plan area. 


 Provide the City of Wildomar with the necessary assurances that the community of Oak Springs 
Ranch will be developed in accordance with a certain quality and character as set forth in this 
document. 


The design guidelines are intended to be flexible and work in concert with the development standards 
contained in Chapter 8 of this Specific Plan. These guidelines establish principles that will ensure the 
quality of development and the community landscape and its character. These guidelines and the values 
they contain shall be followed in the design and build-out of the community. These guidelines should 
not be viewed as optional.  


7.1 Development Guidelines 


Specific development guidelines have been developed for Planning Areas 1 and 2 to assure compatibility 
and continuity within the development area covered by the Specific Plan (Plan Area) as well as other 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-2 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


developments in the Plan Area. A combination of the following guidelines should be incorporated to 
ensure Oak Springs Ranch is developed as a quality community that provides a variety of housing types, 
preserves the natural environmental features, and is a pedestrian-oriented community that integrates 
into the City: 


A. Design a community that considers the topo-
graphic, geologic, and hydrologic opportunities 
and constraints of the land.  


B. A community that reflects anticipated marketing 
needs and public demand by providing a range 
of housing types, which will be marketable 
within the developing economic profile of the 
City of Wildomar. 


C. Provide planning provisions for a safe and 
efficient circulation system composed of a net-
work of planned local roadways designed for 
appropriate traffic and user needs. 


D. Incorporate connectivity through pedestrian 
trails, paths, or sidewalks throughout the Plan 
Area and the adjacent community. 


E. Create a high standard in neighborhood design 
and implement it consistently over an entire new 
community, creating an identifiable and unique 
place. 


F. Create neighborhood designs that integrates 
architecture, site planning, and landscaping. 


G. Incorporate a variety of recreational and open 
space areas in the Plan Area. The recreation areas 
should offer a variety of active and passive uses. 
The open space areas should also provide a 
variety of amenities from manmade landscape 
features to the existing riparian habitat and 
native planting on-site. 


H. Protect natural features and views of the 
environmentally sensitive features of the Plan 
Area. 


I. Create interfaces connecting contrasting 
boundaries between distinctly different characteristics of existing neighborhoods. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-3 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


J. Create a distinct sense of neighborhood and place by designing attractive and comfortable street 
scenes and street spaces. 


K. Plan and design streets that are visually integrated into the landscape by giving consideration to the 
natural topography and natural features of the Plan Area.  


L. Design communities that incorporate neighborhood parks, trails, and open spaces.  


M. Apply 360-degree architecture on all building façades, with higher emphasis on façades visible from 
streets or open space areas. 


N. Design neighborhoods that integrate with the regional alternate transportation system including bus 
and bicycle systems. 


7.2 Massing Criteria and Site Planning Concepts 


Careful consideration has been given to the architectural design and plotting concepts of Oak Springs 
Ranch. The proper siting, location, and massing of the structures are instrumental in creating the 
appropriate neighborhood framework and preserving the natural and environmentally sensitive riparian 
habitat in the Plan Area. The general plotting concept, as shown on Figure 3-2, Land Use Plan, is flexible 
in terms of layout, location, and specific product orientation, as long as the overall project density and 
residential mix are maintained, and the riparian habitat is preserved. 


The follow residential design guidelines are encouraged in order to achieve the desired community 
setting and street scene for a quality neighborhood. 


A. Shortening streets and providing parkway-separated sidewalks when possible. All local streets 
shall have parkway-separated sidewalks creating continuous street-tree planting strips between the 
curb and sidewalk. The distance between back of curb and sidewalk will vary depending on lot size. 
It will be the builder’s responsibility to plant trees in accordance with the Landscape Palette 
contained in this chapter, and the Landscape Plan (see Figure 7- 12). By utilizing short street 
segments, traffic will be calmed, and distinct special places will be created within the neighborhoods. 


B. Minimizing the visual impact and prominence of the garage. It is critical to deemphasize 
the presence of the garage by providing alley-loaded products or by recessing garages if they are 
located on front façades. Entries, landscaping, porches, windows, and living areas should be 
incorporated into the design of the home to minimize the visual prominence of the garage. These 
methods will provide a traditional street scene by exposing greater amounts of habitable architecture 
to the street.  


C. Giving attention to composition of the building mass. Interior uses, architectural style, and 
sensitivity to the community’s overall visual impact are all results of building mass distribution. 
Maintaining a proportional relationship between architectural mass and form, the street, pedestrian 
spaces, adjacent lots, and plotting conditions will result in a sense of variety. 


D. Stepping back second stories. The street scene shall be improved by stepping back the second story 
mass. A flat façade will be avoided by articulating the mass with a series of recessed and protruding 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-4 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


architectural elements such as balconies, gables, awnings, windows, dormers, and first-story roof 
lines. Minimizing the mass of the second story will promote the visual character of the first story and 
reduce the dominance of the second story.  


E. Varying the roof planes. Multiple approaches to the design and framing of roof lines is essential to 
a positive visual impact of an overall project. A variation of height and prominence of all horizontal 
planes will promote a street scene exclusive of identical home silhouettes.  


F. Authenticity of architectural styles. Design solutions shall be developed to accurately define the 
selected architectural styles. Approaches need to provide authenticity to the materials, metho-
dologies, construction, and design of such proposed styles while allowing for an artistic and creative 
interpretation of these styles.  


7.3 Grading Criteria 


Grading is tailored to the existing topography of the Plan Area. Soils and geologic conditions present no 
significant constraints to grading. The primary objectives of the grading concept are to: a) establish road 
grades that are consistent with those of the existing streets around the Plan Area; b) provide stable 
development pads for residential structures and recreational amenities; and c) balance the cut and fill 
grading quantities on-site. 


The Plan Area encompasses 48.15 acres. It is anticipated that roughly two-thirds of the Plan Area, 
approximately 33.8 acres, is to be graded (see Figure 7-1, Grading Plan). Initial estimates indicate that 
roughly 288,000 cubic yards of cut will be balanced with about 296,000 cubic yards of fill (the balance of 
fill representing expansion of the cut material). This quantity may vary as final grading plans are 
developed. It is anticipated that the development area of the Plan Area will be graded, and that little or 
no imported fill dirt or rock will be required. Grading of the Plan Area will occur in one phase. The 
grading plans shall be designed to accommodate drainage and a street system that meets City standards. 
Grading activities are anticipated to take place over a period of three to four months. 







FIGURE 7-1


GRADING PLAN


LEGEND
Existing Topography


Proposed Grading


Nnot to scale


Wildomar Trail


Inland Valley Drive


Cl
in


to
n 


Ke
ith


 R
oa


d


Te
mecu


la Freeway


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-6 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-7 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.4 Siting Criteria 


Proper site planning is critical to achieve adequate 
placement of the structures and to ensure private 
spaces are provided for each resident. In addition, 
comprehensive site planning allows the project to 
provide private and public open spaces, trails, and 
pedestrian connectivity throughout the project site, 
as well as connection to the surrounding community. 
The following are sample criteria that should be 
implemented: 


A. Buildings should be placed with consideration 
given to the topographic and hydrologic 
environmental opportunities and constraints of 
the site. 


B. The riparian habitat open space (Planning Area 2) shall be protected and serve as a unifying element 
and natural landscape amenity within the project site. 


C. Buildings should be oriented to take advantage of the views of the riparian habitat and oak trees 
located on-site. 


D. Allocation of trails, open spaces, recreational areas, and transit facilities shall be incorporated into the 
overall site plan. 


A. Setbacks should be varied at entries and garage areas to create a variety of building footprints. 


E. Residential units should be oriented to maximize privacy between neighboring or adjacent units. 


B. Buildings should be sited to ensure pedestrian connectivity throughout the development and the 
adjacent community. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-8 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.5 Fencing/Walls/Gates/Monuments 


Walls, fences, and gates will be incorporated throughout Oak Springs Ranch to establish community 
identity, provide protection (e.g., noise nuisance) from roadways and recreation areas (e.g., swimming 
pools), and to provide privacy and security to residential areas. Locations of these walls, fences, and gates 
are illustrated in Figure 7-2, Wall, Fence, & Monument Plan.  


Tubular steel, tubular steel with stone veneer pilasters, block walls with tubular steel gates, and two-rail 
polyethylene fences will occur throughout the Plan Area as illustrated in Figure 7-2. The developer shall 
install a tubular steel fence with stone veneer pilasters (provided every 30 feet on center) along Clinton 
Keith Road, Inland Valley Drive, and Oak Spring Road as shown on Figure 7-2.  As illustrated in Figure 
7-2, tubular steel fencing without pilasters will occur within the interior areas of the Plan Area, such as 
open space areas, trails, and the swimming pools.  The two-rail polyethylene fence will be located 
adjacent to the community trail along Inland Valley Drive, as shown on Figure 7-2. Details of the various 
walls and fences are shown on Figure 7-3, Wall & Fence Elevations. Pedestrian and vehicular gated 
entries/exits are provided at all four project entries/exits as shown on Figure 7-2. Additional pedestrian 
gated entries/exits are provided at key locations along Inland Valley Drive, Clinton Keith Road, and 
Wildomar Trail. Details of the vehicular and pedestrian gates are shown on Figure 7-5, Vehicular & 
Pedestrian Gates. Enlarged details of the community entries/exits are shown on Figure’s 7-6 through 7-9. 


Where it is feasible, trees, vines, and shrubbery shall be used to screen the visual impact of the fences 
and walls along the publicly visible edges of the community. Walls or fences bordering the swimming 
pool areas shall be tubular steel and walls or fences fronting recreational, open or public spaces shall be 
tubular steel or tubular steel with stone veneer pilasters with masonry as shown on Figure 7-2. Along 
front yards and in situations where walls are visible from the street, walls and fences shall be designed 
and constructed of materials that are compatible with the surrounding architecture or use.  


Entry and corner monuments serve several important purposes; therefore, careful consideration has been 
given to the design and location of the monuments (see Figure 7-2, Wall, Fence, and Monument Plan). The 
intent of the project monumentation design is to create visual gateways into Oak Springs Ranch and to 
provide aesthetically pleasing community identification and entry statements that highlight the 
distinctiveness of the community. Functionally, monuments may serve to display the project name, 
address, and possibly, builder. Entry monumentation shall not be taller than six feet, with the exception 
of the corner monument wall, which can be up to a maximum of eight feet in height, as shown on Figure 
7-4, Corner & Entry Monument Walls. The Specific Plan provides for community entry monumentation at 
the Clinton Keith Road and Inland Valley Drive project entries and a corner monument wall at the 
Clinton Keith Road/Wildomar Trail intersection, as shown on Figure 7-2. All walls shall be designed and 
constructed of a material, design, and color to be compatible with the adjacent architecture.  


 







WALL, FENCE & 
MONUMENT PLAN


LEGEND


N200’100’50’0’


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 7-2


TEMECULA FREEWAY LEGEND
WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-10 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







WALL & FENCE ELEVATIONS


Nnot to scale


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 7-3


BLOCK WALL WITH TUBULAR STEEL GATE


TUBULAR STEEL FENCE


TWO-RAIL POLYETHYLENE FENCE


Note: Block wall shall be decorative.  


TUBULAR STEEL FENCE PILASTER







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-12 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7- 4


CORNER & ENTRY 
MONUMENT WALLS


Nnot to scale


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


CORNER MONUMENT WALL


ENTRY MONUMENT WALL


WILDOMAR


WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-14 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


FIGURE 7-5


not to scale


VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN GATES







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-16 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







FIGURE 7-6


COMMUNITY ENTRY - 
INLAND VALLEY DRIVE


N


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


MULTI FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL


WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-18 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7-7


COMMUNITY ENTRY - 
CLINTON KEITH ROAD


N


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-20 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7-8


COMMUNITY ENTRY - 
WILDOMAR TRAIL


N


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


WILDOMAR TRAIL


WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-22 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7-9


COMMUNITY ENTRY - 
WILDOMAR TRAIL


N


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


WILDOMAR TRAIL
WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-24 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-25 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.6 Architectural Features 


7.6.1 Architectural Theme 


The proposed architectural theme of the Plan Area 
allows for Craftsman, Shingle or Spanish 
architectural styles. These styles were selected 
because of their architectural quality and 
integrity. These architectural styles will establish a 
theme for the project, while maintaining continuity 
among the various architectural designs. The 
architectural character of individual 
development projects will enhance the architectural 
integrity of the surrounding community, while being 
sensitive to the natural and environmental 
features of the Plan Area. Phase 2 project area will 
be comprised of Craftsman style features.  


Craftsman Features 
 Low-pitched gables and or hip roofs
 Low concrete tile or composition roofing
 Window overhangs and exposed eaves
 Grouped windows, often with decorative enhancement
 Horizontal siding
 Sand or smooth stucco finish
 Blended stucco and siding
 Stucco with stone base
 Entry porches
 Pergolas
 Light or deep earth tone colors


Shingle Features 
 High-pitched gables and or hip roofs
 Flat concrete tile or composition roofing
 Tight rakes and 12”–18” eaves
 Chimneys with detailed brick or stone veneer base with siding above
 Paired windows with strong window trims
 Decorative shingles and horizontal siding used without interruption, along with brick or stone


veneer as accent
 Entry porches with articulated columns with wood or brick base, and decorative railing
 Balconies only as an accent (typically above entry)
 Light and deep grey and white tones







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-26 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


Figures 7-10a and 7-10bprovide samples of quality architecture and design elements typically found in 
Craftsman and Shingle architectural styles. Additionally, the design guidelines found in Sections 7.6.2 
through 7.6.6 contain guidelines that are typically found in Craftsman and Shingle Architecture. The 
guidelines are intended to be a guide and not a rigid formula for design or as a requirement to produce 
exact replicas. 


7.6.2 Building Form, Mass, and Height 


Buildings in Oak Springs Ranch will be designed at a scale 
that is appropriate to the surrounding environment and 
enhances pedestrian activity. All building designs shall 
incorporate the appropriate proportion of form, mass, and 
height to be sensitive to the street frontages and to the 
pedestrian experience through quality architecture, 
sensitivity to scale and the natural environment of the site. 
The buildings should incorporate a combination of the 
following design features to achieve this goal: 


A. Locate and design structures at a scale and function
that enhances and encourages pedestrian activity.


B. Where feasible, building forms and heights
should be interconnecting and overlap to
break up extensive building elevations.


C. All design shall incorporate a combination of
compatible architectural styles and forms to
ensure the development achieves an image
that is distinctive yet unified. Box-like
designs are prohibited.


D. A variety of shapes and forms including
architectural projections such as chimneys,
balconies, porches, patios, exposed trellis,
arcades, dormers, rafters, and planter boxes
should be incorporated, when appropriate,
to break up the building mass.


E. The overall scale and design of the buildings
in individual neighborhoods should be
compatible with each other in terms of mass
and form.







FIGURE 7-10a


MULTIFAMILY PRODUCT ELEVATIONS


LEGEND


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


FRONT







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-28 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7-10b


MULTIFAMILY PRODUCT ELEVATIONS


LEGEND


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


not to scale


REAR







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-30 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-31 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


F. Buildings should be designed to be pedestrian oriented with pedestrian-scaled building elements at
the ground level (e.g., columns, pillars, covered entries, patios, trellises, bay windows, or planters).


G. Open the plan of the corner lots to allow for substantial street scene variation.


7.6.3 Shade and Shadow 


The buildings should be situated to maximize natural light, sun exposure, and shade to the extent feasible 
given the topographic opportunities and natural amenities of the Plan Area. Therefore, the following 
considerations should be incorporated to maximize the benefits of proper building orientation and the 
environmental opportunities of the Plan Area: 


A. Buildings should be oriented to take advantage of natural light, heat, shade, and shadow, which will
help reduce energy consumption and encourage energy conservation.


B. Lot size and configuration should consider future orientation of a structure to take advantage of
shade and prevailing winds.


C. Covered entries, balconies, and porches should be incorporated to provide shadow and shade for
each residential unit, to the extent feasible.


D. Windows should be framed with compatible materials to create well-defined edge treatments and be
designed to provide distinctive shadows on the building façades.


E. Landscaping should be planted near buildings to provide shade and shadow.


7.6.4 Building Relief 


The building design shall be sensitive to the 
visual character of the elevations and the 
street frontages and incorporate a pedestrian 
orientation to the extent feasible. In addition, 
the building façades shall be richly detailed 
to avoid extensive plain surfaces. The 
building façades will also be characterized by 
differentiated design, massing, articulated 
rooflines, covered entries, and façade 
projections and recessions. The combination 
of the following design guidelines should be 
incorporated to create building relief and 
sensitivity to the pedestrian: 


A. All elevations visible from public or private spaces should be articulated.


B. To reduce the apparent scale and provide visual interest, wall surfaces should contain a variety of
articulations, such as offsets, projections, step-backs, penetrations, and surface textures.







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-32 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


C. Design features such as pillars, columns, trellises, bay windows, and other architectural features
should be incorporated into the building elevations to add visual interest and create a pedestrian
orientation to the building.


D. Second stories should be stepped back or provide projected elements to add relief to the higher
building elevations.


E. Variations in colors, materials, and textures should be incorporated to enhance visual aesthetics.


F. Roof planes should be varied in size and pitch to break up the building elevation.


G. Entries should be covered and recessed or
project from the building to be clearly defined.


H. Recessed doors, windows, and wall openings
should be used to create a sense of depth and
shadowing for visual variety and interest.


I. Balconies and porches are strongly encouraged to
articulate and enhance the building elevations.


J. Exterior stairs should be designed to be incor-
porated into the theme of the structure and to be
a natural extension of the building.


7.6.5 Building Materials 


To achieve architectural diversity and continuity, a variety of materials and colors are acceptable. The 
following design elements are encouraged: 


A. Exterior building materials should be wood or wood-like siding, cement, stucco, plaster, or a
similarly durable material.


B. Each architectural style may include a different predominant façade material or color to promote
individuality within the development.


C. Accent materials such as concrete masonry units, iron, stone, rock, brick, or tile are encouraged to
add texture and definition to building elevations.


A. Colored accents are encouraged, especially on balcony rails and trim, provided that they are
appropriately integrated in an overall design program.


D. Materials are to be durable, appropriately scaled, and aesthetically pleasing to promote the overall
quality of the project.


E. Material and color sample boards shall be provided for each residential development.







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-33 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.6.6 Roof Form and Materials 


The dominant impact of a home or structure is the shape of the building and roofline. Articulated rear 
elevations and varying roof planes minimize the visual impact of repetitious flat planes, similar building 
form, and ridge heights. To ensure a high visual quality within the community, the following 
components are strongly encouraged: 


A. A hierarchy of roofs to define
building entries and add
architectural creativity to a
building.


B. Buildings should be designed to
create visual interest by using
varying rooflines, roof
overhangs and building offsets.


C. Roof sizes and pitches shall vary
based on the architectural style
being implemented.


D. Exposed and extended rafters are encouraged to add dimension and visual interest to the building
design.


E. Buildings should incorporate crown molding
or decorative cornices at the roofline or building
parapet when appropriate given the
architectural design of the building.


F. Exposed roof materials should be a combination
of ‘S’ shaped tile, concrete tile, or other similar
durable material.


G. Roof colors and composition should vary within
the project to add interest and variety to the
streetscape.


H. Roof elements such as chimneys and vents shall also be incorporated into the design the roof.


7.6.7 Accessory Structures 


Accessory structures such as trellises, benches, bicycle racks, mailboxes, trash receptacles and enclosures, 
lighting, gates, and signs can add charm to a neighborhood, enhance the pedestrian experience, and serve 
as elements to create continuity among different architectural styles. Site furnishings should reinforce 
the architectural character of the Plan Area and add charm within the community. The following 
guidelines should be incorporated throughout the project: 


A. Trash enclosures shall be located in areas of low visibility to the extent feasible, yet placed in locations
that allow easy access to the enclosure and that do not damage surrounding landscaping.







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-34 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


B. Trash enclosures shall be constructed of painted stucco-finished block, decorative block, or a similarly 
durable material. The enclosure shall be designed to integrate with the overall design theme of the
development. If trash enclosures are located adjacent to or within a landscaped area, vines shall be
planted in a manner to help screen the enclosure.


C. Covered wood trellises are strongly encouraged
above trash enclosures or above a significant
point of interest. Trellises soften the appearance of
accessory structures and add architectural
articulation to otherwise large expanses of
openness.


D. Design accessory elements should be a logical
extension of the main structure.


E. Ensure accessory structures or street furniture
are durable, easy to maintain, and designed at a
scale that is pedestrian oriented.


F. Distribute street amenities along the street scene
to help lead the pedestrian and to help improve the overall experience for pedestrians walking
through the neighborhoods.







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-35 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.7 Landscaping, Open Space, Recreation, and Lighting 


The landscape design guidelines establish a landscape theme for Oak Springs Ranch and set forth general 
criteria for landscaping of the residential communities and recreational amenities. These guidelines, 
consisting of a written summary and graphic exhibits, establish landscape criteria for entries, 
streetscapes, medians, recreational amenities, pocket parks, plant palette, lighting, and walls in order 
to create a unifying fabric for the community.  


The Oak Springs Ranch Landscape Plan, Figure 7-11, is driven by the desire to integrate the proposed 
master-planned community into Wildomar and to create an identifiable sense of place. Landscape and 
streetscape elements will be used to create visual continuity throughout Oak Springs Ranch. Community 
elements such as entries, streetscapes, and walls will establish the design theme for the community by 
reinforcing the design hierarchy and by providing a reassurance of the community areas and boundaries. 
These features are created through a thematic blend of hardscape and planting elements. 


Efforts shall be concentrated along the perimeters of 
the development projects and the edges of the lots to 
ensure that the community’s visual character is 
established, and to achieve the Specific Plan’s goals. 
The landscape plan calls for a compatible plant 
palette of trees, shrubs, and ground covers. Once a 
particular plant or plant combination is used for a 
particular application, it shall be repeated in similar 
areas of the community to reinforce a sense of neigh-
borhood cohesion. Landscape design shall not, 
however, result in monotony or lack of variety or 
plant diversity. The following is a description of 
landscape elements for the specific plan. These 
elements shall be detailed at the site development plan level or other discretionary permit for each 
planning area. The landscape design is based on the vision and goals of the Specific Plan. 


7.7.1 Coverage 


All areas required to be landscaped shall be planted with turf, groundcover, shrubs, or trees selected 
from the plant palette contained in these guidelines. A combination of hydroseed mix and groundcovers 
shall be used to cover areas between shrubs and trees to prevent erosion. Colorful perennials will also be 
a part of these plantings. Plants with similar watering requirements shall be planted together in order to 
simplify the irrigation systems and increase water use efficiency. Priority use of water shall be 
considered, meaning that visually sensitive areas are entitled to use more water than low visual impact 
areas. Visually sensitive areas include project entries, open space edges and highly traveled street 
frontages. Trees shall be placed along open space edges in a manner not to impact the visual character of 
the open space nor impair the scenic vistas of the open space. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-36 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.7.2 Plant Palette 


Trees 
Washingtonia filifera    California fan palm 
Cercis Occidentalis    Western redbud 
Lagerstroemi falieri    Red crepe myrtle 
Pinus Torreyana    Torrey pine 
Plantus Racemosa    California sycamore 
Podocarpus gracilior    Fern pine 
Prunus cerasifera ‘kraijter vesuvius’  Purple leaf plum 
Quercus agrifolia    Coast live oak 
Quercus engelmannii    Engelmann oak 
Quercus lobata     Valley oak 
Robinia ambibua ‘purple robe’   Pink flowering locust 


Ornamental Shrub Planting 
Escallonia fradesi    Escallonia 
Photinia fraseri     Fraser’s photinia 
Dietes vegeta     Fortnight iris 
Pittosporum tobira ‘variegata’   Varegated tobira 
Raphiolepis indica ‘clara’   Indian hawthorn 
Hemerocallis hybrids    Daylily 
Parthenocissus tricuspioata   Boston ivy 
50/50 Goldovers    Wood mulch 


Native Planting 
Quercus agrifolia    Coast live oak 
Arctostaphylos uva ursi    Kinnicknick 
Heteromeles arbutifolia    Toyon 
Rhus integrifolia    Lemonade bush 
Salvia greggii     Autumn sage 
Heuchera hybrid    Hybrid coral bells 
Iris Douclasiana    Pacific Coast iris 
Romneya coulteri ‘white cloud’   Matilija poppy 


7.7.3 Drought Tolerance 


The landscape palette for the Specific Plan shall promote selective drought tolerance through the use of 
native and naturalizing species. All common landscape areas shall be equipped with automatic irrigation 
systems. A variety of irrigation methods can be used, although water conserving methods such as drip, 
bubbler, and microspray techniques are encouraged where feasible. Automatic controllers shall be 
equipped with automatic rain-shut-off devices and provide for various types of water management 
options. All aboveground controllers should be screened with plant material. 


 







FIGURE 7-11


LANDSCAPE PLAN


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


N200’100’50’0’


WILDOMAR TRAIL







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-38 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-39 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.7.4 Spaces (Patios, Green Space, Trails, Recreation Areas) 


An overall landscaping framework will be established, intertwining both community-wide and 
neighborhood-oriented concepts, and will provide active and passive recreation spaces, formally 
landscaped areas, and natural and informal areas. 


Existing within the Plan Area is a significant natural 
open space riparian habitat (Planning Area 3) that 
separates the two residential planning areas 
(Planning Areas 1 and 2) and traverses the 
southeastern boundary of the Plan Area (see Figure 
3-1, Land Use Plan). This natural open space area is 
considered an amenity to the community. It 
supports a diversity of plant and wildlife species 
while serving important environmental functions, 
including capturing and slowly reintroducing water 
into the natural system with a reduced risk of 
flooding. Observation areas along the 12-foot-wide 
community trail (see Figure 7-12, Recreation Plan) 
have been designed along the southern edge of the 
riparian area allowing residents and community trail users to observe the indigenous trees, mainly 
specimen oaks, and wildlife within the open space. A six-foot-wide multi-use trail comprised of 
stabilized decomposed granite traverses along the edges of the open space habitat area (see Figure 7-12) 
and connects to the various recreation areas and par course stations.  


Neighborhood recreation centers are located in both multifamily residential neighborhoods (Planning 
Areas 1 and 2), as shown on Figure 7-12. These recreational centers are intended to be utilized 
concurrently by many families and shall include amenities such as pools, spas, picnic areas, a clubhouse, 
fitness center, basketball and volleyball courts, restrooms, tot lots, and open outdoor lawn areas. 


Neighborhood recreation areas or smaller pocket parks are located throughout the Plan Area as shown 
on Figure 7-12. Generally, they are at a slight to no grade and are approximately the size of a residential 
lot. It is preferred that these recreation areas or pocket parks be located adjacent to an open space or 
pedestrian paseo to take advantage of the passive and active activities offered by these adjacent 
recreational uses. Sites that are easily accessed or that contain a view or other visual amenity are 
recommended for the development of the aforementioned recreation areas and pocket parks. The 
neighborhood recreation areas or pocket parks shall include open lawn play areas, tot lots, open lawn 
areas, swimming pools, par course, and picnic areas. Figures 7-13a, 7-13b, and 7-14 provide enlarged 
illustrations of the various recreation centers and areas.  


Par course stations are also provided along the multi-use trail within all three planning areas as shown 
on Figure 7-12. The par course stations are designed to provide exercise areas for the residents of the 
community. The par course stations provide exercise equipment such as a challenge ladder with sit-up 
bench and spring-up bars (see Figure 7-15, Typical Par Course Station).  


  







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-40 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.7.5 Special Treatments/Buffer Area 


Landscape guidelines have been developed for the 
buffer areas to ensure that the plant palette consists 
of native species that are compatible with the open 
space plant species. Along the edges of lots adjacent 
to Planning Area 3, or natural open space, it is 
preferred that more fire-resistant plant species be 
used. 


7.7.6 Lighting 


The basic concept for the Oak Springs Ranch outdoor 
lighting is to provide levels of lighting sufficient to 
meet the needs of orientation and safety, but low 
enough to prevent them from being intrusive to the 
livability of the community (and consistent with the City’s light pollution ordinance, Section 8.64 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code). Within public areas, light sources shall be concealed and indirect, while 
preventing substantial light spillage and glare into adjacent lots or uses. The following guidelines should 
be incorporated to ensure appropriate design, placement, and application of lighting is achieved on-site: 


A. Lighting of the site and structures should be designed for visibility, security, and night usage where 
applicable. Structures should be washed with a focus on signage for way finding.  


B. Lighting sources shall not be directed into adjacent lots or uses. Light spill should be minimized.  


C. Up-lighting of trees in focal areas is encouraged for both definition and direction where night use is 
anticipated.  


D. Similar building fixtures should be used to provide continuity and compatibility throughout the 
project site. 


E. Light fixtures should be durable, easy to maintain, and designed at a scale that is sensitive to the 
pedestrian. 


F. All lighting shall be in compliance with the provisions of Section 8.64 (Light Pollution Ordinance) of 
the Wildomar Municipal Code.  


G. Light fixtures that complement the architectural design shall be incorporated into building façades. 


H. Lighting should be warm in color. It is recommended that cool-colored light produced from mercury 
vapor, sodium, neon, and cool fluorescent be avoided. 


 







FIGURE 7-12


RECREATION PLAN


LEGEND


NNOT TO SCALE


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-42 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







Wildomar Trail


Inland Valley Drive


Cl
in


to
n 


Ke
ith


 R
d.


Key Map


FIGURE 7-13a


MULTIFAMILY NEIGHBORHOOD
RECREATION CENTER  (PA 1)


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


not to scale


N







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-44 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







Key Map


Oak Springs Rd.


Cl
in


to
n 


Ke
ith


 R
d.


Inland Valley Drive


FIGURE 7-13b


MULTIFAMILY NEIGHBORHOOD
RECREATION CENTER  (PA 1)


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


not to scale N







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-46 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7-14


MULTIFAMILY NEIGHBORHOOD
RECREATION AREA 2  (PA 1)


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2.


not to scale N


Cl
in


to
n 


Ke
ith


 R
d.


Inland Valley Drive


Wildomar Trail


Key Map







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-48 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







FIGURE 7-15


TYPICAL PAR COURSE STATION


OAK
SPRINGS


RANCH
15


Note: For tree, shrub, and ground
cover species, see planting palette
in Section 7.7.2. not to scale N


Inland Valley Drive


Wildomar Trail


Cl
in


to
n 


Ke
ith


 R
d.


Key Map







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-50 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-51 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


7.7.7 Site Furnishings 


Accessory structures such as trellises, benches, bicycle racks, mailboxes, and signs can add charm to a 
development and enhance the pedestrian experience. Site furnishings are to reinforce the architectural 
character of the site and be compatible with the community. The following guidelines should be applied 
to ensure continuity within Oak Springs Ranch: 


A. Ensure that accessory structures and street furniture are durable, easy to maintain, and are designed 
at a scale that is pedestrian oriented. 


B. Distribute street amenities along the street scene 
to help lead the pedestrian and improve the 
overall pedestrian walking experience 
throughout the development. 


C. Similar building fixtures should be used to 
provide continuity and compatibility with the 
adjacent residential developments. 


D. Furniture such as large potted plants, light poles, 
benches, seat walls, tables, and chairs shall be 
incorporated throughout the project site, where 
feasible, to encourage pedestrian activity and to 
create a pedestrian-oriented environment. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 PAGE 7-52 7.0 DESIGN GUIDELINES 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-1 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


8.1 Development Guidelines 


The following residential planning standards incorporated into the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan 
(Specific Plan) to establish development criteria that will result in a quality development with sensitivity 
and preservation of the natural environment. 


Specific development guidelines for Planning Areas 1 and 2 are intended to assure compatibility and 
continuity within the Specific Plan as well as other developments in the development area covered by 
the Specific Plan (Plan Area). A combination of the following guidelines should be incorporated to ensure 
Oak Springs Ranch is a quality community that provides a variety of housing types, preserves the natural 
environmental features, and is a pedestrian-oriented community that integrates into the City of 
Wildomar (City): 


A. Design a community that considers the topographic, geologic, and hydrologic opportunities and 
constraints of the land. 


B. Develop a community that reflects anticipated market needs and public demand by providing a 
range of housing types, which will be marketable within the developing economic profile of 
the County of Riverside. 


C. Provide planning provisions for a safe and efficient circulation system composed of a network of 
planned local roadways designed for appropriate traffic and user needs. 


D. Create a high standard in neighborhood design and implement it consistently over an entire new 
community creating an identifiable and unique place. 


E. Create neighborhood designs that integrate architecture, site planning, and landscape. 


F. Incorporate a variety of recreational and open space areas. The recreation areas should offer a variety 
of active and passive uses. The open space areas should also provide a variety of amenities, from 
man-made landscape features to the existing riparian habitat and native planting on-site. 


G. Protect natural features and views of the environmentally sensitive areas of the site. 


H. Create interfaces by connecting contrasting boundaries between distinctly different characteristics of 
existing neighborhoods. 


I. Create a distinct sense of neighborhood and place by designing attractive and comfortable street 
scenes and street spaces. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-2 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


J. Plan and design streets that are visually integrated into the landscape by giving consideration to the 
topography and natural features of the site.  


K. Design communities that incorporate neighborhood parks, trails, and open spaces.  


L. Provide 360-degree architecture on all building facades, with a higher emphasis on facades visible 
from streets or open spaces. 


M. Incorporate connectivity through pedestrian trails, paths or sidewalks throughout the site and the 
adjacent community. 


N. Design neighborhoods that integrate into the regional alternate transportation system including bus 
and bicycle systems. 


8.2 Planning Areas 1 and 2 Permitted Uses 


The following uses are allowed, provided a plot plan has been approved by the City: 


 Attached single-family residences 


 Alley-loaded units 


 Condominiums 


 Multifamily dwellings, bungalow courts and apartments  


 Planned residential developments, provided a land division is approved by the City 


 Accessory buildings to a specific permitted use, provided that the accessory building is established 
as an ancillary use and does not change the character of that use 


 Home occupations 


 Public parks and playgrounds, golf courses with standard-length fairways, and country clubs 


 Temporary real estate tract offices located within a subdivision, to be used only for and during the 
original sale of the subdivision, but not to exceed a period of two years 


 Congregate care residential facilities 


The City’s Planning Director has the authority to make an administrative determination on any uses that 
are not specifically listed above. 


8.3 Planning Area 3 Permitted Uses 


The following uses are allowed: 


 Open space 


 Trails 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-3 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


8.4 Multifamily, Apartments, and Attached Multi-Family 
Residential Development Standards (Planning Areas 1 and 2) 


 Residential Development Standards 


Minimum Floor Area 
 One-bedroom unit:  675 sq. ft. 


 Two-bedroom unit:  900 sq. ft. 


 Three-bedroom unit:  1,150 sq. ft. 


Minimum Private Open Space (Patios, etc.) 
 First Floor:  60 sq. ft. per unit for 80 percent of the units 


 Second and third floors:   40 sq. ft. per unit for 80 percent of the units 


Lot Coverage:  
 Maximum lot coverage: 50 percent 


Lot Dimensions 
 Minimum lot size: 7,200 sq. ft. 


 Minimum lot width: 60 ft.  


 Minimum lot depth:  100 ft. 


Building Setbacks 
 Front yard facing a public street:  20 ft. minimum to right-of-way 


 Front yard facing a private street:  12 ft. minimum to curb face (parking may encroach) 


 Side or rear yard facing a public street:  15 ft. minimum to right-of-way 


 Side or read yard facing a private street or driveway:  5 ft. minimum to curb face 


 Side or rear yard facing an autocourt:  0 ft. 


 Architectural features such as fireplaces or bay windows may encroach up to three feet into a setback. 


Minimum Building Separation 
 One Story:  10 ft. 


 Two Story:  15 ft. 


 Three Story:  20 ft. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-4 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


Maximum Structure Height 
 Maximum Structure Height: 50 ft. 


 Parking Standards 


Parking requirements shall be pursuant to Chapter 17.188, Off-Street Vehicle Parking Standards, of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code unless otherwise stipulated in this Specific Plan. 


Multifamily 
 One-bedroom unit or studio: 1.25 spaces/unit 


 Two-bedroom unit: 2.25 spaces/unit 


 Three-bedroom unit:  2.75 spaces/unit 


 Employee parking:  1 space/employee 


Parking must be located on-site and conveniently distributed throughout the project. For multiple-family 
residences, condominiums, planned residential developments, and senior-citizen planned residential 
developments, at least one of the required parking spaces per unit shall be located in a garage or carport, 
which is architecturally harmonious with the main structure.  


8.5 Conditions of Development for Planned Residential 
Development 


Before any structure is erected or use established in Planning Areas 1 or 2, a subdivision map shall be 
recorded (if applicable) and a development plan approved as set forth below: 


A. A subdivision conforming to the standards and conditions of Title 16 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, as presently worded or hereafter amended, not inconsistent with specific provisions of this 
section shall be recorded. All lots not to be used for residential purposes shall be given a lot letter 
instead of a lot number. 


B. A development plan conforming to the requirements of this article and containing the following 
minimum information shall be approved by the Wildomar Planning Commission. 


 Location of each existing and each proposed structure in the development area, the use or uses 
to be contained therein. Typical plans indicating use on a lot may be used. 


 Location of all pedestrian walks, malls, recreation, and other open areas for the use of occupants 
and members of the public. 


 Location and height of all walls, fences, and screen planting, including a plan for the landscaping 
of the development, types of surfacing, such as paving, turfing, or other landscaping to be used 
at various locations. 


 Plans and elevations of typical structures to indicate architectural type and construction 
standards. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-5 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


C. Documents setting forth the method of conveying title, the type of estate to be granted, the method 
of maintaining the open areas and service areas, and the conditions of use of the open or recreation 
areas shall be submitted to and approved by the Wildomar Planning Commission. The following 
minimum standards shall be maintained: 


 The right to use recreational facilities and service areas shall be appurtenant to ownership of 
residential lots within the development, or shall be made a covenant to run with the land. 


 Provisions shall be made for maintenance of the common and service areas by a corporation, 
partnership, trust, or other legal entity having the right to assess the individual lot owners. 


8.6 Site Layout 


The site layout provided in Figure 3-2, Land Use Plan, of this Specific Plan is for conceptual purposes 
only. It is anticipated that the building size, footprint, access points, and parking layout will vary once a 
specific user is identified, and the final site plan is approved. However, the final site plan shall include 
the pedestrian connections as discussed below as well as vehicular access to each planning area that is 
approved by the City. The final site plan (including building layout, access points, building elevations, 
etc.) shall be approved administratively by the Wildomar Planning Director. 


8.7 Pedestrian Access 


As stated above, the following planning standards should be incorporated into the project design to 
maintain the pedestrian orientation of Oak Springs Ranch: 


 Consideration shall be given to pedestrian circulation patterns, sunlight conditions, wind pattern, 
and the selection of building and landscape materials when locating a pedestrian open space or 
pathway. 


 Walkways should be designed at a human scale to promote pedestrian and bicycle movement and 
reduce the impersonal expansiveness of large spaces. 


 Planned pedestrian circulation systems shall be incorporated into all site plans to provide the space 
and alignment for walkways necessary to encourage pedestrian movement. 


8.8 Signs 


Appropriate signage is important in maintaining the community design theme and provides a system of 
directional information for residents and visitors. Special signage will identify the individual planning 
areas. These guidelines and standards, when combined with the building and landscape guidelines and 
standards will help create a sense of place throughout the Plan Area. Unless noted in this specific plan, 
all signs shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 17.252, Sign Regulations, of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code. Individual sign programs will be submitted at the time of site development permit 
review for each planning area. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-6 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


The following basic principles shall be considered in the provision of signs within this specific plan: 


A. The design and architectural elements of the proposed signs shall be compatible and consistent with 
theme elements of the Specific Plan. 


B. Signs shall relate to human scale, especially along pedestrian corridors.  


C. The design of signs shall be compatible with and complement the architecture of the adjacent 
buildings. 


D. Signs shall be designed to create a unifying theme within the community. 


Signs utilized in Oak Springs Ranch include both temporary and permanent types as follows. 


 Permanent Signs 


 Street Signs 


 Project Identification 


 Fire Lane Signs 


 Community/Gated Entry Signs 


 Community and Neighborhood Monumentation (see Figure 7-4, Corner & Entry Monument Walls) 


 Temporary Signs (present until the completion of project construction) 


 Marketing and subdivision sale signs 


 Future facility signs 


 Directional signs 


 Banners and flags 


 General Sign Standards and Specifications 


A. Planning Department and Building and Safety Department review and approval are required prior 
to the placing, erecting, moving, or reconstructing of any sign within the Plan Area. 


B. Signs shall be consistent with building texture, color, and architectural style. 


C. All permanent signs shall require a permit prior to erecting or attaching the sign. 


D. If a situation arises that is not covered by these sign regulations or the type of sign permit required, 
the Planning Director shall provide written interpretation after consulting the City’s sign regulations. 


E. All building-mounted signs shall meet applicable City and state codes. 


F. All signs containing electrical components shall conform to the Uniform Lighting Code. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-7 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


G. Signs shall be placed to be compatible with the building and shall accent the architectural design 
of the structure. 


H. Sign colors shall be compatible with the building’s color and the building. 


I. Signs and letter sizes shall be designed to be complimentary to the building scale.  


J. Signs shall contain an internally or externally concealed illumination source. 


K. Entry and monument signs shall be architecturally compatible with the community. 


 Inappropriate/Prohibited Signs 


A. Signs that interfere with or conflict with any traffic control device, create a safety hazard by 
obstructing the clear view of pedestrian or vehicular traffic or interfere with efficient operations of 
emergency vehicles. 


B. Signs that prevent free access to or from any fire escape, door, window or exit, or access to any 
standpipe. 


C. Landscaping or the use of annual or ornamental flowers that form a sign or message. 


D. Signs not in scale with the pedestrian orientation. 


E. Signs painted onto building surfaces or trash bins and their enclosures. 


F. Signs with disproportionate, visually distracting, or reflective surfaced background or graphics. 


G. Signs with a noncontrasting background or graphics that render the sign illegible. 


 Address Numerals 


All building-mounted address numerals are to conform to all graphic requirements for signage, herein, 
and the requirements of the Riverside County Fire Department. 


 Directional Signage 


A. Shall consist of small-scale signs that are compatible with the building architecture. 


B. Shall have contrasting background and graphic colors. 


C. Shall have direct or indirect concealed illumination. 


D. Shall not exceed three square feet in area, or have an overall height exceeding three feet above 
finished grade. 


 Leasing and Temporary Signs 


Leasing, temporary, and future facilities signage shall be permitted for any residential use, provided that 
the maximum area does not exceed 16 square feet, nor shall the height of the sign exceed 8 feet above 
finished grade. 







OAK SPRINGS RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN 


 


AUGUST 2021 Page 8-8 8.0 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


This page intentionally left blank.  







ATTACHMENT B 
 


Ordinance No. 202 
 


  







ORDINANCE NO. 202 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENT NO. 2021-05 (PA 20-0044) DELETING IN ITS 
ENTIRETY CHAPTER 17.110 (SP ZONE REQUIREMENTS AND 
STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 340) OF THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and 
California Government Code, Section 65800, et seq., the City Council has the authority to take 
action on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05; and 


WHEREAS, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 is proposed in conjunction with 
Specific Plan Amendment No. 20-0044 to implement the Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan 
regarding the Oak Springs Ranch Phase II apartment project; and  


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2021 for Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05, and adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-08 recommending 
City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.208.100 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the Planning Department on July 28, 2021 mailed out a public hearing notice to all property 
owners within a 600-foot radius (and parties requesting such notice) of the project boundaries 
notifying said property owners of the August 11, 2021 City Council meeting where the Council 
would review Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Ordinance No. 135, the Planning Department on July 
30, 2021 posted tow (2) public hearing notice “sign boards” on Inland Valley Drive (near the 
entrance to the proposed project) notifying the general public of the August 11, 2021 City 
Council meeting where the Council would review Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05; 
and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the 
Planning Department, on July 30, 2021 published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, a local 
newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the August 11, 2021 City 
Council meeting where the Council would review Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05; 
and   


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the City 
Council conducted the duly noticed public hearing on August 11, 2021, at which time interested 
persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to, the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 for the Oak Springs Ranch Apartment project, and at 
which time the City Council received public testimony concerning Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-05. 


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  
  







SECTION 1:  CEQA ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
The approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 is in compliance with 


requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on August 11, 2021, 
at a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council, upon recommendation from the Planning 
Commission certified the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2004071076), 
including adoption of the Statement of Facts and Findings, Response to Comments and 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program reflecting its independent judgment and analysis 
and documenting the environmental impacts and mitigation measures related to the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 for the Oak Springs Ranch Apartment project.  The 
documents comprising the City’s environmental review for the project are on file and available 
for public review at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 
92595. 


SECTION 2.  REQUIRED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT FINDING. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Wildomar Zoning Ordinance, the City Council, 


upon recommendation from the Planning Commission, hereby makes the following finding 
approving Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05. 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance. 
 


Finding:  The proposal to amend Specific Plan (SP No. 340) to modify the development 
and design standards for a proposed 288-unit apartment project community, including 
private open space/recreational amenities is consistent with the City of Wildomar General 
Plan and Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan in that the proposed Oak Springs Ranch 
Phase II apartment project will provide additional/new housing opportunities for residents 
of Wildomar and surrounding areas.  The proposed density of 22.3 units/acre is consistent 
with the GP land use designation of HHDR and is within the allowable units outlined in 
Specific Plan No. 340, as amended.  Further, the project is designed to be compatible 
with, and enhance, surrounding neighborhoods.  The development standards and design 
guidelines ae remain consistent with  the adopted Specific Plan No. 340 which will provide 
for a unique residential development that will provide a variety of housing opportunities.  
The proposed project also furthers the following land use and housing element policies: 
 
LU 2.1 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development that is in 


accordance with patterns and distribution of land uses that are depicted on 
the General Plan Land Use map proposed for the subject site. 


 
LU 4.1 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development proposal 


that is located and designed to visually enhance and not degrade the 
character of the surrounding area. 


 
LU 6.1 The proposed project will be developed in accordance with the proposed 


General Plan land use designation that ensures compatibility and minimizes 
impacts. 


 
LU 22.1 The proposed project will accommodate the development of single family 


detached dwellings in an area that is appropriately designated by the General 
Plan with approval of the GPA. 







 
LU 22.4 The proposed project will provide a specific housing type, style and density 


that is accessible to and, meets the needs, of a range of lifestyles, physical 
abilities and income levels. 


 
LU 22.10 The proposed project is designed to consider the surrounding areas to visually 


enhance, and not degrade, the appearance of adjacent residential structures. 
 
LU23.6 The proposed project will have proper mitigation measures to protect the 


neighboring residential areas from Noise, light, fumes, odors, vehicular traffic, 
parking and operational hazards.  


 
LU23.7 The proposed project will be served by water and sewer along provided by 


EVMWD to meet the project demands.  
 
H-1.1 The proposed single family project will help ensure a sufficient supply of 


properly planned land to meet housing needs identified in the City’s Regional 
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) required in the Housing Element. 


 
H-6.1 The proposed single project will utilize energy conservation measures in that 


each enclosed garage space has an EV charging outlet for electric vehicles, 
and will be designed to meet Cal Green Building code standards. 


SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Chapter 17.110 (SP Zone Requirements and Standards for Specific Plan No. 340) of 


the Wildomar Municipal Code is hereby deleted in its entirety.  


SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY 
If any Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance, 
and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, subdivisions, sentences, 
clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional.” 


SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City Council. 


SECTION 6.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published within 


fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and circulated within 
the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to cause this Ordinance 
to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative summary and posting 
procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 


 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2021. 
 







 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg  
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 







 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item 1.7 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


___________________ _________________________________________ ____ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager / City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Annexation No. 22 into Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 


(Services) for Beazer (TR 31667) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -     


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ANNEX 
TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES), OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ADOPTING A MAP OF 
THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED (ANNEXATION NO. 22) 
AND AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On March 12, 2014 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-09 establishing 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) of the City of Wildomar (the "CFD No. 
2013-1" or "District") and authorizing the levying of special taxes on parcels of taxable 
property for the purpose of providing certain services which are necessary to meet 
increased demands placed upon the City. 
 
The owner, Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., of a residential TR 31667 containing 37 acres 
within the City has requested that the City annex this territory into CFD No. 2013-1 
(Services) to cover the costs associated with the maintenance of public improvements. 
The improvements proposed to be maintained include items such as landscaping, 
lighting, street maintenance, drainage, parks, trails maintenance, and graffiti abatement.  
 
In addition to maintaining public improvements the CFD No. 2013-1 will include a special 
tax to provide for financing of certain public services to meet increased demands of police 
and fire protection services as a result of the new developments that annex into the CFD. 
 
The landowner has advised the City that it desires the area described in Exhibit A of the 
Resolution of Intention to be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1 and that a rate and method 
of apportionment of special tax to be levied therein be established.  
 







  
 


 2  


The area proposed within Annexation No. 22 will encompass 108 residential units in TR 
31667, with a FY 2021-22 maximum annual tax of $2,175.44 per unit, per year.   The tract 
proposed to be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1 will be included in Tax Zone 24. This tax 
rate includes a Maximum Special Tax A of $1,832.11 per unit per year for maintenance 
services of public facilities, and Maximum Special Tax B of $343.33 per unit per year for 
safety services.  Both of these tax rates are proposed to escalate each year. Maximum 
Special Tax A will increase by the greater of Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 2% and 
Special Tax B will increase by the greater of CPI or 5%.  Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., 
the owner, has agreed to the annexation into the CFD and submitted a "Consent and 
Waiver" form on file in the City Clerk's Office, to initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant 
to the Mello-Roos Act of 1982, requesting the annexation of property to CFD No. 2013-1 
(Services) and consenting to the shortening of election time requirements, waiving 
analysis and arguments, and waiving all notice requirements relating to conduct the 
election.   
 
The next step to annex the property to CFD No. 2013-1 is to publish a notice of public 
hearing of the proposed annexation as required by the Mello-Roos Act.  A public hearing 
on the matter will take place on October 13, 2021 and at that time the Council will formally 
consider approval of Annexation No. 22. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The projected levy for FY 2021-22 is $197,867.72 for the first year of maintenance 
services.  Special Tax B will generate $37,080 once all 108 units are developed.  


 
Submitted by: Approved by: 
Dan York Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/ City Engineer City Manager 


 
ATTACHMENTS: 


1) Resolution of Intention 2021-   
a) Description of Territory 
b) Description of Authorized Services 
c) Rate and Method of Apportionment 
d) Proposed Annexation Boundary Map 
e) Signed Petition, Waiver and Consent for Annexation 
f) Notice of Public Hearing 
g) Sample Ballot 
h) Maintenance Exhibit 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -    
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS 
INTENTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY INTO 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ADOPTING 
A MAP OF THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED 
(ANNEXATION NO. 22) AND AUTHORIZING THE LEVY 
OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 


 
 


WHEREAS, on March 12, 2014, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of 
Wildomar (the “City”) approved Resolution No. 2014-09 establishing Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) ("CFD No. 2013-1"), of the City of Wildomar, 
County of Riverside, State of California, for the purpose of levying special taxes on 
parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of providing certain services which 
are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received a written instrument from the landowner to 
initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities 
District Act of 1982 (the “Act”), to annex territory into CFD No. 2013-1 and consenting 
to the shortening of election time requirements, waiving analysis and arguments, and 
waiving all notice requirements relating to the conduct of the election; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been advised that the landowner has requested that 
the area described and shown in Exhibits A and D be annexed into the boundaries of 
CFD No. 2013-1, that a rate and method of apportionment of special tax to be levied 
therein be established. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, ACTING EX OFFICIO AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 


 
Section 1.  Intent to Annex. The City Council hereby declares that it proposes and 
intends to conduct proceedings pursuant to Article 3.5 of the Act for the annexation to 
CFD No. 2013-1 of the territory described in Exhibit A attached hereto. The City 
Council determines that the public convenience and necessity require that such 
territory be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1. 
Section 2.  Name of the Community Facilities District. The name of the existing 
community facilities district is known as “Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 
(Services).” 







Section 3.   Description of Territory Proposed to be Annexed, Annexation Map. The 
territory proposed to be annexed is included within the boundaries within which 
property may annex to CFD No. 2013-1 and is more particularly described and shown 
on that certain map entitled “Boundaries – Potential Annexation Area Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) of the City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, 
State of California,” as recorded on February 18, 2014 in Book 76 of Maps of 
Assessment and Community Facilities District, Pages 65-67, and as Instrument No. 
2014-0062325 in the official records of the County of Riverside. The territory proposed 
to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 is described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by 
this reference made a part hereof. Such territory is also shown and described on the 
map thereof entitled "Proposed Annexation Map No. 22, Community Facilities District 
No. 2013-1 (Services), City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California," 
which is on file with the City Clerk (the "Annexation Map") and attached hereto as 
Exhibit D. 
Section 4.    Description of Authorized Services. The services proposed to be financed 
by CFD No. 2013-1 (the “Services”) are described in Exhibit B attached hereto. The 
cost of providing the Services includes “administrative expenses,” which include costs 
associated with the creation of CFD No. 2013-1, determination of the amount of special 
taxes, collection or payment of special taxes, or costs otherwise incurred in order to 
carry out the authorized purposes of CFD No. 2013-1.  The Services authorized to be 
financed by CFD No. 2013-1 are in addition to those currently provided in the territory 
of CFD No. 2013-1 and do not supplant services already available within that territory. 
Section 5.   Levy of Special Taxes. Except where funds are otherwise available, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs of the Services (including administrative 
expenses), secured by recordation of a continuing lien against all nonexempt real 
property in CFD No. 2013-1, will be levied annually within CFD No. 2013-1. The rate 
and method of apportionment, and manner of collection of the special tax are specified 
in Exhibit C. 
Section 6.   Adoption of Annexation Map. Pursuant to Section 3110.5 of the Streets 
and Highways Code, the City Council adopts the Annexation Map attached hereto as 
Exhibit D as the map of the area proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1. 
Pursuant to Section 3111 of said Code, the City Clerk shall file the original of the 
Annexation map in her office and shall file a copy of the Annexation Map with the 
County Recorder of the County of Riverside no later than 15 days prior to the date of 
the hearing specified in Section 7 hereof. 
Section 7.  Public Hearing. The City Council hereby fixes 5:00 p.m., or as soon 
thereafter as practicable, on Wednesday, October 13, 2021, in the City Council 
Chambers located at 23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Wildomar, California 92595, as the time 
and place when and where the City Council will conduct a public hearing on the 
proposed annexation of the said territory to the CFD No. 2013-1. 


 
Section 8.   Notice of Public Hearing. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish, or 
cause to be published, a notice of said public hearing, in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit F, one time in a newspaper of general circulation published 
in the area of CFD No. 2013-1. The publication of said notice shall be completed at 
least seven days prior to the date herein fixed for said hearing. Said notice shall 
contain the information prescribed by Section 53322 of the Act. 


 
 







Section 9.   Mailing Ballots. In anticipation of its action on Wednesday, October 13, 
2021 to call the election on the annexation for the same date, pursuant to waiver of 
election time limits from the landowners, the City Council hereby authorizes the City 
Clerk to mail to each landowner in the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 
2013-1 a ballot in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit G hereto. A copy of the 
waiver and consent form signed by the property owner is attached hereto as Exhibit E 
and incorporated herein by this reference. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2021. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Dustin Nigg 


 Mayor 
 
 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Thomas D. Jex Janet Morales 
City Attorney City Clerk 


 







EXHIBIT A 


DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED TERRITORY TO BE ANNEXED 







DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED TERRITORY TO BE ANNEXED 


The City of Wildomar Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the “CFD No. 2013-1”) Annexation 
No. 22 is currently comprised of two parcels located within the city boundaries. The property is identified by 
the following Riverside County Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APNs). 


 
APN Owner Name 


380-060-007 Beazer Homes Holdings Corp. 
380-060-008 Beazer Homes Holdings Corp. 


 











EXHIBIT C


RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT







City of Wildomar    1 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


RATES AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


A Special Tax  (the “Special Tax”) shall be  levied on and collected  from each Assessor’s Parcel 
(defined below) in Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) (the “CFD No. 2013‐1” or 
“CFD”;  defined  below),  in  each  Fiscal  Year,  (defined  below),  commencing  in  the  Fiscal  Year 
beginning July 1, 2014,  in an amount determined by the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 
acting ex officio as the legislative body of CFD No. 2013‐1, by applying the rates and method of 
apportionment set forth below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2013‐1, unless exempted by 
law or by the provisions herein, shall be taxed to the extent and in the manner provided herein. 


 


A. DEFINITIONS 
 


“Acre” or “Acreage” means the land area of an Assessor’s Parcel as shown on any Assessor’s 
Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on the Assessor’s Parcel Map, the land area as 
shown on the applicable Final Map, or if the area is not shown on the applicable Final Map, 
the land area shall be calculated by the Administrator. 


 


“Administrative Expenses” means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related 
to the formation, annexation, and administration of CFD No. 2013‐1 including, but not limited 
to: the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing the annual Special Tax collection 
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs to the City, CFD No. 
2013‐1,  or  any  designee  thereof  associated with  fulfilling  the  CFD No.  2013‐1  disclosure 
requirements; the costs associated with responding to public inquiries regarding the Special 
Taxes; the costs of the City, CFD No. 2013‐1 or any designee thereof related to an appeal of 
the  Special  Tax;  and  the  City's  annual  administration  fees  and  third  party  expenses. 
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts estimated or advanced by  the City or CFD 
No. 2013‐1 for any other administrative purposes of CFD No. 2013‐1, including attorney's fees 
and  other  costs  related  to  commencing  and  pursuing  to  completion  any  foreclosure  of 
delinquent Special Taxes. 


 
“Administrator” means the City Manager of the City of Wildomar, or his or her designee. 


 
“Approved Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property that are included in a 
Final Map that was recorded prior to the March 1 of preceding the Fiscal Year in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel” means a lot or parcel of land that is identifiable by an Assessor’s Parcel 
Number by the County Assessor of the County of Riverside. 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel Map” means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor’s Parcel Number. 


 







City of Wildomar    2 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel Number” means that  identification number assigned to a parcel by the 
County Assessor of the County. 


 


“Building Square Footage” or “BSF” means the floor area square footage reflected on the 
original construction building permit issued for construction of a building of Non‐Residential 
Property and any Building Square Footage subsequently added to a building of such Taxable 
Property after issuance of a building permit for expansion or renovation of such building. 


 
“CFD” or “CFD No. 2013‐1” means  the City of Wildomar Community Facilities District No. 
2013‐1 (Services). 


 
“City” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 


 


“County” means the County of Riverside. 
 


“Developed Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building 
permit for new construction has been issued on or prior to March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year 
in which the Special Tax is being levied. 


 


“Exempt Property” means all Assessors’ Parcels designated as being exempt from the Special 
Tax as provided for in Section G. 


 
“Final Map” means a subdivision of property by recordation of a final map, parcel map, or lot 
line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California Government Code Section 
66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan pursuant to California Civil Code 1352 
that  creates  individual  lots  for  which  building  permits  may  be  issued  without  further 
subdivision. 


 


“Fiscal Year” means the period from and including July 1st of any year to and including the 
following June 30th. 


 
“Land Use Category” means, any of the categories contained in Section B. hereof to which an 
Assessor’s Parcel is assigned consistent with the land use approvals that have been received 
or proposed for the Assessor’s Parcel as of March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year  in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax” means the Maximum Special Tax A and/or Maximum Special Tax B, 
as applicable. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax A” means the Maximum Special Tax A, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 
 
 


 







City of Wildomar    3 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Maximum Special Tax B” means the Maximum Special Tax B, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 


“Multi‐Family Residential Property” means any Assessor’s Parcel of residential property that 
consists of a building or buildings comprised of attached Residential Units available for rental, 
but not purchase, by the general public and under common management. 


 
“Non‐Residential Property” means, all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property  for which a 
building permit(s) was  issued  for a non‐residential use. The Administrator  shall make  the 
determination if an Assessor’s Parcel is Non‐Residential Property. 


 
“Proportionately” means for Taxable Property that is: (i) Developed Property, that the ratio 
of  the  actual  Special  Tax  levy  to  the Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all Parcels of 
Developed Property, (ii) Approved Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax  levy to 
the  Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all  Parcels  of  Approved  Property,  and  (iii) 
Undeveloped Property that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levy per acre to the Maximum 
Special Tax per acre is the same for all Parcels of Undeveloped Property. 


 


“Residential Unit” or "RU" means a residential unit that is used or intended to be used as a 
domicile by one or more persons, as determined by the Administrator. 


 
“Residential  Property”  means  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of  Taxable  Property  upon  which 
completed Residential Units have been constructed or for which building permits have been 
or may be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units. 


 


“Service(s)” means  services permitted under  the Mello‐Roos Community  Facilities Act of 
1982 including, without limitation, those services authorized to be funded by CFD No. 2013‐ 
1 as set forth in the documents adopted by the City Council at the time the CFD was formed. 


 


“Single  Family  Residential  Property”  means  any  residential  property  that  consists  of  a 
building comprised of attached or detached residential units available for purchase or rent by 
the general public. 


 


“Special Tax(es)” means the Special Tax A and/or Special Tax B to be levied in each Fiscal Year 
on each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property. 


 


“Special  Tax  A”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Special Tax A Requirement. 


 
“Special  Tax  B”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property to fund the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
 







City of Wildomar    4 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


"Special Tax A Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and the next Fiscal Year. The costs to be covered shall be the direct costs for (i) maintenance 
services including but not limited to (i) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, 
roads and open space, (ii) maintenance and operation of water quality  improvements, (iii) 
public street sweeping, (iv) fund an operating reserve for the costs of Services as determined 
by  the Administrator,  and  (v) Administrative  Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the 
Special Tax A Requirement include funds for Bonds. 


 


"Special Tax B Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and  the  next  Fiscal  Year.  The  costs  to  be  covered  shall  be  the  direct  costs  for  (i)  police 
protection  services,  (ii)  fire  protection  and  suppression  services,  (iii)  fund  an  operating 
reserve for the costs of Services as determined by the Administrator, and (iv) Administrative 
Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the  Special Tax B Requirement  include  funds  for 
Bonds. 


 


"Taxable Property" means all Assessor’s Parcels within CFD No. 2013‐1, which are not Exempt 
Property. 


 


"Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area, within which particular Special Tax 
rates may be  levied pursuant  to  this Rate  and Method of Apportionment of  Special Tax. 
Exhibit "C" identifies the Tax Zone in CFD No. 2013‐1 at formation; additional Tax Zones may 
be created when property is annexed into the CFD. 


 
"Tax Zone 1" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 1. 


 
"Tax Zone 2" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 2. 


 


"Tract(s)" means an area of land within a subdivision identified by a particular tract number 
on a Final Map approved for the subdivision. 


 


“Undeveloped Property” means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as 
Developed Property or Approved Property. 


 
B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES 


 
For each Fiscal Year, all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property within CFD No. 2013‐1 shall be 
classified as Developed Property, Approved Property, or Undeveloped Property, and shall be 
subject  to  the  levy  of  Special  Taxes  as  determined  pursuant  to  Sections C  and D  below. 
Assessor’s Parcels of Developed Property and Approved Property shall be classified as either 
Residential Property or Non‐Residential Property. 
 
 







City of Wildomar    5 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


C. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATES 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


For purposes of determining the applicable Maximum Special Tax A for Assessor’s Parcels 
of  Developed  Property  and  Approved  Property  which  are  classified  as  Residential 
Property, all such Assessor’s Parcels shall be assigned the number of Residential Unit(s) 
constructed  or  to  be  constructed  thereon  as  specified  in  or  shown  on  the  building 
permit(s)  issued  or  Final  Map  as  determined  by  the  Administrator.  For  Parcels  of 
undeveloped property zoned for development of single family attached or multi‐family 
units,  the  number  of  Residential  Units  shall  be  determined  by  referencing  the 
condominium plan, apartment plan, site plan or other development plan, or by assigning 
the maximum allowable units permitted based on the underlying zoning for the Parcel. 
Once a single family attached or multi‐family building or buildings have been built on an 
Assessor's Parcel, the Administrator shall determine the actual number of Residential 
Units contained within the building or buildings, and the Special Tax levied against the 
Parcel  in  the next Fiscal Year shall be calculated by multiplying  the actual number of 
Residential Units by the Maximum Special Tax A per Residential Unit identified for the 
Tracts in Table 1 below. 


 


a. Developed Property 
 


(i) Maximum Special Tax A 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 1 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015  for a Residential Unit within the 
Tracts are identified in Table 1 below: 


 


TABLE 1 
Maximum Special Tax A Rates 


 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


(ii) Increase in the Maximum Special Tax A 
 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Developed 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 







City of Wildomar    6 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


(iii) Multiple Land Use Categories 


In some instances an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property may contain more 
than one Land Use Category. The Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied on an 
Assessor's Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied 
for each Land Use Category  located on that Assessor's Parcel. For an Assessor's 
Parcel that contains more than one land use, the Acreage of such Assessor's Parcel 
shall  be  allocated  to  each  type  of  property  based  on  the  amount  of  Acreage 
designated for each land use as determined by reference to the site plan approved 
for such Assessor's Parcel. The Administrator's allocation to each type of property 
shall be final. 


b. Approved Property 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 2 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum  Special Tax A  for  Fiscal  Year 2014‐2015 per Residential Unit within  the 
Tracts is identified in Table 2 below: 


 
TABLE 2 


Maximum Special Tax A Rates 
 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Approved 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 


c. Undeveloped Property 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 3 shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property is 
annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the rate and method adopted for the annexed property 
shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax A for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The Maximum 
Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 per acre within  the Tracts are  identified  in 
Table 3 below: 


 
 
 


 







City of Wildomar    7 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TABLE 3 
Maximum Special Tax A Rates 


 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $1,762 per Acre 


2  31479  $1,541 per Acre 


 


On  each  July  1,  commencing  on  July  1,  2015  the  Maximum  Special  Tax  A  for 
Undeveloped Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer 
Price  Index (All  Items)  for Los Angeles  ‐ Riverside  ‐ Orange County  (1982‐84 = 100) 
since  the  beginning  of  the  preceding  Fiscal  Year,  or  ii)  by  two  percent  (2.0%), 
whichever is greater. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


The Special Tax B is an annual Special Tax that shall be levied on Developed Property 
to fund the Special Tax Requirement B. 


 
a. Developed Property 


 


(i) Maximum Special Tax B 
 


The Maximum Special Tax B for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 for each Land Use Class is 
shown in Table 4. When additional property is annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the 
rate and method adopted  for  the annexed property shall reflect  the Maximum 
Special Tax B for the Tract or Tracts annexed. 


 


TABLE 4 
Maximum Special Tax B Rates 


 


Land Use Class  Description  Unit  Maximum Special Tax B 
1  Single Family Residential  RU  $244.00 


2  Multi‐Family Residential  RU  $173.00 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax B for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning of 
the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 


No Special Tax shall be levied on property which, at the time of adoption of the Resolution 
of Formation for CFD No. 2013‐1, is an Exempt Property. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    8 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax A Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
A on all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property until the aggregate amount of Special 
Tax A equals the Special Tax A Requirement. The Special Tax A shall be levied for each 
Fiscal Year as follows: 


 
First: The Special Tax A shall be  levied Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax A to satisfy 
the Special Tax A Requirement; 


 


Second:  If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement 
after  the  first  step  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on each Parcel of Approved Property at up to 100% of the Maximum 
Special Tax A for Approved Property; 


 


Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement after 
the  first  two  steps  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  A  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the 
Maximum Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax B Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
B until the aggregate amount of Special Tax B equals the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
The  Special  Tax  B  shall  be  levied  Proportionately  on  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax B to satisfy 
the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 


E. FUTURE ANNEXATIONS 
 


It is anticipated that additional properties will be annexed to CFD No. 2013‐1 from time 
to time. As each annexation is proposed, an analysis will be prepared to determine the 
annual cost for providing Services. Based on this analysis, the property to be annexed, 
pursuant  to California Government Code section 53339 et seq. will be assigned  to  the 
appropriate Maximum Special Tax rate for the Tract or Tracts when annexed. 


 
 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    9 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


F. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX 
 


For each Fiscal Year, the Special Taxes shall be  levied as  long as the Services are being 
provided. 


 


G. EXEMPTIONS 
 


The City shall classify as Exempt Property within CFD No. 2013‐1, any Assessor’s Parcel in 
any of  the  following categories;  (i) Assessor’s Parcels which are owned by,  irrevocably 
offered  for  dedication,  encumbered  by  or  restricted  in  use  by  any  public  entity;  (ii) 
Assessor’s Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical their utilization for 
other  than  the  purposes  set  forth  in  the  easement;  (iii) Assessor’s  Parcels which  are 
privately owned but are encumbered by or restricted solely for public uses; or (iv) any 
Assessor’s Parcel which is in use in the performance of a public function as determined by 
the Administrator. 


 
H. APPEALS 


 
Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Taxes are not 
correct may file a written notice of appeal with the City not later than twelve months after 
having paid the first installment of the Special Tax(es) that is disputed. A representative(s) 
of CFD No. 2013‐1  shall promptly  review  the appeal, and  if necessary, meet with  the 
property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of the Special 
Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative’s decision requires that the Special Tax 
for an Assessor’s Parcel be modified or changed  in favor of the property owner, a cash 
refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that 
Assessor’s Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s). 


 
I. MANNER OF COLLECTION 


 


The Special Tax(es) shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary 
ad  valorem  property  taxes,  provided,  however,  that  CFD No.  2013‐1 may  collect  the 
Special Tax at a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial 
obligations. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







City of Wildomar    10 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES)  


COST ESTIMATE 


Maintenance  Services  ‐  The  estimate  breaks  down  the  costs  of  providing  one  year's 
maintenance services for FY 2021‐2022. These services are being funded by the levy of Special 
Tax A for Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1. 


TAX ZONE 24 – Annexation 22 
TR 31667 


 


Item  Description  Estimated Cost 


1    Landscaping                        $78,584  


2  Lighting  $10,301 


3  Streets  $20,490 


4  Drainage   $7,577 


5  Parks  $23,170 


6  Trails  $10,794 


7  Graffiti  $14,838 


8  Reserves  $15,539 


9  Administration  $16,575 


Total   $197,868 


 
Safety Services ‐ It is estimated that the cost of providing police and fire protection services 
being funded by Special Tax B for the Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) as 
outlined in Exhibit “B” hereto, will be as follows for the first year: 


 $343.33 per residential unit 







City of Wildomar    11 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TAX ZONE SUMMARY 
 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Maximum 
Special Tax 


B 


 
Subdivider 


Original  1  32535  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  CV Communities LLC 


Original  2  31479  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Rancon Equity 


Partners III 


1  3 
25122/ 
32078 


2015‐16  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Rancho Fortunado 


Inv, LLC 


2  4  PM 16803  2015‐16  $51.41 / Acre  N/A 
Moralez Enterprises, 


LLC 


3  5  36497  2015‐16  $522.27 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Lennar Homes of 


California, Inc. 


4  6  PM 36492  2015‐16  $766.14 / Acre  N/A 
Rancon Medical and 


Education Center, LLC 
5  7  29476  2016‐17  $688.60 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Alta Colina, LLC 


6  8  36519  2016‐17  $777.35 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Keusder, LLC / MSL 


Orange, Inc. 


7  9  PP 10‐0222  2016‐17  $7,650.78 / RU  N/A 
Plaza de Bundy 


Canyon, LLC 


8  10  32206  2016‐17  $633.51 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Wildomar Land, LLC 


9  11  PM 36080  2018‐19  $3,302.61 / Acre  N/A 
CK‐HS Partners, LLC / 
SNDH Partners, LLC 


10  12  PM 32833  2017‐18  $1,418.22 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Wildomar Housing 


Partners, LLC 


11  13  PM 36653  2017‐18  $333.00 / RU  $282.46 / RU  Benson Residential 


12  14 
LLA 2016‐


005 
2018‐19  $2,325.03 / Acre  N/A  Sunbelt Rentals 


13  15 
CUP/PP 15‐


0013 
2019‐20  $3,330.26/Acre  N/A  Clinton Keith Village 


14  16  CUP 16‐
0095 


2019‐20  $1,513.72/Acre  N/A 
Big Easy RV Boat 


Storage 


15  17  TR 32726  2019‐20  $1,012.37 / RU  $311.41 / RU 
Hacienda Properties, 


LLC 


16  18  PM 32257  2019‐20  $3,301.26/Acre  N/A 
Tesoro Refining & 
Marketing Co LLC 


17  19  TR 32024  2019‐20  $1,073.91/RU  $311.41/RU 
KB Home Coastal 


 Inc. 


18  20  PM 36492  2019‐20  $2,503.60/ 
Acre 


N/A 
Rancon Medical and 


Education Center, LLC 


19  21  PA 16‐0138  2019‐20  $253.39/ Acre  N/A 
Smith Ranch Storage., 


 LLC 


20  22  PM 37276  2020‐21  $1,253.44 / RU  $326.98 / RU  Thanh T. Tran 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $1,830.03 / RU  $343.33 / RU 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 


22  24  TR 31667  2021‐22  $1,832.11 / RU  $343.33 / RU 
Beazer Homes Holding 


Corp. 







City of Wildomar    12 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


 
 
APPROVED PROPERTY 


 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


22  24  TR 31667  2021‐22  $1,832.11 / RU  Beazer Homes Holding Corp. 


 
UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 


 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


22  24  TR 31667  2021‐22  $5,347.78 / Acre  Beazer Homes Holding Corp. 


 


 


ESCALATION OF MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES 
 


Maximum  Special  Tax A  ‐ On each  July 1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax A  for Developed 
Property,  Approved  Property  and  Undeveloped  Property  shall  increase  by  i)  the 
percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ 
Orange County (1982‐84  = 100) for the calendar year ending in March of the prior Fiscal 
Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 


Maximum  Special  Tax B  ‐ On  each  July  1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax B  for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) for the calendar year 
ending in March of the prior Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


   







City of Wildomar    13 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


DESCRIPTION OF AUTHORIZED SERVICES 


The services which may be funded with proceeds of the special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1, as provided by 
Section  53313  of  the  Act,  will  include  all  costs  attributable  to  maintaining,  servicing,  cleaning, 
repairing and/or replacing landscaped areas (may include reserves for replacement) in public street 
right‐of‐ways, public  landscaping, public open  spaces and other  similar  landscaped areas officially 
dedicated for public use. In addition, the services which may include some or all costs attributable to 
police protection, and fire services. These services including the following: 


 
(a) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space, which 


maintenance and lighting services may include, without limitation, furnishing of electrical power to 
street lights; repair and replacement of damaged or inoperative light bulbs, fixtures and standards; 
maintenance (including irrigation and replacement) of landscaping vegetation situated on or adjacent 
to parks, parkways,  streets,  roads and open  space; maintenance and  repair of  irrigation  facilities; 
maintenance of public signage; graffiti removal from and maintenance and repair of public structures 
situated on parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space; maintenance and repair of playground or 
recreation program equipment or facilities situated on any park; and 


 
(b) maintenance  and  operation  of  water  quality  improvements  which  include  storm 


drainage  and  flood protection  facilities,  including, without  limitation, drainage  inlets,  catch basin 
inserts, infiltration basins, flood control channels, fossil fuel filters, and similar facilities. Maintenance 
services may include but is not limited to the repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any of 
the water quality improvements, fossil fuel filters within the public right‐of‐way including the removal 
of petroleum hydrocarbons and other pollutants from water runoff, or appurtenant facilities, clearing 
of  inlets and outlets; erosion repairs; and cleanup to  improvements, and other  items necessary for 
the maintenance, servicing; or both of  the water quality basin  improvements within  flood control 
channel improvements; and 
 


(c) public street sweeping, on the segments of the arterials within the boundaries of CFD 
No. 2013‐1; as well as local roads within residential subdivisions located within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 
any portions adjacent to the properties within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 


 
(d) police protection services, including but not limited to criminal justice services, and 


fire protection and suppression services. 


 
In addition to payment of the cost and expense of the forgoing services, proceeds of the special tax 
may be expended to pay “Administrative Expenses,” as said term is defined in the Rate and Method 
of Apportionment. 


 
The above services shall be limited to those provided within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1 or for 
the benefit of the properties within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1, as the boundary is expanded 
from time to time by anticipated annexations, and said services may be financed by proceeds of the 
special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1 only to the extent that they are  in addition to those provided  in the 
territory of CFD No. 2013‐1 before CFD No. 2013‐1 was created. 


   







City of Wildomar    14 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


 
 


  EXHIBIT C 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


                PROPOSED BOUNDARIES 
 
 







PR
O


PO
SE


D
 A


N
N


EX
AT


IO
N


 M
A


P 
N


O
. 2


2
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y 
FA


C
IL


IT
IE


S 
D


IS
TR


IC
T 


N
O


. 2
01


3-
1 


(S
ER


VI
C


ES
)


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


,
C


O
U


N
TY


 O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 S
TA


TE
 O


F 
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


TH
IS


 M
A


P
 S


H
O


W
S 


TH
E 


B
O


U
N


D
A


R
IE


S 
O


F 
A


R
EA


S 
TO


 B
E 


A
N


N
EX


ED
TO


 
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y 
FA


C
IL


IT
IE


S 
D


IS
TR


IC
T 


N
O


. 
2


0
1


3
-1


 
(S


ER
V


IC
ES


)
O


F 
TH


E 
C


IT
Y 


O
F 


W
IL


D
O


M
A


R
, 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 
ST


A
TE


O
F 


C
A


LI
FO


R
N


IA
. 


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  


TH
E 


B
O


U
N


D
A


R
IE


S 
O


F 
W


H
IC


H
 


C
O


M
M


U
N


IT
Y 


FA
C


IL
IT


IE
S 


D
IS


TR
IC


T
A


R
E 


SH
O


W
N


 
A


N
D


 
D


ES
C


R
IB


ED
 


O
N


 
TH


E 
M


A
P


 
TH


ER
EO


F 
W


H
IC


H
W


A
S 


P
R


EV
IO


U
SL


Y 
R


EC
O


R
D


ED
 O


N
 F


EB
R


U
A


R
Y 


1
8


, 
2


0
1


4
, 


IN
 B


O
O


K
 7


6
O


F 
M


A
P


S 
O


F 
A


SS
ES


SM
EN


T 
A


N
D


 C
O


M
M


U
N


IT
Y 


FA
C


IL
IT


Y 
D


IS
TR


IC
TS


A
T 


PA
G


ES
 


6
5


-6
7


 
A


N
D


 
A


S 
IN


ST
R


U
M


EN
T 


N
O


. 
2


01
4


-0
0


6
2


3
2


5
IN


 T
H


E 
O


FF
IC


E 
O


F 
TH


E 
C


O
U


N
TY


 R
EC


O
R


D
ER


 O
F 


TH
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
 O


F
R


IV
ER


SI
D


E,
 S


TA
TE


 O
F 


C
A


LI
FO


R
N


IA
. 


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


 


I H
ER


EB
Y 


C
ER


TI
FY


 T
H


A
T 


TH
E 


W
IT


H
IN


 M
A


P
 O


R
 A


R
EA


S 
TO


 B
E 


A
N


N
EX


ED
TO


 
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y 
FA


C
IL


IT
IE


S 
D


IS
TR


IC
T 


N
O


. 
2


0
1


3
-1


 
(S


ER
V


IC
ES


)
O


F 
TH


E 
C


IT
Y 


O
F 


W
IL


D
O


M
A


R
, 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 
ST


A
TE


 
O


F
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


, 
W


A
S 


A
P


P
R


O
V


ED
 


B
Y 


TH
E 


C
IT


Y 
C


O
U


N
C


IL
 


O
F 


TH
E


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


 
A


T 
A


 
R


EG
U


LA
R


 
M


EE
TI


N
G


 
TH


ER
EO


F,
H


EL
D


 
O


N
 


 
_


_
_


_
_


_
 


D
A


Y 
O


F 
 


_
_


_
_


_
_


, 
2


0
_


_
_


, 
 


 
 


 
 


B
Y 


R
ES


O
LU


TI
O


N
 N


O
. 


_
__


_
__


__
_


__
_


__
_


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


__
__


_
C


IT
Y 


C
LE


R
K


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
C


IT
Y 


O
F 


W
IL


D
O


M
A


R
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
 


FI
LE


D
 IN


 T
H


E 
O


FF
IC


E 
O


F 
TH


E 
C


IT
Y 


C
LE


R
K


, C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


,
TH


IS
 _


_
__


 D
A


Y 
O


F 
_


_
_


_
_


__
_,


 2
0


_
_


_
_.


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


 


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
__


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
 


 
 


 
 


 
  


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


  
 


C
IT


Y 
C


LE
R


K
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  


R
EC


O
R


D
ED


 T
H


IS
 _


_
_


_
 D


A
Y 


O
F 


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
, 


2
0


_
_


_
_


 A
T


TH
E 


H
O


U
R


 
O


F 
_


_
_


_
 


O
'C


LO
C


K
 


 
_


_
M


 
 


IN
 


B
O


O
K


 
 


_
_


_
_


_
PA


G
E 


_
_


_
_


_
 O


F 
M


A
P


S 
O


F 
A


SS
ES


SM
EN


T 
A


N
D


 C
O


M
M


U
N


IT
Y


FA
C


IL
IT


IE
S 


D
IS


TR
IC


TS
 


IN
 


TH
E 


O
FF


IC
E 


O
F 


TH
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
R


EC
O


R
D


ER
, 


IN
 


TH
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 
ST


A
TE


 
O


F
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


. 
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  


FE
E:


 _
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
  


  
  


N
O


.:
 _


_
_


__
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


  
  


  
P


ET
ER


 
A


LD
A


N
A


, 
A


SS
ES


SO
R


, 
C


O
U


N
TY


 
C


LE
R


K
, 


R
EC


O
R


D
ER


B
Y:


 _
_


_
_


_
_


__
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


  
  


   
   


  
   


   
  


   
  


   
   


 
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


 D
EP


U
TY


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


 


C
FD


 2
01


3-
1


TA
X 


ZO
N


E 
24


_̂


§̈ ¦15


GRAN
D A


VE


CLIN
TO


N
K


EI
TH


R
D


B
U


N
D


Y
C


A
N


Y
O


N


RD


PA
LO


M
AR


ST


S
H


E
E


T
 1


 O
F


 1
 S


H
E


E
T


G
R


AN
D


 
AV


E


MCVIC
AR 


ST


3
8


0
-0


6
0


-0
0


7


3
8


0
-0


6
0


-0
0


8


-
0


5
0


0
1


,0
0


0
2


5
0


F
e


e
t


Le
ge


nd A
N


N
E


X
A


T
IO


N
 A


R
E


A
 B


O
U


N
D


A
R


Y


P
A


R
C


E
L 


L
IN


E


C
IT


Y
 B


O
U


N
D


A
R


Y


24
  


   
   


  T
A


X
 Z


O
N


E


T
H


IS
 A


N
N


E
X


A
T


IO
N


 M
A


P
 C


O
R


R
E


C
T


LY
 S


H
O


W
S


 T
H


E
 L


O
T


 O
R


 P
A


R
C


E
L


O
F


 
L


A
N


D
 


IN
C


L
U


D
E


D
 


W
IT


H
IN


 
T


H
E


 
B


O
U


N
D


A
R


IE
S


 
O


F
 


T
H


E
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y
 


F
A


C
IL


IT
IE


S
 


D
IS


T
R


IC
T.


 
F


O
R


 
D


E
TA


IL
S


 
C


O
N


C
E


R
N


IN
G


T
H


E
 


L
IN


E
S


 
A


N
D


 
D


IM
E


N
S


IO
N


S
 


O
F


 
L


O
T


S
 


O
R


 
P


A
R


C
E


LS
 


R
E


F
E


R
T


O
 T


H
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


 A
S


S
E


S
S


O
R


 M
A


P
S


 F
O


R
 F


IS
C


A
L 


Y
E


A
R


 
20


2
1


-2
2.


X
X


X
-X


X
X


-X
X


X
  


  A
S


S
E


S
S


O
R


 P
A


R
C


E
L 


N
U


M
B


E
R


24











EXHIBIT E


WAIVER AND CONSENT RESPECTING CONDUCT OF
MAILED BALLOT, LANDOWNER ELECTION







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING ANNEXATION OF 
PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY 
THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
 


1.  The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, initiate 
and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the 
“Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property described 
below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the annual levy of 
special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services). 


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide any 


services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition.   


 
3.  The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite their 


signatures, the landowner listed herein is the owner of all the property within the proposed 
boundaries of the property described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 
 


4.  The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 
authorize the special taxes for the community facilities district.  The undersigned waives any 
requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly agrees that said 
election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned as quickly as 
possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and the 
undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5.  Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot. The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 
California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 
 







Petition Form 


6.  The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all claims 
based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or other 
laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no step or 
action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community facilities 
district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special election 
therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___. 
  
 BEAZER HOMES HOLDING CORP.,  
 a Delaware corporation 
 


   
       
  By:_____________________ 


  Name:   
  Title:   


 
  
  
 OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
 TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 
 or PROJECT NO. 31667   


  
 OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 


  
 310 Commerce, Suite 150  
 Irvine, CA 92602     
  
  


FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___. 


 
 


 ______________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk of the City Council 
of the City of Wildomar 


 


Christopher P. Courtney


Authorized Signatory - West Region







Acknowledgement Form 


ACKNOWLEDGMENT REGARDING PROPERTY TO BE INCLUDED INTO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES)  


OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


The developer/property owner of (Assessor’s Parcel Nos.) 380-060-007 and -008 hereby 


acknowledges that: 


 


If the landscaping, drainage, lighting and eligible public improvements within the 


Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) the maintenance areas of (Assessor’s Parcel 


Nos.) 380-060-007 and -008, which is to be included in the Community Facilities District of the 


City of Wildomar, are completed prior to the levy and collection of special taxes upon property 


within said tract for the maintenance of such landscape and improvements, the developer/property 


owner will continue to be responsible for and will maintain the landscaping, drainage, lighting, 


and eligible public improvements within such maintenance areas at its sole expense, and the City 


will not assume responsibility for the maintenance of such landscaping, drainage, lighting and 


eligible public improvements until such time as the City is able to collect such special taxes to pay 


the costs of the maintenance of such landscaping, drainage, lighting, and eligible public 


improvements. 


 


 


DATED:   OWNER(S): 


___________________   


 ______________________________ 


 (Print Name) 


 


 


 ______________________________ 


 (Signature) 


 


 ______________________________ 


 (Title) 


 


   


 ______________________________ 


 (Print Name) 


 


 


 ______________________________ 


 (Signature) 


 


 ______________________________ 


 (Title) 


 


Christopher P. Courtney


Authorized Signatory - West Region


6/4/2021















kelly chiene

Typewritten Text

Exhibit B







































EXHIBIT F


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ANNEX 
TERRITORY TO AN EXISTING COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


(ANNEXATION NO. 22) 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Wildomar on September 8, 2021 adopted 
its Resolution No. 2021-__, in which it declared its intention to annex territory to existing Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the "CFD No. 2013-1"), and to levy a special tax to pay for certain 
maintenance services, all pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, 
Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the California Government Code.  The resolution describes the 
territory to be annexed and describes the rate and method of apportionment of the proposed special tax.  
No change in the tax levied in the existing CFD No. 2013-1 is proposed. 


NOTICE IS HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that the City Council has fixed 5:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as 
practicable, Wednesday, October 13, 2021 in the City Council Chambers located at 23873 Clinton Keith 
Rd., Wildomar, California 92595, as the time and place when and where the City Council will conduct a 
public hearing on the establishment of CFD No. 2013-1. At the hearing, the testimony of all interest persons 
for or against the annexation of the territory or the levying of the special taxes will be heard. 


 


DATED: ____________, 20___    _________________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City of Wildomar 


 







EXHIBIT G


SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 22 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 22 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Beazer Homes Holdings Corp 37 37 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Beazer Homes Holdings, Corp 
Attn: Christopher Courtney 
310 Commerce, Suite 150 
Irvine, CA  92602 


380-060-007 
380-060-008 


 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 22 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 22 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Beazer Homes Holdings, Corp. 
Christopher Courtney 
Senior Project Manager  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







EXHIBIT H


MAINTENANCE EXHIBIT















 


 
CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 


Agenda Item #1.8 
CONSENT CALENDAR 


Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 
 
TO: Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Cooperative Agreement with Riverside County Flood Control and Water 


Conservation District and Beazer Homes Holdings, LLC a Delaware 
Limited Liability Company - Project No.14-0093, Tract Map No. 31667 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council:  
 


1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Cooperative Agreement with Riverside 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (RCFC) and Beazer Homes 
Holdings, LLC a Delaware Limited Liability Company (Developer). 
 


2. Authorize the City Manager to make minor changes to the Cooperative Agreement 
if deemed necessary.     


 
BACKGROUND: 
Tentative Tract Map No. 31667 is an approved 108-lot residential subdivision located at 
the northeast corner of McVicar Street and Grand Avenue, in the City of Wildomar.  An 
aerial image of the project site and surrounding area is provided in Attachment A.  
Tentative Tract Map No. 31667 was approved by the County of Riverside on November 
15, 2005. 
 
Tract 31667 was conditioned to construct flood control facilities and drainage 
improvements.  These include construction of reinforced connector pipes, reinforced 
concrete pipes and reinforced concrete 9-cell box culvert.  These are shown in Exhibit B 
of the agreement as “Wildomar Valley – McVicar St Storm Drain – Stage 1”, “Wildomar 
Valley – McVicar St Storm Drain – Stage 2”, and “Wildomar MDP Channel – Stage 8.” 
These improvements are required to provide a 50-year flood protection and adequate 
drainage for the proposed development, adjacent properties and surrounding 
communities.  The City’s proposed storm drains within Tract 31667 would outlet directly 
into Wildomar Channel downstream of McVicar Street.  The Developer is required to enter 
into a cooperative agreement (Agreement), Attachment B with RCFC and the City to 
guarantee the adequate completion of these improvements. The Agreement specifies the 
responsibilities of the Developer, District, and City in assuring that the improvements are 
completed. 







  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The proposed Cooperative Agreement has no fiscal impact to the City. Should the 
Developer fail to complete the construction of the improvements, the City, by this 
agreement, is required to obtain bonds from the Developer to secure the completion of 
the improvements with no cost to the City or RCFC. Time spent by City staff on the 
completion of items set forth in this Agreement will be reimbursed by the Developer. The 
maintenance of RCFC facilities, upon acceptance, will be performed by RCFC. The 
maintenance of any improvements supplemental to RCFC’s facilities but not maintained 
by RCFC and other City facilities constructed as part of this development will be funded 
by the development’s annexation into the Community Facilities District 2013-1 (CFD). 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York  Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager  City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Aerial Image of Tract Map No. 31667 
Attachment B – Tract Map No. 31667 McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of Tract Map 31667
(highlighted in yellow)







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement







































































































































 
CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 


Agenda Item #1.10 
CONSENT CALENDAR 


 Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Warren Repke, Capital Projects Manager 
  
SUBJECT:  Update Participation in the TUMF Program: Resolution Adopting a 


TUMF Schedule  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - __ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REPEALING 


RESOLUTION 2020-16 AND ADOPTING APPLICABLE TRANSPORTATION 
UNIFORM MITIGATION FEES (TUMF) APPLICABLE TO ALL DEVELOPMENTS IN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


BACKGROUND: 
The City of Wildomar (“City”) is a Member Jurisdiction of the Western Riverside Council 
of Governments (“WRCOG”), a joint powers agency comprised of the County of Riverside 
(“County”) and eighteen (18) cities located in Western Riverside County. The provisions 
of the TUMF program are included in Wildomar Municipal Code (WMC) Chapter 3.40. 
WMC Chapter 3.40.040.C “FEE ADJUSTMENT”, establishes fee adjustments by 
Resolution as adopted by the WRCOG Executive Committee. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Each year, WRCOG evaluates and considers a Construction Cost Index (CCI) adjustment 
to update the TUMF Fee Schedule, as required by the TUMF Administrative Plan. In 2020, 
a CCI adjustment was not proposed due to uncertainties surrounding COVID-19. The 
previous CCI adjustment was approved by the WRCOG Executive Committee on 
November 4, 2019 and was adopted by the City Council on March 11, 2020. No other fee 
adjustments have been adopted since then. 
 
On July 12, 2021, the WRCOG Executive Committee adopted an update to the TUMF 
Fee Schedule as part of the annual CCI adjustment. Since no CCI adjustment was 
completed in 2020, the CCI adjustment this year encompasses two years. WRCOG uses 
a combination of two indexes to calculate an adjustment rate – the CCI and the change 
in the National Association of Realtors Median Price for a Single-Family Home in the San 







  
 
Bernardino / Riverside MSA (NAR). Based on these two indexes, the total increase in 
fees for 2021 was calculated to be approximately 9%. However, the WRCOG Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended, and the Executive Committee approved, only 
a 3% increase of the fees instead of the full adjustment rate of 9%. A summary and 
comparison of the existing fees and the updated fees are included in Table 1. 
 
Once adopted by the City, the Updated Fees will become effective January 1, 2022. 
 


Table 1 - TUMF Fee Schedule 
Development Type Existing Fee Updated Fee Applicability Fee Increase 


Single Family Residential $9,810.00 $10,104.00 Per Unit $294.00 
Multi-Family Residential $6,389.00 $6,580.00 Per Unit $191.00 
Industrial $1.81 $1.86 Per Square Foot $0.05 
Commercial Retail $7.50 $7.72 Per Square Foot $0.22 
Commercial Service $4.75 $4.89 Per Square Foot $0.14 
Office (Class A and B) $2.38 $2.45 Per Square Foot $0.07 


 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There is no fiscal impact to the City by adopting the proposed fee schedule. 
 
 
Submitted by:       Approved by: 
Daniel A. York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager   City Manager  
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - __ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
REPEALING RESOLUTION 2020-16 AND ADOPTING APPLICABLE 


TRANSPORTATION UNIFORM MITIGATION FEES (TUMF) APPLICABLE TO ALL 
DEVELOPMENTS IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar (“City”) is a member agency of the Western 
Riverside Council of Governments (“WRCOG”), a joint powers agency comprised of the 
County of Riverside and eighteen cities located in Western Riverside County; and 


WHEREAS, the member agencies of WRCOG recognized that there was 
insufficient funding to address the impacts of new development on the regional system 
of highways and arterials in Western Riverside County (the “Regional System”); and  


WHEREAS, in order to address this shortfall, the member agencies formulated a 
plan whereby a transportation mitigation fee would be assessed on new development 
and would be used to fund the necessary improvements for the Regional System; and 


WHEREAS, in furtherance of this plan, the WRCOG Executive Committee 
adopted the “Western Riverside County Transportation Uniform Fee Nexus Study”, 
dated October 18, 2002 (the “2002 Nexus Study”); and 


WHEREAS, based on the 2002 Nexus Study, the City adopted Ordinance No. 38 
on December 9, 2009 (the “TUMF Ordinance”) pursuant to California Government Code 
sections 66000 et seq. authorizing the City to impose the Transportation Uniform 
Mitigation Fee (“TUMF”) upon new development; and 


WHEREAS, WRCOG, with the assistance of TUMF Participating Jurisdictions, 
has prepared an updated nexus study entitled “Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee 
Nexus Study: 2016 Update” (“2016 Nexus Study”) pursuant to California Government 
Code sections 66000 et seq. (the Mitigation Fee Act), for the purpose of updating the 
fees.  On July 10, 2017, the WRCOG Executive Committee reviewed the 2016 Nexus 
Study and TUMF Program and recommended TUMF Participating Jurisdictions amend 
their applicable TUMF ordinances to reflect changes in the TUMF network and the cost 
of construction in order to update the TUMF Program.   


WHEREAS, consistent with its previous findings made in the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 139, the City Council has been informed and advised, and hereby finds, 
that if the capacity of the Regional System is not enlarged and unless development 
contributes to the cost of improving the Regional System, the result will be substantial 
traffic congestion in all parts of Western Riverside County, with unacceptable Levels of 
Service.  Furthermore, the failure to mitigate growing traffic impacts on the Regional 
System will substantially impair the ability of public safety services (police and fire) to 
respond and, thus, adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare.  Therefore, 
continuation of a TUMF Program is essential. 


WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that there is a reasonable and 







rational relationship between the use of the TUMF and the type of development projects 
on which the fees are imposed because the fees will be used to construct the 
transportation improvements that are necessary for the safety, health and welfare of the 
residential and non-residential users of the development in which the TUMF will be 
levied. 


WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that there is a reasonable and 
rational relationship between the need for the improvements to the Regional System 
and the type of development projects on which the TUMF is imposed because it will be 
necessary for the residential and non-residential users of such projects to have access 
to the Regional system.  Such development will benefit from the Regional System 
improvements and the burden of such developments will be mitigated in part by 
payment of the TUMF. 


WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the cost estimates set 
forth in the  2016 Nexus Study are reasonable cost estimates for constructing the 
Regional System improvements and the facilities that compromise the Regional 
System, and that the amount of the TUMF expected to be generated by new 
development will not exceed the total fair share cost to such development. 


WHEREAS, the fees collected pursuant to TUMF Ordinance shall be used to 
help pay for the design, planning, construction of and real acquisition for the Regional 
System improvements and its facilities as identified in the 2016 Nexus Study.  The need 
for the improvements and facilities is related to new development because such 
development results in additional traffic and creates the demand for the improvements. 


WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the 2016 Nexus Study proposes a fair and 
equitable method for distributing a portion of the unfunded costs of improvements and 
facilities to the Regional system. 


WHEREAS, section 3.40.040(c) of the TUMF Ordinance authorizes periodic 
review and adjustment to the applicable TUMF in accordance with any adjustments 
made by the WRCOG Executive Committee; and  


WHEREAS, the fees collected pursuant to this Resolution shall be used to 
finance the public facilities described or identified in the Nexus Study; and 


WHEREAS, the levying of TUMF has been reviewed by the City Council and staff 
in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and the CEQA 
Guidelines and it has been determined that the adoption of this resolution  is exempt 
from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines.   


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of Wildomar does resolve as follows: 


SECTION 1. Findings. The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted as 
findings in support of this Resolution.  In addition, the City Council re-adopts the findings 
contained in Section 3.40.020 of the Wildomar Municipal Code in support of the 
adjusted TUMF contained herein. 







SECTION 2. TUMF Schedule. In accordance with Section 3.40.040(c) of the 
TUMF Ordinance, there is hereby adopted the fee schedule set forth in Section 2.B for 
the TUMF which replaces the fee schedule set forth in Resolution No. 2020-16, as of 
January 1, 2022.  


A. The fees set forth in Resolution No. 2020-16 are as follows: 
 
(1) $9,810.00 per single-family residential unit 
(2) $6,38900 per multi-family residential unit 
(3) $1.81 per square foot of an industrial project 
(4) $7.50 per square foot of a retail commercial project 
(5) $4.75 per square foot of a service commercial project 
(6) $2.38 per square foot of a service Class A and B Office 


 
B. For single-family residential, multi-family residential, and non-residential 


projects, the resolution will establish the Fee Schedule as follows, as of January 1, 
2022: 


 
(1) $10,104.00 per single family residential unit 
(2) $6,580.00 per multi-family residential unit 
(3) $1.86 per square foot of an industrial project 
(4) $7.72 per square foot of a retail commercial project 
(5) $4.89 per square foot of a service commercial project 
(6) $2.45 per square foot of a service Class A and B Office 


 
SECTION 3.  Resolution No. 2020-16 is hereby repealed. 
 


 SECTION 4. CEQA Findings. The City Council hereby finds that in accordance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and the CEQA Guidelines the 
adoption of this Resolution is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3). 


 SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become on January 1, 2022. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September 2021: 
 
 
 
    
 Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 







APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Thomas D. Jex      Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.11 


 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Canyon Lake for 


Building Staff Services 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Canyon Lake and the City of Wildomar have most recently provided Building 
and Safety services through a contract with a similar Professional Services consultant.  
Both agencies desire to reduce their annual consultant expenditures through staff 
positions.  During this effort, Canyon Lake identified the need from time to time to provide 
Chief Building Official oversight and/or building inspection and building technician support 
services when one of their personnel is absent or their workload increases. 
 
As part of the FY 2021-22 & 2022-23 Biennial Budget adopted by the City Council on 
June 9, 2021, several staff positions for Building and Safety were added to the budget 
and anticipated to provide staff support services to the City of Canyon Lake.  
 
DESCRIPTION: 
The City of Canyon Lake recently notified their consultant for Building and Safety to 
terminate services; they hired a Deputy Building Official/Sr. Building Inspector; they hired 
a Building and Safety Technician; and they approved the Memorandum of Understanding 
for Building Staff Services (Attachment A). 
 
The MOU makes the City of Wildomar’s Building and Safety staff available to the City of 
Canyon Lake.  The City of Canyon Lake agrees to pay the City of Wildomar’s fully 
burdened rate for services rendered.  Staff reviewed both city’s typical annual year of 
permit activity and believes the City of Wildomar can support the request from the City of 
Canyon Lake.   
 
Staff contacted the City of Wildomar’s Insurer and Risk Manager about the concept of 
providing these services to a neighboring city.  They indicated that the practice of staff 
sharing among smaller municipalities is common and they provided us the shell MOU 
contract language included in Attachment A.  







 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The cost of services paid by the City of Canyon Lake will be deposited into the General 
Fund 100-430-4310 to offset City of Wildomar expenditures for Building and Safety. 
 
 
Submitted by:       Approved by: 
Dan York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager   City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer    


 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Memorandum of Understanding for Building Staff Services 







1 of 6 
RIV #4842-4139-9031 v1  


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Building Staff Services 


 
This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the “MOU”) is made and entered into 


this 8th day of September, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Wildomar, a 
California municipal corporation (“Wildomar”), and the City of Canyon Lake, a California 
municipal corporation (“Canyon Lake”), each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”. 


RECITALS 


A. Wildomar and Canyon Lake each recognize the value and benefits to both Parties in 
contracting for services and sharing resources, personnel, and equipment for certain public 
service functions provided by the Parties.  


B. Wildomar employs a building official, building inspectors, and building technicians 
(collectively, “Wildomar building staff”) to perform building department services on 
Wildomar’s behalf. Canyon Lake employs a deputy building official/senior building 
inspector, and a building permit technician (collectively, “Canyon Lake building staff”).  


C. Wildomar desires to allow Canyon Lake to utilize its building department staff, as needed. 
This MOU’s objective is to memorialize the Parties’ MOU for the sharing of Wildomar’s 
building department staff with Canyon Lake.  


D. Government Code section 54981 authorizes a city to contract with another local agency for 
the performance of municipal services or functions within its territory. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


1.0 Term.  This MOU shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue in full force 
until cancelled by a Party or the Parties, as provided herein. Either Party may terminate this 
MOU with 30 days prior written notice. 


2.0 Building Services & Compensation. 


2.1 Wildomar agrees to make its building department staff available to Canyon Lake, as 
requested and on the terms and conditions contained in this MOU, to assist Canyon 
Lake’s building staff with all functions and services typical of municipal building 
departments (“building services”). Wildomar building staff will faithfully, 
competently, and to the best of their ability, experience, and talent, perform the 
requested building services. 
 


2.2 Canyon Lake agrees to pay for all building services provided by Wildomar building 
staff at the rates provided Exhibit A hereto, and upon presentation of an invoice by 
Wildomar to Canyon Lake for such building services. Wildomar will present invoices 
to Canyon Lake on a monthly basis.  Canyon Lake agrees to make a good faith effort 
to pay invoices within 30 days of receipt. 







2 of 6 
RIV #4842-4139-9031 v1  


 
2.3 Subject to the requirements set forth in the Fair Labor Standards Act, if Wildomar is 


required to pay any individual member of the Wildomar building staff overtime on 
any day where that individual provides building services to Canyon Lake, the 
overtime will be attributed to the building services provided to Canyon Lake. For 
example, if a building inspector works 1 hour of overtime on a day where they worked 
2 hours for Canyon Lake, Canyon Lake will be billed 1 hour at the regular rate and 1 
hour at the overtime rate, as required by law.   


 
2.4 Canyon Lake agrees to provide as much advance notice as reasonably practicable to 


Wildomar of a request to utilize Wildomar building staff for building services.  
Canyon Lake understands and agrees that Wildomar may refuse a request for building 
services at any time and for any reason.   


 
2.5 Wildomar’s building staff shall use Wildomar’s equipment, vehicles and any other 


resources when providing building services under this MOU. Wildomar building staff 
are Wildomar employees, and no Wildomar employee shall be considered an 
employee of Canyon Lake under the jurisdiction of Canyon Lake, and no such 
Wildomar employee shall have any Canyon Lake pension, civil service, or other 
status while a Wildomar employee. Wildomar building staff will not supervise, 
manage or direct Canyon Lake building staff. 
 


3.0 Insurance.  Wildomar will provide insurance for its building staff while providing building 
services to Canyon Lake, including commercial general liability, automobile liability, and 
worker’s compensation insurance coverages. Wildomar will provide an endorsement 
identifying Canyon Lake as an additional insured on its commercial general liability and 
automobile liability policies. 


4.0 Indemnification.  Canyon Lake agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Wildomar, 
its elected officials, officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, and independent 
contractors, from every claim or demand or expense of any nature whatsoever including, 
but not limited to, injury to or death of person(s) or damage to any property based or 
asserted upon any act or omission of Canyon Lake, its officers, agents, employees, 
subcontractors, and independent contractors, to the extent that such liability is imposed on 
Wildomar in any legal action or claim of any kind based upon such alleged acts or 
omissions. 


 
5.0 Limitation of Liability.  Canyon Lake agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit 
the liability of Wildomar, its elected officials, officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, and 
independent contractors, for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever, 
including attorneys’ fees and costs, arising from or in any way related to the provision of building 
services by Wildomar building staff under this MOU to no more than $5,000, or the total 
compensation paid to Wildomar for building services under this MOU, whichever amount is lower. 
The foregoing limitation of liability shall not apply to claims, losses, costs, or damages arising 







3 of 6 
RIV #4842-4139-9031 v1  


from the gross negligence of willful misconduct of Wildomar building staff in the course of 
providing building services. 
 
6.0 Notices.  All notices required hereunder may be given by personal delivery, U.S. mail, or 
courier service (e.g., Federal Express) to the addresses below.  Any notice shall be deemed 
received on the date of delivery if delivered by personal service, three (3) business days after 
mailing if sent by first class mail, and on the date of delivery or refused delivery as shown by the 
records of the overnight courier if sent via overnight courier. 
 


To Wildomar: 


 


 


City of Wildomar 
Attention: City Manager 
2387 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
Telephone:  (951) 677-7751 
 


To Canyon Lake: 
 
City of Canyon Lake  
Attention: City Manager 
31516 Railroad Canyon Road 
Canyon Lake, CA 92587 
Telephone (951) 244-2955 
 


 
7.0 Successors and Assigns.  This MOU may not be assigned by either Party without the 
express written consent of the other Party. The terms and conditions of this MOU shall be binding 
on the successors and assigns of the Parties to this MOU. 
 
8.0 Severability.  If any provision of this MOU or the application of any such provision shall 
be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable to any extent, the 
remaining provisions of this MOU and the application thereof shall remain in full force and effect 
and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated. 
 
9.0 Integration.  This MOU represents the full, complete and entire MOU of the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all other communications, 
representations, proposals, understandings or MOUs, whether written or oral, between the Parties 
hereto with respect to such subject matter. 
 
10.0 Modifications.  This MOU not be modified or amended, in whole or in part, except by a 
written instrument signed by an authorized officer or representative of each of the Parties. 
 
11.0 Authority.  The Parties represent that the individuals whose signatures appear at the end of 
this document as signatories are authorized by their respective boards to enter into this MOU on 
behalf of and to bind their respective agencies to the terms of this MOU. 
 







4 of 6 
RIV #4842-4139-9031 v1  


12.0 Counterparts.  This MOU may be signed in counterparts and the signature pages combined 
shall create a document binding on all the Parties. 
 
13.0 Third Party Beneficiaries.  This MOU is intended solely for the benefit of the Parties and 


shall not be construed to create any rights in any person or entity other than the Parties. 
 


14.0 Non-Waiver.  Waiver of a breach or default under this MOU shall not constitute a 
continuing waiver or a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same or any other provisions 
of this MOU. 
 


15.0 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue.  This MOU shall be interpreted under and 
pursuant to the laws of the State of California.  The Parties agree that the jurisdiction and 
venue of any dispute between the Parties to this MOU shall be the Superior Court of 
Riverside County. The Parties expressly waive any right to transfer venue, including but 
not limited to, any right to transfer venue under California Code of Civil Procedure Section 
394. 
 


16.0 Headings.  The section headings contained in this MOU are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this MOU. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this MOU to be executed the day and 
year first written above. 
 
CITY OF WILDOMAR  
 


By: __________________________________ 
  Gary Nordquist, City Manager  


 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________________ 


 Janet Morales, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: _____________________________________  


Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
 







5 of 6 
RIV #4842-4139-9031 v1  


CITY OF CANYON LAKE 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Chris Mann, City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Ana V. Sauseda, CMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Steven Graham, City Attorney 
  







6 of 6 
RIV #4842-4139-9031 v1  


EXHIBIT A 
 
 


Classification    Regular Hourly Rate  Overtime Rate 
 
Chief Building Official  $87.42    $123.41 
 
Building Inspector   $48.92    $ 68.00 
 
Building Technician   $48.92    $68.00 
 
 
 
Time will be billed hourly in ¼’ly increments.  The rates provided are based on the top step of 
FY 2021/22 Compensation Schedule.  Actual billing will be based on the current salary step of 
the personnel providing service.  The Building Technician rate is based on the Administrative 
Analyst series.  The rates are subject to change based on City Council approved Compensation 
Schedule Adjustments. 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.12 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 James R. Riley, Project Consultant 
 
SUBJECT: Pre-Qualification for Municipal Financial Advisory Services and Bond, 


Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Administrative Services Department recommends the City Council: 
 


1. Approve the following vendors for pre-qualification to provide Municipal Financial 
Advisory Services: 


a. CSG Advisors, Inc. 
b. Urban Futures, Inc; and  


 
2. Approve the following vendors for pre-qualification to provide Bond, Disclosure and 


On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services: 
a. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth 
b. Nixon Peabody LLP 
c. Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP  


 
DISCUSSION: 
The Administrative Services Department on July 28, 2021, issues two Request for Pre-
Qualifications (RFQs) (Attachments A & B). One RFQ was to search for qualified 
municipal advisors interested in being admitted to the City’s Municipal Advisory Pool. The 
other RFQ was to search for qualified law firms interested in being admitted to the City’s 
Bond and Disclosure Counsel Pool, and to serve as the City’s On-going Disclosure 
Counsel Pool. The RFQs were posted on the City’s website and on Ebidboard.com. 
 
The Administrative Services Department received five (5) proposals related to the 
Municipal Financial Advisory Services and four (4) proposals related to the Bond, 
Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services during the RFQ period.  Copies 
of both RFQs are included for Council reference in Attachments A & B.  Staff reviewed all 
proposals to see which firms best met the criteria outlined in the RFQs.  These criteria 
used to evaluate the proposals was as follows:  
 







Municipal Financial Advisory Services 
 
The Evaluation Criteria and their respective weights are as follows: 


 
 
 
 


 Evaluation Criteria Weight 
A.  Completeness of Response: 


Responses to this RFPQ must be complete.  Responses 
that do not include the proposal content requirements 
identified within this RFPQ and subsequent Addenda and 
do not address each of the items listed below will be 
considered incomplete, be rated a Fail in the Evaluation 
Criteria, and will receive no further consideration.   
  Pass/Fail 


 Debarment and Suspension: 
Bidders, its principal and named subcontractors are not 
identified on the list of Federally debarred, suspended or 
other excluded parties located at www.sam.gov. Pass/Fail 


B.  Firm Qualifications and Relevant Experience: 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ 
specifications and the following: 


1. Firm’s practice in areas of municipal finance; 
2. Records of performance serving as municipal 


advisors for obligations issued for local California 
issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside 
of California. 25 Points 


C.  Staff Qualifications 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ 
specifications and the following: 


1. Qualifications, expertise, and availability of the 
individual assigned to a project. 


2. Resumé for each team member. 20 Points 
D.  Understanding of the Project: 


1. Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ 
specifications and the availability of team to work 
with City staff. 


2. Knowledge and understanding of local environment 
and a local presence for working with City staff. 25 Points 


E.  Overall Proposal 
Organization, presentation, and content of the responses 15 Points 


F.  References   15 Points 



http://www.sam.gov/





Bond, Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services 
 
The Evaluation Criteria and their respective weights are as follows: 
 


 Evaluation Criteria Weight 
A. Completeness of Response: 


Responses to this RFPQ must be complete.  Responses 
that do not include the proposal content requirements 
identified within this RFPQ and subsequent Addenda and 
do not address each of the items listed below will be 
considered incomplete, be rated a Fail in the Evaluation 
Criteria, and will receive no further consideration.   
  Pass/Fail 


 Debarment and Suspension: 
Bidders, its principal and named subcontractors are not 
identified on the list of Federally debarred, suspended or 
other excluded parties located at www.sam.gov. Pass/Fail 


B. Firm Qualifications and Relevant Experience: 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ 
specifications and the following: 


3. Firm’s practice in areas of law related to public 
finance; 


4. Records of performance serving as counsel for 
obligations issued the local California issuers, the 
State of California, and issuers outside of 
California. 25 Points 


C. Staff Qualifications 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ 
specifications and the following: 


3. Qualifications, expertise, and availability of the 
individual assigned to a project. 


4. Resume for each team member. 20 Points 
D. Understanding of the Project: 


3. Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ 
specifications and the availability of team to work 
with City staff; 


4. Knowledge and understanding of local environment 
and a local presence for working with City staff. 25 Points 


E. Overall Proposal 
Organization, presentation, and content of the responses 15 Points 


F. References         15 Points 
 
 



http://www.sam.gov/





Based on the above criteria, staff is recommending the following vendors to be approved 
for pre-qualification status, which is valid for three (3) years, and be allowed to participate 
in the City’s municipal advisory services bids or bond, disclosure, and on-going disclosure 
counsel services bids. 
 


1. Vendors to approve for pre-qualification to provide Municipal Financial Advisory 
Services: 


a. CSG Advisors, Inc. 
b. Urban Futures, Inc. 


 
2. Vendors to approve for pre-qualification to provide Bond, Disclosure and On-Going 


Disclosure Counsel Services: 
a. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth 
b. Nixon Peabody LLP 
c. Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP  


 
Relevant portions of each proposal are included in the attachments. The full proposals 
for each vendor are on file with the City Clerk and are available for review. 
 
The number of debt financings to be completed during the next three years cannot be 
determined, but the City at the request of a developer, is considering plans to form and 
issue Special Tax Bonds for its first City lead Infrastructure Community Facilities District 
(CFD) for a project located in the City. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There are no fiscal impacts.  Once a specific project is recommended, the fiscal impact 
for the project will be presented to the City Council. 
 
Submitted by:       Approved by: 
Robert Howell       Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director     City Manager  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. RFQ-Municipal Financial Advisory Services 
B. RFQ-Bond, Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services 
C. RFQ Proposal-CSG Advisors Inc.-Municipal Financial Advisors 
D. RFQ Proposal-Urban Futures Inc.-Municipal Financial Advisors 
E. RFQ Proposal-Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth-Bond Counsel 
F. RFQ Proposal-Nixon Peabody LLP-Bond Counsel 
G. RFQ Proposal-Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP-Bond Counsel 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR 


REQUEST FOR PRE-QUALIFICATION 


for 


MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 


RFPQ RESPONSE DUE BY 
MONDAY, AUGUST 16, 2021 


BY 4:00 P.M. 


Attachment A







Page 2 of 16 


A. INTENT 
 


The intent of this Request for Pre-Qualifications (RFPQ) is to search for qualified municipal advisors 
interested in being admitted to the City’s Municipal Advisory Pool.  


Only vendors that have been pre-qualified and approved will be allowed to participate in the City’s 
municipal advisory services bids and their pre-qualification status is valid for three (3) years. 
 
The City of Wildomar does not guarantee that a subsequent RFP will be issued.  Should an RFP be 
issued, the terms and conditions described in this RFPQ are not guaranteed to remain exactly the same.   
 


B. SCOPE 
 
The City of Wildomar referred to as the “City” in the RFPQ, is seeking Statements of Qualifications 
from municipal advisors interested in being admitted to the City’s Municipal Advisory Pool.  Firms 
admitted to the pool may be appointed to serve as lead municipal advisors for bonds issues, leases, and 
other debt obligations issued by the City.  Firms may also be engaged for advisory services related to 
public finance matters as the need might arise. 
 
The firms will be assisting the City Council in meeting the City’s debt financing goals. 
 
Based on the responses to this request, the City anticipates selection of a pool of firms which would 
provide municipal advisory services on an as-needed basis over a three-year period.  The number of 
debt financings to be completed during this period cannot be determined, but the City at the request of 
a developer, plans to form and issue Special Tax Bonds for its first City lead Infrastructure Community 
Facilities District (CFD) for a project located in the City. 
 


C. BACKGROUND 
 


Wildomar is located in southwestern Riverside County, incorporated as a City on July 1, 2008. The is 
approximately 70 miles north of San Diego and 60 miles southeast of Los Angeles. The City 
boundaries encompass 24 square miles, providing a “Community Ranch” lifestyle for its 37,013 
residents. Wildomar incorporated in 2008.  The City has an approved budget of $36.1 million for 
fiscal year 2021-22 and actively manages a debt portfolio of approximately $1.5 million related to a 
lease-purchase for streetlights. 


 
The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police, public works, planning, 
building, recreation, economic development, and animal control. Water and sewer services are 
provided by separate districts. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 3 of 16 


D. VENDOR QUALIFICATION CRITERIA 
 


1. The firm must be an independent consultant (not doing underwriting business). 


2. Be a legal business authorized to do business in the State of California and registered as a 
Municipal Advisor with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB).  


3. Have at least one person with a minimum of five (5) years experience in providing services 
related to municipal advisor for municipal debt in accordance with MSRB Professional 
Qualification Program and MSRB Rule G-3.  


4. The firm must have a minimum of five (5) years of experience in providing municipal advisory 
services for projects related, but not limited to one or more of the following: Certificates of 
Participation, Lease Revenue Bonds, Community Facilities and Assessment District 
Financings, Master Lease Financings, Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes, strategic long-term 
financial planning, structuring/investment advice, and Debt Defeasance. 


5. The firm must have the resources, commitment and demonstrated ability to complete all 
components of all projects in a timely manner, including but not limited to, attending meetings, 
advising staff on matters specific to the scope of work, preparing and presenting reports to City 
staff and members of the City Council, and assisting with due diligence and disclosure 
processes relevant to the scope of work.  


6. A summary of your firm’s or entity’s demonstrated capability, including length of time that 
your firm has provided the services being requested in this Request for Proposal. 


 
E. SPECIFIC REQUIREMENT 
 


Financial/Municipal Advisors 
 


1. The selected firm is expected to provide public finance advise, prepare documents, and render 
opinions concerning all aspects of the proposed financing, including, but not limited to: 


a. Prepare text and supervise the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and 
Notice of Sale. 


b. Review or prepare those sections of the offering document to be disseminated in 
connection with the sale of the bonds as related to the bonds and financing documents. 


c. Draft closing memorandum and coordinate among all parties to arrange for the delivery 
of the bonds. 


d. Any additional information or advice requested by the City related to the City’s 
operation and issuance of debt in either written or oral presentation. 


e. Prepare and assist in presenting relevant data and information to rating agencies and 
bond insurers. 


f. Prepare and circulate financing schedules. 
g. Regularly attend meetings of the financing team from project inception through delivery 


of the bonds; attend meetings of the City Council as requested. 
h. As requested, participate in the selection of underwriters, paying agent, trustee, and 


other contractors related to debt issuance. 
i. Negotiate terms of bond sales with underwriters. 
j. Cooperate with City staff, staff of other cooperative organizations, financial advisors, 


and other officials as necessary. 







Page 4 of 16 


k. Provide technical assistance to the City and agencies in policy development and respond 
to inquiries, such as debt management policies and continuing disclosure. 


 
2. Firms selected through this process should be prepared to work with the City’s finance 


team, including the Administrative Services Director and other relevant departmental staff 
members. 


 
F. CITY CONTACTS 


 
Questions regarding this RFPQ must be submitted in writing by August 11, 2021, to James R. Riley, 
Project Consultant, at  jriley@cityofwildomar.org. The City will answer questions thru an addendum and 
will be posted on the City’s website under “Bids & RFPs”. 
. 


 
G. ESTIMATED CALENDAR OF EVENTS: 
 


 Event  Date 
Request for Pre-Qualification (RFPQ) Issued July 28, 2021 
RFPQ Response Due August 16, 2021 
City Award Date September 8, 2021 
  


 
Note: Dates indicated are approximate. 


 
H. EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION CRITERIA 


 
All responses will be evaluated by a City Selection Committee (CSC).  The CSC may be composed of 
City staff and other parties that may have expertise or experience in bond and disclosure counsel 
services. The CSC will score and recommend the prequalified Contractor in accordance with the 
evaluation criteria set forth in this RFPQ.   


At the time services are required, the panel may interview the most qualified responders: it will be 
mandatory for the lead representative of the respective organizations to attend. Only those 
individuals who will be directly involved in working with the City should attend any scheduled 
interviews. 


All contact during the evaluation phase shall be through the Administrative Services department only.  
Bidders shall neither contact nor lobby evaluators during the evaluation process.  Attempts by Bidder 
to contact and/or influence members of the CSC may result in disqualification of Bidder.  


The CSC will evaluate each response meeting the qualification requirements set forth in this RFPQ.  
Bidders should bear in mind that any response that is unrealistic in terms of the technical or schedule 
commitments, will be deemed reflective of an inherent lack of technical competence or indicative of a 
failure to comprehend the complexity and risk of the City’s requirements as set forth in this RFPQ. 


Each of the Evaluation Criteria below will be used in ranking and determining the quality of bidders’ 
responses.  Responses will be evaluated according to each Evaluation Criteria and scored on the zero 
to five-point scale outlined below.  The scores for all Evaluation Criteria will then be added, according 



mailto:jriley@cityofwildomar.org





Page 5 of 16 


to their assigned weight (below), to arrive at a weighted score for each response.  A response with a 
high weighted total will be deemed of higher quality than a proposal with a lesser-weighted total.  The 
final maximum score for any project is five hundred (500) points. 


The bidders receiving the highest scores and with at least 350 points will be pre-qualified.  Only the 
bidders meeting the criteria will be pre-qualified.  All other bidders will be deemed eliminated from 
the process.  All bidders will be notified of the prequalified list of participants. 


The zero to five-point scale range is defined as follows: 


0 Not Acceptable 
Non-responsive, fails to meet RFPQ specification.  The approach has 
no probability of success.  If a mandatory requirement this score will 
result in disqualification of response. 


1 Poor 
Below average, falls short of expectations, is substandard to that which 
is the average or expected norm, has a low probability of success in 
achieving objectives per RFPQ. 


2 Fair Has a reasonable probability of success, however, some objectives may 
not be met. 


3 Average 


Acceptable, achieves all objectives in a reasonable fashion per RFPQ 
specification.  This will be the baseline score for each item with 
adjustments based on interpretation of proposal by Evaluation 
Committee members.   


4 Above Average / 
Good 


Very good probability of success, better than that which is average or 
expected as the norm.  Achieves all objectives per RFPQ requirements 
and expectations. 


5 Excellent / 
Exceptional 


Exceeds expectations, very innovative, clearly superior to that which is 
average or expected as the norm.  Excellent probability of success and 
in achieving all objectives and meeting RFP specification. 


   
The Evaluation Criteria and their respective weights are as follows: 


 Evaluation Criteria Weight 
A.  Completeness of Response: 


Responses to this RFPQ must be complete.  Responses that do not 
include the proposal content requirements identified within this 
RFP and subsequent Addenda and do not address each of the items 
listed below will be considered incomplete, be rated a Fail in the 
Evaluation Criteria and will receive no further consideration.   
  Pass/Fail 


 Debarment and Suspension: 
Bidders, its principal and named subcontractors are not identified 
on the list of Federally debarred, suspended or other excluded 
parties located at www.sam.gov. Pass/Fail 


B.  Firm Qualifications and Relevant Experience: 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ specifications and 
the following: 
1. Firm’s practice in areas of municipal finance; 25 Points 



http://www.sam.gov/





Page 6 of 16 


2. Records of performance serving as municipal advisors for 
obligations issued for local California issuers, the State of 
California, and issuers outside of California. 


C.  Staff Qualifications 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ specifications and 
the following: 
1. Qualifications, expertise and availability of the individual 


assigned to a project. 
2. Resumé for each team member. 20 Points 


D.  Understanding of the Project: 
1. Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ specifications 


and the availability of team to work with City staff. 
2. Knowledge and understanding of local environment and a local 


presence for working with City staff. 25 Points 
E.  Overall Proposal 


Organization, presentation and content of the responses 15 Points 
F.  References   15 Points 


 
I. REQUEST FOR PRE-QUALIFICATON RESPONSE FORMAT  
 


1. Responses are to be straightforward, clear, concise, and specific to the information requested. 
 


2. All responses will be valid for a 180-day period from the due date of the RFPQ and should be 
signed by an authorized official of the firm. A firm may withdraw its response by written 
request to the City. 


 
3. The City reserves the right to reject any response. All responses become part of the City’s 


public record. 
 


4. Responses, in whole or in part, are NOT to be marked confidential or proprietary.  City may 
refuse to consider any response or part thereof so marked.  Responses submitted in response to 
this RFPQ may be subject to public disclosure.  City shall not be liable in any way for disclosure 
of any such records. 
 


5. Introductory Section 
 


 This section should consist of a letter of introduction signed by an officer of the firm and an 
executive summary which highlights the firm’s key qualifications. 


  







Page 7 of 16 


6. Firm Qualifications 
 


This section should include the following: 
a. The address and telephone number of the office which will staff this engagement. 
b. A brief description of the firm’s practice in areas of advisory services related to public 


finance; and 
c. A description of the firm’s experience serving as municipal advisors for obligations issued 


by local California issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside of California, since 
January 1, 2014.  Provide in an appendix the name of the issuer, the name of the issue, 
the sale date, the size of the issue, the type of the issue, the method of sale, and the firm’s 
role in the transaction. 
 


7. Staff Qualifications 
 


The qualifications, expertise and availability of the individuals assigned to a project are 
exceedingly important to the City and will influence the City’s choice of municipal advisors 
for the pool. Please be specific in addressing these items: 
a. The members of the professional team, including specific areas of expertise, whether 


specified team members will be serving in a primary or a support capacity, and the 
availability of identified team members to work on City projects. 


b. Provide a brief resumé for each team member which should include any relevant 
California city public finance experience and qualifications. 
 


8. Compensation 
 


The City plans to pay fees contingent upon completion of specific financing transactions 
on a per project basis. Please provide a proposed fee schedule by type of financing (e.g., 
revenue bonds; lease financings; general obligation bonds). 


 
9. Disclosure  


 
Please disclose any and all past or current business and personal relationships with any current 
Wildomar elected official, appointed official, City employee, or family member of any current 
Wildomar elected official, appointed official, or City employee. Any past or current business 
relationship may not disqualify the firm from consideration.  


 
10. Ex Parte Communications  


 
Proposers and Proposers’ representatives should not communicate with the City Council 
members about this RFPQ.  In addition, Proposers and Proposers’ representatives should not 
communicate outside the procedures set forth in this RFPQ with an officer, employee, or agent 
of the City, including any member of the evaluation panel, with the exception of the RFPQ 
Facilitator, regarding this RFPQ until after Contract Award. Proposers and their representatives 
are not prohibited, however, from making oral statements or presentations in public to one or 
more representatives of the City during a public meeting.  


 
A "Proposer" or "Proposer's representative" includes all of the Proposer's employees, officers, 
directors, consultants and agents, any subcontractors or suppliers listed in the Proposer's 







Page 8 of 16 


Proposal, and any individual or entity who has been requested by the Proposer to contact the 
City on the Proposer's behalf. Proposers shall include the Ex Parte Communications form, 
Appendix B with their Proposals certifying that they have not had or directed prohibited 
communications as described in this section. 


 
11. Conflict of Interest  


 
The Proposer warrants and represents that it presently has no interest and agrees that it will not 
acquire any interest which would present a conflict of interest under California Government 
Code Sections 1090 et seq., or Sections 87100 et seq., during the performance of services under 
any Agreement awarded. The Proposer further covenants that it will not knowingly employ any 
person having such an interest in the performance of any Agreement awarded. Violation of this 
provision may result in any Agreement awarded being deemed void and unenforceable. 


 
12. References 


 
Please provide the names, addresses and telephone numbers for three (3) issuers with whom you 
have worked over the years, and who are able to attest to your firm’s expertise, quality of work, 
and the service provided. California city references are preferred. 
 


13. Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments:  
 
(1) This shall include clarifications, exceptions and amendments, if any, to the RFPQ and 


associated Bid Documents, and shall be submitted with your bid response using the 
template on page 13 of this RFPQ. 


(2) THE CITY IS UNDER NO OBLIGATION TO ACCEPT ANY EXCEPTIONS, AND 
SUCH EXCEPTIONS MAY BE A BASIS FOR NON-ACCEPTANCE OF THE 
PREQUALIFICATION DOCUMENTS 


 
 
J. SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS 


 
1. All responses must be completed and successfully delivered electronically by email or through 


the City’s website under “Bids & RFPs” by 4:00 p.m. on the due date specified in the Calendar 
of Events.  The electronic response must be in a single file (PDF with OCR preferred), including 
additional required documentation. 
 


2. All costs required for the preparation and submission of a response shall be borne by Bidder.  
 


3. Only one prequalification response will be accepted from any one person, partnership, 
corporation, or other entity; however, several alternatives may be included in one response.  For 
purposes of this requirement, “partnership” shall mean, and is limited to, a legal partnership 
formed under one or more of the provisions of the California or other state’s Corporations Code 
or an equivalent statute. 
 


4. Responses are limited to not  more  than  25 pages including the letter of introduction, but 
excluding any attachments. 


 







Page 9 of 16 


 
K. BIDDER INFORMATION AND ACCEPTANCE 


 
1. The undersigned declares that the Documents, including, without limitation, the RFPQ, and 


Exhibits have been read. 


2. The undersigned is authorized, offers, and agrees to furnish services specified in accordance with 
the Specifications, Terms & Conditions of the Documents of RFPQ – Municipal Financial 
Advisory Services. 


3. The undersigned has reviewed the RFPQ Documents and fully understands the requirements in 
this Response including, but not limited to, the requirements under the City Provisions, and that 
each Bidder who is awarded a contract shall be, in fact, a prime Contractor, not a subcontractor, 
to City, and agrees that its Response, if accepted by City, will be the basis for the Bidder to enter 
into a contract with City in accordance with the intent of the Documents. The undersigned, if 
awarded the contract, will accept the City’s Agreement for Services (Appendix C) or note 
changes being requested. During the review process, the City will note the extent of the changes 
to the City’s Agreement. 


4. The undersigned acknowledges receipt and acceptance of all addenda. 


5. The undersigned agrees to the following terms, conditions, certifications, and requirements found 
on the City’s website https://cityofwildomar.org/departments/administrativeservices/policies:  


• Debt Management Policy and Disclosure Procedures 
• Purchasing Policy and Procedure Manual 


 
6. The undersigned acknowledges that Bidder will be in good standing in the State of California, 


with all the necessary licenses, permits, certifications, approvals, and authorizations necessary to 
perform all obligations in connection with this RFPQ and associated Documents. 


7. It is the responsibility of each bidder to be familiar with all of the specifications, terms and 
conditions.  By the submission of a response, the Bidder certifies that if awarded a contract they 
will make no claim against the City based upon ignorance of conditions or misunderstanding of 
the specifications. 


8. Patent indemnity:  Vendors who do business with the City shall hold the City of Wildomar, its 
officers, agents and employees, harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including cost and 
expenses, for infringement or use of any patent, copyright or other proprietary right, secret 
process, patented or unpatented invention, article or appliance furnished or used in connection 
with the contract or purchase order. 


9. Insurance certificates are not required at the time of submission.  However, by submitting a 
response, the Contractor agrees to meet the minimum insurance requirements stated in the RFPQ.  
This documentation must be provided to the City, prior to award, and shall include an insurance 
certificate and additional insured certificate, naming the City of Wildomar, which meets the 
minimum insurance requirements, as stated in the RFPQ. 


 



https://cityofwildomar.org/departments/administrativeservices/policies





Page 10 of 16 


APPENDIX A 


BIDDER INFORMATION 


Official Name of Bidder:        
 
Street Address Line 1:        
 
Street Address Line 2:        
 
City:       State:       Zip Code:       
 
Webpage:       
 
Type of Entity / Organizational Structure (check one):  


  Corporation   Joint Venture 


  Limited Liability Partnership   Partnership 


  Limited Liability Corporation   Non-Profit / Church 


  Other:       
 
Jurisdiction of Organization Structure:        
 
Date of Organization Structure:       
 
Federal Tax Identification Number:       
 
 
Primary Contact Information: 
 


Name / Title:       
 
Telephone Number:         
 
E-mail Address:       


 
 
SIGNATURE:   
 
Name and Title of Signer:       
 
Dated this        day of       20      


 


 







Page 11 of 16 


APPENDIX B 


REFERENCES 
 


RFPQ – MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 
 
 
Bidder Name:       


 
Company Name:       Contact Person:       


Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       


Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Page 12 of 16 


APPENDIX C 


City of Wildomar Agreement for Services 


(Attached separately) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Page 13 of 16 


APPENDIX D 
 


EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS 
 


RFPQ – MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 
 


 
Bidder Name:       
 
List below requests for clarifications, exceptions and amendments, if any, to the RFPQ and associated Bid Documents, and submit 
with your bid response. 
 
The CIty is under no obligation to accept any exceptions and such exceptions may be a basis for bid disqualification. 


Reference to: Description 
Page No. Section Item No.  


p. 23 D 1.c. Vendor takes exception to… 


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


*Print additional pages as necessary 
 
 







Page 14 of 16 


APPENDIX E 
 


EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS CERTIFICATION 
 


Please indicate by signing below one of the following two statements. Only sign one statement. 
  
I certify that Proposer and Proposer’s representatives have not had any communication with a City 
Councilmember concerning RFPQ - MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES at any time after July 28 
2021.  
 
 
________________________________   Date: _______________________  
Signature  
 
 
________________________________  
Print  
 


OR 
 


I certify that Proposer or Proposer’s representatives have communicated after July 28, 2021 with a City 
Councilmember concerning RFPQ -  MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES. A copy of all such 
communications is attached to this form for public distribution. 
 
  
________________________________   Date: _______________________  
Signature  
 
 
________________________________  
Print 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 15 of 16 


APPENDIX F 
VENDOR PRE-QUALIFICATION CHECK LIST  


RFPQ – MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 
 Description Yes No 
 BIDDER QUALIFICATION CHECKLIST  


   FIRM QUALIFICATIONS  


1a. The firm must be an independent consultant (not doing underwriting business).   


1b. Be a legal business authorized to do business in the State of California and registered as 
a Municipal Advisor with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB). 


  


1c. The firm must have a minimum of five (5) years of experience in providing municipal 
advisory services for projects related, but not limited to one or more of the following: 
Certificates of Participation, Lease Revenue Bonds, Community Facilities and 
Assessment District Financings, Master Lease Financings, Tax and Revenue Anticipation 
Notes, strategic long-term financial planning, structuring/investment advice, and Debt 
Defeasance. 


  


1d. The firm must have the resources, commitment and demonstrated ability to complete 
all components of all projects in a timely manner, including but not limited to, attending 
meetings, advising staff on matters specific to the scope of work, preparing and 
presenting reports to City staff and members of the City Council, and assisting with due 
diligence and disclosure processes relevant to the scope of work.  


  


1e. A summary of your firm’s or entity’s demonstrated capability, including length of time 
that your firm has provided the services being requested in this Request for Proposal. 


  


1f. Address and telephone number of the office that will staff the engagement   


1g. Firm’s experience serving as municipal advisors for obligations issued by local California 
issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside of California. 


  


1h. Description of the firm’s experience serving as municipal advisors for obligations issued 
by local California issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside of California, since 
January 1, 2015.  Provide in an appendix the name of the issuer, the name of the issue, 
the sale date, the size of the issue, the type of the issue, the method of sale, and the 
firm’s role in the transaction. 


  


 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  


2a.  Have at least one person with a minimum of five (5) years’ experience in providing 
services related to municipal advisor for municipal debt in accordance with MSRB 
Professional Qualification Program and MSRB Rule G-3. 


  


 COMPENSATION  


3a. The City plans to pay fees contingent upon completion of specific financing transactions 
on a per project basis. Provide a proposed fee schedule by type of financing (e.g., 
revenue bonds; lease financings; general obligation bonds). 


  


 REFERENCES  


4a. Please provide, the names, addresses and telephone numbers for three (3) issuers with 
whom you have worked over the years, and who are able to attest to your firm’s 


  







Page 16 of 16 


expertise, quality of work, and the service provided. California city references are 
preferred. 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR 


REQUEST FOR PRE-QUALIFICATION 


for 


BOND, DISCLOSURE AND ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL 
SERVICES  


RFPQ RESPONSE DUE BY 
MONDAY, AUGUST 16, 2021 


BY 4:00 P.M. 


Attachment B







Page 2 of 17 
 
 


A. INTENT 
 


The intent of this Request for Pre-Qualifications (RFPQ) is to search for qualified law firms interested 
in being admitted to the City’s Bond and Disclosure Counsel Pool, and to serve as the City’s On-going 
Disclosure Counsel Pool.  


Only vendors that have been pre-qualified and approved will be allowed to participate in the City’s 
bond, disclosure and on-going disclosure counsel services bids and their pre-qualification status is valid 
for three (3) years. 
 
The City of Wildomar does not guarantee that a subsequent RFP will be issued.  Should an RFP be 
issued, the terms and conditions described in this RFPQ are not guaranteed to remain exactly the same.   
 


B. SCOPE 
 
The City of Wildomar referred to as the “City” in the RFPQ, is seeking Statements of Qualifications 
from law firms interested in being admitted to the City’s Bond and Disclosure Counsel Pool and firms 
interested in serving as the City’s On-going Disclosure Counsel.  Firms admitted to the pool may be 
appointed to serve as lead bond counsel, co-bond counsel, disclosure counsel, or co-disclosure counsel, 
for bonds, leases, and other debt obligations issued by the City.  Firms may also be engaged for legal 
and advisory services related to public finance matters as the need might arise. 
 
The firms will be assisting the City Council in meeting the City’s debt financing goals. 
 
Based on the responses to this request, the City anticipates selection of a pool of firms which would 
provide bond and disclosure counsel services on an as-needed basis over a three-year period.  The City 
may also choose to select on-going disclosure counsel; it is anticipated that a firm selected under this 
category would enter into contracts with the City for a three-year period. The number of debt financings 
to be completed during this period cannot be determined, but the City at the request of a developer, 
plans to form and issue Special Tax Bonds for its first City lead Infrastructure Community Facilities 
District (CFD) for a project located in the City. 
 
BACKGROUND 


 
Wildomar is located in southwestern Riverside County, incorporated as a City on July 1, 2008. The is 
approximately 70 miles north of San Diego and 60 miles southeast of Los Angeles. The City 
boundaries encompass 24 square miles, providing a “Community Ranch” lifestyle for its 37,013 
residents. Wildomar incorporated in 2008.  The City has an approved budget of $36.1 million for fiscal 
year 2021-22 and actively manages a debt portfolio of approximately $1.5 million related to a lease-
purchase for streetlights. 
 
The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police, public works, planning, 
building, recreation, economic development, and animal control. Water and sewer services are 
provided by separate districts. 
 


 
 
 







Page 3 of 17 
 
 


 
 
C. VENDOR QUALIFICATION CRITERIA 


 
1. Bidder shall be a bond, disclosure and/or on-going disclosure counsel that is regularly and 


continuously engaged in the business of providing bond, disclosure and/or on-going disclosure 
services for at least five years.   


2. Bidder shall be a lawyer licensed by the State of California. 


3. Bidder shall possess all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to perform 
services as specified under this RFPQ. 
 
 


D. SPECIFIC REQUIREMENT 
 


1. Bond/Co-Bond Counsel 
 


With respect to specific financings, the responsibilities of bond counsel may include the 
following: 


 
a. Rendering the bond counsel opinion regarding the validity and binding effect of the 


bonds, the source of payment and security for the bonds, and the excludability of interest 
on the bonds from gross income for federal and/or state income tax purposes; 
 


b. Preparation and review of documents necessary or appropriate for the authorization, 
issuance, sale and delivery of the bonds, coordination of the authorization and execution 
of these documents. Drafting and/or negotiating any legal documents necessary for the 
financing, including any necessary resolutions or ordinances, minutes and other 
documents for the issuance and sale of the bonds and furnishing instructions and advice 
in connection with these activities; 
 


c. Reviewing or preparing those sections of the offering document to be disseminated in 
connection with the sale of the bonds as related to the bonds, financing documents, bond 
counsel opinion, and tax exemption; 
 


d. Regularly attending meetings of the financing team from project inception through 
delivery of the bonds; attending meetings of the City Council as requested; 
 


e. Participating as requested in activities associated with presenting information to rating 
agencies; 
 


f. Preparing closing documents, including the preparation of a closing memorandum, and 
furnishing copies of final transcripts to all requesting participants; 
 


g. Attending the delivery of the bonds; 
 







Page 4 of 17 
 
 


h. Reviewing any legal issues related to the structure of the bond issue and/or the proposed 
sale; and 
 


i. Preparing any other documents necessary, including legal opinions, for issuance of the 
bonds. 
 


2. Issuance – Related Disclosure/Co-Disclosure Counsel 
 


With respect to specific financings, the responsibilities of disclosure counsel may include the 
following: 


 
a. Preparing the preliminary and final official statements; 


 
b. Preparing other disclosure information as related to the preliminary and final official 


statements used in offering documents; 
 


c. Providing a “10b-5 Opinion” with respect to the preliminary and final official 
statements; 
 


d. Preparing the “Deemed final” (15c2-12) Certificate to be signed by the City; 
 


e. Preparing the Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be signed by the City; 
 


f. Reviewing, as necessary, applicable law and pertinent documents; and 
 


g. Participating, as requested, in informational meetings and discussions with various 
parties, including investors. 


 
3. Non-Issuance Disclosure Counsel Services - Ongoing Disclosure Counsel 


 
a. Consult with City officials and staff regarding matters relating to continuing disclosure 


requirements, specifically those now imposed by Securities and Exchange Commission 
Rule 15c2-12, as amended (the “Rule”).  Disclosure Counsel Responsibilities with 
respect to continuing disclosure shall include the following: 
 
(1) Assist with the determination of whether an action, activity or event constitutes 


a “material event”, as defined in the Rule, and preparing the appropriate 
disclosure of such material event; 


 
(2) Assist with the review of the compilation by the City of the “annual financial 


information” needed to comply with the Rule and any current continuing 
disclosure statement; 


 
(3) Review the City’s audited financial statements for purposes of confirming 


compliance with the Rule and any current continuing disclosure agreements; 
 


(4) Assist the City in the preparing of a disclosure, if any, of any material failure by 
the City to comply with the Rule; and 







Page 5 of 17 
 
 


 
(5) Keep the City informed of rulings issued by Federal and State regulatory 


agencies, such as the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board, that impact the City’s disclosure practices, and be 
proactive in ensuring the City’s compliance with all disclosure requirements. 
 


b. Provide annual training to City staff relating to continuing disclosure obligations under 
the Rule (a total of 1, 1-hour training, per year). 


 
c. Serve as an initial point of contact for questions by the City relating to disclosure issues 


or obligations; 
 


d. Inform the City, if and as Contractor becomes aware, of best practices relating to 
disclosure and updates regarding current events or changes in applicable laws that may 
impact City disclosure obligations under the Rule. 
 
 


4. Reporting 
 


a. Firms selected through this process should be prepared to work with the City’s  
finance team, including the Administrative Services Director and other relevant 
departmental staff members. 


 
E. CITY CONTACTS 


 
Questions regarding this RFPQ must be submitted in writing by August 11, 2021, to James R. Riley, 
Project Consultant, at  jriley@cityofwildomar.org. The City will answer questions thru an addendum and 
will be posted on the City’s website under “Bids & RFPs”. 


 
F. ESTIMATED CALENDAR OF EVENTS: 
 


 Event  Date 
Request for Pre-Qualification (RFPQ) Issued July 28, 2021 
RFPQ Response Due August 16, 2021 
City Award Date September 8, 2021 
  


Note: Dates indicated are approximate. 
 


 
 


G. EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
All responses will be evaluated by a City Selection Committee (CSC).  The CSC may be composed of 
City staff and other parties that may have expertise or experience in bond and disclosure counsel 
services. The CSC will score and recommend the prequalified Contractor in accordance with the 
evaluation criteria set forth in this RFPQ.   



mailto:jriley@cityofwildomar.org





Page 6 of 17 
 
 


At the time services are required, the panel may interview the most qualified responders: it will be 
mandatory for the lead representative of the respective organizations to attend. Only those 
individuals who will be directly involved in working with the City should attend any scheduled 
interviews. 


All contact during the evaluation phase shall be through the Administrative Services department only.  
Bidders shall neither contact nor lobby evaluators during the evaluation process.  Attempts by Bidder 
to contact and/or influence members of the CSC may result in disqualification of Bidder.  


The CSC will evaluate each response meeting the qualification requirements set forth in this RFPQ.  
Bidders should bear in mind that any response that is unrealistic in terms of the technical or schedule 
commitments, will be deemed reflective of an inherent lack of technical competence or indicative of a 
failure to comprehend the complexity and risk of the City’s requirements as set forth in this RFPQ. 


Each of the Evaluation Criteria below will be used in ranking and determining the quality of bidders’ 
responses.  Responses will be evaluated according to each Evaluation Criteria and scored on the zero 
to five-point scale outlined below.  The scores for all Evaluation Criteria will then be added, according 
to their assigned weight (below), to arrive at a weighted score for each response.  A response with a 
high weighted total will be deemed of higher quality than a proposal with a lesser-weighted total.  The 
final maximum score for any project is five hundred (500) points. 


The bidders receiving the highest scores and with at least 350 points will be pre-qualified.  Only the 
bidders meeting the criteria will be pre-qualified.  All other bidders will be deemed eliminated from 
the process.  All bidders will be notified of the prequalified list of participants. 


At the time services are required, the panel may interview the most qualified responders: it will be 
mandatory for the lead representative of the respective organizations to attend. Only those 
individuals who will be directly involved in working with the City should attend any scheduled 
interviews. 


The zero to five-point scale range is defined as follows: 


0 Not Acceptable 
Non-responsive, fails to meet RFPQ specification.  The approach has 
no probability of success.  If a mandatory requirement this score will 
result in disqualification of response. 


1 Poor 
Below average, falls short of expectations, is substandard to that which 
is the average or expected norm, has a low probability of success in 
achieving objectives per RFPQ. 


2 Fair Has a reasonable probability of success, however, some objectives may 
not be met. 


3 Average 


Acceptable, achieves all objectives in a reasonable fashion per RFPQ 
specification.  This will be the baseline score for each item with 
adjustments based on interpretation of proposal by Evaluation 
Committee members.   


4 Above Average / 
Good 


Very good probability of success, better than that which is average or 
expected as the norm.  Achieves all objectives per RFPQ requirements 
and expectations. 







Page 7 of 17 
 
 


5 Excellent / 
Exceptional 


Exceeds expectations, very innovative, clearly superior to that which is 
average or expected as the norm.  Excellent probability of success and 
in achieving all objectives and meeting RFP specification. 


   
The Evaluation Criteria and their respective weights are as follows: 


 Evaluation Criteria Weight 
A.  Completeness of Response: 


Responses to this RFPQ must be complete.  Responses that do not 
include the proposal content requirements identified within this 
RFP and subsequent Addenda and do not address each of the items 
listed below will be considered incomplete, be rated a Fail in the 
Evaluation Criteria and will receive no further consideration.   
  Pass/Fail 


 Debarment and Suspension: 
Bidders, its principal and named subcontractors are not identified 
on the list of Federally debarred, suspended or other excluded 
parties located at www.sam.gov. Pass/Fail 


B.  Firm Qualifications and Relevant Experience: 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ specifications and 
the following: 
1. Firm’s practice in areas of law related to public finance; 
2. Records of performance serving as counsel for obligations 


issued the local California issuers, the State of California, and 
issuers outside of California. 25 Points 


C.  Staff Qualifications 
Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ specifications and 
the following: 
1. Qualifications, expertise and availability of the individual 


assigned to a project. 
2. Resume for each team member. 20 Points 


D.  Understanding of the Project: 
1. Responses will be evaluated against the RFPQ specifications 


and the availability of team to work with City staff; 
2. Knowledge and understanding of local environment and a local 


presence for working with City staff. 25 Points 
E.  Overall Proposal 


Organization, presentation and content of the responses 15 Points 
F.  References   15 Points 


 
 
 
 


 
 



http://www.sam.gov/





Page 8 of 17 
 
 


H. REQUEST FOR PRE-QUALIFICATON RESPONSE FORMAT  
 


1. Responses are to be straightforward, clear, concise, and specific to the information requested. 
 


2. All responses will be valid for a 180-day period from the due date of the RFPQ and should be 
signed by an authorized official of the firm. A firm may withdraw its response by written 
request to the City. 


 
3. The City reserves the right to reject any response. All responses become part of the City’s 


public record. 
 


4. Responses, in whole or in part, are NOT to be marked confidential or proprietary.  City may 
refuse to consider any response or part thereof so marked.  Responses submitted in response to 
this RFPQ may be subject to public disclosure.  City shall not be liable in any way for disclosure 
of any such records. 
 


5. Introductory Section 
 


 This section should consist of a letter of introduction signed by an officer of the firm and an 
executive summary which highlights the firm’s key qualifications. 


 
6. Firm Qualifications 


 
This section should include the following: 
a. The address and telephone number of the office which will staff this engagement. 
b. A brief description of the firm’s practice in areas of law related to public finance; and 
c. A description of the firm’s experience serving as counsel for obligations issued by local 


California issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside of California, since January 
1, 2014.  Provide in an appendix the name of the issuer, the name of the issue, the sale 
date, the size of the issue, the type of the issue, the method of sale, and the firm’s role in 
the transaction. 
 


7. Firm Qualifications (Ongoing disclosure Counsel): 
 


Bidders proposing to serve as ongoing disclosure counsel should also provide the following: 
a. A description of the firm’s disclosure counsel work since January 1, 2014, with issues 


in the range of $2 to $10 million, that best illustrates the firm’s qualifications, 
experience, and ability to service as on-going disclosure counsel. 


b. Recommendations the firm has to improve the City’s disclosure practices; and 
c. A description of the firm’s experience training governmental officials on their 


disclosure obligations. 
 


8. Staff Qualifications 
 


The qualifications, expertise and availability of the individuals assigned to a project are 
exceedingly important to the City and will influence the City’s choice of financial advisors 
for the pool. Please be specific in addressing these items: 







Page 9 of 17 
 
 


a. The members of the professional team, including specific areas of expertise, whether 
specified team members will be serving in a primary or a support capacity, and the 
availability of identified team members to work on City projects. 


b. Provide a brief resume for each team member which should include any relevant 
California city public finance experience and qualifications, as well as an indication of 
California State Bar Membership. 


 
9. Compensation 


 
The City plans to pay fees contingent upon completion of specific financing transactions 
on a per project basis. Please provide a proposed fee schedule by type of financing (e.g., 
revenue bonds; lease financings; general obligation bonds). 


 
10. Compensation (On-going Disclosure Counsel) 


 
Responders should provide a proposed fee schedule for on-going disclosure counsel services 
including monthly flat-fee, hourly, or event-based scenarios.  All proposals for flat fee, hourly, 
or event-based compensation should clearly specify which types of services are covered by 
each type of compensation. 


 
11. References 


 
Please provide the names, addresses and telephone numbers for three (3) issuers with whom 
you have worked over the years, and who are able to attest to your firm’s expertise, quality of 
work, and the service provided. California city references are preferred. 
 


12. Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments:  
 
(1) This shall include clarifications, exceptions and amendments, if any, to the RFPQ and 


associated Bid Documents, and shall be submitted with your bid response using the 
template on page 15 of this RFPQ. 


(2) THE CITY IS UNDER NO OBLIGATION TO ACCEPT ANY EXCEPTIONS, AND 
SUCH EXCEPTIONS MAY BE A BASIS FOR NON-ACCEPTANCE OF THE 
PREQUALIFICATION DOCUMENTS 


 
 
I. SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS 


 
1. All responses must be completed and successfully delivered electronically by email or through 


the City’s website under “Bids & RFPs” by 4:00 p.m. on the due date specified in the Calendar 
of Events.  The electronic response must be in a single file (PDF with OCR preferred), including 
additional required documentation. 
 


2. All costs required for the preparation and submission of a response shall be borne by Bidder.  
 


3. Only one prequalification response will be accepted from any one person, partnership, 
corporation, or other entity; however, several alternatives may be included in one response.  For 







Page 10 of 17 
 
 


purposes of this requirement, “partnership” shall mean, and is limited to, a legal partnership 
formed under one or more of the provisions of the California or other state’s Corporations Code 
or an equivalent statute. 
 


4. Responses are limited to not  more  than  25 pages including the letter of introduction, but 
excluding any attachments. 


 
J. BIDDER INFORMATION AND ACCEPTANCE 


 
1. The undersigned declares that the Documents, including, without limitation, the RFPQ, and 


Exhibits have been read. 


2. The undersigned is authorized, offers, and agrees to furnish services specified in accordance with 
the Specifications, Terms & Conditions of the Documents of RFPQ – Bond, Disclosure and On-
going Disclosure Counsel Services. 


3. The undersigned has reviewed the RFPQ Documents and fully understands the requirements in 
this Response including, but not limited to, the requirements under the City Provisions, and that 
each Bidder who is awarded a contract shall be, in fact, a prime Contractor, not a subcontractor, 
to City, and agrees that its Response, if accepted by City, will be the basis for the Bidder to enter 
into a contract with City in accordance with the intent of the Documents. The undersigned, if 
awarded the contract, will accept the City’s Agreement for Services (Appendix C) or note 
changes being requested. During the review process, the City will note the extent of the changes 
to the City’s Agreement. 


4. The undersigned acknowledges receipt and acceptance of all addenda. 


5. The undersigned agrees to the following terms, conditions, certifications, and requirements found 
on the City’s website https://cityofwildomar.org/departments/administrativeservices/policies:  


• Debt Management Policy and Disclosure Procedures 
• Purchasing Policy  


 
6. The undersigned acknowledges that Bidder will be in good standing in the State of California, 


with all the necessary licenses, permits, certifications, approvals, and authorizations necessary to 
perform all obligations in connection with this RFPQ and associated Documents. 


7. It is the responsibility of each bidder to be familiar with all of the specifications, terms and 
conditions.  By the submission of a response, the Bidder certifies that if awarded a contract they 
will make no claim against the City based upon ignorance of conditions or misunderstanding of 
the specifications. 


8. Patent indemnity:  Vendors who do business with the City shall hold the City of Wildomar, its 
officers, agents and employees, harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including cost and 
expenses, for infringement or use of any patent, copyright or other proprietary right, secret 
process, patented or unpatented invention, article or appliance furnished or used in connection 
with the contract or purchase order. 



https://cityofwildomar.org/departments/administrativeservices/policies





Page 11 of 17 
 
 


9. Insurance certificates are not required at the time of submission.  However, by submitting a 
response, the Contractor agrees to meet the minimum insurance requirements stated in the RFPQ.  
This documentation must be provided to the City, prior to award, and shall include an insurance 
certificate and additional insured certificate, naming the City of Wildomar, which meets the 
minimum insurance requirements, as stated in the RFPQ. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Page 12 of 17 
 
 


APPENDIX A 


BIDDER INFORMATION 


Official Name of Bidder:        
 
Street Address Line 1:        
 
Street Address Line 2:        
 
City:       State:       Zip Code:       
 
Webpage:       
 
Type of Entity / Organizational Structure (check one):  


  Corporation   Joint Venture 


  Limited Liability Partnership   Partnership 


  Limited Liability Corporation   Non-Profit / Church 


  Other:       
 
Jurisdiction of Organization Structure:        
 
Date of Organization Structure:       
 
Federal Tax Identification Number:       
 
 
Primary Contact Information: 
 


Name / Title:       
 
Telephone Number:         
 
E-mail Address:       


 
 
SIGNATURE:   
 
Name and Title of Signer:       
 
Dated this        day of       20      







Page 13 of 17 
 
 


 
APPENDIX B 


REFERENCES 
 


RFPQ – BOND, DISCLOSURE AND ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL SERVICES 
 
 
Bidder Name:       


 
Company Name:       Contact Person:       


Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Page 14 of 17 
 
 


 


 


APPENDIX C 


City of Wildomar Agreement for Services 


(Attached separately) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Page 15 of 17 
 
 


APPENDIX D 
 


EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS 
 


RFPQ – BOND, DISCLOSURE AND ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL SERVICES 
 


 
Bidder Name:       
 
List below requests for clarifications, exceptions and amendments, if any, to the RFPQ and associated Bid Documents, and submit 
with your bid response. 
 
The CIty is under no obligation to accept any exceptions and such exceptions may be a basis for bid disqualification. 


Reference to: Description 
Page No. Section Item No.  


p. 23 D 1.c. Vendor takes exception to… 


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


                        


*Print additional pages as necessary 
 







Page 16 of 17 
 
 


APPENDIX E 
 


VENDOR PRE-QUALIFICATION CHECK LIST  
RFPQ - BOND, DISCLOSURE AND ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL SERVICES 


 Description Yes No 
 BIDDER QUALIFICATION CHECKLIST  


   BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS  


1a. Bidder shall be a bond, disclosure and/or on-going disclosure counsel that is regularly 
and continuously engaged in the business of providing bond, disclosure and/or on-going 
disclosure services for at least five years. 


  


1b. Bidder shall be a lawyer licensed by the State of California.   


1c. Bidder possess all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to perform 
services as specified under this RFPQ. 


  


 FIRM QUALIFICATIONS  


2a. Address and telephone number of the office that will staff the engagement   


2b. Brief description of the firm’s practice in areas related to public finance   


2c. Firm’s experience serving as counsel for obligations issued by local California issuers, the 
State of California, and issuers outside of California. 


  


2d. Description of the firm’s experience serving as financial advisors for obligations issued 
by local California issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside of California, since 
January 1, 2015.  Provide in an appendix the name of the issuer, the name of the issue, 
the sale date, the size of the issue, the type of the issue, the method of sale, and the 
firm’s role in the transaction. 


  


 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  


3a.  Members of the professional team, including specific areas of expertise of each as 
related to different types of financing structures, whether team members specified will 
be serving in a primary or support capacity, and the availability of identified team 
members to work on City projects. 


  


 COMPENSATION  


4a. The City plans to pay fees contingent upon completion of specific financing transactions 
on a per project basis. Provide a proposed fee schedule by type of financing (e.g., 
revenue bonds; lease financings; general obligation bonds). 


  


 REFERENCES  


5a. Please provide, the names, addresses and telephone numbers for three (3) issuers with 
whom you have worked over the years, and who are able to attest to your firm’s 
expertise, quality of work, and the service provided. California city references are 
preferred. 


  







Page 17 of 17 
 
 


 







Proposal to Provide 
Municipal Financial Advisory Services 


to the 


City of Wildomar 


Submitted by: 


315 Montgomery Street 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
(415) 956-2454


August 16, 2021 


Attachment C







315 Montgomery Street 
San Francisco, CA 94104 


Phone: 415.956.2454 


 


INTRODUCTORY SECTION 


Via Email Delivery 
August 16, 2021 
 
Mr. James Riley 
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd, Ste. 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
 
Re: Pre-qualifications to provide Municipal Advisory Services to the City of Wildomar 
 
Dear Mr. Riley: 
 
CSG Advisors Incorporated (CSG) is pleased to submit the attached to provide municipal advisory services to the 
City of Wildomar.  CSG combines vast experience, local knowledge, and the highest commitment to service and 
ethics to assist the City with its public financing needs.  CSG’s proposed lead day-to-day contact Scott Smith is a 
principal of the firm and brings the following attributes to the City: 


• Broad Municipal Financial Expertise & Strategic Approach.  CSG personnel have been engaged in a broad 
array of municipal financing approaches since 1978.  During that time, CSG has assisted public agencies in 
over $62 billion of bond transactions. Unlike many other advisory firms, CSG Advisors is not exclusively 
transaction-oriented and does not limit its work to providing bond pricing input and limited advice on 
structuring individual municipal bond transactions. We spend at least one-third of our time providing strategic 
financial advice and consulting services to public agency and non-profit clients. 


• Independence.  CSG Advisors acts solely as an independent financial advisor and is a registered “municipal 
advisor” by the SEC and MSRB.  Public finance is the firm’s exclusive line of business, and public agencies 
are our primary clients.  We do not represent bond underwriters, for-profit developers or credit enhancers.  
CSG Advisors does not underwrite bonds or any other financial securities and has no relationship with 
broker-dealer firms.   The firm is owned by a group of its employees. 


• Inland Empire Experience City.  CSG currently provide general fund municipal advisory services to the 
Cities of Ontario, Fontana, Corona and Riverside (among other Inland Empire clients).  We are also financial 
advisor to nearby Temescal Valley Water District. 
 


• CSG Engagement with the City on City Hall Feasibility.  Presuming the City intends to move forward with 
such analysis, the City of Wildomar engaged CSG to complete a feasibility analysis of financing a new City 
Hall dependent upon delivery of a detailed term sheet regarding build-to-suit and/or lease terms of a new 
facility to be developed by the Rancon Group. 


 
CSG has read the RFPQ fully and understands the requirements and conditions.  The undersigned are authorized 
to bind the firm, meets the City’s Qualification Criteria, and includes an officer of the firm.  Thank you for your 
consideration of CSG for this role. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Gene Slater, Chairman 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
gslater@csgadvisors.com  
Ph 415-956-2454 


 
  
 
Scott Smith, Principal 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
ssmith@csgadvisors.com  
Ph 415-613-1717 


 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 2 of 14 


 


FIRM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER.  CSG’s lead contact for this proposed role is Scott Smith, Principal.  
Scott’s contact information is as follows: 
 
Scott Smith 
CSG Advisors Incorporated  
315 Montgomery Street 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
Ph. 415-613-1717 
 
Mr. Smith currently provides general fund municipal advisory services to the Cities of Ontario, Fontana, Corona 
and Riverside (among other Inland Empire clients).  He is also municipal advisor to nearby Temescal Valley 
Water District.  
 
FIRM PRACTICE.  BROAD PUBLIC FINANCE EXPERTISE.  Since 1982, CSG has provided a wide range 
of financial advisory, program design, and real estate services to cities, counties, states, specialized public 
agencies (such as housing authorities and redevelopment agencies) and 501(c)(3) non-profit corporations.  CSG 
specializes in financing structures backed by real estate assets and revenues, with broad and deep national 
experience in: 
 


• Land District financing (CFD’s)  • Lease revenue bonds and certificates of participation 
• Tax increment financing; • General obligation bonds 
• Utility & Special Revenue bonds • Conduit financings 


 
CSG acts solely as an independent municipal advisor and is a registered “municipal advisor” by the SEC and 
MSRB.  Public finance is the firm’s exclusive line of business, and public agencies are our primary clients.  We 
do not represent bond underwriters, for-profit developers or credit enhancers.  CSG does not underwrite bonds or 
any other financial securities and has no relationship with broker-dealer firms.  The firm is owned by a group of 
its employees.  We have no other formal or informal fee or other compensation arrangements with other firms.   
 
CSG is committed to the highest standards of professional ethics including those required or otherwise advised by 
the SEC or MSRB.  We are Independent Registered Municipal Advisors (IRMA) with the SEC and MSRB.  
CSG’s MSRB Number is K0547, our SEC number is 867-00266.  We have been registered as such since the 
implementation of the MA Rule in 2014.  All senior professionals currently serving clients for CSG have passed 
the License 50 test.   
 
CSG certifies there are no pending investigations of the firm or enforcement or disciplinary actions taken within 
the past three years by the SEC, FINRA, MSRB or other regulatory bodies.  Further in compliance with G-42 
Disclosure Requirement, CSG does not have any legal events and disciplinary history on its Form MA and Form 
MA-I, which includes information about any criminal actions, regulatory actions, investigations, terminations, 
judgments, liens, civil judicial actions, customer complaints, arbitrations and civil litigation.  The City may 
electronically access CSG’s the most recent Form MA and each most recent Form MA-I filed with the SEC at the 
following website: www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html.  There have been no material changes 
to a legal or disciplinary event disclosure on any Form MA or Form MA-I filed with the SEC.  CSG engages 
Alternative Regulatory Solutions, LLC as our full-time Compliance Officer to ensure our compliance with 
existing rules and new rules currently being implemented by MSRB including: 


• G-3 – Profession Qualifications 
• G-17 – Fair Dealings 
• G-20 – Gifts & Gratuities 


• G-37 – Political Contributions & Prohibitions 
• G-42 – Duties & Disclosure of Conflict of Interest 
• G-44 – Supervisory Infrastructure 
 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 3 of 14 


 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
CSG considers each financing or work assignment (say, where the objective does not relate specifically to a 
financial transaction) in terms of the public agency’s broader goals and objectives.  In some cases, we have found, 
a public agency may not have realized that a given financial undertaking could have broader implications for 
policy-making.  As relates to any financial transaction, the follow list of services may apply: 
 
Before the Transaction Begins 
• Issuer and Staff Objectives/Debt policies.  We begin each assignment by working to understand the 


objectives of public agency and its staff, including development, programmatic, budgetary, and 
administrative objectives.  Our goal is to represent the City, not the transaction. We have helped establish 
detailed debt issuance policies for many issuers, addressing concerns relating to rating requirements, 
subordinate bonds, refunding procedures, etc., to help make sure that each individual financing serves our 
public client’s long-term goals.   


• Staff Training.  In some cases, there has been staff turnover or certain staff lack experience with a particular 
financing approach.  CSG has designed and conducted training sessions for a variety of types of obligations, 
alternative bond structures, and specialized presentation materials. We also develop presentations materials 
on types of public financings, best practice policies, current public finance issues, or whatever a particular 
client needs.  The cost of these services can either be included in our fixed fee or provided as an additional 
service depending on context and agreement with City staff.   


• Refunding or Bond Sizing Analysis.  CSG has provided complex refunding analysis to clients and also 
reviewed refunding proposals submitted to its issuer clients by underwriters.  Often underwriters may not be 
familiar with the issuer objectives or internal constraints.  CSG helps the City determine whether a refunding 
proposal or opportunity makes sense to pursue and/or fits with its broader objectives or circumstances.  Our 
technical analysis may take into account the City’s whole debt profile and not just an individual financing 
where appropriate. 


• Developer Negotiation/Project Feasibility.  For land-district financing, CSG often acts as the first line of 
engagement with developers or their consultants with regard to CFD or multifamily financings.  For some 
clients, this process is straight forward in terms of meeting the issuer’s Local Goals and Policies or conduit 
issuer policies. Increasingly, however, CSG has assisted clients in negotiating facility or services 
enhancements or other public benefits as related to the use of such financing tools. 


Transaction Execution 
• Developing an Effective Finance Team.  CSG often provides advice to clients in the selection of other finance 


professionals including bond and disclosure counsel, investment bankers, revenue consultants and other 
specialized participants to ensure qualified and effective execution of individual financings.  We have 
prepared RFP’s and run selection processes for issuer counsel, bond counsel, disclosure counsel, investment 
bankers, trustees and fiscal and other feasibility consultants.  Given our broad experience, we try to match 
particular lawyers and underwriters that have particular strengths in one financing area to a particular 
financing of the public agency client to ensure that the City gets the best support in achieving its financing 
objective. 


• Manage the Transaction.  Based on feedback we receive from other financing professional, CSG provides 
more active management of the financing process and the team than most other financial advisory firms.  
Among the parts of the execution phase we manage actively: 
— Setting the Schedule.  We make sure all individuals on the finance team are aware of key dates to provide 


key documents, meet agenda deadlines, organize and participate in team meetings and conference calls. 
— Setting agendas.  We make sure there is an agenda for each meeting or conference call so that key issues 


are not missed and finance team expectations are met. 
— Maintain distribution list.  We ensure all parties to the transaction receive key documents to fulfill their 


role. 
— Manage the Team.  We often refer to ourselves as the chief ankle-biter to ensure work is timely prepared 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 4 of 14 


 


and at the needed level of service and quality. 
— City as Key Decision Maker.  A key issue for us at CSG is to be sure that the City staff is presented with 


alternatives on key policy decisions and provided with the necessary information to choose among such 
alternatives, including pros and cons (or costs and benefits), and recommendations from appropriate 
parties. 


• Structuring.  We carefully analyze the proposed financing structure to insure the most cost effective and 
revenue efficient borrowing.  We also work with the finance team to develop alternative approaches, where 
appropriate, for the public agency to consider. Structuring considerations may include:  yield curve shape, 
reinvestment rates, budgetary constraints, available revenues and project area plan limitations (from original 
areas to added project sub-areas) and dealing with the revenue constraints from previous bond issues.   We 
use DBC software to assist in structuring and refunding analysis.  Other elements of structuring are listed 
below. 


• Private Placements.  In very recent years for shorter term obligations, certain banks and financial institutions 
have become increasingly competitive in provided direct loans to municipalities which a financially more 
economic than traditional public financing.  We have assisted in developing solicitations, presenting the 
credit, negotiating terms or otherwise evaluating such approaches.  Key aspects of such an approach may 
include reduced time for execution, better financing terms or rate, reduced issuance or reserve fund costs.  


• Rating Agency and Bond Insurance Contacts.  CSG’s regular contact with each of the major rating agencies 
and bond insurers allows us insight into understanding their standards and concerns.   In turn, this experience 
helps us achieve optimal pricing and to negotiate favorable covenants for issuers. 


• Credit Enhancement.  We bring in-depth experience with a wide variety of credit enhancements, having 
worked on bond issues secured by more than 45 guarantors, including all of the major bond insurers and 
major financial institutions to assist in obtaining the most cost-effective credit enhancement.  


• Linking Bonds with Other Funding Sources.  CSG has unprecedented expertise in linking bonds with other 
funding sources to enhance project feasibility.  We have worked on bond financed projects variously 
leveraged with general fund dollars, utility revenues, foundation grants and guarantees, Mello-Roos pledges, 
CDBG, HOME, low-income housing and historic tax credits, bank loans, HOPE VI grants, developer equity, 
HCD loans, FHLB assistance and housing set-aside revenues. 


• Taxable v. Tax-Exempt Analysis.  CSG has worked with many issuers, and their tax counsels to analyze 
projects for which taxable bonds seem necessary.  By working carefully to understand the issuer’s goal with 
respect to a project we have often been able to suggest approaches that keep borrowings tax exempt at lower 
cost.  Our goal is always to maximize flexibility while trying to minimize costs.   


• Document Review.  Experience reviewing documents for hundreds of transactions helps us provide 
meaningful commentary and helps the issuer to avoid problems encountered elsewhere.   


• Rating Agency Presentation.  CSG can provide a template to cover major elements of the rating agency 
presentation so that the public agency client is prepared to respond to questions and issues that are relevant 
and important to the rating agency analysts. Based on our experience, we can anticipate what agency analysts 
are especially concerned about for a given credit to be sure both the client and the reference materials are 
developed to anticipate and respond to their concerns. In this way, the client is not put on the defensive, and 
gives the analysts the sense that the client is on top of and proactive with regard to issues and problems that 
they are confronted with.  CSG also helps the public agency prepare cash flows that better demonstrate both 
the agency’s cash position, and revenues relative to expenses, so that we ensure that rating analysts do not 
attempt to gleam such information from the agency’s financial statements in a misleading or erroneous way. 


• Public Agency Presentation.  CSG often is requested to make presentations to debt advisory committees 
(made up of key staff and/or elected leaders), legislatives boards or councils, and other public forums.   


• Selling the Bonds.  CSG brings together a combination of resources to evaluate and understand bond pricing, 
market timing, basis for competitive vs. negotiated sales, marketing, and pricing of the bonds.  These include 
Thompson’s TM3 service, Bloomberg, work for other issuers and regular contact with the underwriting 
desks of many investment banks.    







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 5 of 14 


 


After the Bond Sale 
• No Cost Follow Up.  CSG is also available for follow-up work with public agency staff and bond trustees, 


upon request, to better understand and manage outstanding debt and to assure compliance with 
indenture/loan/lease document, continuing disclosure, arbitrage, rebate and investment requirements.  We do 
not charge for this work unless there are extraordinary circumstances – like potential need for work-out or to 
deal with amendments or consents to change bond terms. 


 
General Fund Lease / Utility Revenue / General Obligation Financings 


 
Since 1982, CSG has assisted cities, counties and other public agencies with lease, project revenue and general 
obligation bond financings or financial strategies involving a vast array of public facilities and economic 
development, including:   
 


• Airports; 
• Stadiums and sports arenas; 
• Government office buildings ranging from 


multi-story high rise (as much as 1 million 
sf) to single-story expansion; 


• Large-scale and small-scale regional 
infrastructure, including roads, freeway 
interchanges, storm drain facilities, etc.; 


• Public utilities, like water and sewer; 
• Regional and local parks; 


• School facilities and administrative 
offices; 


• Parking garages and surface lot 
improvements; 


• Zoos, soccer complexes, aquariums, 
museums and other cultural facilities; 


• Port facilities; 
• Multi-family and single-family housing; 
• Land assembly; and  
• Restructuring existing debt. 


 
CSG’s approach in developing and executing such financing techniques depends on the goals and objectives, and 
credit and cash flow characteristics of our public agency client. 
 
General Fund Lease and Utility Revenue Financing Approach.  CSG’s approach as financial advisor to local 
California agencies is to develop a comprehensive understanding of a particular agency’s financial condition, 
development and/or financing goals, and its opportunities and constraints.  Our most important concern is to 
affirm that the bond structuring best reflects the agency’s objectives both in the short and long term.  Local 
government finance in California in the post-Proposition 13 era has become extremely complex and fragmented.  
Local agencies need a financial advisory with this broad array of financing experience to help determine the 
broadest available alternatives for the local agency to evaluate and execute.  Helping an agency determine or 
effectively manage its financing alternatives and capacity is multi-faceted and requires a focused effort among 
members of the finance team.  Among the elements that CSG helps local agencies evaluate are: 


• Multi-year cash flow and operating budget needs (historical and projected costs and volatility); 
- Staffing and administrative costs; 
- Operations and maintenance; 
- Capital planning; 
- Retirement and health benefits; 
- Existing debt or other obligations (including restructuring opportunities and constraints). 


• Available revenues (i.e., historical and projected revenues and volatility) including: 
- enterprise revenues (or the creation of enterprise revenues); 
- sales taxes; 
- property taxes; 
- vehicle licensing, and other fees, taxes and charges; 
- special revenue funds which may or may not be carved-out from the general fund to pay for special 


obligations (i.e., sports, entertainment or cultural facilities, parking revenues, etc.). 
 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 6 of 14 


 


• Short- and long-range community and economic development objectives; 
• Alternative funding or financing sources like redevelopment, Mello-Roos, creation of special revenue 


fund, affiliated special districts, state revolving loan programs or private developer contributions (or 
whether such funding sources can be created and reimburse the general fund at a later date); 


• Alternative lending sources, such as the State (and its affiliates), public markets and private placements; 
• Trends in state and federal budget and law; 
• Ability to fund projects through the creation of a special ordinance (e.g., a Charter city); 
• Ability to levy new fees, taxes or establish new general obligation; 
• Manner in which public facilities will be constructed or acquired (e.g., will the local agency construct the 


project, acquire existing facilities, or pay for design-build?); 
• What are the local agency’s tolerance for risk, underlying credit rating objectives, credit enhancement or 


other financial objectives?  What are the potential impacts on the general fund, or on rate or tax payers? 
• Are there important political or other factors that affect the financing (or potential alternatives)? 


 
General Fund Lease & Utility Financing – Case Studies of Our Work.  The following are case studies in which 
Scott Smith served as lead advisor. 
 
City of Riverside $35 million 2019 Lease Revenue Bonds (Main Library Project).  In 2019, CSG assisted the 
City of Riverside with a financing that raised $40 million for the City to fund its new Main Library facility.  The 
City of Riverside has a considerable debt profile relative to its general fund.  Many of the City’s most essential 
assets are encumbered in lease financings.  In order to save the City approximately $1.8 million in capitalized 
interest, CSG worked with City staff to audit insured values and encumbrances of all City assets and outstanding 
general fund debt.  CSG found that there was additional financing capacity with respect to certain 2008 lease 
revenue bonds issued by the City which, if the City added one or two unencumbered assets to the lease pool, 
could allow the City to utilize an asset transfer structure and eliminate the need to capitalize interest during the 
construction period for the library.  Because one of the assets contained in the 2008 lease pool was the City Hall 
(a highly essential asset), CSG new that the additional assets did not need to be as essential to still meet S&P 
rating criteria.  We added a City corporate yard (which contained valuable buildings and assets) and a City park 
facility.  We added a springing feature in which the corporate yard and the City park could be released from the 
lease financing upon completion and occupancy of the Library.  The 2019 Bonds were structured with an 18 year 
maturity to match the term of the City’s then recent implementation of Measure Z, a 1% transaction and use tax. 
 
Ontario International Airport Authority – Transfer of ONT from the City of Los Angeles to the OIAA and 
issuance of 2016 and 2021 Airport Revenue Bonds.  In November 2016, CSG assisted the City of Ontario in its 
work in transferring the Ontario International Airport to the Ontario International Airport Authority (the OIAA) 
from the City of Los Angeles’s LA World Airports JPA (LAWA).  The City of Ontario was the primary party in 
negotiating the transfer even though the OIAA is a joint powers authority between the City and the County of San 
Bernardino. Among the tasks CSG completed as part of the transfer was to engage and manage a financial 
feasibility consultant to complete a cash flow model to demonstrate the financial capability of the Airport to the 
Federal Aviation Administration (which had to approve the transfer); provide advice regarding alternative 
financing approaches with regard to paying off the transfer price to LAWA; and managing a bond financing 
which needed to close upon the date of transfer.  The Ontario Airport had outstanding bonds of approximately $60 
million.  Upon the date of transfer, these bonds had to be refunded out of the LAWA authority and into the new 
OIAA authority simultaneously with transfer of the real property and with FAA granting airport sponsor authority 
to the OIAA.  As the FAA wanted the bond rating as a condition of transfer, CSG worked with the rating agencies 
to provide an indicator rating in order to keep our transaction on schedule.  Finally, and most importantly, to 
ensure an orderly close of all moving parts of the airport transfer, CSG developed and drafted a closing day script 
that provided minute-by-minute actions, monetary transfers, and authorizations needed to complete the transfer.  
This was especially important because the following day to celebrate the transfer, the OIAA had scheduled an 
event commemorating the completion of the transfer attended by Senator Diane Feinstein, FAA Administrator 
Michael Huerta, LA Mayor Eric Garcetti and the regional congressional representatives among other dignitaries.  







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 7 of 14 


 


Since the 2016 transfer, CSG assisted the Authority on the issuance of a Bond Anticipation Note financing of $34 
million.  On March 31, 2021 we priced a $103 million issuance for the Authority, which included a final payoff to 
LAWA, payoff of the BAN and another $50 million of new project funding. 
 
City of Corona – Sewer and Water Revenue Bond Refunding 2012 & 2013 Public Utility Authority Revenue 
Bonds.  In 2003 and 2005, prior to CSG’s engagement with the City, the City of Corona issued $97 million Public 
Utility Authority bonds, which financed water, sewer and electrical utility improvements.  The bulk of the 
financing paid for an electric power plant so the City could effectively become a primary electric utility provider 
for the City’s residents.  However, in order to credit enhance the electric utility start-up, the City needed a triple-
barreled pledge of all the utility revenues to the Utility Authority Bonds.  There were however several underlying 
installment purchase agreements which related to each particular utility as the primary source of revenue to pay 
the corresponding obligation.  After issuance of the bonds, the City determined to sell the electric power plant to 
the City of Riverside.  Riverside agreed to pay the debt service attributable to the power plant and then pay off the 
bonds at the time of their first initial call date.  In the run up to the call dates, CSG prepared a spreadsheet model 
to parse out which portion of debt service is attributable to each utility and the relative economics of refunding 
such debt.  In 2012, the City issued $36 million of Water Revenue Bonds (the City monetized the savings and 
slightly extended the term to raise some new money) and in 2013 issued $21 million of Sewer Revenue Bonds 
(the City used the same approach to issue a small amount of new money), to take out the prior debt attributable to 
each utility enterprise fund.  The 2013 issue was completed in tandem with Riverside’s issuance to complete their 
purchase of the power plant.  Riverside’s finance team used CSG’s spreadsheet model to structure their portion of 
the refunding.  CSG’s role then was to determine the allocations, help develop a refinancing strategy, help 
develop new utility revenue pledges from each utility enterprise, assist in developing the credit presentations as 
stand-alone credits, and help manage the concurrent Corona / Riverside refinancings (CSG is now a financial 
advisor to Riverside on some types of financings, but not currently to their public utility agency.)  The total 
present value savings of the water and sewer refundings was $8.1 million, with $16.2 million raised to fund new 
projects without increasing annual debt service for either utility.  CSG also provided an analysis to staff that 
during the time of issuance of the water/sewer bonds, California utility bond issuers paid underwriting fees on 
average of $6.19/$1,000 of bonds issued, while the City paid approximately $3.30/$1,000 of bonds issued (a 47% 
savings in underwriting fees on average). 
 
City of Anaheim – 2010 $20 million Private Placement Lease Revenue Note and Convention Center Expansion 
Plan.  In 2010, CSG was asked to develop a strategy for expanding the City’s convention center.  As part of this 
undertaking, CSG assisted the City with the implementation of a Tourism Improvement District (TID) which is a 
special assessment that will act like an additional tourist occupancy tax for hotels in the City’s Resort Area.  The 
TID was intended to generate up to $9 million in annual revenue and free up other obligated revenues of the City, 
which it would use to finance the convention center expansion.  CSG developed a financing strategy for the 
convention center expansion which included restructuring certain outstanding lease revenue bonds and using $6 
million per year of newly freed up non-obligated revenue.  The plan would be for City lease payments to remain 
the same as the current debt profile excepting the new non-obligated revenues, with the goal of raising 
approximating $180 million of net proceeds.  At the end of 2010, we assisted the City in obtaining a loan from 
Wells Fargo Bank (through a competitive term sheet bid approach) for $20 million to complete certain 
improvements around the Convention Center and pay initial costs of design of the new expansion.  The loan was a 
fixed rate of less than 2% with a four-year term, to be taken out with the ultimate expansion financing. 
 


Land Secured (CFD’s) Bond Financing 
 
CSG has assisted many public agencies in executing public financings or real estate negotiations related to the 
implementation of CFD and land district financings. Our firm has assisted cities, counties and special districts 
with bond financings or financial strategies using land district financing on a variety of approaches to help our 
clients meet their development objectives, including: 
 
 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 8 of 14 


 


• Mitigate regional transportation needs (e.g., freeway interchange design and construction); 
• Balance needs of local agencies and/or schools with other community infrastructure; 
• Protect special tax or assessment levy capacity for ongoing operations and maintenance costs; 
• Create tax structures that promote or protect particular land uses classes (e.g., office and commercial 


uses); 
• Fund major off-site improvements for large master-planned communities or mixed-use developments; 
• Bridge funds for public improvements until other revenues are generated; 
• Require additional credit enhancement in appropriate circumstances; and 
• Resolve defaults or troubled districts; or addresses changes in land uses. 


 
Land District Feasibility.  Our approach in developing and executing such financing techniques depends on the 
goals of the local agency and the characteristics and economics of the proposed development. We regularly 
consult with public agencies regarding the use of land-based financings to develop and improve infrastructure in 
residential, industrial, and commercial areas; restructure existing districts in distress; and refund or restructure 
districts to capture debt service savings for property owners or for additional public improvements.  For land 
district financings, we act in the public agency’s interest to ensure that: 
 


• developer experience is appropriate for the use of this financing vehicle; 
• proper due diligence is carried out with respect to the development plan; 
• the financing meets the public agency’s CFD and/or development and financing objectives;   
• this financing is within the policies and guidelines of the issuer, State law, and CDIAC guidelines; and 
• the tax and debt financing structure and mitigation measures related to credit risks are appropriate. 


 
Providing Strategic Advice.  Our particular strength in the application of land district financing is our ability to 
offer strategic advice.  For many of our clients, land district financing is underutilized as an economic and 
community development tool.  We help our clients to see this tool not only as a conduit for developers to pass on 
costs to end users, but also a way to finance a community need.  In California, CSG has participated in developer 
negotiations with Brookfield, GGP Partners, Forest City, Lennar, Majestic Realty, Lewis Operating Co., SunCal, 
Catellus/ProLogis, Ryland, and other national developers in implementing land district and other public financing 
mechanisms to fulfill issuer and developer obligations. 
 
Timing of Development and Construction of Public Improvements.  CFD formation proceedings can often take a 
long time due to factors out of control of the finance team.  Market factors, development entitlements, changing 
developer and public agency goals and objectives, and procedural requirements of the Mello-Roos Act all 
contribute to the potential length of this process.  We believe that public agencies should look at three specific 
factors in developing realistic CFD formation timelines: 
 


(1) When will the project be fully entitled with the first phase of development completed and occupied?  
What are the significant factors (market or otherwise) affecting this expected timeline? 


(2) When will the public improvements financed from the CFD bonds be completed and ready to be 
transferred?  If public improvements will not be completed until well into development, does it make 
sense to delay formation (to confirm an appropriate tax structure) or the bond sale (to ensure a stronger 
credit)? 


(3) What market or other factors exist or may exist, out of control of the public agency, which could impact 
the time between formation and bond issuance?  Should formation be delayed or can you otherwise 
respond to such uncertainties? 


 
Value-to-Lien Analysis.  The key credit measurement of CFD financing is the value-to-lien analysis.  This is 
because the likelihood that a landowner will continue to pay their special taxes is measured by how much more 
valuable the property is relative to the CFD (and other direct tax) liens being placed on the property.   In the 
course of developing a CFD financing plan, we consider how the value-to-lien may be measured while the 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 9 of 14 


 


properties within the CFD are being developed, how much debt is proposed to be issued, and how the special tax 
may be apportioned among parcels within the CFD.  In addition, valuing the leasehold interests will add another 
layer of complexity.  For residential districts, we are concerned with the burden of the tax imposed on 
homeowners and the amount CFD debt eligible to be financed.  For non-residential districts, we are much more 
concerned with the value of the property on a per-parcel basis, and the volatility of such value in an undeveloped, 
completed but unoccupied, or occupied basis. 
 
Mello-Roos Financing – Recent Case Studies of Our Work.  The following are additional examples of our work. 
 
Romoland School District (Riverside County) – Heritage Lake Master Plan CFD Special Tax Bonds.  For the 
Romoland School District, we negotiated a public financing plan that included over $150 million in eligible 
public improvements, and acquisition and construction of two school sites with Standard Pacific Homes.  As 
development proceeded, the District had decided to convert its school facilities from K-8 to K-5 and middle 
school platform.  We helped the District complete a strategic plan for its future facilities needs, and renegotiated 
our existing agreement with the developer to develop the second school as the District’s future permanent middle 
school.  The revised agreement preserved an innovative feature that permitted most of the land acquisition cost to 
the District to be financed from subordinated special tax revenues (by sale of a subordinate Note sold back to the 
developer).  To date, there have been five unrated bond issues totaling approximately $90 million and two school 
sites acquired and constructed.  A sixth issue, a $43 million refunding was completed in 2015, in which $4.9 
million in “savings” from the senior bonds was capitalized to pay down the amount due on the subordinate Note.  
Although the portion of the project is fully built out where the 2015 CFD bonds are secured by special taxes, the 
value-to-lien ration remains too low to garner an investment grade rating.  Bonds in the amount of $30 million for 
the final improvement area were issued in 2019, with the final new money issuance of $20 million slated for 2020 
or 2021. 
 
City of Ontario – New Model Colony.  Beginning in the early 2000’s, CSG began assisting the City of Ontario in 
developing a strategy for funding City services, maintenance and approximately $500 million of public 
infrastructure with CFD bonds and taxes for the initial development of the New Model Colony (now known as 
Ontario Ranch), which consisted of approximately 8,000 acres newly annexed to the City.  This area was formerly 
an agricultural preserve (primarily dairy land) that is now available and planned under the City’s general plan 
primarily for residential development and today is known as Ontario Ranch.  The initial portion of the annexation 
area to be developed relates to approximately 12,000 planned homes on land controlled by several national 
homebuilders and developers (Lewis, Richland, Brookfield, and others).  These landowners created a consortium 
known as the NMC Builders LLC, which through a construction agreement with the City will be responsible for 
constructing much of the public infrastructure for the region. Individual members of the NMC Builders will 
provide contributions to the LLC that builds the infrastructure, and a portion of this contribution will be 
reimbursed from CFD bond proceeds.  CSG has assisted with staff training regarding the use of Mello-Roos 
financing; developing an RFP/RFQ and evaluating responses from needed finance team members, including bond 
counsel; assisted with establishing local goals and policies for Mello-Roos financing in the NMC; assisted the 
City with negotiations for a master funding agreement for the public facilities financing (which is still pending).  
To date, approximately twenty-seven CFD’s have been formed or initiated and ten CFD bond series have been 
issued to date. 
 
CFD Financing for Services.  CSG has helped a number of our clients develop a strategy to implement city-wide 
services CFDs related to the fiscal impacts of new development.  Under the Mello-Roos Act, cities can create 
services CFDs to fund municipal operations, including ongoing maintenance of capital improvements, drainage 
systems, etc., and municipal services such as fire and police, so long as such services do not supplant services 
already being provided.  We advise cities to develop such programs ahead of builders making proposals to issue 
CFD bonds to finance capital improvements so as to prioritize limited special tax levy capacity of homeowners 
for City fiscal costs over developer improvement costs.  Service CFDs cannot be used to issue bonds, and such 
taxes may remain in perpetuity.  We have helped cities including Hayward, Fontana, Ontario, Escondido, Corona 
and recently LA County to consider and/or implement such programs. 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 10 of 14 


 


Conduit Financings 
 
CSG is uniquely qualified to assist local agencies in utilizing conduit financing for economic development.  CSG 
has developed specialized economic & financing models, credit presentations, evaluations, policy approaches and 
other work to implement programs and financings.  This work can be highly varied depending on the nature of the 
project, the credit, the type of borrower or lender, and the objectives of the public agency serving as the conduit.   
 
CSG and its predecessors firms have served as financial advisor on over 3,300 housing financings totaling $85 
billion throughout the United States.  CSG also assists in the design and implementation of public-private real 
estate transactions, local government programs, asset management and work-outs and negotiation and structuring 
of low-income housing tax credits.  
 
CSG is a leader in financial advising to housing bond issuers. Since 1982, we have structured more housing issues 
than the next four leading firms for each year combined.  In our work, we have seen nearly every combination of 
financing sources and challenges and apply that knowledge to our current tasks.  We serve as housing municipal 
advisors to many California issuers, including the County of Los Angeles (including the Southern California 
Home Financing Authority), the City of Los Angeles, the City San Diego Housing Commission, the City of Santa 
Ana, and others.  For the City of Los Angeles and County of Los Angeles, taken together, we have served as 
advisors on over 300 multifamily and single transactions totaling over $4 billion. 
 
Samples of our work on conduit issues include the following.   
 
City & County of San Francisco (Transbay 8) Housing Bonds.  In 2016, CSG served as financial advisor to the 
City on the Transbay 8 transaction.  Transbay 8 is a large mixed use housing development consisting of a 1) high-
rise tower with 116 market-rate condominium, 280 market-rate rental units and 70 affordable (50% AMI) units; 
and 2) a separate “mid-rise” building of 80 affordable (50% AMI) units.  Total development costs are 
approximately $560M.  The debt financing consisted of, for the tower: public sale of $172M exempt bonds in two 
series and $68M of taxable bonds in two series, all secured by a letter of credit from Bank of China; and a private 
placement of $16M tax-exempt bonds purchased by Citibank.  Debt financing for the mid-rise included $19.2M 
of tax-exempt bonds privately purchased by Wells Fargo.  In addition to the fundamental complexity of six series 
of bonds, public sale and private placements, two physical structures and separate tax plans, the transaction was 
further complicated by the need to negotiate intercreditor provisions that reflected the fundamental interests of the 
bondholders and the City.  This circumstance became evident as the lender for the condominium portion of the 
tower, Wells Fargo (whose financial interest in the tower was significantly less than Bank of China), desired 
complete control of remedies in the event of a wrongful dishonor by Bank of China.  CSG spearheaded the 
negotiation of the intercreditor provisions to fundamentally protect the interest of the City and the bondholders. 
 
County of Alameda – Social Services Agency.  In 2011, CSG assisted the County in negotiating the purchase of a 
100,000 sf office building currently subject to a 23-year lease with underlying conduit lease revenue bonds of 
approximately $50 million issued by the California State Infrastructure Bank.  The building is currently owned by 
a non-profit organization responsible for owning and operating the building, while the bondholder security relates 
to the County’s lease agreement for the term of the bonds.  As part of the work assignment, CSG developed a 
financial model that looked at operating, lease and purchase costs under scenarios where the County continued to 
lease or otherwise purchased the property.  The work assignment also involved complicated discussions with 
County, State and Federal authorities over costs eligible for reimbursement because of the County’s role in 
delivering social services at the site.  Finally, CSG assisted with discussions with the private owners of the 
property regarding possible terms of purchase.  
 
California Infrastructure Bank – 2005, 2011, 2019 issuances for Gladstone Institutes.  CSG served as financial 
advisor for one of the first developments within Mission Bay in San Francisco, the $145 million J. David 
Gladstone Institutes research facility.  The original bonds were issued by the State Infrastructure Bank to fund a 
state-of-the-art biomedical research facility with approximately 190,000 sq. ft. of floor space.  CSG’s role was to 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 11 of 14 


 


assist in lengthy negotiations with bond insurance and rating agency analysts to negotiate a bond pledge and 
underlying bond security that related to the charitable trust’s vast real estate and stock portfolio, but also its 
extensive on-going funding for research by the National Institute for Health.  These bonds were subsequently 
restructured in 2011 in part to capture economic savings and in part to refinance with taxable debt to allow for 
partial private use (as the Institutes had been actively recruiting public-private ventures in a portion of the 
project).  In 2019, the Institutes refunded the 2011 bonds as all taxable and borrowed an additional $60 million. 
 
STAFF QUALIFICATIONS 
 
CSG proposes to serve the City of Wildomar with Scott Smith, Principal, as the lead day-to-day contact.  He 
would be assisted by Gene Slater, Chairman, on an as-needed basis.  He is supported by an administrative 
assistant and a vice president or analyst on an ad hoc basis as-needed.  Mr. Smith and Mr. Slater each have more 
that 20 years’ experience serving as municipal advisors and have a deep and broad array of expertise. Brief 
resumes for each are provided as follows. 
 
SCOTT SMITH, PRINCIPAL, LEAD CONTACT (SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE) 
 
Mr. Smith joined CSG in June 1998.  Mr. Smith provides a personal transaction list for financing 
transactions from the beginning of 2016 as Attachment A.  Since coming to CSG, Mr. Smith has assisted in 
the structuring of over $4 billion in public agency issued bonds primarily related to Mello-Roos, general-fund 
lease revenue, enterprise, general obligation, and tax allocations revenue bonds in California.  
 
Mr. Smith’s public financing practice is significant and varied. He has assisted with implementing over $1.5 
billion in tax allocation bond financings in California and helped develop tax increment financing strategies in 
Washington DC around the Anacostia Waterfront.  He has recently helped develop major utility financing 
programs in Oceanside, Corona and Ontario; and has implemented major lease revenue financing strategies for 
San Francisco, Alameda County, Ontario, Anaheim, Tracy, Fontana, and other cities in California.   For Orange 
County, he evaluated the most efficient method for Orange County to defease bankruptcy-related debt from $267 
million in litigation settlement proceeds.  For the District of Columbia, he provided financial capacity analysis for 
the Anacostia Waterfront Initiative, including multiple redevelopment project areas planned around or near the 
new Washington Nationals baseball stadium.  This work has involved determining debt capacity, timing, and 
layering of land district, tax increment, and special revenue financings to fund public improvements along the 
waterfront corridor, developer proposals of the stadium financing, and short-term bridge-financing mechanisms 
until tax increment is generated.  For the County of Alameda, he conducted a financial analysis for the acquisition 
of a $50 million building in downtown Oakland that housed the County’s social services agency (this involved a 
complicated review of federal and state accounting rules for reimbursements for lease and operating costs).  He 
assisted LA County in developing policies and procedures to award over $300 million of Recovery Zone Facility 
and Economic Development Bond allocation available under the ARRA.  In 2016, he assisted the Ontario 
International Airport Authority issue bonds and implement transfer of the Ontario International Airport from the 
City of Los Angeles.  


As relates to CFD financing, Scott Smith of CSG has worked on over 80 CFD bond financings totaling over $1 
billion.  He has helped resolve complicated defaulted Mello-Roos Bond transactions from the early 1990’s in 
Fontana and the City of Ione (where the City was under a Cease and Desist Order from the SEC).  He has helped 
implement major land district financing strategies in Los Angeles, San Francisco, Fremont, Tracy, Corona, 
Riverside County, San Bernardino County, Oceanside, Fontana, Alameda County, and Washington DC.  He is 
currently assisting the City of Ontario with CFD financing in the New Model Colony annexation area, where 
12,000 new homes are being developed.  Since development began, CSG has assisted in the formation of 27 
CFDs to finance public infrastructure or pay for on-going City services. 


Mr. Smith serves his community as board member of Berkeley, CA-based Satellite Affordable Housing 
Associates, Inc., a non-profit 501(c)(3) affordable housing owner, manager and developer of over 4,000 units 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 12 of 14 


 


around the Bay Area. He has a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from Pepperdine University, and a 
Master’s in Public Policy from the University of California, Berkeley.  He also holds a Series 50 license as a 
registered Municipal Advisor with the SEC/MSRB. 
 
GENE SLATER, CHAIRMAN (SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE) 
 
Gene Slater, Chairman of CSG Advisors, has more than 25 years of experience structuring financings, 
development programs, and real estate transactions for public agencies throughout the United States.  Gene has 
served as financial advisor on more than $24 billion of municipal financings.   
 
In the 1990’s, the Resolution Trust Corporation (RTC) was established to dispose of failed thrift institutions taken 
over by regulators after January 1, 1989.  CSG, with Mr. Slater as lead, was selected by RTC to be its national 
advisor with regard to real estate assets secured by bonds.  In the multifamily area, he has helped structure 
financings for more than 500 projects.  He has structured more than 150 bond issues backed by HUD payments.  
He was selected and served as HUD Central’s national consultant for reviewing complex FHA multifamily 
refunding requests.  For HUD’s OPHI, he served as national expeditor for some of the largest public housing 
redevelopment projects.  Gene has worked on public housing redevelopment efforts and analyses for a wide range 
of housing authorities including for use of capital grant funds, HOPE VI and local resources.  Mr. Slater has 
helped public agencies negotiate and structure major public-private development projects.  For the City of 
Anaheim, he conducted the City’s successful fiscal and financial negotiations for seven years with the Walt 
Disney Company for its second theme park, leading to selection of the Anaheim site, $2 billion of public-private 
development, expansion of the Convention Center, and a financial structure that protected the City from risks of 
the transaction.  He helped design a major public-private partnership to acquire 1,300 units of officer housing 
from the Air Force for low and moderate-income first-time homebuyers and the infrastructure financing for the 
new 10th campus of the University of California.  He also led negotiations of the Washington DC Southwest 
Waterfront mixed-use redevelopment, which involved over $100 million in public improvements. 
 
Gene is a graduate of Columbia University (Summa Cum Laude) and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology 
(Master of City Planning).  He attended the London School of Economics on a special traveling fellowship 
awarded to one student annually by Columbia University.  He received a Loeb Fellowship from Harvard 
University. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
Consulting Work Not Directly Applicable to a Bond Transaction.  CSG will typically agree with City staff, in 
writing, whether particular work would be done hourly or at a negotiated fixed cost.  This typically depends on 
whether on-going consultation of a particular matter will require significant time commitment, technical analysis, 
memorandum, or specialized work product.  In such cases, we typically confirm negotiated cost arrangements 
with City staff in writing with a fee letter containing a scope of work or an agreement that is less formal if deemed 
appropriate by City staff.  In some cases, when a particular financing is pending or expected, compensation for 
such additional work may be paid from bond proceeds, but this is usually determined on a case-by-case basis.  
 
For these services, if applicable, CSG’s hourly fees are as follows: 
 


Title CSG Personnel Hourly Rate 
Chairman Gene Slater $325 
Principal Scott Smith $300 
Vice President As needed $275 
Senior Associate As needed $150 
Administrative As needed $70 


 
Our hourly rates are subject increase of 3% per position each year, beginning January 1, 2022 







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 13 of 14 


 


Bond Transaction Work. CSG would work on a contingent fixed fee schedule for each series of bonds for the 
following types of bond financings once the City has decided on a particular plan of finance.  CGS does not track 
hours for fixed fee assignments and does not charge hourly for work travel (only for reimbursement for expenses).  
CSG does not charge for follow-up administrative support post-bond issuance. The fee schedule below is 
exclusive of expenses.  
 


Financing Type Bond Size Fees* 
Tax Allocation Bonds, 
Utility Revenue, Lease 
Revenue Bonds and 
Certificates of 
Participation: 


Under $10 million 
$10 million to under $20 million 
$20 million to under $30 million 
$30 million to under $40million 
$40 million to under $50 million 


Above $50 million 


$22,500 
$28,500 
$34,500 
$39,500 
$42,500 
To be negotiated 


Assessment or 
Community Facility 
Districts: 


Formation of new assessment or community facility 
district (payable at formation): 
 


Plus: by issue size (payable at bond closing):       
 Under $10 million 


$10 million to under $25 million 
$25 million to under $35 million 
$35 million to under $50 million 


Above $50 million 


* Assumes formation is completed within one year 
of initiation of work.  Beyond one year, will 
negotiate additional fees depending on anticipated 
work effort.  This assumes all work to be paid from 
developer deposit. 


 
$10-15,000*  
 
 
$19,500 
$27,500 
$35,500 
$32,500 
To be negotiated 


Competitive Sale Additional $7,500-12,000 if bonds are sold competitively depending on 
bond size and complexity. 


Expenses. CSG would be reimbursed for transportation, lodging (if required), messenger delivery, and document 
production at cost only as applicable.  
 
DISCLOSURE 
 
CSG has no prior or current business or personal relationship with current officials, staff or family members of the 
City of Wildomar.  Mr. Smith and CSG has served as municipal advisor to the City of Fontana for the last twenty 
years.  During that time, Mr. Smith worked with Gary Nordquist, among other City staff members, on City 
financings when he was employed by the City in a client-consultant fiduciary relationship. 
 
EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
 
CSG has had no ex parte communications with City Council or staff outside the procedures of the RFPQ. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
CSG warrants and represents that it presently has no interest and agrees that it will not acquire any interest which 
would present a conflict of interest under California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq., or Sections 87100 et 
seq., during the performance of services under any Agreement awarded. CSG further covenants that it will not 
knowingly employ any person having such an interest in the performance of any Agreement awarded.  







City of Wildomar – Prequalifications to Provide Municipal Advisory Services 
CSG Advisors Incorporated 
Page 14 of 14 


 


REFERENCES 
 
Below are references for Scott Smith and CSG.  CSG has successfully served these clients over many years. 


Karen Schnaider, Finance Director 
City of Tracy  
333 Civic Center Plaza 
Tracy, CA 95376 
Ph. (209) 831-6841 
Karin.Schnaider@cityoftracy.org 
 


Multiple CFD bond financings, refunding of lease 
revenue bonds in 2020, wastewater bonds in 
progress, served for the last four years. 


Kim Sitton, Acting Administrative Services Director 
400 S. Vicentia Avenue 
Corona, CA 92882 
Ph.  (951) 279-3532 
Kim.Sitton@CoronaCA.gov 
 


Multiple CFD bond financing, sewer and water 
utility financings, multiple lease financings and a 
pension obligation bond financing (in progress), 
served for the last nine years. 


Lisa Strong, Administrative Services Director 
City of Fontana 
8353 Sierra Avenue 
Fontana, CA 92335 
Ph. (909) 350-7671 
LStrong@fontana.org 
 


Over $700 million in general fund lease, land-
secured, tax increment and housing financings over a 
twenty-year period 


 
EXCEPTIONS 
 
CSG does not propose exceptions or amendments to the RFPQ or the Bid Documents. 







Page 10 of 16 


APPENDIX A 


BIDDER INFORMATION 


Official Name of Bidder:        
 
Street Address Line 1:        
 
Street Address Line 2:        
 
City:       State:       Zip Code:       
 
Webpage:       
 
Type of Entity / Organizational Structure (check one):  


  Corporation   Joint Venture 


  Limited Liability Partnership   Partnership 


  Limited Liability Corporation   Non-Profit / Church 


  Other:       
 
Jurisdiction of Organization Structure:        
 
Date of Organization Structure:       
 
Federal Tax Identification Number:       
 
 
Primary Contact Information: 
 


Name / Title:       
 
Telephone Number:         
 
E-mail Address:       


 
 
SIGNATURE:   
 
Name and Title of Signer:       
 
Dated this        day of       20      


 


 


CSG Advisors Incorporated


315 Montgomery Street


San Francisco CA 94104


X


1998


Delaware


58-2419370


Scott Smith, Principal


ssmith@csgadvisors.com


(415) 830-8894


Scott Smith, Principal


www.csgadvisors.com


10th August 21


 







Page 11 of 16 


APPENDIX B 


REFERENCES 
 


RFPQ – MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 
 
 
Bidder Name:       


 
Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       
City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       
City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       
City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


CSG Advisors Incorporated


Karen Schnaider Finance DirectorCity of Tracy


333 Civic Center Plaza


Tracy, CA 95376


(209) 831-6841


Karin.Schnaider@cityoftracy.org


Multiple CFD bond financings, refunding of lease revenue bonds in 
2020, wastewater bonds in progress, served for the last four years.


Kim Sitton, Acting Admin. Svcs. DirectorCity of Corona


400 S. Vicentia Avenue


Corona, CA 92882 Kim.Sitton@coronaca.gov


(951) 279-3532


Multiple CFD bond financing, sewer and water utility financings, multiple lease 
financings and beginning work on a pension obligation bond financing, served for 
the last nine years.


City of Fontana Lisa Strong, Admin. Svcs. Director


8353 Sierra Avenue


Fontana, CA 92335


(909) 350-7671


LStrong@fontana.org


Over $700 million in general fund lease, land-secured, tax increment 
and housing financings over a twenty year period







City of Wildomar 


Request for Pre‐Qualifications for  
Municipal Financial Advisor 


 


August 16, 2021 


URBAN FUTURES, INC. 
Public Finance Group 
Public Management Group 


Southern California Office 


17821 E. 17th Street, Suite 245 
Tustin, CA 92780 
Bus: (714) 283‐9334 
Fax: (714) 283‐5465 


Northern California Office 


1470 Maria Lane, Suite 315 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 
Bus: (650) 503‐1500     
Fax: (925) 478‐7697 


Attachment D







                                                   


 


Proposal Contents 
 


5. Introductory Section ................................................................................................................................ 1 


6. Firm Qualifications ................................................................................................................................... 1 


a. Contact Information .................................................................................................................................. 1 


b. Firm Overview ........................................................................................................................................... 1 


c. Municipal Advisory Experience ................................................................................................................. 2 


7. Staff Qualifications ................................................................................................................................... 8 


a. Assigned Team .......................................................................................................................................... 8 


b. Team Resumés .......................................................................................................................................... 9 


8. Compensation ........................................................................................................................................ 11 


9. Disclosure ............................................................................................................................................... 12 


10. Ex Parte Communications .................................................................................................................... 12 


11. Conflict of Interest ................................................................................................................................ 12 


12. References ............................................................................................................................................ 12 


13. Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments ............................................................................................. 13 


Appendix A: Required Forms ................................................................................................................... A‐1 


Appendix B: UFI Transactions List ............................................................................................................. B‐1 


 







 


5. Introductory Section 
 
James R. Riley  
Project Consultant 
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
Email: jriley@cityofwildomar.org  
 


Re: Request for Pre‐Qualifications for Municipal Financial Advisor 


 


Dear Mr. Riley: 


 
Urban Futures, Inc. (UFI) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide municipal financial advisory services 
to the City of Wildomar (the City). We understand that you and the City have immediate priorities that 
require your attention, and our approach as your municipal advisor and fiduciary is to act as an extension 
of staff, allowing you to focus on your priorities while relying on us to help achieve the City’s financing 
goals. 
 
We believe that UFI is best positioned to serve the City comprehensively and efficiently through our two 
divisions—the Public Finance Group and the Public Management Group—that will work synergistically to 
craft solutions for multiple aspects of the City’s finance‐related challenges and opportunities. Hiring our 
firm furnishes the City with a “think tank” of public finance experts to assist the City with debt financings, 
effective management of  its debt program,  informative analysis of financing alternatives for  its Capital 
Improvement Plan,  financial assessments and  forecasting  (including  “what  if”  scenarios  for economic 
shocks and downturns)  to  strengthen and  sustain  the City’s  fiscal health and  resiliency, and  strategic 
financial planning including targeting liabilities to maintain critical service levels. 
 
Comprised  of  financial  advisors  and  consultants  that  are  former  city  finance  directors,  assistant  city 
managers,  city attorneys, public  finance  investment bankers, and  rating agency analysts, UFI brings a 
unique combination of qualifications and resources that ensure value‐added service to the City. 
 
The following is a summary of our distinguishing expertise and services as it relates to bond financings: 
 


 UFI has been a leader in providing financial advisory services since 1972 to over 300 public agencies 
throughout California.   UFI has ranked as the top financial advisory firm in California for the past 
four consecutive years as measured by the number of deals completed.  We are also ranked #1 for 
General Fund Debt, General Obligation Bonds, and in the top‐three for land secured financings. 







                                                   


 


   


 


 As the leading financial advisor in the State, UFI is in the market virtually every week, advising 
on more bond sales than any other firm. In fact, UFI has advised on over $376 million of CFD 
financings for cities since 2016, which is more than any other municipal advisory firm.   We 
have a proven track record of advocating on behalf of our clients (through strong relationships 
with underwriters, bond counsels, rating agencies, and bond insurers) to extract every basis 
point of savings.   
 


 The coverage level we can provide is second to none. We are assigning three senior‐level staff in 
addition to support staff to the City, creating a comprehensive and experienced team with strong 
analytical and modeling skills.  While we respect legacy practices, we never take a “that’s how 
it’s  always  been  done”  approach,  since  we  consider  every  transaction  as  an  opportunity  to 
improve on legal and financing structure and terms. 


 


 UFI has a depth of experience presenting to City Councils and participating in community 
engagement.  For example, with the refinancing of multiple CFD Bonds in the City of Beaumont, 
UFI played a lead role in a series of community meetings to address the concerns of frustrated 
residents and restore their faith in the City. We are committed to making ourselves available to 
meet with the City and its constituents as often as needed.  


 


 UFI seeks to develop comprehensive long‐term solutions. Our firm is structured to seek out the 
most economical public finance solution, regardless of whether that solution involves municipal 
bonds. We help  to develop a decision  framework and models  that  incorporate key variables, 
cost/benefits,  and  policy  considerations  to  evaluate  all  viable  financing  alternatives.  Once  a 
financing alternative has been selected, we assist our clients with implementation.  


 
Working with the City is of highest priority to the firm, and we are committed to dedicating as much of 
the firm’s resources to the City’s assignments as necessary.  
 
Sincerely,            


 
 
 


Michael Busch, Chief Executive Officer 
       
17821 East 17th Street, Suite 245 
Tustin, CA 92780          
Michaelb@urbanfuturesinc.com       
(714) 283‐9334 Office  
(714) 316‐6150 Cell







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


1 


   


6. Firm Qualifications 


a. Contact Information 
Contact information for our Tustin, California headquarters is provided below. 
 


Urban Futures, Inc. 


Michael Busch, Chief Executive Officer 
17821 17th Street, Suite 245 


Tustin, California 92780 
Telephone: 714.283.9334 


Email: michaelb@urbanfuturesinc.com 


 


b. Firm Overview 
Since 1972, UFI has provided municipal advisory services to California cities, counties, special districts, 
schools, community colleges, and non‐profits. UFI is one of the top municipal advisory firms in the State, 
having led more transactions than any other firm over the past four years.  
 
We are registered as an Independent Registered Municipal Advisor (IRMA) with the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board  (MSRB) and the Securities and Exchange Commission  (SEC). We are staffed with 21 
professionals in two California office locations: Tustin (12) and Walnut Creek (9). All our financial advisory 
professionals have passed the MSRB Series 50 Municipal Advisor Representative examination.  
 
UFI  is  a  California‐based,  California‐focused  firm.  What  differentiates  us  from  our  peers  is  the 
comprehensive municipal services that we provide to our clients, making us a “one‐stop shop” for financial 
solutions. Rather than seeking different consultants to address discrete financial  issues on a piecemeal 
basis, clients engage our firm to provide them with services ranging from municipal advisory assignments 
for  issuance of bonds to pension and OPEB modeling.   We can produce an accurate picture of a City’s 
current financial status, a long‐term projection of its financial performance, and a fiscal sustainability plan 
that  includes revenue measures and expense reductions (including management of pension  liabilities).  
We help staff evaluate and  implement various  financing options  for priority projects  (including bonds, 
revolving  lines of credit, and State and Federal  loan programs) and  refinancing opportunities, and we 
provide post‐issuance compliance services.    
 
UFI provides these services through its two main divisions: 


 Public Finance Division supports the issuance of debt including special tax and benefit assessment 
bonds, tax allocation bonds, lease revenue bonds/certificates of participation, water and sewer 
revenue bonds, general obligation bonds, pension obligation bonds, and privately placed loans.  


 Public Management Division1 offers financial health evaluation, financial forecasting, pension & 
OPEB advising, fiscal sustainability planning, and special studies.   


 Analytics  and  Compliance Group1  provides  services  related  to  continuing  disclosure, 
arbitrage rebate, and CDIAC reporting compliance.   


 


 
1 Non‐MA Services 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


2 


   


Our clients have put their trust in UFI over its 49‐year history. In many cases, UFI has been on the leading 
edge of municipal advisory activities and public finance management.  We are the only municipal advisory 
firm  in the nation to  lead a municipality through a chapter 9 bankruptcy having restructured debt and 
pension  obligations  as  well  as  successfully  issued  two  insured  utility  bonds  while  in  bankruptcy.    In 
anticipation of the  impact of growing pension  liabilities on municipal budgets, UFI created the Pension 
Focus Group comprised of municipal agencies, UFI and CalPERS staff.  UFI has been engaged by several 
municipalities  to prepare 10‐year  financial  forecasts with  the goal of charting  the  fiscal course, which 
includes debt management and pension funding strategies. 
 
What Sets us Apart 


Local Experience: As stated above, UFI is a California‐based, California‐focused firm. We will serve 
the City through our Southern California headquarters located in Tustin, California.  Furthermore, 
UFI  is one of the most active municipal advisory firms for CFD financings for cities  in Riverside 


County. Since 2016, we have served as municipal advisor on $376 million of CFD financing for cities in the 
County, more than any other municipal advisory firm. We believe our commitment to Southern California 
cities and our understanding of specific  issues  they  face enables us  to provide value‐added municipal 
advisory services to the City.  


 
Credit  Expertise:  As  a  function  of  being  in  the  market  frequently,  we  have  a  thorough 
understanding of rating agency criteria, and we are up to date on the changing  landscape and 
current trends in the market, as well as how the rating agencies are viewing the impact of COVID‐


19 and federal stimulus funds. We will always advocate for rating upgrades when we believe a case can 
be made. We believe our team has the resources, depth, and knowledge to effectively manage the credit 
rating process on your behalf.  
 


Pricing Execution: The UFI team assigned to the City includes former public finance investment 
bankers  who  are  intimately  familiar  with  the  underwriting  and  pricing  of  municipal 
securities.  UFI closely monitors the municipal markets through our in‐house resources, which 


include a Bloomberg terminal and TM3. We work to ensure the best possible result for our clients (even 
in  the  event  of  a  tough market), without  risk  of  diminishing  investor  participation.  Generally,  our 
approach is to recommend that the underwriter employ an aggressive pricing strategy that targets two 
times oversubscription. In addition to ensuring fair market spreads, UFI will work with the underwriter to 
analyze alternative couponing strategies and call features with the goal of achieving the best terms for 
the City. 


c. Municipal Advisory Experience 
Demonstrated Experience 
Our Public Finance Division is well‐qualified to execute the Scope of Work described in the City’s RFPQ. 
Since January 1, 2019, UFI has assisted California municipal clients  in the completion of over 330 bond 
transactions, making us the #1 municipal advisor serving on more bond transactions in California than 
any other  firm. We are also ranked #1 by number of deals on General Fund Debt, General Obligation 
Bonds, and ranked in the Top 3 on Land‐Secured transactions.  







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


3 


   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Community Facilities Districts  
UFI  consistently  ranks  in  the  top  three  among 
municipal advisors in the State, having executed 
over $808 million of CFD  financings since 2014. 
Furthermore, UFI’s  specific  experience working 
on  initiating  city CFD engagements  in Southern 
California  (as  opposed  to  school  district  CFDs), 
enables  us  to  assist  the  City  with  effectively 
negotiating with developers and avoiding pitfalls. 
Specific to Riverside County, UFI has advised on 
over  $376 million  of  CFD  financings  for  cities 
since  2016,  which  is  more  than  any  other 
municipal advisory firm.  
 
UFI is currently working with the City of Menifee 
on  its  inaugural  bond  sale  for  a  CFD  program 
established  in  2019.  Our  recent  formation 
experience  includes formations for the Cities of 
Fullerton,  Colton,  Beaumont,  Lake  Elsinore 
Alameda and Inglewood. 
 
UFI has  experience working with  various builder  types,  including  national  builders  as well  as master 
builders and merchant builders. Specific to the proposed development being contemplated by the City, 
UFI has extensive experience working with the City’s Special Tax Consultant, Spicer Consulting Group. In 
addition, members of the UFI staff have prior experience working for issuers on CFD financings.  
 
General Fund Lease Financings 
UFI has  extensive  recent  experience  advising on  lease‐backed debt  issuances. We  recently  served  as 
municipal  advisor  for  Lease  Revenue  Bonds/Certificates  of  Participation  for  the  cities  of  Orange, 
Cupertino, Pismo Beach, Los Angeles, San Ramon, Fountain Valley, San Bernardino, Desert Hot Springs, 
Coachella and Lake Elsinore.  We are currently engaged on a Certificate of Participation transaction for 
the City of Desert Hot Springs. Overall, our work with comparable cities in Riverside County positions us 
well to serve on upcoming financings, as needed by The City. 
 
TRIP Program 


UFI’s  Public  Finance  Group  is  the  financial  advisor  for  CSCDA’s  Total  Road 
Improvement Program (TRIP).  TRIP allows cities and counties to leverage a portion 
of their Transportation Sales Tax to finance street and highway maintenance and 
reconstruction projects such as street reconstruction, rehabilitation, resurfacing 


Issuer CFD Formation Total Principal Amount


City of Alameda*  ‐


City of Azusa $50,418,564


City of Beaumont  $203,316,257


City of Calexico $7,000,000


City of Calimesa $27,518,476


City of Coachella  $5,745,000


City of Colton 
City of Desert Hot Springs $1,995,206


City of Fullerton* 
City of Highland $2,300,000


City of Imperial $28,905,000


City of Inglewood 
City of Lake Elsinore  $275,740,000


City of Moorpark $19,625,000


City of Rolling Hills  ‐


City of Upland  $44,450,000


Lake Elsinore USD $22,639,100


Lincoln USD $16,615,000


Rio Elementary School District $88,535,000


Snowline USD $8,930,000


Waugh School District $5,220,000


Total $808,952,602


*Formation work in progress


UFI CFD Formations and Financings since 1/1/2014







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


4 


   


and new construction  in support of economic development activities. The program provides cities and 
counties  with  a  low‐cost,  streamlined  and  flexible  vehicle  to  issue  Certificates  of  Participation.    UFI 
recently  successfully closed a TRIP  financing  for  the Cities of Menifee, Moreno Valley and Desert Hot 
Springs. 
 
Provided  below  are  representative  case  studies,  which  we  believe  underscore  the  results  we  have 
achieved for our clients. 
 


City of Lake Elsinore—Since 2014, UFI has 
provided  Municipal  Advisory  Services  to 
the City of Lake Elsinore on approximately 
$275 million of land secured financings, in 
addition to other assignments for the City 


on Tax Allocation Bonds and lease revenue bonds. Our specific CFD formation experience is detailed in 
the table to the right. 
 
In 2014, UFI evaluated all of the City’s outstanding CFD bonds and determined that there were several 
refinancing  opportunities  that  would  provide  significant  savings.  Specifically,  we  identified  steps  to 
refinance six CFD bonds which could produce savings. As we began to move forward on the refinancing, 
interest rates fell, which enabled UFI to present the City with two additional CFD bonds for inclusion into 
the pool of six, making the total eight CFD bonds to be refinanced into one refunding pool. 
 
Early in the refunding process, UFI inquired as to whether all of the capital facilities which were built within 
the district were  subject  to  the  refinancing. By asking  this very  simple question, we discovered  three 
neighborhood parks which did not get fully built due to the financial impacts from the Great Recession 
and we now had a potential funding source to complete them. As a result, savings generated for each CFD 
were used to either: (1) reduce special taxes paid by existing property owners, or (2) complete unfinished 
projects that were originally approved to be funded from the CFD. 
 
In  order  to  generate  additional  capital  for  unfinished  projects  and  developer  reimbursements,  debt 
payments were extended on two of the Local Obligations.  The extension of debt service for these two 
CFDs  did  not  go  beyond  the  original  CFD  levy  period  authorized  in  the  original  Rate &  Methods  of 
Apportionment which was adopted by City Council at the time the CFDs were originally formed.  The CFD 
bond refinancing program generated over $10.5 million of net present value savings, which is equal  to 
about 10% of the refunded bonds.  Additionally, roughly $7 million was allocated to complete the three 
neighborhood parks.  
 


City  of  Beaumont  –  UFI  has  served  as 
municipal advisor on over $203 million of 
CFD  bonds  for  the  City  of  Beaumont, 
which  includes  services  related  to  the 


formation on six different CFDs as detailed in the table 
to the right. 
 
UFI has a depth of experience presenting to City Councils and participating in community engagement.  
For example, with the refinancing of multiple CFD Bonds in Beaumont, UFI played a lead role in a series 
of community meetings to address the concerns of frustrated residents and restore their faith in the City.  
 


City of Lake Elsinore – CFD Formation Experience 


CFDs: 2015‐4, 2015‐5, 2016‐2, 2018‐1, 2019‐1,  
2019‐2  


Purpose: Capital Facilities 


City of Beaumont – CFD Formation Experience 


CFDs: 2016‐1, 2016‐2, 2016‐3, 2016‐4, 2019‐1 and 
2020‐1 


Purpose: Capital Facilities 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


5 


   


Four town hall meetings were held – May 3, May 6, May 9, and May 10, 2017.  These town hall meetings 
were  advertised  through  the  City’s  normal  channels  and  through  each  of  the  homeowners’ 
associations.  On average, 200‐300 residents attended each town hall meeting.   Each meeting focused on 
a specific quadrant of the City so that the presentation could concentrate on the specific issues for that 
segment of the community.  Information presented at each town hall meeting included an overview of 
the CFD program, description of how special assessments are calculated, which Improvement Areas were 
eligible for refunding, options for tax reductions available to Improvement Areas for which bonds could 
not  be  refinanced,  and  the  projected  savings  for  each  Improvement  Area.   City  staff  and  the  City’s 
consulting team also fielded open questions in a typical town hall format.   
 
Today, the City’s CFD Program is completely restructured and focused on those paying the assessments.  
Several modifications to the City’s CFD Goals and Policies have been made including the removal of annual 
escalators, financing of fees  is no  longer permitted and the CFD’s go through a specific review process 
prior to issuance.  The benefits of the program have resulted in lower yields and spreads.  Additionally, in 
July 2019 the City issued its first rated CFD.  The rating was “A” stable and included a credit enhancement 
through bond insurance which provided a “AA” rating and a surety reserve. 
 


Orange City Public Financing Authority 2020 Lease Revenue Bonds – In 2020, UFI served as 
municipal advisor to the City of Orange on the issuance of $29,930,000 2020 Lease Revenue 
Bonds (LRBs) to fund a new fire station headquarters and other capital improvements.  The 
City has been a client of UFI since 2018; previously we served as municipal advisor on a tax 
allocation bond refinancing for the City’s Successor Agency.  Initially kicked off in January 


2020,  the LRBs  transaction was put on hold due  to  the COVID‐19 pandemic, which severely disrupted 
operations and business in the City of Orange. Throughout March, UFI stayed in communication with the 
City and assisted in evaluating various financing scenarios for the fire station project. In April 2020, after 
a careful evaluation, the City elected to proceed with the fire station financing.  UFI communicated with 
the financing team to restart the process and continue with document preparation and necessary steps 
for a public sale of bonds. 
 
UFI  took  the  lead on developing  the  rating presentation and highlighting  the City’s  financial strengths 
despite  the  impact of COVID‐19.   We highlighted  the City’s historically  robust  local economy, healthy 
liquidity and reliance on property tax revenues, which accounted for a third of general fund revenues. 
Working with the City, we presented various projections of the City’s revenues and noted steps they were 
taking to manage the impact of COVID‐19. S&P assigned a rating of “AA‐“ to the LRBs in June, despite the 
City having not yet adopted an annual budget.  
 
Armed with this top‐notch rating, a strong issuer name, and a favorable interest rate environment, the 
bonds had a very  strong  reception, and  the underwriter was able  to  improve on  the pricing of many 
maturities.   Additionally, UFI worked with the underwriter to structure an eight‐year optional par call, 
which offered the City greater flexibility at a minimal cost.  The financing resulted in a 2.95% TIC for a 30‐
year borrowing and allows the City to complete the fire station financing at an annual debt service level 
within the initial goal targeted by Council.  


 
City  of  Salinas  Certificates  of  Participation,  Series  2018B  (Total  Road 
Improvement Program) – In June 2018, UFI served as the municipal advisor to City 
of Salinas on CSCDA’s issuance of Certificates of Participation (COPs).  The City’s 
finance plan included funding for various street improvement programs intended 
to mitigate  traffic, ensure pedestrian safety, update  intersections, and  facilitate 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


6 


   


growth.   Salinas was  the  first  city  in Monterey County  to  issue COPs backed by  the new  countywide 
Measure X funds passed by voters in 2016. 
 
Salinas ultimately issued $37.5 million COPs which generated more than $40.6 million in project proceeds 
and a 1.64x coverage on Measure X revenues. The City received an A+ rating from S&P and received strong 
bond  insurance and surety bids. Salinas was able to take advantage of the market to  lock  in favorable 
interest rates, enabling the City to complete the projects before further increases in construction prices. 
 
Additionally, as referenced in the Prior Project Descriptions, we are currently working with the City of San 
Ramon on  the  issuance of  Local Transportation Sales Tax Revenue Certificates of Participation  issued 
through the TRIP program. 
 
Approach to Performing the Municipal Advisory Scope of Work 
Every financing undertaken by UFI begins with proper planning and financial due diligence and ends with 
ongoing  monitoring  and  administration.  As  such,  we  believe  that  our  normal  project  planning  and 
implementation process incorporates the Scope of Service outlined in the City’s RFPQ.  Most of the tasks 
can be handled via conference calls, but we are happy to hold in‐person meetings as requested by the 
City.  Additionally, we attend all required City Council and Committee meetings and are available to give 
presentations and to answer questions. 


Activity 1: Preliminary Analysis/Recommendation 
No financing is ever recommended without first conducting a complete assessment of the client’s needs 
and financial constraints. During this period, UFI staff performs the following tasks: 
 


1. Schedule meetings or calls with staff to request all necessary data and discuss the needs and goals 
of the City 


2. Evaluate alternative financing options and present results to the City 
3. Analyze existing outstanding debt to determine parity test requirements, feasibility of refunding 


certain outstanding series of Bonds, and debt affordability 
4. Perform a comprehensive credit analysis to determine the anticipated rating, preferred structure, 


and interest rate scale for the Bonds 
5. Prepare a summary of cost of issuance 
6. Independently structure the financing and present results to the City 


Activity 2: Assemble the Finance Team and Manage the Financing Process 
After an evaluation of financing options/alternatives, should it be determined that financing targets will 
be met through a bond issuance, UFI will begin work on the financing schedule and the implementation 
of the agreed upon financing strategy. The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
 


1) Assist  in the selection of additional service providers: UFI  is knowledgeable of, and has worked 
with, most major firms in the California public finance sector. Should the City wish to go out for 
RFP  for  services  such  as  underwriter,  bond  counsel,  disclosure  counsel,  or  trustee,  we  are 
experienced with managing and assisting staff with the selection process for these services.  


2) Develop  the  financing  timetable: UFI will  coordinate with  staff  to  develop  a  schedule  that  is 
consistent  with  the  City’s  goals,  staff  availability,  financing  timing,  and  existing  City  Council 
meeting schedules.  


3) Monitor the transaction process: A primary role as municipal advisor involves the close monitoring 
of the financing to ensure successful completion. As such, UFI will coordinate all activities of the 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


7 


   


financing  team  and  will  assist  in  the  preparation  of  information  for  and  review  of  Official 
Statements, Legal Documents, Loan Term Sheets, cash flows, staff reports, and all other applicable 
documents or presentations to the Council or rating agency. 


4) Provide support to the City relating to financing documents: We are experienced in the delivery of 
presentations to City Councils and drafting of applicable staff reports regarding adoption of the 
financing documents.  


5) Compute  Sizing  and  Structure  of Debt  Issue: Utilizing municipal market  data  and  bond  sizing 
applications, UFI will verify cash flows presented by underwriters.   


6) Plan and Coordinate Presentations to Ratings Agencies, Bond Insurers, and Investors: UFI is well 
prepared to assist  in the drafting and delivery of credit presentations to rating agencies. While 
many factors go into the investment decision‐making process, the bond rating is often the single 
most important factor affecting the interest cost on bonds. These credit presentations are then 
easily adapted for discussions with bond insurers and investors. 


7) Interest Rates and Timing: As a result of the ever‐changing municipal market environment, UFI 
will constantly monitor market rates to ensure that financial alternatives as well as refinancing 
assumptions and recommendations are maximized through proper timing.  


 
Activity 3: Independently Verify Pricing  
Performance matters, and we care about the rates at which the City will ultimately be  issuing bonds—
they should be in line with the current market and other similar bond sales.  To ensure the underwriter is 
performing in the best interest of the City, we will prepare comparables to discuss with the City, monitor 
proposed rates throughout the pre‐pricing and pricing process, culminating with a post‐sale book that is 
provided to summarize the basis for investors approving or not approving a credit, the allotment sizes, 
and the orders themselves. We view this as a crucial step toward maintaining a strong understanding of 
movements in investor preferences which pays dividends for subsequent bond sales.  
 
Activity 4: Post‐Issuance Compliance 
Urban Futures has two staff members dedicated to managing the continuing disclosure and dissemination 
agent needs of our clients. We have over 20 years of experience providing continuing disclosure and 
dissemination agent services, and we currently serve over 200 public agency clients with the preparation 
of over  400  reports  annually. We have  extensive  experience  covering  every  type of  credit,  including 
General  Obligation  Bonds,  Lease  Revenue  Bonds,  Enterprise  Fund  Bonds,  Tax  Allocation  Bonds, 
Community Facilities Districts, and Pension Obligation Bonds. 


As a function of providing municipal advisory services, UFI reviews the Continuing Disclosure Agreements 
and Bond Indentures for every bond issuance at the very beginning of the financing process. This ability 
to work with the financing team to draft the Continuing Disclosure Agreement is key, as we ensure it is 
formed in a manner that strikes the balance between providing pertinent information to investors versus 
minimizing the administrative burden on City staff. It is also another way that we can provide nimble and 
cost‐effective service to the City. In addition to our experience in drafting such documents, the firm has 
adopted a practice of reviewing each Continuing Disclosure Agreement on an annual basis. This practice 
ensures that each report is being prepared in accordance with the bond’s disclosure obligations. 
 
We are well poised to assist the City with implementation of the provisions of SB 1029 and CDIAC’s related 
transparency  regulations. We have developed a checklist of  required  reports and  their due dates. For 
example, Annual Debt Transparency Reports are due by January 31 of each year, and CDIAC has developed 
an online form for issuers to submit the required data (i.e., debt authorized during the reporting period, 
debt  outstanding  during  the  reporting  period,  list  of  purposes  for  which  debt  has  been  issued,  and 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


8 


   


amounts expended for each purpose in the prior fiscal year). We can assist the City in the preparation and 
submission of required reports. Finally, we can assist the City with arbitrage rebate reporting required by 
the IRS. 
 
City’s Streetlight Financing 
In 2019, the City entered into an agreement with Banc of America Leasing for a $1.5 million loan to finance 
the acquisition of streetlights in the City. The loan has an interest rate of 5.19%, a final maturity of 2034 
and can be prepaid on any payment date. If engaged as municipal advisor, UFI recommends exploring the 
possibility  of  refinancing  this  loan.  Given  the  current  low  interest  environment,  we  have  recently 
commenced  refinancings  for  streetlight  loans  in  the Cities of Lake Elsinore and Menifee with  rates of 
3.07% and 2.99% respectively.   
 
We believe a similar opportunity exists for the City of Wildomar.   
 
Approach to CFD Formations/Bond Financings 
We understand the City is contemplating the formation of a 
facilities CFD and  issuance of  the City’s  first  series of CFD 
special tax bonds. UFI  is positioned to assist the City with 
each step of its CFD program, from policy development to 
bond issuance and post issuance compliance.   
 
We recommend beginning our work by completing a review 
of  the  Local  Goals  and  Policies,  which  were  previously 
adopted for the City’s previously formed CFDs  in 2013 and 
2017. In coordination with current City staff and the City’s consultants, UFI would review of these policies 
to determine if any updates need to be made.  
 
Once  the City  is  ready  to begin  the process of  formation, UFI  can assist  the City with engaging  team 
members, including bond counsel. UFI is also able to facilitate any negotiations with the developer and its 
consultants as requested by the City. We will establish and maintain the formation schedule. Our role in 
the  formation will  be  to  ensure  the  process  keeps  on  schedule  and  that  each member  of  the  team 
performs their required task.  
 
Once the District is formed, bonds would typically be issued after the development threshold identified in 
the City’s Goals and Policies has been reached. The issuance of CFDs bonds require an interrelated process 
between the developer, appraiser, and special tax consultant. UFI’s role will be to coordinate among the 
various  players,  ensuring  that  we  keep  on  schedule,  and  that  decisions  adhere  to  the  City’s  policy 
objectives,  including  the  bond  structure.  As  stated  above,  UFI  will  provide  market  feedback  and 
“comparables” to ensure that the City’s property owners receive a favorable rate on their CFDs. Lastly, 
UFI’s Analytics and Compliance group can assist the City with post‐issuance compliance reports to both 
CDAIC and MSRB.    


7. Staff Qualifications 


a. Assigned Team 
We believe that the core professionals that UFI has assembled possess the proven capabilities necessary 
to provide  the City with comprehensive  financial advisory services  for any of  its  financing assignments.  
Three senior‐level staff members and one Senior Associate will be assigned to the City to fulfill the Scope 


Four Steps to CFD Formation/Bond 
Issuance 


 
1. CFD Policy & Program Development 
2. District Formation  
3. Bond Issuance  
4. Post Issuance Compliance & 


Administration 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


9 


   


of Work in the City’s RFPQ. Michael Busch will serve as the engagement lead and primary contact for the 
City’s financings; Doug Anderson will serve as a co‐engagement lead on bond financings; Bill Reynolds will 
offer expertise in the area of CFD financings and formations; and Branden Kfoury will provide transaction 
execution support. All assigned municipal advisors will be available to the City as often as necessary to 
complete respective assignments. Provided below  is a summary of the team members’ experience and 
role with the City followed by detailed biographies. All UFI municipal advisors, including support staff, hold 
a Series 50 municipal advisor registration.  


 b. Team Resumés 
Michael Busch, Chief Executive Officer  
Michael Busch is the firm’s Chief Executive and Strategy Officer. He is an accomplished 
municipal executive and public  finance professional who has helped manage several 
public agencies as an assistant city manager and  finance director.     Michael has also 
applied his diverse leadership experiences with a number of professional organizations, 
as former President of the Municipal Management Association of Southern California 
(MMASC), former Chair of Cal‐International City/County Management Association (Cal‐
ICMA),  and  Founding  Member  of  the  California  Utility  Executive  Management 
Association  (CUEMA). Through his  leadership of UFI and engagement with professional organizations, 
Michael  helps  cities,  counties,  special  districts,  and  nonprofits  across  the  State  of  California  identify 
emerging trends, engage in critical policy issues, exchange proven practices, and advance their missions 
through sound fiscal and operational policy. 
 
During his 14‐year tenure with UFI, numerous public agencies have engaged Michael as both a strategic 
consultant and municipal advisor based on his public finance expertise and broad understanding of fiscal 
issues affecting  the public  sector. Michael’s engagements  include over 60 public agencies  throughout 


Team Member  Role  Office Location  Experience 


Michael Busch, 
CEO  


Primary Contact  Tustin, CA  $5 billion in tax‐exempt and taxable debt 
(including Lease Revenue Bonds/COPs, 
Water/Wastewater Revenue Bonds, TABs, 
CFDs, Assessment Districts, New Market 
Tax Credits) 


Doug Anderson, 
Director 


Co‐Engagement 
Lead on Bond 
Financings 


Tustin, CA  Over 35 years at UFI with over $2 billion of 
financings completed; expertise in revenue 
analysis and the preparation of revenue 
reports to support bond financings 


William Reynolds, 
Director 


Co‐Engagement 
Lead/CFD Expertise 


Tustin, CA  Over 50 years of municipal financing 
experience including 23 years as an 
independent financial advisor, 15 years as 
an investment banker and 12 years in 
California city government 


Branden Kfoury, 
Senior Associate 


Transaction 
Execution Support 


Tustin, CA  Experience with tax‐exempt and taxable 
debt (including lease revenue bonds/COPs, 
electric utility bonds, CFD 
bonds/formations, water/wastewater 
Revenue Bonds, and GOs) 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


10 


   


California and recently include the cities of Culver City, Santa Ana, Glendora, Arcadia, Pomona, Coachella, 
Desert  Hot  Springs,  Monrovia,  Artesia,  Cudahy,  Menifee,  Salinas,  Santa  Fe  Springs,  Beaumont,  Lake 
Elsinore,  Covina,  and  Azusa  as  well  as  several  special  districts  including  Camrosa  Water  District  and 
Rowland Water District. Additionally, Michael was the lead municipal advisor and public finance expert 
for the City of San Bernardino, helping to guide the city through its Chapter 9 bankruptcy restructuring, 
including providing written and oral testimony in the federal mediation and bankruptcy proceedings. 
 
Mr.  Busch  holds  a  Bachelor  of  Arts  degree  in  Urban  and  Regional  Planning  from  California  State 
Polytechnic University, Pomona, and a Master of Public Administration degree (Finance and Public Works 
emphasis) from California State University, Long Beach. 
 


Doug Anderson, Director 
Mr. Anderson joined UFI’s Public Finance Group in 1985. He specializes in enterprise and 
special district revenue financings and has provided financial advisory services on over 
$2 billion of tax‐exempt and taxable bond issues. He has expertise in revenue analysis 
and  the preparation of  revenue  reports  to support bond  financings, and he provides 
support to clients with regards to the various annual reports and special reports required 
on a post‐bond issuance basis. 
 
Mr. Anderson works with many Redevelopment Successor Agencies in the State.  He has 
been involved with redevelopment activities for over 30 years, including redevelopment 
project area formation, tax increment analysis and redevelopment bond financing, and helping agencies 
through  the  redevelopment dissolution process  that commenced  in 2012. Mr. Anderson prepares  the 
Redevelopment  Obligation  Payment  Schedules  for  several  agencies,  to  obtain  the  annual  funding 
necessary to repay outstanding debt obligations. 
 
During the past five years, Mr. Anderson has also provided municipal advisor services on over a dozen 
Community Facilities District Special Tax Revenue Bonds,  for various cities  including Calimesa, Upland, 
Highland, and Imperial. 
 
Mr.  Anderson  holds  a  Bachelor  of  Science  degree  from  San  Diego  State  University  in  Business 
Administration (Finance emphasis). 
 


William Reynolds, Director  


Mr. Reynolds has over 50 years of municipal financing experience including 23 years 
as an independent financial advisor, 15 years as an investment banker and 12 years 
in California city government. He  is based  in Southern California and specializes  in 
providing  municipal  advisory  services  to  cities,  counties,  economic  development 
agencies, housing authorities and successor agencies throughout the West. 
 
Before joining Urban Futures, Mr. Reynolds was also a principal and founding partner 
of the California  independent financial advisory MBE  firm, Gardner Underwood & Bacon and the WBE 
firm, Sequoia Financial Group. Prior to forming his own  firms, he also served as the Western Regional 
Manager for the national financial advisory firm of Evensen Dodge. 
 
In  addition  to  his  finance  credentials,  Mr.  Reynolds  has  over  12  years  of  professional  experience  in 
California city government, having served as the Deputy City Manager of the City of Oakland, and in the 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


11 


   


planning, housing and economic development departments of the Oakland Redevelopment Agency and 
the Napa Redevelopment Agency. 
 
Mr. Reynolds served on the Executive Board of Directors for the California Association for Local Economic 
Development  (CALED) and  served on CALED’s Governmental Relations Committee. Mr. Reynolds also 
served on the State of California Trade and Commerce Agency advisory task force and is a longstanding 
member of the California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO).   He has been a frequent lecturer, 
speaker  and/or  panelist  for  events  including  conferences  for  the  League  of  California  Cities,  CALED, 
CSMFO and the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission.  
 
He  received  his  Bachelor’s  degree  in  City  and  Regional  Planning  from  California  State  Polytechnic 
University, San Luis Obispo and received a Master’s  in Public Finance and Administration (with honors) 
from San Francisco State University. As an investment banker, Mr. Reynolds held Series 7, 52, 53 and 63 
Broker‐Dealer Securities  licenses and as a municipal advisor, Mr. Reynolds currently holds a Series 50 
Municipal Advisor Securities license. 
 
Branden Kfoury, Senior Associate 
Branden  Kfoury  joined Urban  Futures  in  June  2019.  Previously, Mr.  Kfoury was  a 
Senior Associate at Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates where he worked  from 2017 to 
2019  supporting  the  firm’s  City  clients.  He  has  provided  financing  and  execution 
support for general fund, enterprise revenue, general obligation, community facilities 
districts, special tax, and tax allocation bond issuances. Mr. Kfoury has recently been 
the lead on a CFD formation for the City of Fullerton. From 2010 to 2013, Mr. Kfoury 
was an associate in the public finance group at BMO Capital Markets in New York. He 
began  his  career  in  the  municipal  securities  industry  as  a  credit  analyst  at  National  Public  Finance 
Guarantee Corporation.  
 
Mr. Kfoury received his Bachelor of Science degree in Finance with a minor in Politics from the New York 
University Stern School of Business. 


8. Compensation 
The schedule of our municipal advisory fees for bond financings, which are fixed and contingent upon 
closing, is provided below. Our fees are exclusive of out‐of‐pocket expenses such as travel, meals, data 
recovery, third party data fees, and internal compliance requirements.  Out‐of‐pocket expenses will not 
exceed $2,500 on any transaction. 


 
 


 


Bond Transaction Type Municipal Advisory Fee


CFD/Assessment Districts $35,000 


COPs/Lease Revenue, Utility Revenue, Tax 


Allocation Bonds, TRANs
$40,000 


Private Placements/Loans $30,000 


General Obligation Bonds $50,000


Pension Obligation Bonds $50,000 ‐ $100,0001


Federally Subsidized Bonds/Notes $45,000


UFI Municipal Advisory Fee Schedule


(1) Dependent upon scope of bond issue.







              


City of Wildomar
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services August 16, 2021 


  


12 


UFI  is also available on a time and materials or hourly basis to 
provide services such as long‐term financial forecasts, consulting 
on the management of pension and OPEB liabilities, special fiscal 
studies,  etc.  To  the  right  are  the  hourly  rates  of  proposed 
positions; typically, most of the work is completed by Managing 
Directors and Directors. 


Given that working with the City  is of highest priority to our firm, we are open to negotiating our fees 
should the City find it necessary.  


9. Disclosure
None. UFI does not have any past or current business and personal relationships with any current 
Wildomar elected official, appointed official, City employee, or family member of any current Wildomar 
elected official, appointed official, or City employee. 


10. Ex Parte Communications


UFI’s Ex Parte Communications form is attached to this proposal in Appendix A. 


11. Conflict of Interest


UFI warrants and represents that it presently has no interest and agrees that it will not acquire any 
interest which would present a conflict of interest under California Government Code Sections 1090 et 
seq., or Sections 87100 et seq., during the performance of services under any Agreement awarded. UFI  
further covenants that it will not knowingly employ any person having such an interest in the 
performance of any Agreement awarded. Violation of this provision may result in any Agreement 
awarded being deemed void and unenforceable. 


12. References


We  encourage  you  to  contact  any  of  our  recent  clients  listed  below  to  discuss  their  experience  and  
satisfaction with UFI.   We believe these persons can best speak  to  the quality and effectiveness of our 
work for the types of services, analysis and work product identified in the City’s RFPQ. 


Hourly Rate Schedule 


Position    Rate 
CEO/President            $350 
Director            $325 
Senior Associate     $250 


City of Lake Elsinore 


Jason Simpson, City Manager 


Tel: (951) 674‐3124 Ext. 211; Email: jsimpson@lake‐elsinore.org 


130 S. Main Street, Lake Elsinore, CA 92530 


UFI Past Projects:   CFDs 2015‐4, 2015‐5, 2016‐2, 2018‐1, 2019‐1, 2019‐2 (formation is underway), 
TABs, LRBs, Forecast Modeling, Affordable Housing, Economic Development, EIFD Feasibility Study, 
and Pension Study 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


13 


   


 


13. Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments: 
 
UFI has no exceptions, clarifications or amendments to the RFPQ or associated Bid Documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


City of Beaumont 


Todd Parton, City Manager   


Tel: (951) 769‐8520; Email: tparton@ci.beaumont.ca.us 


550 E. 6th Street, Beaumont, CA 92223 


Past Projects:  CFDs 93‐1, 2016‐1, 2016‐2, 2016‐3, 2016‐4 and 2019‐1, Rev Bonds, Forecast Modeling, 
Special Studies and Economic Development including: 


 Assisted in the negotiation of a sales tax agreement with a large distribution center for 
Wolverine Shoes 


 Prepared a fiscal impact analysis for a 2,000‐acre mixed used development (Potrero 
Development) 


City of Menifee 


Rochelle Clayton, Assistant City Manager 


Tel: (951) 672‐6777; Email: rclayton@cityofmenifee.us 


29844 Haun Rd, Menifee, CA 92586 


Past Projects:  2020 TRIP Pooled financing; EIFD Feasability Study, WRCOG Streetlight refinancing and 
currently engaged on two CFD financings 







                                                                          


City of Wildomar     
Proposal for Financial Advisory Services    August 16, 2021 
 
  


 
 


 


Appendix A: Required Forms 







Page 10 of 16 


APPENDIX A 


BIDDER INFORMATION 


Official Name of Bidder:     


Street Address Line 1:     


Street Address Line 2:     


City:       State:     Zip Code: 


Webpage:     


Type of Entity / Organizational Structure (check one): 


 Corporation  Joint Venture 


 Limited Liability Partnership  Partnership 


 Limited Liability Corporation  Non-Profit / Church 


 Other:     


Jurisdiction of Organization Structure: 


Date of Organization Structure:     


Federal Tax Identification Number:    


Primary Contact Information: 


Name / Title:     


Telephone Number: 


E-mail Address:


SIGNATURE:  


Name and Title of Signer: 


Dated this      day of 20 


Urban Futures, Inc.


Tustin CA


17821 East 17th Street, Suite 245


92780


X


CA


8/21/1972


Michael Busch, Chief Executive Officer


95-2811192


Michaelb@urbanfuturesinc.com


(714) 283-9334


urbanfuturesinc.com


Michael Busch, CEO


16th August 21







Page 11 of 16 


APPENDIX B 


REFERENCES 
 


RFPQ – MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES 
 
 
Bidder Name:       


 
Company Name:       Contact Person:       


Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       
Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 


Company Name:       Contact Person:       


Address:       Telephone Number:       


City, State, Zip:       E-mail Address:       
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:       


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Urban Futures Inc.


City of Lake Elsinore Jason Simpson, City Manager


(951) 674-3124 Ext. 211


Lake Elsinore, CA, 92530


130 S. Main Street


jsimpson@lake-elsinore.org


                                                                   2020	TRIP	Pooled	fifinancing;		currently	engaged	on	two	CFD	Financings


City of Beaumont


Rochelle Clayton, Asst. City Manager


(951) 672-6777


Menifee, CA 92586


29844 Haun Road


rclayton@cityofmenifee.us


                                                                   CFDs	2015-4,	2015-5,	2016-2,	2018-1,	2019-1,	2019-2	(forma66on	is	underway),	
TABs,	LRBs,	Forecast	Modeling,	Affffordable	Housing,	Economic	Development,	EIFD	Feasibility	Study,	and	Pension	Study


City of Menifee


Todd Parton, City Manager


(951) 769-8520


Beaumont, CA 92223


550 6th Street


jtparton@ci.beaumont.ca.us
                                                                   CFDs	93-1,	2016-1,	2016-2,	2016-3,	2016-4	and	2019-1,	Rev	Bonds,	
Forecast	Modeling,	Special	Studies	and	Economic	Development	







Brian P. Forbath 
949 725 4193 
bforbath@stradlinglaw.com 


Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth 


A Professional Corporation 


660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600 


Newport Beach, CA 92660-6422 


949 725 4000 


stradlinglaw.com 


4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


August 16, 2021 


DELIVERED VIA E-MAIL  


James R. Riley, Project Consultant  
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, California  92595 
jriley@cityofwildomar.org 


Re: Response to Request for Pre-Qualification for Bond, Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure 
Counsel Services for the City of Wildomar 


Dear Mr. Riley: 


Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation (the “Firm”) is pleased to present this 
Response to Request for Pre-Qualification (the “Proposal”) to be admitted to the City of Wildomar’s (the 
“City”) Bond and Disclosure Counsel Pool and serve as the City’s on-going Disclosure Counsel.  


The Firm is well qualified, and is committed to devoting the resources necessary, to serve the City as 
Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel in connection with its financings and to provide on-going Disclosure 
Counsel services.  The Firm has the second-largest group of public finance attorneys in California and is fully 
capable of drafting bond authorizing and closing documents and disclosure documents to accommodate various 
types of financing structures on accelerated financing calendars and providing opinions as to the validity and tax 
status of bonds and the satisfaction of defeasance provisions in connection with refundings.  The Firm is 
committed to advising the City on an on-going basis with respect to tax and securities disclosure matters, 
appearances before the rating agencies and litigation, as well as the preparation of continuing disclosure 
undertakings. 


Brian Forbath and Lawrence Chan are the attorneys proposing to serve the City as Bond and Disclosure 
Counsel.  They would be assisted by Carol Lew, head of our Firm’s Public Finance Tax Department, and 
Nicolas Yeager, an associate of the Firm, if appropriate, to provide the highest quality of service to the City. 
Our experienced senior attorneys will have primary and direct involvement in the entire work process. 


We believe that we are the best qualified firm to assist the City because of the seniority and experience 
of the individuals that we propose to assign to the engagement and because of the Firm’s extensive experience 
acting as Bond and Disclosure counsel throughout California and certain other states within the western region 
of the United States.  The Firm consistently ranks number 1 or 2 in the Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel 
rankings in California, and for many years we have been recognized as a leading Bond Counsel and Disclosure 
Counsel firm in the State. The Firm believes that being involved in so many transactions provides the Firm with 
greater breadth of experience and practical “know-how” than any of the Firm’s peers. 


Attachment E







City of Wildomar 
August 16, 2021 
Page 2 
 


 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


Thank you for considering our proposal to serve as Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel and on-going 
Disclosure Counsel to the City.  Our response and all addenda are attached.  Our response will remain valid for a 
period of no less than 180 days from this date.  Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 
Brian Forbath at (949) 725-4193 or bforbath@stradlinglaw.com, or Lawrence Chan at (949) 725-4095 or 
lchan@stradlinglaw.com. 


Very truly yours, 


 
Brian Forbath 
President of the Board of Directors 


Enclosure 







 


1 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRE-QUALIFICATIONS 


1. FIRM QUALIFICATIONS 


Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (the “Firm”) was founded in Newport Beach in 1975 and has 
had a municipal finance practice since 1978.   The Firm’s office which will staff this engagement will be 
its Newport Beach office located at 660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600, Newport Beach, California 
92660.   The Newport Beach office’s main phone line is 949-725-4000.  The direct phone numbers for the 
main shareholders who would be responsible for this engagement are included in the attached cover letter.    


The Firm has approximately 115 attorneys and thirty-six members of the Firm practice in the 
areas of public finance and related areas of public law, making the Firm the second largest group of 
municipal finance attorneys in California.  In addition to the main office in Newport Beach, the Firm 
maintains additional offices in Los Angeles, San Francisco, Sacramento, Santa Barbara, San Diego, 
Westlake Village, Denver, Seattle, Las Vegas, Reno and Austin.  Twenty-one shareholders, two of 
counsel, eleven associates, one special counsel and nine paralegals devote substantially all of their efforts 
to the Firm’s municipal finance practice.  One shareholder of the Firm restricts her practice exclusively to 
the tax aspects of public finance, advising clients on the structuring of transactions and representing 
clients in the event that a transaction is audited by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”).  The Firm’s 
public finance practice serves hundreds of clients. 


The Firm’s public finance experience covers essentially all types of debt financing structures that 
are utilized in California, including general fund lease revenue bond/certificate of participation 
financings, land-secured (Mello-Roos and Assessment District) financings, enterprise-backed financings 
(including water, wastewater, solid waste and electric utility), general obligation bonds and commercial 
paper programs.  The Firm represents all types of local issuers as Bond and Disclosure Counsel including, 
cities, counties, join powers authorities, school districts and water/wastewater districts and agencies. 
Some of the cities for whom we have served (or are currently serving) as Bond Counsel and/or Disclosure 
Counsel are the cities of Alameda, Beaumont, Bellflower, Beverly Hills, Chula Vista, Commerce, Costa 
Mesa, Escondido, Garden Grove, Lake Elsinore, Malibu, Manhattan Beach, Monrovia, Moreno Valley, 
Newport Beach, Oceanside, Ontario, Orange, Pismo Beach, Pomona, Rancho Santa Margarita, Riverside, 
Sacramento, Salinas, San Buenaventura, San Diego, San Jose, San Marcos, Santa Ana, Santa Monica, 
Simi Valley, San Francisco, South San Francisco, Whittier and Vista. 


   With respect to State of California financings, the Firm has served as Bond Counsel to the State 
Public Works Board (the “SPWB”) for over ten years on transactions totaling several billions of dollars.  
Such issuances financed facilities for various State of California departments including, but not limited to, 
office buildings, courthouses, correctional facilities and CalFire facilities.  In addition, the Firm has 
served as co- Disclosure Counsel to the State of California since 2007 for its general fund-backed general 
obligation and lease revenue bonds (including the SPWB bonds) and in that capacity has played a 
significant role in the preparation of the State’s disclosure for over $50 billion of bonds and lease revenue 
obligations.   


Outside of California, the Firm maintains several offices in the western region of the United 
States.   The Firm’s offices located in Seattle, Denver, Reno and Las Vegas are primarily devoted to 
public finance.   The Firm represents local and state-level issuers in such areas including as Disclosure 
Counsel to the State of Washington, Bond Counsel to the City of Seattle, Bond and Disclosure Counsel to 
the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority, and the cities of North Las Vegas and Henderson and 
Disclosure Counsel to the Las Vegas Valley Water District.   In addition, as underwriter’s counsel, Brian 
Forbath and Lawrence Chan (who would be the primary shareholders on this engagement) have prepared 
the official statements with respect to numerous land-secured bonds throughout the Las Vegas Valley, 







 
 


2 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


including in the cities of Las Vegas and Henderson and unincorporated areas of Clark County, Nevada.  
In Colorado, one of the Firm’s main engagements is the utilities enterprise of the City of Colorado 
Springs, which provides the power, water and wastewater services to the City of Colorado Springs and 
certain surrounding areas.   


In each year since 2016, the Firm has participated in more bond issuances in California as Bond 
Counsel, Disclosure Counsel or Underwriter’s Counsel than any other law firm.  The Firm believes that 
being involved in so many transactions provides the Firm with a greater breadth of experience and 
practical “know-how” than any of the Firm’s peers. 


The rankings set forth below demonstrate that the Firm is a perennial leader in public finance in 
California.  For more than 15 years, the Firm has consistently been ranked among the top Bond Counsel 
firms in California, and in most years has been ranked among the top two or three, both in terms of dollar 
volume and number of transactions.   


STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH 
CALIFORNIA BOND COUNSEL RANKINGS  


(BY DOLLAR VOLUME) 


Year 
Dollar Volume  
(in Millions) Rank 


2020 $11,861 2 
2019 11,265 2 
2018 4,742 2 
2017 8,228 2 
2016 9,984 2 


________________ 
Source:  Thomson Reuters. 


Our Disclosure Counsel rankings for California, set forth below, highlight that we are also a 
consistent leading firm for the delivery of Disclosure Counsel services to California issuers.  The 
following table sets forth our California Disclosure Counsel rankings for calendar years 2016 through 
2020 based on the number of transactions. 


STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH 
CALIFORNIA DISCLOSURE COUNSEL RANKINGS 


(BY NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS) 


Year 
Dollar Volume 
(in Millions) 


Number of 
Transactions Rank 


2020 $10,837 164 1 
2019 11,854 167 1 
2018 7,213 150 1 
2017 9,391 191 2 
2016 11,534 201 1 


________________ 
Source:  Thomson Reuters. 


The Firm is also highly ranked nationally.  In 2020, the Firm was the seventh ranked Bond 
Counsel nationally, acting in such capacity in 231 transactions totaling over $13 billion, the second 
ranked Disclosure Counsel nationally, acting in such capacity in 184 transactions totaling nearly 







 
 


3 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


$14 billion, and the sixth ranked Underwriter’s Counsel nationally, acting in such capacity in 
171 transactions totaling nearly $13 billion.  The Firm’s national rankings are even more impressive 
considering that the Firm acts as Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and Underwriter’s Counsel in just a 
handful of western states, whereas many of the Firm’s competitors operate nationally. 


Attached as Appendix E hereto are the lists of transactions on which the Firm served as Bond 
and/or Disclosure Counsel since January 1, 2014.  As shown in the list, the Firm has served as Bond 
Counsel on over 1,500 transactions and as Disclosure Counsel on over 1,400 transactions during this time 
period.   


The Firm has a broad-based general public law practice and actively represents issuers with 
respect to debt management, debt issuance and post-issuance matters on a daily basis.  Consequently, the 
Firm recognizes that the City will have to live with its financings for years to come and the Firm does not 
expect its active engagement with the City to end upon the closing of the financing.  The Firm expects to 
be intimately involved with the City’s key staff, its municipal advisors and its underwriters and is 
committed to carefully reviewing bond purchase agreements and other contracts that the City may be 
requested to execute in order to ensure that there is nothing unlawful or atypical being requested of the 
City.  The Firm’s overall goal is to help to structure the financing in a way that the City is not going to 
regret in the years ahead.  


In addition to its municipal finance department, attorneys in the Firm practice in the areas of 
general public law, real estate, corporate law, securities litigation (including former SEC staff attorneys 
with extensive experience representing municipal issuers in SEC investigations), business litigation, 
intellectual property litigation, bankruptcy, corporate taxation and white collar criminal defense, among 
others.  Many of these specialties can be helpful in analyzing various aspects of municipal finance 
transactions, and the full resources of the Firm are always available to the City. 


2. FIRM QUALIFICATIONS (ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL): 


The transactions on which the Firm has served as Disclosure Counsel or otherwise been 
responsible for drafting the official statement is broad and includes general fund lease revenue 
bond/certificate of participation financings, land-secured (Mello-Roos and Assessment District) 
financings, enterprise-backed financings (including water, wastewater, solid waste and electric utility) and 
general obligation bonds.  The Firm serves as Disclosure Counsel on a wide range of transactions of 
varying sizes, including billion dollar transactions for large issuers such as the State of California and 
smaller ($2 million - $10 million) transactions for a variety of cities and special districts.   Prime 
examples for these smaller transactions are the Firm’s work as Bond and Disclosure Counsel to the cities 
of Lake Elsinore, Murrieta and Beaumont.  Since 2014, the Firm has served as Disclosure Counsel on 14 
transactions in the range of $2 million to $10 million for these issuers alone.  No matter the size of the 
transaction, the responsibilities under the federal securities laws remain the same for the issuer.  
Accordingly, the Firm dedicates the same amount of resources and effort on these smaller transactions as 
it does on the larger transaction.   As discussed above, Appendix E has a complete list of the transactions 
on which the Firm has served as bond or Disclosure Counsel since 2014.  As you will see there, we have 
served as Disclosure Counsel on hundreds of transactions in the $2 million to $10 million range. 


The Firm has served as Disclosure Counsel for many of its clients for over a decade, and for 
some, for several decades.   This has provided the Firm with institutional knowledge of such entities and 
places us in a better position to assist with the preparation of such clients’ offering materials and required 
event notices under federal securities law.    







 
 


4 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


The SEC and other regulatory bodies have increased pressure on municipal issuers to adopt 
written policies and procedures.  As Disclosure Counsel, we would review the City’s existing policies and 
procedures and advise the City on proposed changes or assist in drafting new policies and procedures. 


As an initial matter, we would suggest that the City allow the Firm to provide a presentation on 
disclosure to appropriate City staff.  The Firm commonly provides such presentations to our disclosure 
counsel clients and we believe it is very helpful in providing an overall context to issuer personnel who 
are responsible for providing portions of information for inclusion in offering documents.  Topics include 
the following:  overview of relevant federal securities law, including the Securities Act of 1933, 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Rule 10b5; the “Materiality” Standard, differences between 
corporate securities and municipal securities disclosure requirements; appropriate internal procedures; 
applicability of disclosure requirements in different contexts (new offerings, annual reports, and other 
circumstances where the issuer is “speaking to the market”).  In our presentations we also describe 
situations where disclosure by municipal issuers was determined to be inadequate and the SEC 
pronouncements that followed. 


The Firm also provides annual training to the SPWB and those State department financing 
participants who wish to attend.   In addition to the topics related to federal securities law described 
above, such trainings cover federal tax matters, real estate issues as they pertain to lease revenue bonds 
and the purpose of the various certifications that issuers and financing participants typically provide at the 
closing of a financing.   The Firm would be ready to provide any of such training to City staff, should the 
City desire. 


It is critical to note that in almost every situation where disclosure ultimately proved to be 
insufficient, one or more officials of the issuer were aware of the area of concern prior to the publication 
of the problematic offering documents.  Often the failure to adequately disclose resulted from faulty 
internal procedures in which officials possessing material information were not in contact with officials 
preparing the disclosure.  In other circumstances, the desire to “spin” information in a positive manner 
resulted in a failure to adequately describe relevant risks.  As Disclosure Counsel, we work with our 
clients to assure that these pitfalls can be avoided.  For instance, we would recommend that any of the 
City’s staff who are subject matter experts that would provide information for an offering document 
receive the disclosure training described above.  The goal is for all those involved in preparing the 
disclosure to understand the purpose of the disclosure and the importance of its accuracy.   


We suggest that a “formal” due diligence session be held in which senior officials of the City be 
made available to provide to the underwriters their perspective on the strength of the City’s financial and 
operating conditions, as well as their view of the City’s ability to address challenges in the future.  Such 
sessions provide significant comfort to the finance team as to the sufficiency of disclosure and assist the 
underwriters in presenting the strengths of the City to the capital markets.  


As Disclosure Counsel, we believe that we can provide seasoned advice to the City as it finances 
and refinances critical infrastructure and we believe we can do so in a manner that achieves the desired 
result of full and complete disclosure, yet does not unduly burden the City’s personnel or otherwise 
impact the efficiency of the City. 


3. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS 


If the Firm is selected to serve for this engagement, Brian Forbath and Lawrence Chan, both 
shareholders of the Firm, would be the primary attorneys working with the City.  Mr. Forbath and 
Mr. Chan would be assisted by Nicolas Yeager, an associate in the Firm’s Public Finance Department.  
Carol Lew, a shareholder in the Firm, would provide assistance in tax-related matters.  Messrs. Forbath, 







 
 


5 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


Chan, Yeager and Ms. Lew are all based in the Firm’s Newport Beach office.  Their resumes are attached 
as Appendix D.   


Brian P. Forbath.  Brian Forbath is a shareholder of the Firm and President of the Firm’s Board 
of Directors.  Mr. Forbath works exclusively in the public finance area and has extensive experience in 
tax allocation, land-secured, general obligation, utility revenue and general fund financings and derivative 
transactions.  Mr. Forbath is a 1998 graduate of Loyola Law School and attended the University of 
California, Santa Barbara as an undergraduate.  Mr. Forbath has been a lecturer on federal securities laws 
at the National Association of Bond Lawyers Workshop in Chicago and was a member of the National 
Association of Bond Lawyers’ task force on drafting Disclosure Roles of Counsel in State and Local 
Government Securities Offerings (3rd Edition, 2008).  Mr. Forbath is a frequent lecturer for the California 
Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (“CDIAC”).  Mr. Forbath has nearly twenty-three years’ 
experience acting as Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and Underwriter’s Counsel in all types of 
municipal finance transactions. 


Lawrence Chan.  Lawrence Chan is a shareholder in the public finance department of the Firm 
and has eleven years of experience as Bond, Disclosure and Underwriter’s Counsel.  Mr. Chan has 
experience in all areas of public finance, including, among others, special tax and assessment district 
bonds, lease revenue bond financings, revenue enterprise financings and general obligation bonds.  Mr. 
Chan has served as Bond Counsel to the State Public Works Board since 2014.   Mr.  Chan graduated 
from the University of California, Los Angeles with a bachelor of arts degree in Political Science, and 
obtained his J.D. from the University of Southern California Gould School of Law in 2009. 


Carol L. Lew.  Carol Lew is nationally recognized with respect to tax issues relating to municipal 
finance.  She received her J.D. from Hastings College of the Law.  Ms. Lew is currently serving on the 
Internal Revenue Service Advisory Council (IRSAC) for a three-year term.  IRSAC is an advisory body 
of the IRS that reports directly to the IRS Commissioner on a broad range of tax questions under the 
Internal Revenue Code.  Ms. Lew has previously served as President and President-Elect of the National 
Association of Bond Lawyers, Treasurer of the National Association of Bond Lawyers, Chair of the 
National Association of Bond Lawyers 2000 Tax Seminar and has served as a member of the Steering 
Committee of the National Association of Bond Lawyers Bond Attorneys’ Workshop.  Ms. Lew served as 
Editor-in-Chief of the National Association of Bond Lawyers’ Federal Taxation of Municipal Bonds.  Ms. 
Lew has served as Chair of the American Bar Association, Taxation Section, Tax-Exempt Financing 
Committee for the 2001-2003 term.  Ms. Lew previously served as Vice-Chair and Secretary of the Tax-
Exempt Financing Committee, and Chair of the Governmental Bond Subcommittee.  In addition, Ms. 
Lew served on the Executive Committee of the State Bar of California, Taxation Section, and as a 
member of the Technical Advisory Committee of the California Debt and Investment Advisory 
Commission. 


Ms. Lew has regular experience representing cities with respect to IRS audits of municipal bonds 
and is aware of the potential for liability to bondholders and other adverse market consequences if the tax-
exempt status of a bond issuance is lost.  The Firm works hard to negotiate and clarify liabilities and 
responsibilities among transaction participants (including underwriters and financial advisors) when an 
issuer is audited.  The Firm directly handles IRS information requests, which can be voluminous, and 
represents issuers before the IRS.  Ms. Lew also has extensive experience in advising issuers with respect 
to appeals and other alternatives and negotiating the terms of settlement or voluntary closing agreements 
with the IRS.  


Ms. Lew understands that IRS audits are rarely limited to the matters that are the initial subject of 
an investigation, and she will be able to draw upon her extensive experience to provide seasoned advice to 
the City should a bond issue ever be audited. 







 
 


6 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


Nicolas Yeager.  Nicolas Yeager is an associate of the Firm.  Mr. Yeager joined the Firm in 2018.  
He was admitted to practice law in the State of California in 2015.  Mr. Yeager has served as Bond, 
Disclosure, and Underwriter’s counsel on numerous lease revenue and land-secured financings and other 
financings and, prior to joining the Firm, practiced general municipal law for almost 3 years.  Mr. Yeager 
received his bachelor’s degree from the University of California, Santa Barbara in 2011 and his law 
degree from the University of California, Irvine School of Law in 2015. 


4. COMPENSATION 


Bond and Disclosure Counsel for Financings.  If selected to serve as both Bond and Disclosure 
Counsel, our fee for each transaction are set forth below, payable contingent upon the successful 
completion of the transaction to which the work relates.   These fees are inclusive of expenses.  Because 
the City may issue various types of debt obligations payable from its general fund, for various enterprise 
funds or on behalf of assessment or community facilities districts, the Firm would be willing to adjust 
such quotes for each particular financing.  For the issuance of bonds for a community facilities district 
ranging in size between $2 million to $10 million, we would proposed the following: 


Bond Counsel Fee Disclosure Counsel Fee Bond/Disclosure Fee 


$50,000 $35,000 $75,000 
 


On-Going Disclosure Counsel and Other Services.  For services that are not related to a specific 
financing, including formation of a community facilities district or assessment district, negotiations of 
acquisition agreements or joint community facilities agreements for a community facilities district, on-
going disclosure and tax issues, and representation on litigation related to financings (for example, 
validation or reverse validation actions) or regulatory actions (for example, IRS or SEC matters), the Firm 
proposes to bill the District at discounted hourly rates for public agencies.  The discounted hourly rate for 
public clients for Mr. Forbath is $600, for Mr. Chan is $500 and for Ms. Lew is $600.  The discounted 
hourly rate for associates of the Firm is $350. 


5. REFERENCES 


 Per the Request for Pre-Qualification, our references are attached hereto as Appendix B. 
 
6. CONCLUSION 


We appreciate the opportunity to provide this Proposal to the City.  We hope that we have 
conveyed the depth of our experience and the sincerity of our desire to serve the City as Bond and 
Disclosure Counsel.  We would be pleased to provide any additional information or answer any further 
questions that you might have in selecting a Bond and Disclosure Counsel Firm.  Please feel free to 
contact me at (949) 725-4193 or bforbath@stradlinglaw.com with any questions or to discuss this 
Proposal. 


Respectfully submitted, 


STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH,  
a Professional Corporation 


  
Brian P. Forbath 
President of the Board of Directors 







 


A-1 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


APPENDIX A 


BIDDER INFORMATION 


Official Name of Bidder:  Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation 


Street Address Line 1: 660 Newport Center Drive 


Street Address Line 2: Suite 1600 


City: Newport Beach State: CA   Zip Code: 92660 


Webpage: https://www.stradlinglaw.com/ 


Type of Entity / Organizational Structure (check one): 


 Corporation  Joint Venture 


 Limited Liability Partnership  Partnership 


 Limited Liability Corporation  Non-Profit / Church 


 Other: 


Jurisdiction of Organization Structure: CA 


Date of Organization Structure: Registered Secretary of State: February 1, 1979 


Federal Tax Identification Number: 95-3347002 


Primary Contact Information: 


Name / Title: Brian Forbath 


Telephone Number: 949-725-4193 


E-mail Address: bforbath@stradlinglaw.com 


SIGNATURE:   


Name and Title of Signer: Brian Forbath, President of the Board of Directors 


Dated this 16th day of August, 2021 







 


B-1 
4850-8686-1046/000000-0763 


APPENDIX B 


REFERENCES 


RFPQ – BOND, DISCLOSURE AND ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL SERVICES 


Bidder Name: Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation 


Company Name: City of Beaumont Contact Person: Todd Parton, City Manager 
Address:  550 East 6th Street Telephone Number: 951-769-8520 
City, State, Zip: Beaumont, CA 92223 E-mail Address: tparton@beaumontca.gov 
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service: Bond and Disclosure Counsel; Special counsel for SEC 
investigation matters.   On-going since 2015. 
 
 
Company Name: City of Lake Elsinore Contact Person: Jason Simpson, City Manager 
Address: 130 South Main Street Telephone Number: 951-674-3124 
City, State, Zip: Lake Elsinore, CA 92530 E-mail Address: jsimpson@Lake-Elsinore.org 
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service: Bond and Disclosure Counsel; On-going since 2014. 
 
 
Company Name: City of Riverside Contact Person: Edward Enriquez, Chief Financial 


Officer/City Treasurer 
Address: 3900 Main Street Telephone Number: 951-826-5660 
City, State, Zip: Riverside, CA 92522 E-mail Address: EEnriquez@riversideca.gov 
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service: Bond and Disclosure Counsel; On-going since 2007. 
 
 







Attachment F







 
 



mailto:dkim@nixonpeabody.com

mailto:JRiley@cityofwildomar.org

https://events.bondlink.com/bondlink-and-nixon-peabody-present-at-the-forefront-of-esg-social-media-and-covid-19-disclosures?utm_source=nixonpeabody&utm_medium=email

https://events.bondlink.com/bondlink-and-nixon-peabody-present-at-the-forefront-of-esg-social-media-and-covid-19-disclosures?utm_source=nixonpeabody&utm_medium=email













https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/ideas/articles/2020/05/11/sec-releases-coronavirus-covid-19-disclosure-guidance?utm_medium=alert&utm_source=internal&utm_campaign=public-finance

https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/ideas/articles/2020/05/11/sec-releases-coronavirus-covid-19-disclosure-guidance?utm_medium=alert&utm_source=internal&utm_campaign=public-finance

https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/ideas/articles/2020/04/15/sec-public-statement-on-importance-of-coronavirus-covid-19-disclosure





 







 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 











 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 



http://www.nixonpeabody.com/thought.aspx





https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/team/kim-danny

https://www.nixonpeabody.com/team/deaton-daniel-m





https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/team/gibbs-travis





https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/team/swearingen-joel

https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/team/song-david-j

https://www.nixonpeabody.com/en/team/walker-janelle-m





 


 











Nixon Peabody LLP 


300 South Grand Avenue


Suite 4100


Los Angeles                                        CA                     90071-3151


www.NixonPeabody.com


�X


New York


Danny Kim, Partner


213-629-6077


dkim@nixonpeabody.com


Danny Kim, Partner


16-0764720


21August13th


1999



RAMSEYS5590

Danny







Nixon Peabody LLP


Brooke D. Abola


Disclosure Counsel: 2/2011 - Present


City of Pasadena Vic Erganian


Jason CaudleCity of Lancaster


Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel: 8/2019 - 12/2020


44933 Fern Avenue 661-723-6000


jcaudle@cityoflancasterca.orgLancaster, CA 93534


Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel: 12/2018 - 7/2021


San Francisco International Airport 
International Terminal, 5th Floor
P.O. Box 8097


San Francisco, CA 94128 Brooke.D.Abola@sfcityatty.org


650-821-5064







95926223.2


1 


Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
555 South Flower Street 
Forty-First Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90071 
United States 


Maryann L. Goodkind, Counsel 
Tel +1 213 892 9328 
maryann.goodkind@nortonrosefulbright.com 


August 16, 2021 


Re: Response to Request for Pre-Qualification for Bond, Disclosure and On-Going 
Disclosure Counsel Services 


Dear Mr. Riley:  


Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP (“Norton Rose Fulbright” or the “Firm”) is delighted to submit this 
proposal (the “Proposal”) in response to the City of Wildomar (the “City”) Request for Pre-
Qualification for Bond, Disclosure and On-Going Disclosure Counsel Services, due August 16, 
2021 (the “RFPQ”), to provide bond and/or disclosure counsel services to the City by admittance 
into the City’s pool and/or to serve as the City’s On-going Disclosure Counsel for a three-year 
period relating to debt financings to be completed during this period.  It is also our understanding 
that the City is planning to form a developer-initiated community facilities district and issue special 
tax bonds during this period.  


Norton Rose Fulbright experience 


Norton Rose Fulbright has one of the largest public finance practices in the United States, with 
over 50 attorneys who work in the area of public finance or federal income taxation as it relates 
to public finance. Over the past five years, Norton Rose Fulbright’s California-based attorneys 
have completed more than 600 transactions for California counties, cities and other public 
agencies, representing over $50 billion in principal amount of municipal securities. For the first 
half of 2021, the Firm ranked 3rd nationally as bond counsel and 9th nationally as disclosure 
counsel according to Refinitiv.  


We are well qualified to serve the City, and have a long history advising clients as bond and 
disclosure counsel for community facilities districts in California. Within the past 2½ years our 
team has worked on 13 community facilities districts (“CFDs”) totalling over $380 million par 
amount for the cities of San Francisco, Calimesa, Chino Hills, Santa Clarita, Merced and Fontana. 
We are well versed in the latest changes and proposed changes to the Mello Roos Community 
Facilities Act of 1982 (the “Mello Roos Act”), such as AB 1743 (exemption from CFD taxes for 
properties that qualify for property tax welfare exemption) and AB 68/881 SB 13 (relating to 
accessory dwelling units) and how such bills may affect a community facilities district. 


As disclosure counsel, we provide unique insight to our clients issuing debt instruments through 
our deep municipal and corporate securities law practice and our investigations attorneys from 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). We provide disclosure training to staff and 
counsel for CLE credit, sophisticated ESG guidance, E-commerce disclosure and many other 
services that are not typically provided by our competitors. We handle some of the most detailed 
and complex disclosure engagements in the State, including for numerous cities throughout 
California. For example, we currently serve as special disclosure counsel for the City of San 


James R. Riley, Project Consultant 
Administrative Services 
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 


Attachment G







95926223.2  
2 


 


Francisco’s complex CFDs, including those for Treasure Island and Mission Rock. We encourage 
you to reach out to the references provided herein; other references are available upon request. 


Norton Rose Fulbright team 
We have assembled a team of highly experienced California lawyers to provide legal services to 
the City. I will serve as bidder representative and be the City’s primary contact. The remaining 
team will consist of Donald Hunt, Mauricio Salazar, and Clifford Gerber, highly experienced 
attorneys who regularly provide bond and disclosure counsel services in California. The team 
members are based in the Firm's Los Angeles office, with the exception of Cliff Gerber who is a 
partner in the Firm’s San Francisco office, and all will be committed to City matters. All members 
of the team will be available as your needs indicate to perform the job proposed.  


Norton Rose Fulbright approach 
Norton Rose Fulbright stresses a team approach in public finance to ensure that senior level 
“hands-on” coverage is always available to our clients. This means we are the people that will 
provide services to you and handle your work. We are committed to providing the highest quality 
of service in an efficient and effective manner, promptly returning all telephone calls and email 
inquiries/requests, and keeping the City informed at all times.  


All of the above factors distil into a single distinctive characteristic of Norton Rose Fulbright’s 
public finance work: service. We understand that our top priority is and must be service to our 
clients. 


Conclusion 
The Firm is pleased to submit this Proposal in response to the RFPQ, and confirms that it has 
reviewed and understands the terms of the RFPQ, and is prepared to undertake the work 
described. We have the staffing and capacity to commence work under any contract awarded 
under the RFPQ promptly following notification.  


The Firm is a bond counsel and disclosure counsel that is regularly and continuously engaged in 
the business of providing bond, disclosure and/or on-going disclosure services for since 1923.  All 
team members of the Firm are lawyers licensed by the State of California.  The Firm possesses 
all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to perform the services specified in 
the RFPQ.   


The undersigned declares that the Documents, including without limitation, the RFPQ, and 
Exhibits have been read. The Firm hereby acknowledges receipt and acceptance of all addenda.  


The undersigned acknowledges and agrees to items 2-9 of Section J of the RFPQ, other than as 
specified in the exceptions set for in EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS.  
This Proposal shall remain valid for 180 days from the date of submission.  


Thank you very much for inviting us to submit our Proposal. Should you have any questions, or 
require any additional information with respect to our proposal, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at the phone number listed above. We look forward to hearing from you soon. 


 


Sincerely, 


 
 
_____________________________ 
Maryann L. Goodkind, Counsel 
On behalf of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 







 


95926223.2  
3 


 


FIRM QUALIFICATIONS 
6.a.  The address and telephone number of the office which will staff this engagement. 
Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
555 South Flower Street 
Forty-First Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90071 


Maryann Goodkind, Counsel 
(213) 892-9328 and (949) 981-0795 


Please see Bidder Information on Appendix A. 


 
6.b.  Brief description of the Firm’s practice in areas related to public finance. 
Norton Rose Fulbright has more than 4,000 lawyers in 58 offices spanning 32 countries. Our Firm 
has had an active municipal finance practice since 1923. Today, Norton Rose Fulbright maintains 
one of the most active state and local government bond practices in the US with approximately 
50 attorneys who work in the area of public finance or federal income taxation as it relates to 
public finance. In representing municipal clients, Norton Rose Fulbright attorneys draw upon the 
capabilities of Firm across a wide variety of related practice areas, including litigation, real estate 
and securities law. 


Norton Rose Fulbright has one of the largest public finance departments of any law firm in the 
State, with 13 public finance attorneys in our Los Angeles and San Francisco offices, 
demonstrating the depth and breadth of the Firm’s commitment to the California municipal 
securities market. We have represented virtually every type of participant in the municipal 
securities market, representing hundreds of issuers, the major underwriters and many letter of 
credit banks. Tax-exempt borrowers such as nonprofit hospitals and universities, refining 
companies, apartment and land developers, municipal utilities, airlines and others rely on us to 
guide them through tax-exempt financings of eligible projects. This breadth of experience provides 
us critical insight and knowledge for each of our engagements as both bond and disclosure 
counsel. Norton Rose Fulbright is able to provide its public finance clients legal advice and 
experience in a wide array of legal disciplines to address questions that may arise in connection 
with the issuance of municipal bonds. 


Over the past five years, the Firm’s California-based bond attorneys have closed more than 
600 transactions for California counties, cities and other public agencies, representing 
over $50 billion in principal amount of municipal securities. For the first half of 2021, the Firm 
ranked 3rd nationally as bond counsel and 9th nationally as disclosure counsel according to 
Refinitiv. 


Your proposed team has worked on a very significant number of these important transactions for 
our clients. We are ready to bring all of our experience and efficiency to the City’s financings, 
including the proposed CFD financing. We work closely with the our real estate department 
whenever land-secured or lease financings arise and have good working relationships with all the 
major title insurance companies and land-secured appraisers, absorption specialists and special 
tax consultants in California. We have a well-established system for checking title issues, 
reporting discrepancies, solving related problems and organizing the necessary recordation. We 
include these real estate services as a matter of course as bond counsel on each lease financing. 


The Norton Rose Fulbright team has an active practice in Mello-Roos issues in California with 
over 60 years of combined experience. We are often brought in by cities, counties and school 
districts which have large undeveloped tracts on which residential housing is planned, and within 







95926223.2  
4 


 


which the Special Tax can be spread. We work closely with our clients, the tax consultant, the 
developer and the taxing entity to put together a Rate and Method that will generate sufficient 
funds to pay for the desired improvements or the debt service on bonds issued to pay for them. 
Our transactions have included all manner of infrastructure improvements, as well as parks, 
school facilities and road connectors. As an example, we have assisted the City of San Marcos 
for many years as Bond Counsel on an assortment of Mello Roos transactions for them, including 
the creation of over 35 Improvement Areas and a number of Mello Roos bond issues. We have 
good working relationships with a number of the tax consulting firms who do this work around 
California.  


Our services include preparation or review of tangential agreements such as mitigation 
agreements, acquisition and/or construction agreements, joint community facilities agreements, 
deposit agreements, pledge agreements, management contracts and local goals and policies.  As 
discussed in our cover letter, we are well versed in the latest changes and proposed changes to 
the Mello Roos Act, such as AB 1743 (exemption from CFD taxes for properties that qualify for 
property tax welfare exemption) and AB 68/881 SB 13 (relating to accessory dwelling units) and 
how such bills may affect a community facilities district. We have extensive experience with 
Proposition 218, both landowner and registered voter special tax elections, rates and methods of 
apportionment, foreclosure covenants, California Debt and investment Advisory Commission 
(“CDIAC”) land-secured guidelines and appraisal standards, and CDIAC and State Controller 
annual reporting requirements. 


The Norton Rose Fulbright team recently closed the $17,135,000 City and County of San 
Francisco Community Facilities District No. 2016-1 (Treasure Island) special tax bonds as 
disclosure counsel. Our Los Angeles public finance team has represented numerous public 
agencies in the development of and annexation to special tax districts acting as bond and/or 
disclosure counsel in connection with such issuances. These projects have ranged from master 
planned developments in cities such as Chino Hills, Merced, San Marcos, Lake Elsinore, Indio, 
Beaumont and Perris to mixed-use residential, commercial and retail projects in Camarillo and 
Santa Clarita. 


Tax Counsel Experience. The tax expertise of a municipal finance practice is a unique 
subspecialty of a general tax practice and requires a substantial commitment of personnel and 
resources. We have made that commitment. Our tax attorneys belong to the Firm’s national (and 
nationally-recognized) federal tax practice specializing in municipal tax exemption. The Firm, 
acting through its Washington DC office and Firm partner Steve Watson (former US Treasury 
Department Officer), has an active practice before the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), and all 
of our Firm’s tax attorneys are provided with daily information to allow them to monitor any federal 
income tax developments, especially those that impact tax-exempt financing. Lawyers in the 
Firm’s tax practice are generally responsible for planning and counselling clients on all tax aspects 
of matters handled by the Firm. Their practice covers all aspects of tax law involving public 
entities, corporations, individuals, partnerships and other entities. The Firm’s tax lawyers not only 
advise public finance lawyers and bond clients concerning the tax-exempt status of bonds, but 
also act as special tax counsel to bond counsel firms that do not have advanced tax expertise. 
They regularly process requests for private letter rulings from the IRS. In addition, they advise 
arbitrage rebate firms on interpretive issues. Norton Rose Fulbright’s tax advocacy practice is 
highly respected and national in scope. The Firm has represented municipal bond issuers and 
others during IRS audits and in negotiating settlement agreements with the IRS concerning the 
tax-exempt status of municipal bonds. 


Firm attorneys consult with issuers and their financial advisors with regard to the arbitrage 
limitations and rebate requirements where the Firm acts as bond counsel. Our attorneys also 
consult with issuers and their financial advisors after a transaction is closed to assist in assuring 







95926223.2  
5 


 


that arbitrage and rebate requirements are met or that exemptions are maintained. With regard 
to issuers that are subject to arbitrage restrictions and rebate, Firm attorneys maintain a 
continuing relationship to help these entities ensure arbitrage compliance and to minimize any 
rebate. In these relationships we have advised issuers or their agents with regard to virtually all 
aspects of the arbitrage and rebate requirements, including such things as which funds or portions 
of funds must be yield restricted, what types of investments may be made, what type of records 
and accounts should be maintained, rebate methodologies, escrow structures, and loan policies. 


Disclosure Counsel Experience. Our team has extensive disclosure expertise in and familiarity 
with disclosure matters relating to general fund financings, including primary disclosure and 
ongoing disclosure requirements imposed by Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-
12. Members of the proposed team regularly serve as disclosure counsel and provide advice 
regarding continuing disclosure matters and SEC enforcement.  


We also have former SEC attorneys at the Firm that we regularly consult on disclosure questions, 
including from the Office of Municipal Finance. We are able to provide the City with the full range 
of disclosure counsel services, such as reviewing and recommending revisions to disclosure 
policies and procedures, crafting or reviewing offering documents for general fund credits such 
as pension obligation bonds and continuing disclosure filings. In addition, we can assist with 
presentations to City Disclosure Coordinator, City staff, City Attorney, other stakeholders, 
investors, bond rating agencies, etc. and assist staff in conducting advisable due diligence. 


We are frequently retained for particularly complex disclosure counsel assignments. We regularly 
provide securities law and disclosure training for our clients, municipal advisors, underwriters and 
other attorneys for continuing legal education credit. Our disclosure training not only includes the 
requirements of applicable rules and practical compliance tips, but also reviews many key 
Securities and Exchange Commission enforcement actions.  We will assist in determining 
“financial obligations” as required by current and future 15c2-12 undertakings.  


 
6.c.  A description of the Firm’s experience serving as counsel for obligations issued by 


local California issuers, the State of California, and issuers outside of California, 
since January 1, 2014.  Provide in an appendix the name of the issuer, the name of 
the issue, the sale date, the size of the issue, the type of the issue, the method of 
sale, and the firm’s role in the transaction. 


See Appendix F for a list of the over 1,200 transactions in which California attorneys have served 
as counsel since January 1, 2014, along with name of issue (issuer name, size and type included 
therein), as well as the closing date and Firm’s role in the transaction.   


 
FIRM QUALIFICATIONS (ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL) 
7.a. A description of the Firm’s disclosure counsel work since January 1, 2014, with 


issues in the $2 to $10 million, that best illustrates the Firm’s qualifications, 
experience and ability to service as on-going disclosure counsel. 


See Appendix G for a list of the over 90 transactions in which California attorneys have served 
as disclosure counsel since January 1, 2014 with principal amounts ranging from $2 million to 
$10  million, that best illustrates the Firm’s qualifications, experience and ability to service as on-
going disclosure counsel. 


 







95926223.2  
6 


 


7.b. Recommendations the Firm has to improve the City’s disclosure practices. 
The City’s Debt Management Policy and Disclosure Procedures appears thorough, though it 
hasn’t been updated since 2017.  A yearly review is recommended.  Also a reference to the 
procedures for tracking and reporting material “financial obligations” within the scope of Rule 
15c2-12 undertakings is recommended.   


We are not sure of the City’s current continuing disclosure annual report procedures, but we 
recommend at least one meeting or conference call in November/December with all appropriate 
department heads (depending on the undertakings) and contributing consultants to review and 
revise any new or previous year annual reports.  This provides a centralized system and sufficient 
time for adequate review and revision prior to all required filings.  


We are always available to assist with any State or federal filings or reports that may arise from 
the issuance of bonds or the formation or dissolution of CFDs, public benefit corporations or joint 
powers entities.  


 
7.c. A description of the Firm’s experience training governmental officials on their 


disclosure obligations. 
We provide sophisticated ESG guidance, E-commerce disclosure and many other services that 
are not typically provided by our competitors. Firm attorneys regularly provide securities law and 
disclosure training for our clients, municipal advisors, underwriters and other attorneys for 
continuing legal education credit. Our disclosure training not only includes the requirements of 
applicable rules and practical compliance tips, but also reviews many key SEC enforcement 
actions.  Our attorneys coordinate and assist with study sessions and more individualized training, 
including assistance to the Disclosure Coordinator in all aspects of continuing disclosure, such as 
determining which obligations may constitute “financial obligations” as contemplated by Rule 
15c2-12 and its applicable authorizing releases. 


 
STAFF QUALIFICATIONS 
8.a. The members of the professional team, including specific areas of expertise, 


whether specified team members will be serving in a primary or a support capacity, 
and the availability of identified team members to work on City projects. 


Maryann Goodkind will be the leader of the Norton Rose Fulbright Team and would be the 
attorney who would actually be providing most of the legal services for this engagement. Cliff 
Gerber will be responsible for tax analysis and compliance if we are selected as bond counsel. 
Don Hunt will provide Partner-level support with legal analysis, document drafting and 
negotiation. Mauricio Salazar will conduct due diligence and legal research, draft documents and 
assist with the closing. Norton Rose Fulbright stresses a team approach to assure that senior 
level, “hands-on” coverage is always available to our clients while delegating appropriate tasks to 
associates and paralegals. We are committed to providing the highest quality of service in an 
efficient and effective manner, which includes meeting or beating each and every required 
deadline set by the City, promptly returning all telephone calls, responding to other inquiries and 
keeping the City informed at all times. We believe this team approach will best serve the City’s 
needs, and do not anticipate that commitments of team members to other clients will create any 
difficulties in providing required services to the City in a timely and efficient manner. 


Brief biographies of the members of the Norton Rose Fulbright Team highlighting relevant 
experience are provided below, with more general resumes attached as Appendix C. 







95926223.2  
7 


 


Maryann Goodkind, a counsel in our Los Angeles office, has focused her practice on municipal 
finance matters for over 30 years. She concentrates her work in the area of public finance, acting 
as bond counsel and disclosure counsel, as well as issuer’s counsel. Maryann has participated in 
numerous financing issues, including certificates of participation and lease revenue bonds, 
revenue, assessment, Mello Roos, Marks Roos and tax allocation bonds. She also has extensive 
experience in the preparation of offering documents and the performance of due diligence. 
Maryann has assisted cities, redevelopment agencies, water districts and school districts in 
matters relating to municipal and public law ranging from complex securities to non-bond finance 
issues. She has assisted numerous clients with the use of assessment and community facilities 
districts for both capital improvements and municipal services, including the cities of Santa Clarita, 
Camarillo, Merced, Santa Monica, Alhambra, Pasadena, and Chino Hills. Maryann works on the 
majority of community facilities districts handled by our California public finance group.  


Maryann will be charged with the day-to-day responsibility for this engagement as well as the 
individual who will attend official meetings of the City when requested. Maryann will make 
disclosure presentations and training regarding disclosure practice to the City. These sessions 
focus on the responsibilities of governing boards, officials and staff, including individual and 
supervisory responsibility. 


Don Hunt is a partner in our Los Angeles office. Since joining Norton Rose Fulbright in 1995, Don 
Hunt, has been responsible for over 800 completed financings aggregating over $25 billion in 
principal amount, including recent CFD transactions closed as bond and/or disclosure counsel for 
issuers including City and County of San Francisco, City of Calimesa, City of Perris, City of San 
Diego, City of Rialto, City of Lake Elsinore, City of Santa Clarita, County of Kern, and City of 
Chino. Accordingly, Don has very extensive experience in interpreting and applying California law 
as it pertains to Mello-Roos bond financings. Don is particularly experienced in establishing 
community facilities districts as well as issuing bonds for such districts and acting as bond and/or 
disclosure counsel in connection with such issuances. Most recently he established a CFD and 
court validation for the City of Oakland and formed a CFD for the City of Calimesa. 


Mauricio Salazar is an associate in the Los Angeles office. He represents clients in a variety of 
public and government finance transactions serving as bond counsel and disclosure counsel. He 
works on a wide variety of financings including lease revenue bonds, revenue bonds, general 
obligation bonds and other obligations. Mauricio has experience providing legal advice to city 
councils, planning commissions, city directors and staff in a wide variety of practice areas 
including land use, zoning, contracts and elections. He has also worked as in-house counsel for 
an equipment leasing and finance company based in Los Angeles.  


Cliff Gerber is a tax partner in our San Francisco office who is nationally recognized in the federal 
income tax aspects of tax-exempt financing. Cliff’s practice includes providing tax advice to many 
large and medium-sized healthcare systems in connection with their tax-exempt bond issues. He 
also works with many cities and other municipal entities in connection with their infrastructure 
financings, including the issuance of water, wastewater and electric revenue bonds. Cliff has also 
provided tax advice in connection with multifamily housing, airport and port financings, and has 
worked on many California school district and community college district financings. He has also 
provided tax advice on many college and university bond issues. 


 


8.b. Provide a brief resume for each team member which should include any relevant 
California city public finance experience and qualifications, as well as an indication 
of California State Bar Membership. 


See Appendix C. 







95926223.2  
8 


 


COMPENSATION - BOND AND DISCLOSURE COUNSEL SERVICES  
Provide a proposed fee schedule by type of financing. 


See Appendix E. All such fees and expenses would be contingent on the issuance and delivery 
of bonds. If the Firm acts as both Bond and Disclosure Counsel for a transaction, the Disclosure 
Counsel fee shall be reduced by 15%. 


 
COMPENSATION – ON-GOING DISCLOSURE COUNSEL SERVICES 


Provide a proposed fee schedule for on-going disclosure counsel services 
including monthly flat fee, hourly or event-based scenarios.  All proposals for flat 
fee, hourly, or event-based compensation should clearly specify which types of 
services are covered by each type of compensation. 


For all on-going disclosure counsel services we propose our discounted hourly fees set forth 
below: 


Maryann Goodkind $345 


Don Hunt $650 


Mauricio Salazar $360 


Cliff Gerber $700 


 
REFERENCES 


Provide the names, addresses and telephone numbers for three (3) issuers with 
whom you have worked over the years, and who is able to attest to your firm’s 
expertise, quality of work, and the service provided. 


See Appendix B. 


 
EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS 


Include clarifications, exceptions and amendments, if any, to the RFPQ and 
associated Bid Documents. 


See Appendix D. 


 
MISCELLANEOUS 


Norton Rose Fulbright does not have a formal or informal arrangement with any other unrelated 
individuals or entities with regards to the sharing of any compensation, fees or profits received 
from or in relation to entering into a required professional services agreement with the City.  The 
City should be aware that Norton Rose Fulbright may represent or has represented certain 
municipal advisors/financial advisors, underwriters and others in other municipal bond matters, 
provided such representations do not violate standards of professional responsibility. We do not 
believe that the foregoing representations will, nor do we anticipate or have knowledge of any 
other arrangement or representation, formal or informal, with any other party that potentially could 
conflict with our obligation to provide independent and unbiased advice and recommendations to 
the City for its transactions. 







 


95926223.2  
A-1 


 


APPENDIX A  
 


BIDDER INFORMATION 


 


Official Name of Bidder:   Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 


Street Address:    555 South Flower Street, 41st Floor 


City, State, Zip Code:  Los Angeles, CA 90071 


Webpage:   www.nortonrosefulbright.com  


Type of Entity: The Firm is a limited liability partnership, formed under the laws of 
the State of Texas.  


Jurisdiction of  
Organizational Structure: Texas 


Federal Tax ID: 74-1201087 


Primary Contact Info: Maryann L. Goodkind, Counsel 
213 892 9328 (office) and 949 981 0795 (cell) 
maryann.goodkind@nortonrosefulbright.com  


 


Signature: ___________________________ 


 


Dated this 16th day of August, 2021.  


 


 
 







 


95926223.2  
B-1 


 


EXHIBIT B 


REFERENCES 


 
 
Bidder Name:   Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
 
  


City of Santa Clarita City of Merced City of Chino Hills 
Kenneth W. Striplin, Ed.D. 
City Manager 


23920 Valencia Blvd., # 300 


Santa Clarita, CA 91355 


Tel. (661) 255-4905 


kstriplin@santa-clarita.com 


Date of Services: January 
1999 – Present  


Description of Services: Bond 
and disclosure counsel 
services for a variety of 
financings, including CFDs, 
as well as on-going 
disclosure services.  


Venus Rodriguez 
Finance Officer 


678 W 18th Street, 1st Floor 


Merced, CA 95340 


Tel. (209) 388-7900 


rodriguezv@cityofmerced.org 


Date of Services: December 
2002 – Present  


Description of Services: Bond 
and disclosure counsel 
services for a variety of 
financings, as well as on-
going disclosure services. 


Christa Buhagiar 
Finance Director 


14000 City Center Drive 


Chino Hills, CA 91709 


Tel. (909) 364-2640 


cbuhagiar@chinohills.org  


Date of Services: June 2009 
– Present  


Description of Services: Bond 
and disclosure counsel 
services for a variety of 
financings including 
community facilities districts, 
as well as on-going 
disclosure services. 


   
Cathedral City City of El Centro Imperial County Local 


Transportation Authority 
Tami Scott 
Administrative Services Dir. 


68700 Avenida Lalo Guerrero 


Cathedral City, Ca 92234 


Tel: 760-770-0354 


tscott@cathedralcity.gov  


Date of Services: 2004 – 
Present  


Description of Services: Bond 
and disclosure counsel 
services for a variety of 
financings, including CFDs.  


Marcela Piedra 
City Manager 


1275 W. Main Street 


El Centro, CA 92243 


Tel: 760-337-4540 


rmpiedra@cityofelcentro.org  


Date of Services: 2003 – 
Present  


Description of Services: Bond 
and disclosure counsel 
services for a variety of 
financings. 


Mark Baza 
Executive Director 


1503 N Imperial Ave, Ste 104 


El Centro, CA 92243 


Tel. 760-592-4494 


markbaza@imperialctc.org  


Date of Services: 2018 – 
Present  


Description of Services: Bond 
and disclosure counsel 
services for a variety of 
financings. 


 
 







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.13 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021  


________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian Hadley, CBO, Building Official 
 
SUBJECT:  Adopt a Resolution to declare a public nuisance and abate all 


 weeds growing upon private property in the City 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution Entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -  ____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA DECLARING WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT UPON 


PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY A PUBLIC 
NUISANCE AND INITIATING ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Wildomar Municipal Code (WMC) Chapter 8.48 addresses Hazardous Vegetation. 
On March 11, 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance 183 regarding Hazardous 
Vegetation Notice to Abate Appeal.  The Ordinance amended the WMC to 
streamline the appeal process from a Board of Appeals to the City Manager as the 
Hearing Officer. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
In June and July 2021, Fire Prevention visited each vacant property and identified 
the properties that have Hazardous Vegetation then prepared notices and reported 
back to Code Enforcement staff.   Staff then mailed notices to the properties of 
concern.  After 30 days from sending the notice, Fire conducted re-inspections of 
the properties of concern during the last week of July 2021 and through August 
2021.  
Following the process outlined in the Government code, the Agenda Item and 
Resolution considered today addresses the Abatement Procedures Manual and 
sets a Public Hearing for October 13, 2021. Attached is a list of parcels designated 
for abatement.   
 


 







 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The fiscal impacts have been appropriated in the Operating Budget and include 


staff and fire inspection time associated with the Abatement process. 


 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Daniel York                         Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager    City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 


Exh. A Weed Abatement List of Properties 
 
  







 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021- ____ 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA DECLARING 
WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT UPON 
PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC 
RIGHTS OF WAY A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND 
INITIATING ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS 


WHEREAS, the City Council elects to proceed under Government Code 
Sections 39501 and 39502, and Section 39560 et. seq., to declare a public 
nuisance and abate all weeds growing upon streets, sidewalks, and private 
property in the City and all rubbish refuse and dirt upon parkways, sidewalks and 
private property in the City.  


WHEREAS, in this resolution and in all subsequent proceedings, the term 
"weeds” means “mature, bear wingy or downy seeds that will attain such large 
growth so as to become a fire menace when dry, or that are otherwise noxious or 
dangerous, and includes sagebrush, chaparral, poison oaks and poison ivy, when 
the conditions of growth are such to constitute a menace to the public health, dry 
grass, stubble, brush, litter and all other flammable material that endangers the 
public safety by creating a fire hazard.”  


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby 
resolve that: 


SECTION 1. PUBLIC NUISANCE. 


In accordance with Government Code section 39561, the City Council 
declares as a public nuisance all weeds growing upon vacant private property in 
the City, and all rubbish, refuse and dirt upon vacant private property in the City.  


SECTION 2. SPECIFIC PROPERTIES. 


The properties upon which, or in front of which the nuisance is declared in 
Section 1 are described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made part hereof by 
this reference.  







 


SECTION 3. FIRE CHIEF. 


The Fire Chief, or his authorized designee, is the person designated to 
perform the duties imposed by Government Code Sections 39560 through 39588 
upon the responsible employee, and all reference in these proceedings to 
responsible employee means that person.  


SECTION 4. HEARING. 


October 13, 2021, at 6:00 p.m., at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar, 
California, is fixed as the time and place for hearing all objections to the proposed 
removal of weeds. 


SECTION 5. NOTICES. 


The responsible employee shall prepare notices as follows: the heading of 
the notice shall be "Notice to destroy weeds and remove rubbish, refuse and dirt" 
in letters not less than one inch in height. Notice shall be posted on each separate 
property at least five (5) days before the time set for hearing in the manner 
prescribed by law.  


SECTION 6. NOTICE BY MAIL. 


As an alternative to posting, the City Clerk shall mail written notice of the 
proposed abatement to all persons owning property described in Section 2 of this 
resolution. Then notice shall be mailed to each person to whom the property is 
assessed as shown on the last equalized assessment roll. The City Clerk shall mail 
the notice at least five (5) days before the time set for hearing.  


PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2021. 


 


__________________________ 
Dustin Nigg, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 
____________________________ __________________________ 
Janet Morales, City Clerk Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
 







Parcel 


Number Homeowner's Mailing Address Homeowner's Name 1st Letter 


Re-


Inspection 


City 


Council
361-044-003 31702 RAILROAD CANYON RD, CANYON LAKE 92587 HELEN M. SCOTT 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-061-003 PO BOX 894131, TEMECULA 92589 RONALD D. CASSINI 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-061-017 PO BOX 894131, TEMECULA 92589 RONALD D. CASSINI 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-061-018 31702 RAILROAD CANYON RD, CANYON LAKE 92587 HELEN M. SCOTT 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-062-020 14359 HAVER FORD AVE., CHINO 91710 MIGUEL CHAVEZ VALLES; DELIA D. CHAVEZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-081-012 11028 JURUPA RD., MIRA LOMA 91752 HIBBARD CHARLENE B FAMILY TRUST; DOUGLAS HIBBARD 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-083-015 24182 OLIVE ST., MENIFEE 92584 J B ELITE 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-112-005 28761 AVENIDA PACIFIC, MENIFEE 92584 HBS FINANCIAL TAX & LAW INC 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-112-011 13587 VICTORIA ST., ETIWANDA 91739 MICHAEL N. PEREZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-112-012 4564 JONES AV NO 125, RIVERSIDE 92505 JOSE LUIS ROBLES 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-114-006 24601 GLEN IVY RD APT 136, CORONA 92883 MEHDI MOGHBELALHOSSEIN; NARGES SAATSAZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-172-013 23640 CIRCLE DR., QUAIL VALLEY 92587 GREGORIO BOTELLO 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-204-021 24570 BETHEL ST, WILDOMAR 92595 ISMAEL MARQUEZ 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-221-007 25351 NOELLE CT., LOMITA 90717 MICHELLE L FALCON HUBER 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
361-221-008 25351 NOELLE CT., LOMITA 90717 MICHELLE L FALCON HUBER 6/17/21 7/28/21 X
366-021-001 27134 TUBE ROSE ST., MURRIETA 92562 MARIO F. ZAVALA; MARCIA BERNARDA GRANJA 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-023-007 19800 OLD COACH RD., LAKE ELSINORE 92530 CECILIA E. MONTANO 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-112-007 6 N MICHIGAN AVE UNIT 1403, CHICAGO 60602 J BRUCE HASCH 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-270-029 4629 CASS ST NO 9, PACIFIC BEAC 92109 BEVERLY A. JUBALA 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
366-280-030 6476 E VIA ARBOLES, ANAHEIM 92807 STEPHEN L. OBRIEN 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
367-090-035 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-090-036 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-090-037 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-090-038 711 E IMPERIAL HWY, BREA 92821 NEXXGEN INC. 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-150-017 3857 BIRCH ST STE 501, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WEST COAST FUND 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-180-040 622 FELLOWS DR., ORANGE 92865 BRIAN M. JOHNSON; DARLENE RUE LOWE 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-250-007 2910 S ARCHIBALD AVE A350, ONTARIO 91761 23263 BUNDY CANYON ROAD 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-280-022 33290 TRANQUIL LN, WILDOMAR 92595 ARTURO GARCIA NAVA; MARIBEL DIAZ 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
367-310-002 9402 WELDON DR, GARDEN GROVE 92841 DUK SOOK CHOI 6/23/21 7/27/21 X
368-110-057 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
368-110-058 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
368-110-059 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
368-110-060 4340 VON KARMAN AVE 110, NEWPORT BEACH 92660 WILDOMAR HOUSING PARTNERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-060-003 9341 HAZEL CIR, VILLA PARK 92861 BEL AIR ENTERPRISES INC 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-230-033 33070 TRANQUIL LN, WILDOMAR 92595 PEDRO GARCIA 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-371-007 20691 GRAND AVE, WILDOMAR 92595 GEORGE WALTERS 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
370-400-009 1003 FOXGLOVE VIEW, CARLSBAD 92011 LOMA LINDA RENTALS INC. 6/17/21 8/4/21 X
380-040-005 3606 FRONT ST, SAN DIEGO 92103 RONALD AUERBACHER; DAVID P. WOLSKE 6/28/21 8/4/21 X







380-120-013 43180 CORONA CALA CAMINO, MURRIETA 92562 CRAZY EIGHTS 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-150-011 35690 IODINE SPRINGS RD., WILDOMAR 92595 BRUCE E. RESTAD; KIM B. RESTAD 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-160-018 26111 SALLY DR, LAKE FOREST 92630 R & H WILDOMAR 1 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-160-021 PO BOX 976, ORANGE, 92856 KAREN GONZALES 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-183-013 PO BOX 610, MURRIETA 92564 STONEHURST HOMEOWNERS ASSN 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-210-016 26111 SALLY DR, LAKE FOREST 92630 R & H WILDOMAR 1 6/28/21 8/4/21 X
380-290-002 1526 ZARA STREET, GLENDORA 91741 SHIBA YAMAMOTO & PARTNERS 6/28/21 8/4/21 X


376-043-027 3173 VERA VALLEY RD., FRANKLIN, TN 37064
GHEVOND HOOKASSIAN; WAKELIN MCNEEL; ZARAH 


HOOKASSIAN; PARVANEH ZOLNOUNI
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-051-006 35431 MEADOW PARK CR., WILDOMAR 92595 JALEEL KARIMI 8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-150-002 27174 NEWPORT RD. #3, MENIFEE 92584
LA CRUZ RODRIGEZ LEOVE DE; MONICA R. RODRIGUEZ; 


DEVEN OWEN; KELLY OWEN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-150-003 27174 NEWPORT RD. #3, MENIFEE 92584
LA CRUZ RODRIGEZ LEOVE DE; MONICA R. RODRIGUEZ; 


DEVEN OWEN; KELLY OWEN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


376-150-014 21618 PALOMAR RD., WILDOMAR 92595 SAUL AYALA 8/2/21 9/1/21 X
376-320-010 14530 CORNISHCREST RD., WHITTIER 90604 JAMES A. TANQUARY; KATHRYN S. TANQUARY 8/2/21 9/1/21 X


362-240-005 16391 HARWICH CR., RIVERSIDE 92503
STEPHEN E. MACIE; MARIA S. MACIE; ELLEN P. MERKIN; 


JOSEPH D. MERKIN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


362-240-008 16391 HARWICH CR., RIVERSIDE 92503
STEPHEN E. MACIE; MARIA S. MACIE; ELLEN P. MERKIN; 


JOSEPH D. MERKIN
8/2/21 9/1/21 X


382-150-046 22961 FAWN LAKE PL., CANYON LAKE 92587 CALEB JOHNSON 8/2/21 9/1/21 X
382-150-048 22961 FAWN LAKE PL., CANYON LAKE 92587 CALEB JOHNSON 8/2/21 9/1/21 X







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.14 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


___________________ _________________________________________ ____ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager / City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Annexation No. 21 into Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 


(Services) for Omni/McVicar (TR 32035) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -   __ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ANNEX 
TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES), OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ADOPTING A MAP OF 
THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED (ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
AND AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On March 12, 2014 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-09 establishing 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) of the City of Wildomar (the "CFD 
No. 2013-1" or "District") and authorizing the levying of special taxes on parcels of 
taxable property for the purpose of providing certain services which are necessary to 
meet increased demands placed upon the City. 
 
The owners, Omni Financial LLC, et al, of a residential TR 32035 containing 18.81 
acres within the City have requested that the City annex this territory into CFD No. 
2013-1 (Services) to cover the costs associated with the maintenance of public 
improvements. The improvements proposed to be maintained include items such as 
landscaping, lighting, street maintenance, drainage, parks, trails maintenance and 
graffiti abatement.  
 
In addition to maintaining public improvements the CFD No. 2013-1 will include a 
special tax to provide for financing of certain public services to meet increased demands 
of police and fire protection services as a result of the new developments that annex 
into the CFD. 
 







  
 


 


The multiple landowners have advised the City that it desires the area described in 
Exhibit A of the Resolution of Intention to be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1 and that a 
rate and method of apportionment of special tax to be levied therein be established.  
 
The area proposed within Annexation No. 21 will encompass 48 residential units in TR 
32035, with a FY 2021-22 maximum annual tax of $2,173.36 per unit, per year.   The 
tract proposed to be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1 will be included in Tax Zone 23. This 
tax rate includes a Maximum Special Tax A of $1,830.03 per unit per year for 
maintenance services of public facilities, and Maximum Special Tax B of $343.33 per 
unit per year for safety services.  Both of these tax rates are proposed to escalate each 
year. Maximum Special Tax A will increase by the greater of Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) or 2% and Special Tax B will increase by the greater of CPI or 5%.  Omni 
Financial LLC, the owners, have agreed to the annexation into the CFD and submitted a 
"Consent and Waiver" form on file in the City Clerk's Office, to initiate and conduct 
proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act of 1982, requesting the annexation of 
property to CFD No. 2013-1 (Services) and consenting to the shortening of election time 
requirements, waiving analysis and arguments, and waiving all notice requirements 
relating to conduct the election.   
 
The next step to annex the property to CFD No. 2013-1 is to publish a notice of public 
hearing of the proposed annexation as required by the Mello-Roos Act.  A public 
hearing on the matter will take place on October 13, 2021 and at that time the Council 
will formally consider approval of Annexation No. 21. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The projected levy for FY 2021-22 is $87,841.57 for the first year of maintenance 
services.  Special Tax B will generate $16,479.84 once all 48 units are developed.  


 
Submitted by: Approved by: 
Dan York Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/ City Engineer City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


1) Resolution of Intention 2021-   
a) Description of Territory 
b) Description of Authorized Services 
c) Rate and Method of Apportionment 
d) Proposed Annexation Boundary Map 
e) Signed Petitions, Waivers and Consent for Annexation 
f) Notice of Public Hearing 
g) Sample Ballots for multiple owners 
h) Maintenance Exhibit 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -    
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS 
INTENTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY INTO 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 
(SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ADOPTING 
A MAP OF THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED 
(ANNEXATION NO. 21) AND AUTHORIZING THE LEVY 
OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 


 
 


WHEREAS, on March 12, 2014, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of 
Wildomar (the “City”) approved Resolution No. 2014-09 establishing Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) ("CFD No. 2013-1"), of the City of Wildomar, 
County of Riverside, State of California, for the purpose of levying special taxes on 
parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of providing certain services which 
are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the City; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received a written instrument from the landowners to 
initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities 
District Act of 1982 (the “Act”), to annex territory into CFD No. 2013-1 and consenting 
to the shortening of election time requirements, waiving analysis and arguments, and 
waiving all notice requirements relating to the conduct of the election; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been advised that the landowners have requested 
that the area described and shown in Exhibits A and D be annexed into the boundaries 
of CFD No. 2013-1, that a rate and method of apportionment of special tax to be levied 
therein be established. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, ACTING EX OFFICIO AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 


 
Section 1.  Intent to Annex. The City Council hereby declares that it proposes and 
intends to conduct proceedings pursuant to Article 3.5 of the Act for the annexation to 
CFD No. 2013-1 of the territory described in Exhibit A attached hereto. The City 
Council determines that the public convenience and necessity require that such 
territory be annexed into CFD No. 2013-1. 
Section 2.  Name of the Community Facilities District. The name of the existing 
community facilities district is known as “Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 
(Services).” 







Section 3.   Description of Territory Proposed to be Annexed, Annexation Map. The 
territory proposed to be annexed is included within the boundaries within which 
property may annex to CFD No. 2013-1 and is more particularly described and shown 
on that certain map entitled “Boundaries – Potential Annexation Area Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) of the City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, 
State of California,” as recorded on February 18, 2014 in Book 76 of Maps of 
Assessment and Community Facilities District, Pages 65-67, and as Instrument No. 
2014-0062325 in the official records of the County of Riverside. The territory proposed 
to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1 is described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by 
this reference made a part hereof. Such territory is also shown and described on the 
map thereof entitled "Proposed Annexation Map No. 21, Community Facilities District 
No. 2013-1 (Services), City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California," 
which is on file with the City Clerk (the "Annexation Map") and attached hereto as 
Exhibit D. 
Section 4.    Description of Authorized Services. The services proposed to be financed 
by CFD No. 2013-1 (the “Services”) are described in Exhibit B attached hereto. The 
cost of providing the Services includes “administrative expenses,” which include costs 
associated with the creation of CFD No. 2013-1, determination of the amount of special 
taxes, collection or payment of special taxes, or costs otherwise incurred in order to 
carry out the authorized purposes of CFD No. 2013-1.  The Services authorized to be 
financed by CFD No. 2013-1 are in addition to those currently provided in the territory 
of CFD No. 2013-1 and do not supplant services already available within that territory. 
Section 5.   Levy of Special Taxes. Except where funds are otherwise available, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs of the Services (including administrative 
expenses), secured by recordation of a continuing lien against all nonexempt real 
property in CFD No. 2013-1, will be levied annually within CFD No. 2013-1. The rate 
and method of apportionment, and manner of collection of the special tax are specified 
in Exhibit C. 
Section 6.   Adoption of Annexation Map. Pursuant to Section 3110.5 of the Streets 
and Highways Code, the City Council adopts the Annexation Map attached hereto as 
Exhibit D as the map of the area proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1. 
Pursuant to Section 3111 of said Code, the City Clerk shall file the original of the 
Annexation map in her office and shall file a copy of the Annexation Map with the 
County Recorder of the County of Riverside no later than 15 days prior to the date of 
the hearing specified in Section 7 hereof. 
Section 7.  Public Hearing. The City Council hereby fixes 5:00 p.m., or as soon 
thereafter as practicable, on Wednesday, October 13, 2021, in the City Council 
Chambers located at 23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Wildomar, California 92595, as the time 
and place when and where the City Council will conduct a public hearing on the 
proposed annexation of the said territory to the CFD No. 2013-1. 


 
Section 8.   Notice of Public Hearing. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish, or 
cause to be published, a notice of said public hearing, in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit F, one time in a newspaper of general circulation published 
in the area of CFD No. 2013-1. The publication of said notice shall be completed at 
least seven days prior to the date herein fixed for said hearing. Said notice shall 
contain the information prescribed by Section 53322 of the Act. 


 
 







Section 9.   Mailing Ballots. In anticipation of its action on Wednesday, October 13, 
2021 to call the election on the annexation for the same date, pursuant to waiver of 
election time limits from the landowners, the City Council hereby authorizes the City 
Clerk to mail to each landowner in the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 
2013-1 a ballot in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit G hereto. A copy of the 
waiver and consent form signed by the property owner is attached hereto as Exhibit E 
and incorporated herein by this reference. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2021. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Dustin Nigg 


 Mayor 
 
 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Thomas D. Jex Janet Morales 
City Attorney City Clerk 


 







EXHIBIT A 


DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED TERRITORY TO BE ANNEXED 







DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED TERRITORY TO BE ANNEXED 


The City of Wildomar Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the “CFD No. 2013-1”) Annexation 
No. 21 is currently comprised of three parcels located within the city boundaries. The property is identified by 
the following Riverside County Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APNs). 


APN Owner Names


380-040-005


David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 


Harry L .Keays 
Omni Financial, LLC 
Orbis Financial, LLC 
Ronald Auerbacher 


Joan Maresca 


380-040-007


David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 


Harry L .Keays 
Omni Financial, LLC 
Orbis Financial, LLC 
Ronald Auerbacher 


Joan Maresca 


380-040-029
Omni Financial, LLC 


Pensco Trust Company 
Myra J. Ekrem 











EXHIBIT C


RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT







 


City of Wildomar    1 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


RATES AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


A Special Tax  (the “Special Tax”) shall be  levied on and collected  from each Assessor’s Parcel 
(defined below) in Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) (the “CFD No. 2013‐1” or 
“CFD”;  defined  below),  in  each  Fiscal  Year,  (defined  below),  commencing  in  the  Fiscal  Year 
beginning July 1, 2014,  in an amount determined by the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 
acting ex officio as the legislative body of CFD No. 2013‐1, by applying the rates and method of 
apportionment set forth below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2013‐1, unless exempted by 
law or by the provisions herein, shall be taxed to the extent and in the manner provided herein. 


 


A. DEFINITIONS 
 


“Acre” or “Acreage” means the land area of an Assessor’s Parcel as shown on any Assessor’s 
Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on the Assessor’s Parcel Map, the land area as 
shown on the applicable Final Map, or if the area is not shown on the applicable Final Map, 
the land area shall be calculated by the Administrator. 


 


“Administrative Expenses” means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related 
to the formation, annexation, and administration of CFD No. 2013‐1 including, but not limited 
to: the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing the annual Special Tax collection 
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs to the City, CFD No. 
2013‐1,  or  any  designee  thereof  associated with  fulfilling  the  CFD No.  2013‐1  disclosure 
requirements; the costs associated with responding to public inquiries regarding the Special 
Taxes; the costs of the City, CFD No. 2013‐1 or any designee thereof related to an appeal of 
the  Special  Tax;  and  the  City's  annual  administration  fees  and  third  party  expenses. 
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts estimated or advanced by  the City or CFD 
No. 2013‐1 for any other administrative purposes of CFD No. 2013‐1, including attorney's fees 
and  other  costs  related  to  commencing  and  pursuing  to  completion  any  foreclosure  of 
delinquent Special Taxes. 


 
“Administrator” means the City Manager of the City of Wildomar, or his or her designee. 


 
“Approved Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property that are included in a 
Final Map that was recorded prior to the March 1 of preceding the Fiscal Year in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel” means a lot or parcel of land that is identifiable by an Assessor’s Parcel 
Number by the County Assessor of the County of Riverside. 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel Map” means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating 
parcels by Assessor’s Parcel Number. 


 







 


City of Wildomar    2 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Assessor’s Parcel Number” means that  identification number assigned to a parcel by the 
County Assessor of the County. 


 


“Building Square Footage” or “BSF” means the floor area square footage reflected on the 
original construction building permit issued for construction of a building of Non‐Residential 
Property and any Building Square Footage subsequently added to a building of such Taxable 
Property after issuance of a building permit for expansion or renovation of such building. 


 
“CFD” or “CFD No. 2013‐1” means  the City of Wildomar Community Facilities District No. 
2013‐1 (Services). 


 
“City” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 


 


“County” means the County of Riverside. 
 


“Developed Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building 
permit for new construction has been issued on or prior to March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year 
in which the Special Tax is being levied. 


 


“Exempt Property” means all Assessors’ Parcels designated as being exempt from the Special 
Tax as provided for in Section G. 


 
“Final Map” means a subdivision of property by recordation of a final map, parcel map, or lot 
line adjustment, pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act (California Government Code Section 
66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan pursuant to California Civil Code 1352 
that  creates  individual  lots  for  which  building  permits  may  be  issued  without  further 
subdivision. 


 


“Fiscal Year” means the period from and including July 1st of any year to and including the 
following June 30th. 


 
“Land Use Category” means, any of the categories contained in Section B. hereof to which an 
Assessor’s Parcel is assigned consistent with the land use approvals that have been received 
or proposed for the Assessor’s Parcel as of March 1 preceding the Fiscal Year  in which the 
Special Tax is being levied. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax” means the Maximum Special Tax A and/or Maximum Special Tax B, 
as applicable. 


 
“Maximum Special Tax A” means the Maximum Special Tax A, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 
 
 


 







 


City of Wildomar    3 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


“Maximum Special Tax B” means the Maximum Special Tax B, as determined in accordance 
with Section C., below, that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel within 
CFD No. 2013‐1. 


 


“Multi‐Family Residential Property” means any Assessor’s Parcel of residential property that 
consists of a building or buildings comprised of attached Residential Units available for rental, 
but not purchase, by the general public and under common management. 


 
“Non‐Residential Property” means, all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property  for which a 
building permit(s) was  issued  for a non‐residential use. The Administrator  shall make  the 
determination if an Assessor’s Parcel is Non‐Residential Property. 


 
“Proportionately” means for Taxable Property that is: (i) Developed Property, that the ratio 
of  the  actual  Special  Tax  levy  to  the Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all Parcels of 
Developed Property, (ii) Approved Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax  levy to 
the  Maximum  Special  Tax  is  the  same  for  all  Parcels  of  Approved  Property,  and  (iii) 
Undeveloped Property that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levy per acre to the Maximum 
Special Tax per acre is the same for all Parcels of Undeveloped Property. 


 


“Residential Unit” or "RU" means a residential unit that is used or intended to be used as a 
domicile by one or more persons, as determined by the Administrator. 


 
“Residential  Property”  means  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of  Taxable  Property  upon  which 
completed Residential Units have been constructed or for which building permits have been 
or may be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units. 


 


“Service(s)” means  services permitted under  the Mello‐Roos Community  Facilities Act of 
1982 including, without limitation, those services authorized to be funded by CFD No. 2013‐ 
1 as set forth in the documents adopted by the City Council at the time the CFD was formed. 


 


“Single  Family  Residential  Property”  means  any  residential  property  that  consists  of  a 
building comprised of attached or detached residential units available for purchase or rent by 
the general public. 


 


“Special Tax(es)” means the Special Tax A and/or Special Tax B to be levied in each Fiscal Year 
on each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property. 


 


“Special  Tax  A”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Special Tax A Requirement. 


 
“Special  Tax  B”  means  the  annual  special  tax  to  be  levied  in  each  Fiscal  Year  on  each 
Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property to fund the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
 







 


City of Wildomar    4 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


"Special Tax A Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and the next Fiscal Year. The costs to be covered shall be the direct costs for (i) maintenance 
services including but not limited to (i) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, 
roads and open space, (ii) maintenance and operation of water quality  improvements, (iii) 
public street sweeping, (iv) fund an operating reserve for the costs of Services as determined 
by  the Administrator,  and  (v) Administrative  Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the 
Special Tax A Requirement include funds for Bonds. 


 


"Special Tax B Requirement" means that amount to be collected in any Fiscal Year to pay for 
certain costs as required to meet the needs of CFD No. 2013‐1 in both the current Fiscal Year 
and  the  next  Fiscal  Year.  The  costs  to  be  covered  shall  be  the  direct  costs  for  (i)  police 
protection  services,  (ii)  fire  protection  and  suppression  services,  (iii)  fund  an  operating 
reserve for the costs of Services as determined by the Administrator, and (iv) Administrative 
Expenses. Under no  circumstances  shall  the  Special Tax B Requirement  include  funds  for 
Bonds. 


 


"Taxable Property" means all Assessor’s Parcels within CFD No. 2013‐1, which are not Exempt 
Property. 


 


"Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area, within which particular Special Tax 
rates may be  levied pursuant  to  this Rate  and Method of Apportionment of  Special Tax. 
Exhibit "C" identifies the Tax Zone in CFD No. 2013‐1 at formation; additional Tax Zones may 
be created when property is annexed into the CFD. 


 
"Tax Zone 1" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 1. 


 
"Tax Zone 2" means the geographic area the specific area  identified on the CFD Boundary 
Map as Tax Zone 2. 


 


"Tract(s)" means an area of land within a subdivision identified by a particular tract number 
on a Final Map approved for the subdivision. 


 


“Undeveloped Property” means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as 
Developed Property or Approved Property. 


 
B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES 


 
For each Fiscal Year, all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property within CFD No. 2013‐1 shall be 
classified as Developed Property, Approved Property, or Undeveloped Property, and shall be 
subject  to  the  levy  of  Special  Taxes  as  determined  pursuant  to  Sections C  and D  below. 
Assessor’s Parcels of Developed Property and Approved Property shall be classified as either 
Residential Property or Non‐Residential Property. 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    5 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


C. MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATES 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


For purposes of determining the applicable Maximum Special Tax A for Assessor’s Parcels 
of  Developed  Property  and  Approved  Property  which  are  classified  as  Residential 
Property, all such Assessor’s Parcels shall be assigned the number of Residential Unit(s) 
constructed  or  to  be  constructed  thereon  as  specified  in  or  shown  on  the  building 
permit(s)  issued  or  Final  Map  as  determined  by  the  Administrator.  For  Parcels  of 
undeveloped property zoned for development of single family attached or multi‐family 
units,  the  number  of  Residential  Units  shall  be  determined  by  referencing  the 
condominium plan, apartment plan, site plan or other development plan, or by assigning 
the maximum allowable units permitted based on the underlying zoning for the Parcel. 
Once a single family attached or multi‐family building or buildings have been built on an 
Assessor's Parcel, the Administrator shall determine the actual number of Residential 
Units contained within the building or buildings, and the Special Tax levied against the 
Parcel  in  the next Fiscal Year shall be calculated by multiplying  the actual number of 
Residential Units by the Maximum Special Tax A per Residential Unit identified for the 
Tracts in Table 1 below. 


 


a. Developed Property 
 


(i) Maximum Special Tax A 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 1 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015  for a Residential Unit within the 
Tracts are identified in Table 1 below: 


 


TABLE 1 
Maximum Special Tax A Rates 


 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


(ii) Increase in the Maximum Special Tax A 
 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Developed 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 







 


City of Wildomar    6 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


(iii) Multiple Land Use Categories 


In some instances an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property may contain more 
than one Land Use Category. The Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied on an 
Assessor's Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special Tax A that can be levied 
for each Land Use Category  located on that Assessor's Parcel. For an Assessor's 
Parcel that contains more than one land use, the Acreage of such Assessor's Parcel 
shall  be  allocated  to  each  type  of  property  based  on  the  amount  of  Acreage 
designated for each land use as determined by reference to the site plan approved 
for such Assessor's Parcel. The Administrator's allocation to each type of property 
shall be final. 


b. Approved Property 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 2 is shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property 
is  annexed  into  CFD  No.  2013‐1,  the  rate  and  method  adopted  for  the  annexed 
property shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The 
Maximum  Special Tax A  for  Fiscal  Year 2014‐2015 per Residential Unit within  the 
Tracts is identified in Table 2 below: 


 
TABLE 2 


Maximum Special Tax A Rates 
 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


2  31479  $346.00 per Residential Unit 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax A for Approved 
Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning 
of the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 


c. Undeveloped Property 
 


The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property is shown 
in Table 3 shall be specific to each Tract within the CFD. When additional property is 
annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the rate and method adopted for the annexed property 
shall reflect the Maximum Special Tax A for the Tract or Tracts annexed. The Maximum 
Special Tax A  for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 per acre within  the Tracts are  identified  in 
Table 3 below: 


 
 
 


 







 


City of Wildomar    7 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TABLE 3 
Maximum Special Tax A Rates 


 


Tax Zone  Tracts  Maximum Special Tax A 


1  32535  $1,762 per Acre 


2  31479  $1,541 per Acre 


 


On  each  July  1,  commencing  on  July  1,  2015  the  Maximum  Special  Tax  A  for 
Undeveloped Property shall increase by i) the percentage increase in the Consumer 
Price  Index (All  Items)  for Los Angeles  ‐ Riverside  ‐ Orange County  (1982‐84 = 100) 
since  the  beginning  of  the  preceding  Fiscal  Year,  or  ii)  by  two  percent  (2.0%), 
whichever is greater. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


The Special Tax B is an annual Special Tax that shall be levied on Developed Property 
to fund the Special Tax Requirement B. 


 
a. Developed Property 


 


(i) Maximum Special Tax B 
 


The Maximum Special Tax B for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 for each Land Use Class is 
shown in Table 4. When additional property is annexed into CFD No. 2013‐1, the 
rate and method adopted  for  the annexed property shall reflect  the Maximum 
Special Tax B for the Tract or Tracts annexed. 


 


TABLE 4 
Maximum Special Tax B Rates 


 


Land Use Class  Description  Unit  Maximum Special Tax B 
1  Single Family Residential  RU  $244.00 


2  Multi‐Family Residential  RU  $173.00 


 


On each July 1, commencing on July 1, 2015 the Maximum Special Tax B for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) since the beginning of 
the preceding Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 


No Special Tax shall be levied on property which, at the time of adoption of the Resolution 
of Formation for CFD No. 2013‐1, is an Exempt Property. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    8 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX 
 


1. Special Tax A 
 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax A Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
A on all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property until the aggregate amount of Special 
Tax A equals the Special Tax A Requirement. The Special Tax A shall be levied for each 
Fiscal Year as follows: 


 
First: The Special Tax A shall be  levied Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax A to satisfy 
the Special Tax A Requirement; 


 


Second:  If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement 
after  the  first  step  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on each Parcel of Approved Property at up to 100% of the Maximum 
Special Tax A for Approved Property; 


 


Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax A Requirement after 
the  first  two  steps  has  been  completed,  the  Special  Tax  A  shall  be  levied 
Proportionately on all Assessor’s Parcels of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the 
Maximum Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property. 


 
2. Special Tax B 


 


Commencing  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  and  for  each  following  Fiscal  Year,  the 
Council shall determine the Special Tax B Requirement and shall levy the Special Tax 
B until the aggregate amount of Special Tax B equals the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 
The  Special  Tax  B  shall  be  levied  Proportionately  on  all  Assessor’s  Parcels  of 
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax B to satisfy 
the Special Tax B Requirement. 


 


E. FUTURE ANNEXATIONS 
 


It is anticipated that additional properties will be annexed to CFD No. 2013‐1 from time 
to time. As each annexation is proposed, an analysis will be prepared to determine the 
annual cost for providing Services. Based on this analysis, the property to be annexed, 
pursuant  to California Government Code section 53339 et seq. will be assigned  to  the 
appropriate Maximum Special Tax rate for the Tract or Tracts when annexed. 


 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    9 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


F. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX 
 


For each Fiscal Year, the Special Taxes shall be  levied as  long as the Services are being 
provided. 


 


G. EXEMPTIONS 
 


The City shall classify as Exempt Property within CFD No. 2013‐1, any Assessor’s Parcel in 
any of  the  following categories;  (i) Assessor’s Parcels which are owned by,  irrevocably 
offered  for  dedication,  encumbered  by  or  restricted  in  use  by  any  public  entity;  (ii) 
Assessor’s Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical their utilization for 
other  than  the  purposes  set  forth  in  the  easement;  (iii) Assessor’s  Parcels which  are 
privately owned but are encumbered by or restricted solely for public uses; or (iv) any 
Assessor’s Parcel which is in use in the performance of a public function as determined by 
the Administrator. 


 
H. APPEALS 


 
Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Taxes are not 
correct may file a written notice of appeal with the City not later than twelve months after 
having paid the first installment of the Special Tax(es) that is disputed. A representative(s) 
of CFD No. 2013‐1  shall promptly  review  the appeal, and  if necessary, meet with  the 
property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of the Special 
Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative’s decision requires that the Special Tax 
for an Assessor’s Parcel be modified or changed  in favor of the property owner, a cash 
refund shall not be made, but an adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax on that 
Assessor’s Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s). 


 
I. MANNER OF COLLECTION 


 


The Special Tax(es) shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary 
ad  valorem  property  taxes,  provided,  however,  that  CFD No.  2013‐1 may  collect  the 
Special Tax at a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial 
obligations. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    10 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES)  


COST ESTIMATE 


Maintenance  Services  ‐  The  estimate  breaks  down  the  costs  of  providing  one  year's 
maintenance services for FY 2021‐2022. These services are being funded by the levy of Special 
Tax A for Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1. 


TAX ZONE 23 – Annexation 21 
TR 32035 


 


Item  Description  Estimated Cost 


1    Landscaping                        $25,653  


2  Lighting  $6,413 


3  Streets  $3,587 


4  Drainage   $23,775 


5  Parks  $8,592 


6  Trails  $5,943 


7  Graffiti  $87 


8  Reserves  $6,387 


9  Administration  $7,405 


Total   $87,842 


 
Safety Services ‐ It is estimated that the cost of providing police and fire protection services 
being funded by Special Tax B for the Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) as 
outlined in Exhibit “B” hereto, will be as follows for the first year: 


 $343.33 per residential unit 







 


City of Wildomar    11 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


TAX ZONE SUMMARY 
 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Maximum 
Special Tax 


B 


 
Subdivider 


Original  1  32535  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU  CV Communities LLC 


Original  2  31479  2014‐15  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Rancon Equity 


Partners III 


1  3 
25122/ 
32078 


2015‐16  $346.00 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Rancho Fortunado 


Inv, LLC 


2  4  PM 16803  2015‐16  $51.41 / Acre  N/A 
Moralez Enterprises, 


LLC 


3  5  36497  2015‐16  $522.27 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Lennar Homes of 


California, Inc. 


4  6  PM 36492  2015‐16  $766.14 / Acre  N/A 
Rancon Medical and 


Education Center, LLC 
5  7  29476  2016‐17  $688.60 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Alta Colina, LLC 


6  8  36519  2016‐17  $777.35 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Keusder, LLC / MSL 


Orange, Inc. 


7  9  PP 10‐0222  2016‐17  $7,650.78 / RU  N/A 
Plaza de Bundy 


Canyon, LLC 


8  10  32206  2016‐17  $633.51 / RU  $244.00 / RU  Wildomar Land, LLC 


9  11  PM 36080  2018‐19  $3,302.61 / Acre  N/A 
CK‐HS Partners, LLC / 
SNDH Partners, LLC 


10  12  PM 32833  2017‐18  $1,418.22 / RU  $244.00 / RU 
Wildomar Housing 


Partners, LLC 


11  13  PM 36653  2017‐18  $333.00 / RU  $282.46 / RU  Benson Residential 


12  14 
LLA 2016‐


005 
2018‐19  $2,325.03 / Acre  N/A  Sunbelt Rentals 


13  15 
CUP/PP 15‐


0013 
2019‐20  $3,330.26/Acre  N/A  Clinton Keith Village 


14  16  CUP 16‐
0095 


2019‐20  $1,513.72/Acre  N/A 
Big Easy RV Boat 


Storage 


15  17  TR 32726  2019‐20  $1,012.37 / RU  $311.41 / RU 
Hacienda Properties, 


LLC 


16  18  PM 32257  2019‐20  $3,301.26/Acre  N/A 
Tesoro Refining & 
Marketing Co LLC 


17  19  TR 32024  2019‐20  $1,073.91/RU  $311.41/RU 
KB Home Coastal 


 Inc. 


18  20  PM 36492  2019‐20  $2,503.60/ 
Acre 


N/A 
Rancon Medical and 


Education Center, LLC 


19  21  PA 16‐0138  2019‐20  $253.39/ Acre  N/A 
Smith Ranch Storage., 


 LLC 


20  22  PM 37276  2020‐21  $1,253.44 / RU  $326.98 / RU  Thanh T. Tran 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $1,830.03 / RU  $343.33 / RU 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 


 
 







 


City of Wildomar    12 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


APPROVED PROPERTY 
 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $1,830.03 / RU 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 


 
UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 


 


 
Annexation 


Tax 
Zone 


 
Tract 


Fiscal 
Year 


Maximum 
Special Tax A 


Subdivider 


21  23  TR 32035  2021‐22  $9,621.20 / Acre 
Omni Financial, LLC,  


et al 


 


 


ESCALATION OF MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES 
 


Maximum  Special  Tax A  ‐ On each  July 1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax A  for Developed 
Property,  Approved  Property  and  Undeveloped  Property  shall  increase  by  i)  the 
percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (All Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ 
Orange County (1982‐84  = 100) for the calendar year ending in March of the prior Fiscal 
Year, or ii) by two percent (2.0%), whichever is greater. 


 


Maximum  Special  Tax B  ‐ On  each  July  1,  the Maximum  Special  Tax B  for Developed 
Property  shall  increase by  i)  the percentage  increase  in  the Consumer Price  Index  (All 
Items) for Los Angeles ‐ Riverside ‐ Orange County (1982‐84 = 100) for the calendar year 
ending in March of the prior Fiscal Year, or ii) by five percent (5.0%), whichever is greater. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


City of Wildomar    13 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


DESCRIPTION OF AUTHORIZED SERVICES 


The services which may be funded with proceeds of the special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1, as provided by 
Section  53313  of  the  Act,  will  include  all  costs  attributable  to  maintaining,  servicing,  cleaning, 
repairing and/or replacing landscaped areas (may include reserves for replacement) in public street 
right‐of‐ways, public  landscaping, public open  spaces and other  similar  landscaped areas officially 
dedicated for public use. In addition, the services which may include some or all costs attributable to 
police protection, and fire services. These services including the following: 


 
(a) maintenance and lighting of parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space, which 


maintenance and lighting services may include, without limitation, furnishing of electrical power to 
street lights; repair and replacement of damaged or inoperative light bulbs, fixtures and standards; 
maintenance (including irrigation and replacement) of landscaping vegetation situated on or adjacent 
to parks, parkways,  streets,  roads and open  space; maintenance and  repair of  irrigation  facilities; 
maintenance of public signage; graffiti removal from and maintenance and repair of public structures 
situated on parks, parkways, streets, roads and open space; maintenance and repair of playground or 
recreation program equipment or facilities situated on any park; and 


 
(b) maintenance  and  operation  of  water  quality  improvements  which  include  storm 


drainage  and  flood protection  facilities,  including, without  limitation, drainage  inlets,  catch basin 
inserts, infiltration basins, flood control channels, fossil fuel filters, and similar facilities. Maintenance 
services may include but is not limited to the repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any of 
the water quality improvements, fossil fuel filters within the public right‐of‐way including the removal 
of petroleum hydrocarbons and other pollutants from water runoff, or appurtenant facilities, clearing 
of  inlets and outlets; erosion repairs; and cleanup to  improvements, and other  items necessary for 
the maintenance, servicing; or both of  the water quality basin  improvements within  flood control 
channel improvements; and 
 


(c) public street sweeping, on the segments of the arterials within the boundaries of CFD 
No. 2013‐1; as well as local roads within residential subdivisions located within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 
any portions adjacent to the properties within CFD No. 2013‐1; and 


 
(d) police protection services, including but not limited to criminal justice services, and 


fire protection and suppression services. 


 
In addition to payment of the cost and expense of the forgoing services, proceeds of the special tax 
may be expended to pay “Administrative Expenses,” as said term is defined in the Rate and Method 
of Apportionment. 


 
The above services shall be limited to those provided within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1 or for 
the benefit of the properties within the boundaries of CFD No. 2013‐1, as the boundary is expanded 
from time to time by anticipated annexations, and said services may be financed by proceeds of the 
special tax of CFD No. 2013‐1 only to the extent that they are  in addition to those provided  in the 
territory of CFD No. 2013‐1 before CFD No. 2013‐1 was created. 


 
 







 


City of Wildomar    14 
Community Facilities District No. 2013‐1 (Services) 


 


 


  EXHIBIT C 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013‐1 (SERVICES) 


                PROPOSED BOUNDARIES 
 
 







PR
O


PO
SE


D
 A


N
N


EX
AT


IO
N


 M
A


P 
N


O
. 2


1
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y 
FA


C
IL


IT
IE


S 
D


IS
TR


IC
T 


N
O


. 2
01


3-
1 


(S
ER


VI
C


ES
)


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


,
C


O
U


N
TY


 O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 S
TA


TE
 O


F 
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


TH
IS


 M
A


P
 S


H
O


W
S 


TH
E 


B
O


U
N


D
A


R
IE


S 
O


F 
A


R
EA


S 
TO


 B
E 


A
N


N
EX


ED
TO


 
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y 
FA


C
IL


IT
IE


S 
D


IS
TR


IC
T 


N
O


. 
2


0
1


3
-1


 
(S


ER
V


IC
ES


)
O


F 
TH


E 
C


IT
Y 


O
F 


W
IL


D
O


M
A


R
, 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 
ST


A
TE


O
F 


C
A


LI
FO


R
N


IA
. 


  


TH
E 


B
O


U
N


D
A


R
IE


S 
O


F 
W


H
IC


H
 


C
O


M
M


U
N


IT
Y 


FA
C


IL
IT


IE
S 


D
IS


TR
IC


T
A


R
E 


SH
O


W
N


 
A


N
D


 
D


ES
C


R
IB


ED
 


O
N


 
TH


E 
M


A
P


 
TH


ER
EO


F 
W


H
IC


H
W


A
S 


P
R


EV
IO


U
SL


Y 
R


EC
O


R
D


ED
 O


N
 F


EB
R


U
A


R
Y 


1
8


, 
2


0
1


4
, 


IN
 B


O
O


K
 7


6
O


F 
M


A
P


S 
O


F 
A


SS
ES


SM
EN


T 
A


N
D


 C
O


M
M


U
N


IT
Y 


FA
C


IL
IT


Y 
D


IS
TR


IC
TS


A
T 


PA
G


ES
 


6
5


-6
7


 
A


N
D


 
A


S 
IN


ST
R


U
M


EN
T 


N
O


. 
2


0
1


4
-0


0
6


2
3


2
5


IN
 T


H
E 


O
FF


IC
E 


O
F 


TH
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
 R


EC
O


R
D


ER
 O


F 
TH


E 
C


O
U


N
TY


 O
F


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 S
TA


TE
 O


F 
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


. 
  


I H
ER


EB
Y 


C
ER


TI
FY


 T
H


A
T 


TH
E 


W
IT


H
IN


 M
A


P
 O


R
 A


R
EA


S 
TO


 B
E 


A
N


N
EX


ED
TO


 
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y 
FA


C
IL


IT
IE


S 
D


IS
TR


IC
T 


N
O


. 
2


0
1


3
-1


 
(S


ER
V


IC
ES


)
O


F 
TH


E 
C


IT
Y 


O
F 


W
IL


D
O


M
A


R
, 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 
ST


A
TE


 
O


F
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


, 
W


A
S 


A
P


P
R


O
V


ED
 


B
Y 


TH
E 


C
IT


Y 
C


O
U


N
C


IL
 


O
F 


TH
E


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


 
A


T 
A


 
R


EG
U


LA
R


 
M


EE
TI


N
G


 
TH


ER
EO


F,
H


EL
D


 
O


N
 


 
__


__
__


 
D


A
Y 


O
F 


 
__


__
__


, 
2


0
__


_,
B


Y 
R


ES
O


LU
TI


O
N


 N
O


. 
__


__
_


_
_


__
__


_
_


_
_ 


  
  


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
C


IT
Y 


C
LE


R
K


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


  
  


  


FI
LE


D
 IN


 T
H


E 
O


FF
IC


E 
O


F 
TH


E 
C


IT
Y 


C
LE


R
K


, C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


,
TH


IS
 _


_
__


 D
A


Y 
O


F 
_


__
_


__
__


, 
2


0
_


_
__


. 
  


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
_


_ 
C


IT
Y 


C
LE


R
K


  
  


  
 


C
IT


Y 
O


F 
W


IL
D


O
M


A
R


  
  


  
  


R
EC


O
R


D
ED


 T
H


IS
 _


_
__


 D
A


Y 
O


F 
__


__
__


__
__


_
__


__
, 


2
0


__
__


 A
T


TH
E 


H
O


U
R


 
O


F 
_


_
_


_
 


O
'C


LO
C


K
 


 
_


_
M


 
 


IN
 


B
O


O
K


 
 


_
_


_
_


_
PA


G
E 


_
_


_
_


_
 O


F 
M


A
P


S 
O


F 
A


SS
ES


SM
EN


T 
A


N
D


 C
O


M
M


U
N


IT
Y


FA
C


IL
IT


IE
S 


D
IS


TR
IC


TS
 


IN
 


TH
E 


O
FF


IC
E 


O
F 


TH
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
R


EC
O


R
D


ER
, 


IN
 


TH
E 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


O
F 


R
IV


ER
SI


D
E,


 
ST


A
TE


 
O


F
C


A
LI


FO
R


N
IA


. 
  


  
  


 


FE
E:


 _
__


__
__


__
__


__
  


  
  


N
O


.:
 _


__
__


__
_


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
  


  
  


P
ET


ER
 


A
LD


A
N


A
, 


A
SS


ES
SO


R
, 


C
O


U
N


TY
 


C
LE


R
K


, 
R


EC
O


R
D


ER


B
Y:


 _
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
_


_
  


  
 D


EP
U


TY
  


  


C
FD


 2
01


3-
1


TA
X 


ZO
N


E 
23


_̂


§̈ ¦15


GRAN
D A


VE


CLIN
TO


N
K


EI
TH


R
D


B
U


N
D


Y
C


A
N


Y
O


N


RD


PA
LO


M
AR


ST


S
H


E
E


T
 1


 O
F


 1
 S


H
E


E
T


PA
LO


M
AR


 
ST


MCVIC
AR 


ST


ARNOLD 
LN


38
0


-0
4


0-
0


07


38
0


-0
4


0-
0


29


380-040-005


-
0


5
0


0
1


,0
0


0
2


5
0


F
e


e
t


Le
ge


nd
A


N
N


E
X


A
T


IO
N


 A
R


E
A


 B
O


U
N


D
A


R
Y


P
A


R
C


E
L 


LI
N


E


C
IT


Y
 B


O
U


N
D


A
R


Y


23
  


   
   


  T
A


X
 Z


O
N


E


T
H


IS
 A


N
N


E
X


A
T


IO
N


 M
A


P
 C


O
R


R
E


C
T


LY
 S


H
O


W
S


 T
H


E
 L


O
T


 O
R


 P
A


R
C


E
L 


O
F


 
LA


N
D


 
IN


C
L


U
D


E
D


 
W


IT
H


IN
 


T
H


E
 


B
O


U
N


D
A


R
IE


S
 


O
F


 
T


H
E


 
C


O
M


M
U


N
IT


Y
 


FA
C


IL
IT


IE
S


 
D


IS
T


R
IC


T.
 


F
O


R
 


D
E


TA
IL


S
 


C
O


N
C


E
R


N
IN


G
 


T
H


E
 


LI
N


E
S


 
A


N
D


 
D


IM
E


N
S


IO
N


S
 


O
F


 
LO


T
S


 
O


R
 


P
A


R
C


E
LS


 
R


E
F


E
R


 
T


O
 T


H
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


 A
S


S
E


S
S


O
R


 M
A


P
S


 F
O


R
 F


IS
C


A
L


 Y
E


A
R


 2
0


2
1


-2
2


.


X
X


X
-X


X
X


-X
X


X
   


 A
S


S
E


S
S


O
R


 P
A


R
C


E
L 


N
U


M
B


E
R


23











EXHIBIT E


WAIVER AND CONSENT RESPECTING CONDUCT OF
MAILED BALLOT, LANDOWNER ELECTION







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 694FDDA0-48B0-461D-941E-4E345A85395C







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       MYRA J. EKREM 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Myra J. Ekrem 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 694FDDA0-48B0-461D-941E-4E345A85395C


13


21


july







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: C8857CC8-9632-4C7F-AFBE-088794C780F4







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       Harry L. Keays 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Harry L. Keays 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: C8857CC8-9632-4C7F-AFBE-088794C780F4


13
21


July







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: DE8741B0-9518-4ED8-8D67-719D356D47AB







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
      Joan Maresca 


 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Joan Maresca 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: DE8741B0-9518-4ED8-8D67-719D356D47AB


July


21


12th







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 012C0C5A-D6E4-47DA-9370-52E67DF8F48D







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
      M. Kenneth Mudge 


 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: M. Kenneth Mudge 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 012C0C5A-D6E4-47DA-9370-52E67DF8F48D


July


21


13







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: B30441D7-7F32-43EF-A22C-91F32A8F93C5







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       Orbis Financial, LLC 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Martin Boone 


Title: Manager 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: B30441D7-7F32-43EF-A22C-91F32A8F93C5


12th July


21







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E4FBB009-1251-4068-B9E0-36F96379F0B9







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       Louis E. Polakoff  
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Louis E. Polakoff 


Title: Landowner 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Elaine Polakoff 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E4FBB009-1251-4068-B9E0-36F96379F0B9


JULY


21


13







Petition Form 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E4FBB009-1251-4068-B9E0-36F96379F0B9







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E3016208-491C-4638-93A0-A17664118C0A







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
       David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: David P. Wolske 


Title: Landowner 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Leslie S. Lanes 


Title: Landowner 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E3016208-491C-4638-93A0-A17664118C0A


21


13 july







Petition Form 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  
City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: E3016208-491C-4638-93A0-A17664118C0A







Petition Form 


PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR REQUESTING 
ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-
1 (SERVICES) WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR AND A WAIVER WITH 
RESPECTS TO CERTAIN PROCEDURAL MATTERS UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 AND CONSENTING TO THE LEVY OF 
SPECIAL TAXES THEREON TO PAY THE COSTS OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


 
1. The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Wildomar, 


initiate and conduct proceedings pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
(the “Act”) (Government Code Section 53311 et seq.), for the annexation of the property 
described below to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) and consents to the 
annual levy of special taxes on such property to pay the costs of services to be provided by 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services).  


 
2. The undersigned requests that the community facilities district provide 


any services that are permitted under the Act including, but not limited to, all necessary service, 
operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the landscape lighting, street 
lighting, flood control facilities, ground cover, shrubs, plants and trees, irrigation systems, 
graffiti removal, sidewalks and masonry walls, fencing entry monuments, tot lot equipment and 
associated appurtenant facilities within the district in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory 
working condition. 


  
3. The undersigned hereby certifies that as of the date indicated opposite 


its signature, it is the owner of all the property within the proposed boundaries of the 
community facilities district described in Exhibit A hereto and as shown on the map Exhibit B 
hereto. 


 
4. The undersigned requests that a special election be held under the Act to 


authorize the special taxes for the proposed community facilities district. The undersigned 
waives any requirement for the mailing of the ballot for the special election and expressly 
agrees that said election may be conducted by mailed or hand-delivered ballot to be returned 
as quickly as possible to the designated election official, being the office of the City Clerk and 
the undersigned request that the results of said election be canvassed and reported to the City 
Council at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearing on the annexation of the 
property to the community facilities district or at the next available meeting. 


 
5. Pursuant to Sections 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act, the undersigned 


expressly waives all applicable waiting periods for the election and waives the requirement for 
analysis and arguments relating to the special election, and consents to not having such 
materials provided to the landowner in the ballot packet, and expressly waives any 
requirements as to the form of the ballot.  The undersigned expressly waives all notice 
requirements relating to hearings and special elections (except for published notices required 
by the Act), and whether such requirements are found in the California Elections Code, the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 42A7FF1B-3034-4931-BA55-5668BF63C251







Petition Form 


California Government Code or other laws or procedures, including but not limited to any 
notice provided for by compliance with the provisions of Section 4101 of the California 
Elections Code. 


 
6. The undersigned hereby consents to and expressly waives any and all 


claims based on any irregularity, error, mistake or departure from the provisions of the Act or 
other laws of the State and any and all laws and requirements incorporated therein, and no 
step or action in any proceeding relative to the annexation of property to the community 
facilities district of the portion of the incorporated area of the City of Wildomar or the special 
election therein shall be invalidated or affected by any such irregularity, error mistake or 
departure. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this ____ day of __________, 


20___.   
   
    [NAME OF LANDOWNER] 
      Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee of the Ronald   


      Auerbacher Trust Agreement  Dated August 26, 2015 


 
 


By: _____________________________________ 
       Name: Ronald Auerbacher 


Title: Trustee 


 
       OWNER'S PROPERTY: 
 
       TRACT MAP OR PARCEL MAP NO. 32035 
       or PROJECT NO/Parcel Nos. 380-040-005;007 & 029 
 
       OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
 
       c/o Sherman & Boone Realtors 
       1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
       Capitola, CA  95010 
 
        
 


 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 20___.   
 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City Council of the  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 42A7FF1B-3034-4931-BA55-5668BF63C251


21


12 July







Petition Form 


City of Wildomar 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 42A7FF1B-3034-4931-BA55-5668BF63C251























EXHIBIT F


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ANNEX 
TERRITORY TO AN EXISTING COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 


(ANNEXATION NO. 21) 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Wildomar on September 8, 2021 adopted 
its Resolution No. 2021-__, in which it declared its intention to annex territory to existing Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (the "CFD No. 2013-1"), and to levy a special tax to pay for certain 
maintenance services, all pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, 
Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the California Government Code.  The resolution describes the 
territory to be annexed and describes the rate and method of apportionment of the proposed special tax.  
No change in the tax levied in the existing CFD No. 2013-1 is proposed. 


NOTICE IS HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that the City Council has fixed 5:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as 
practicable, Wednesday, October 13, 2021 in the City Council Chambers located at 23873 Clinton Keith 
Rd., Wildomar, California 92595, as the time and place when and where the City Council will conduct a 
public hearing on the establishment of CFD No. 2013-1. At the hearing, the testimony of all interest persons 
for or against the annexation of the territory or the levying of the special taxes will be heard. 


 


DATED: ____________, 20___    _________________________________________ 
City Clerk of the City of Wildomar 


 







EXHIBIT G


SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee 0.25 0.25 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Ronald Auerbacher, Trustee 
Owners  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Myra J. Ekrem 4.05 4.05 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Myra J. Ekrem 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-029 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Myra J. Ekrem 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Harry L. Keays 0.22 0.22 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Harry L. Keays 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Harry L. Keays 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Joan Maresca 0.05 0.05 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Joan Maresca 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


   380-040-005 Por. 
   380-040-007 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Joan Maresca 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Pensco Trust Company FBO M. Kenneth 
Mudge 


4.05 4.05 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Pensco Trust Company FBO M. Kenneth Mudge 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-029 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Pensco Trust Compacy FBO M. Kenneth Mudge 
Owner  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Omni Financial, LLC 9.60 9.60 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Omni Financial, LLC 
Attn: Martin Boone  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 
380-040-029 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Omni Financial, LLC 
Martin Boone 
Manager  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Orbis Financial, LLC 0.81 0.81 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Orbis Financial, LLC 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-029 Por. 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Orbis Financial, LLC 
Martin Boone 
Manager  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 0.36 0.36 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


   380-040-005 Por. 
   380-040-007 Por. 
 
 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
Louis E. and Elaine Polakoff 
Owners  


 
 


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 
 







SPECIAL TAX ELECTION   
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


 
      (October 13, 2021) 


 
This ballot is for the use of the authorized representative of the following owner of land within Annexation No. 21 of the 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) (“CFD No. 2013-1”) of the City of Wildomar: 


 
Name of Landowner Number of Acres Owned Total Votes 


David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 0.36 0.36 


 


According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, and resolutions of the City Council (the 
“Council”) of the City of Wildomar (the “City”), the above-named landowner is entitled to cast the number of votes shown 
above under the heading “Total Votes,” representing the total votes for the property owned by said landowner. The City has 
sent the enclosed ballot to you so that you may vote on whether or not to approve the special tax. 


 
This special tax ballot is for the use of the property owner of the parcels identified below, which parcels are located within 
the territory proposed to be annexed to the CFD No. 2013-1, City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California. 
Please advise the City Clerk, at (951) 677-7751 x 210 if the name set forth below is incorrect or if you are no longer one of 
the owners of these parcels. This special tax ballot may be used to express either support for or opposition to the proposed 
special tax. To be counted, this special tax ballot must be signed below by the owner or, if the owner is not an individual, by 
an authorized representative of the owner. The ballot must then be delivered to the City Clerk, either by mail or in person, 
as follows: 


 
Mail 
Delivery: If by mail, place ballot in the return envelope provided, and mail no later than September 29, 2021, two 


calendar weeks prior to the date set for the election. Mailing later than this deadline creates the risk that 
the special tax ballot may not be received in time to be counted. 


Personal 
Delivery: If in person, deliver to the City Clerk at any time up to 5:00 p.m. on October 13, 2021, at the Clerk’s office 


at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 


However delivered, this ballot must be received by the Clerk prior to the close of the public meeting on October 13, 2021. 
 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
City of Wildomar 







TO CAST THIS BALLOT, PLEASE RETURN THIS ENTIRE PAGE. 


OFFICIAL SPECIAL TAX BALLOT 
 


Name & Address of Property Owner: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 
David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes 
Attn: Sherman & Boone Realtors  
1260 41st Ave., Ste O 
Capitola, CA  95010 


380-040-005 Por. 
380-040-007 Por. 


 
 


 
ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY TO  


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) 
ANNEXATION NO. 21 


MARK AN “X” OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT 
 


SPECIAL TAX BALLOT MEASURE 
MARK “YES” OR “NO” 
WITH AN “X”: 


Shall the City Council of the City of Wildomar be authorized to levy a special tax on an annual 
basis at the rates and apportioned as described in Exhibit C to the Resolution Declaring its 
Intention to Annex Territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) adopted by 
the City Council on September 8, 2021 (the “Resolution”), which is incorporated herein by this 
reference, within the territory identified on the map entitled “Annexation Map No. 21 of 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) City of Wildomar” to finance certain 
services as set forth in Section 4 to the Resolution (including incidental expenses) and shall 
an appropriation limit be established for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) in 
the amount of special taxes collected? 


 
YES     


 
 
 


NO      


 
Certification for Special Election Ballot 


The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above-named landowner and is the person legally authorized 
and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named landowner. 


I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct and that this 
declaration is executed on _________________________________, 20___________. 


 
 


  
David P. Wolske  
Owner 
  


Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


Leslie S. Lanes 
Owner 


 
Signature 


Print Name 


Title 


 







EXHIBIT H


MAINTENANCE EXHIBIT



















CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.1 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members  
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director  
 
SUBJECT: Allocation of Non-Profit Replacement Funding for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 


STAFF REPORT  


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE BUDGETED ALLOCATION OF 
$17,500 FOR NON-PROFIT/CDBG REPLACEMENT FUNDING FOR 


FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 


BACKGROUND: 
The City Council in June 2019 voted to take an advance of HUD/CDBG monies for to 
complete Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Sedco Sidewalk project.  One of Riverside County’s 
(EDA) requirements to accept this advance of funds was that the CDBG Non-Profit Public 
Service monies ($17,500) would not be available for several years.  This included CDBG 
funding for FY 2019/20, FY 2020/21, and now FY 2021/22.  Thus, the Council 
unanimously decided to commit $17,500 in FY 2021/22 monies to replace the lost CDBG 
funds for our non-profit groups.   
 
To maintain a similar process to the standard CDBG process (not required but as a guide), 
the Planning Department released the Wildomar Non-Profit Funding Application Package 
for FY 2021/22 (Attachment D) on July 6, 2021 to the general public, as well as specific 
notices to last year’s non-profit organizations.  Organizations looking to secure a portion 
of the city funding were required to submit the “funding application” by the August 3, 2021 
deadline.   
 
Although these groups would not be receiving FY 2021/22 CDBG funds from EDA/HUD, 
the application form staff used for this process was similar to our standard CDBG form. 
 
In order to qualify for the funding, the non-profit organizations must satisfy one of three 
(3) HUD program objectives.  These three areas are as follows: 
 


• Provide a benefit to low and moderate income persons, 







• Prevent or eliminate slums and blight, or 
• Meet other urgent community development needs due to natural disasters or other 


emergencies. 
 
Examples of eligible activities include: 
 


• Public Services such as: senior services, disabled and handicapped services, 
childcare services, youth services, etc. 


• Housing Services such as: home improvement programs for low/mod households, 
including senior repair and home rehabilitation. 


 
Examples of ineligible activities include: 
 


• General Government expenses. 
• Political or Religious Activities 
• Purchase of personal equipment such as fixtures, motor vehicles, etc.  


DISCUSSION: 
As of the August 3, 2021 filing deadline, the City only received two (2) funding application 
requests totaling $35,000.  The organizations and funding amounts are listed below:  
 


1. Assistance League of Temecula Valley (ALTV) – they have requested $10,000 in 
funds to support Operation School Bell that provides low-income students (K – 12) 
an opportunity to purchase school appropriate clothing and shoes. 


 
2. Helping Our People of Elsinore, Inc. (HOPE) – they have requested $25,000 to 


provide food as part of their local pantry program to people living in the Lake Elsinore 
Unified School District boundaries. 


 
Both non-profit service organization applications packets are provided for Council 
consideration (Attachment B & C, respectively).  A summary of ALTV and HOPE 
proposals are summarized in the table on the following page.  This table may be used by 
Council to prioritize which organizations may receive funding. 
 
 
  







Application Proposal Summary Table (FY 2021/22) 
 


Organization 
Name 


(Alphabetized) 


Activity Proposal 
Description 


Application 
Complete 


(Y/N) 


Previous 
Year(s) 
Funding 


& 
Amounts 


Projected 
Client Activity 
(Unduplicated) 


2021/22 
Total 


Project 
Budget 


Amount 
Requested 


Assistance 
League of 


Temecula Valley 


Operation School 
Bell that provides 
low-income 
students (K – 12) 
an opportunity to 
purchase school 
appropriate clothing 
and shoes. 


Yes 


FY 18/19 
- $9,000 


 
FY 19/20 
- $8,750 


 
FY 20/21 
$4,375 


620 
clients/persons 
(K-12 children) 


$625,000 $10,000 


Helping Our 
People of 


Elsinore, Inc. 
(HOPE) 


To provide food as 
part of their local 
pantry program to 
people living in the 
Lake Elsinore 
Unified School 
District boundaries. 


Yes 


FY 18/19 
- $9,000 


 
FY 19/20 
- $8,750  


 
FY 20/21 
$13,125 


400 
client/persons  $290,000 $25,000 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
The Planning Department on July 6, 2021 issued a Press Release and the Funding 
Application package to the general public, as well as to last year’s non-profit organizations 
regarding the opportunity to submit application proposals for this program.  Applications 
were received from July 6, 2021 through August 3, 2021.  Two proposals were submitted. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Council has allocated/budgeted $17,500 from the General Fund to fund these two 
non-profit groups for Fiscal Year 2021/22. 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Council Resolution 2021-___ 
B. Assistance League of Temecula Valley Application 
C. HOPE Application 
D. Non Profit Press Release/Application Package 
E. 2021 Sponsors Agreement Template 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Council Resolution 2021-____ 
 
 
  







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE 
BUDGETED ALLOCATION OF $17,500 FOR NON-
PROFIT/CDBG REPLACEMENT FUNDING FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2021/2022 


 WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar (City) did not receive its FY 2021/22 allocation 
of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds from the Riverside County 
Economic Development Agency via the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD); and  


WHEREAS, the City Council on May 26, 2021 voted to budget $17,500 in FY 
2021/22 to replace the unfunded CDBG non-profit programs for this fiscal year. 


 WHEREAS, on July 6, 2021, the Planning Department issued a Press Release 
and the Funding Application package to the general public, as well as to last year’s non-
profit organizations regarding the opportunity to submit application proposals for this 
program.  Further, applications were received from July 6, 2021 through August 3, 2021; 
and 


WHEREAS, the City received two (2) funding applications from Assistance League 
of Temecula Valley (ALTV) and Helping Our People Elsinore (HOPE) during the 
application submittal period which commenced on July 6, 2021 and concluded on August 
3, 2021; and 


WHEREAS, city staff reviewed and categorized these funding applications 
submitted by non-profit organizations competing for City’s CDBG replacement funds; and  


WHEREAS, on September 8, 2021, the City Council conducted a public meeting 
at which time interested public service organizations and the general public had an 
opportunity to present their program proposals and at which time the City Council 
received public testimony concerning said program proposals. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby resolve, 
determine and order as follows:  


SECTION 1.  Non-Profit Public Service Funds:   
The City Council has allocated $17,500 in general fund monies to be distributed 


between the organizations that have submitted applications for these CDBG replacement 
funds. 
  







SECTION 2.  City Council Action: 
The City Council hereby adopts this resolution taking the following action: 


 
1. Authorizing the City Manager to execute the “Sponsor’s Agreement” for the use of 


City of Wildomar general funds to those non-profit service organizations approved 
for funding on September 8, 2021. 


PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2021. 
 
 
 
 


______________________________ 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENT B 
 


Assistance League of Temecula Valley (ALTV) Application 
 
 
 



























































































































































































































































ATTACHMENT C 
 


Helping Our People Elsinore (HOPE) Application 
 



















































































































































































ATTACHMENT D 
 


Non Profit Press Release/Application Package 
 







 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


PRESS RELEASE 


23873 Clinton Keith Road, 
Suite #201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 
Phone (951) 677-7751 
Fax (951) 698-1463 
www.cityofwildomar.org 


APPROVED FOR IMMEDIATE 


RELEASE BY: GARY NORDQUIST 


DATE:  July 6, 2021 
 


WILDOMAR NOTICE OF FUNDING AVAILABILITY (NOFA) FOR NON-
PROFIT PUBLIC SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 


WILDOMAR, CA, The Wildomar City Council has initiated a special one-time funding program 
for Fiscal Year 2021/22 for non-profit public service organizations.  This program will replace the City’s 
typical Community Development Block Program (CDBG) funding cycle for this next fiscal year only. 


Eligible non-profit organizations (501(c)(3)) are invited to apply for the funding.  The funding 
application package can be downloaded by clicking on the following link: 
https://wildomar.sharefile.com/d-s0cfd16ae43854f7cbde1255433c52924. Applications will be accepted 
from July 6, 2021 to August 3, 2021 (by 4 pm). 


Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the City will only accept electronic copies of your proposal 
packages (Pdf format only).  When you are ready submit your application proposal package, you may 
use the following link to upload your application package: https://wildomar.sharefile.com/r-


r40903175de0545e380e0bd5b9a2eadc5.  The City will be automatically notified when your application 
package is submitted. 


To be eligible for this one-time in-lieu funding program, your program must still satisfy one of 
the standard HUD national objectives, including:  1) provide a benefit to low and moderate income 
persons,  2) prevent or eliminate slums and blight, or  3) meet other urgent community development 
needs due to natural disasters or other emergencies.  Those application packages not meeting this 
criteria will not be considered for funding. 


The City Council will review program applications with special emphasis given to projects that 
have a direct/specific benefit to the City of Wildomar and its residents.  The funding is limited to a total 
amount of $17,500.  Final determination will be made by the City Council at a regular meeting 
tentatively scheduled for September 8, 2021.   


For more information, please contact Matthew Bassi, Planning Director at (951) 677-7751, Ext. 
213, or via email at mbassi@cityofwildomar.org. 


 


-END- 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/

https://wildomar.sharefile.com/d-s0cfd16ae43854f7cbde1255433c52924

https://wildomar.sharefile.com/r-r40903175de0545e380e0bd5b9a2eadc5

https://wildomar.sharefile.com/r-r40903175de0545e380e0bd5b9a2eadc5

mailto:mbassi@cityofwildomar.org





 


 


  


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
“NON-PROFIT 


PUBLIC SERVICE” 
FUNDING 


APPLICATION 
 


 


Application  
FY 2021-2022 


Application Due Date: 
Tuesday, August 3, 2021 (4:00 P.M.) 


 
Submit to Matthew Bassi, Planning Director  


 
Wildomar City Hall, Planning Department, 


23873 Clinton Keith Road, Ste. #201 







Page 1 


 


 


 


 


The City of Wildomar is inviting eligible non-profit organizations 501(c)(3) to submit proposal 


applications for one-time City Council funding for the 2021/22 Fiscal Year.  This Funding will 


replace the City’s typical CDBG funding for this fiscal year only.  Organizations applying for 


funding must meet one of the standard HUD national objectives.  The procedures outlined below 


must be followed by all non-profit organizations applying for public service funding.   


 
IMPORTANT DATES 


 


APPLICATION DEADLINE 


Tuesday, August 3, 2021 by 4:00 p.m. 


To be considered for funding, a fully 
completed application must be submitted to 
the Planning Department by this date. 
Applications received after the deadline 
will not be accepted.  See “How to Apply” 
section. 


CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 


Wednesday, September 8, 2021 (this is a tentative 
date.  


The City Council meeting to consider these 
funding applications is tentatively set for a 
September 8, 2021.  Please check with the 
Planning Department 14 days before to verify 
the actual date. 


 City of Wildomar 
NON-PROFIT PUBLIC SERVICE 


FUNDING APPLICATION FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2021/22 


Application Instructions 







Page 2 


MINIMUM FUNDING REQUEST AND LEVERAGE FUNDING 


Eligible Activities:  Applicants seeking funding should refer to the standard HUD Regulations 
regarding eligible uses.  While City Council funding for this fiscal year is not using CDBG funds, 
the standard CDBG eligible requirements still apply.  
 


Minimum Funding Request:  There is no minimum funding request for this one-time funding 


program, however, the City Council has only allocated $17,500 to fund all non-profit public service 


organizations for FY 2021/22.  Actual funding amounts will be determined at the City Council 


meeting tentatively scheduled for September 8, 2021 


Leverage Funding:  Verification of at least FIVE percent (5%) matching funds must be provided 


prior to the date of the funding award by the City Council.  Funds used to match a previous CDBG 


grant may not be used to match a subsequent grant award.  Applications with zero leveraging 


will be disqualified.  Leverage may include, but are not limited to Federal, state, local, private, 


donations, in-kind, volunteer hours.  


 
QUALIFYING CRITERIA 


Applicants MUST BE legally established non-profit entities. This typically means a governmental 
agency, or an entity created under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  


• Proposed projects MUST meet one of the following federal criteria (24 CFR 507.201) to 
be eligible:  


• The activity predominantly benefits low to moderate-income people (more than 51% of the 
persons served by the activity). 


• The activity eliminates slums or blight.  


• The project meets a need having a particular urgency. The condition of urgency must be 
of recent origin, generally being developed or becoming critical less than 18 months 
preceding the application for assistance.  


In considering application proposals, the City Council will pay particular attention to the amount 
of benefit received by Wildomar residents.  Applicants are strongly encouraged to take special 
care in identifying and quantifying the program and the number of Wildomar residents who have 
benefited from the activity in the past, and who would be served by the activity in the next year 
(See Attachment A). 


Selected funding recipients will be required to prepare and submit reports to the City, including 
quarterly quantifiable performance measures reports, demonstrating the number served and the 
applicable benefit received.  







Page 3 


HOW TO APPLY 


1. Eligible non-profit organizations (501(c)(3)) are invited to apply for the funding.  Complete 


this City of Wildomar Application Form and Attachment B (Supplemental Information). 


The funding application and forms can be downloaded by clicking on the following link: 


https://wildomar.sharefile.com/d-s0cfd16ae43854f7cbde1255433c52924.  


2. When you are ready to submit your application and proposal package you must use the 


following link (different from above) to upload your application submittal package: 


https://wildomar.sharefile.com/r-r40903175de0545e380e0bd5b9a2eadc5. The City will be 


automatically notified when your application package is submitted. The application 
submittal package must be in a Pdf format.  Deadline to upload your application 
submittal package is Tuesday, August 3, 2021 by 4:00 p.m.  


IMPORTANT Reminders:  


 All applications must include a detailed index of all attachments to the funding 
application, and must be individually tabbed and labeled to correspond to the specific 
section of the application.  


 The application cannot be altered.  If additional space is needed to complete a 
response, continue the answer on an attached sheet, in sequence, and with the section 
header and numbered responses corresponding with the application.  


 All questions on the application must be answered and documentation requests must 
be attached.  Incomplete applications will not be considered. 


 
 


FOR ASSISTANCE 
For information regarding the program or eligibility of activities, please call Matthew Bassi, 
Planning Director, at (951) 677-7751, ext. 213 or via email at mbassi@cityofwildomar.org. 
 
 


ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Applicants receiving funding will be required to meet the City insurance requirements, file regular 
reports to the City of Wildomar regarding their activities, performance measures, and income 
verification forms for beneficiaries of services funded.  
 
Funding is typically provided on a reimbursement basis for services already rendered and paid 
for by the non-profit service provider.  
 
The City Council has allocated $17,500 of funding to be distributed at their discretion.  This 
amount is equal to the typical CDBG public service funds for FY 2021/22 which is equal to no 
more than 15 percent of the City’s total CDBG allotment from the County of Riverside.  
 
Since a great deal of effort is required to put together an application, potential applicants are 
encouraged to discuss their proposals with the City's CDBG Manager in advance to make a 
preliminary determination on eligibility of the organization and project.  


   



https://wildomar.sharefile.com/d-s0cfd16ae43854f7cbde1255433c52924

https://wildomar.sharefile.com/r-r40903175de0545e380e0bd5b9a2eadc5

mailto:mbassi@cityofwildomar.org





Page 4 


Attachment A  
 


City of Wildomar 
Non-Profit Public Service Funding Application  


(Fiscal Year 2021/22) 
 


I. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applying Entity or Agency:             


Site Location Address:             


City, State, Zip Code:             


Telephone Number:         Fax:        


Executive Director Name:             


Title:                


Email:               


   


What is your organization’s mission and vision (Limited to the space below)?  
             


             


             


             


             


             


             


              


How is your program different from other organizations providing the same type of services to 
Wildomar residents (Limited to the space below)?  
             


             


             


             


             


             


             


             


              


  







Page 5 


II. OUTCOMES AND QUANTIFIABLE PERFORMANCE MEASURES SPECIFIC TO 
WILDOMAR:  


 
NOTE: If your project receives requested funds, the following questions are based on the 


expected number of Wildomar clients to be served.  


1. Number of Wildomar clients or units of service to be provided using these funds during 
the term of the 2021/22 fiscal year:     


 
2. Length of funded activities or service to Wildomar clients (weeks, months, year):  


   
 
3. Unduplicated number of Wildomar clients/persons projected to serve (e.g., 25 clients, 


50 seniors):     
 
4. Units of service (Example: 25 clients x 10 visits = 250 units of service):     
 
5. Service will be provided to Wildomar (check one or more):  


 


 Men    Women   Children – Age Range     


 Men/Women  Men/Women/Children   Families   Seniors  


Severely Disabled Adults      Migrant Farm Workers   Homeless  


6. Number of beds of facility:     
 
7. Anticipated number of “new” beds:     
 
8. Length of stay (if residential facility):     
 
9. If you received city non-profit funding in FY 2020/21, how many unduplicated Wildomar 


clients/persons were served by your program from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021:    
 


___________ 
 
10. If you received city non-profit funding in FY 2020/21, please quantify the increase in 


service that you will be providing in 2021/22 Fiscal Year, and explain why there is a new 
demand or an unmet need in the community for this service:     
            
            
            
  


 
11. If you did not receive city non-profit funding in FY 2020/21, how many unduplicated  


Wildomar clients/persons were served by your program from July 1, 2021 through June 
30, 2022:      


 
12. Wildomar Funds Requested (total requested for this project only): $    


 
 







Page 6 


 
13. Provide a detailed description of the proposed use of the CDBG funds only (e.g. client 


scholarships, purchase of specific piece of equipment, rent, supplies, utilities, salaries, 
etc.):  


14. Other leveraging funding: 


 


  


Proposed Use of CDBG Funds Only   Amount  


   


   


   


   


   


 Total   


 


Leveraging Source of Funds   Amount  


   


   


   


   


   


 Total   


 







Page 7 


Attachment B  
 


 
Please complete the following 


supplemental information. 


 
 


 
 







Page 8  


I. ORGANIZATIONAL HISTORY: (This is applicable only if you are a non-profit organization) 


Date Organization founded:  ___________________________ 


Date Organization incorporated as a non-profit organization: (Non-profits only):________________ 


Federal Tax Identification Number: ____________________________ 


State Identification Number: (Non-profit agency only) _______________________ 


DUNS Number: _______________________________________ 


Fiscal Year Ends Date: ____________________________________ 


Organization Web Address: _____________________________________ 


Does your Organization expend $500,000 or more a year in Federal Funds? _______________ 


Number of Paid Staff:_____________ Number of Volunteers: ______________________ 


Note: Must Attach Current Board of Directors & Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws 
 


Check ONLY the applicable category your application represents. 


 Real Property Acquisition  


 Public Service 


 Housing 


 Rehabilitation/Preservation (please provide picture of structure) 


 Public Facilities Improvements (construction) 


 Infrastructure 


 Homeless Activities 


 Economic Development 


 Administration 


 Other: (provide description) 







Page 9  


II. PROJECT/ACTIVITY/SERVICE NARRATIVE: 
 


A. Name of Project/Activity/Service: __________________________________________ 


 


 
B. Provide a detailed description of the proposed use of the Non-Profit City Funds 


ONLY. (Attach additional sheets if necessary) 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
C. Outcomes and Performance Measures 


 
Number of unduplicated clients or units of service to be served using Non-Profit 
City Funds during the term of the funding (i.e., number of jobs created and/or 
businesses assisted using funds): 


 
Time-frame for Non-Profit City Funds to be expended (does not extend to Public Service 


Activities) (weeks, months, years):  


______________________________________________________ 


 


Total number of unduplicated clients/units to be served with ALL funding sources (e.g., 25 
clients x 10 visits = 250 units of service): 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Number of beds of facility (if residential facility): __________________________________ 


 


Anticipated increase in number of beds (if residential facility): _______________________ 


 


Length of stay (if residential facility): ___________________________________________ 
 
  







Page 10  


D. Provide goals and objectives of the project, service, activity.  How will you measure 
and evaluate the success of the project/service/activity to meet the goals and 
objectives? 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


E. Discuss how this project/service/activity directly benefits low- and moderate- income 
residents. 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 


F. Respond to box (a) & (b) only if this application is for a public service project/service/activity. 
 


(a) Is this a NEW service/activity/service provided by your agency? 


 


Yes 


No 
 


(b) If service is not new, will the existing project/activity/service level be substantially 
increased or improved 


 


Yes 


No 


 
  







Page 11  


G. What methods will be used for community involvement to assure that all who might 


benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate? 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


H. Attach Estimated Timeline for Project Implementation: 
 


 
 


 
 


 


III. PROJECT BENEFIT: 


While your proposal is not being funded by federal CDBG funds, the City nonetheless is requiring 
that your proposal meet at least one (1) of three (3) National Objectives of the typical CDBG 
program.  Indicate the category of National Objective to be met by your activity: 


 


CATEGORY 1:  Benefit to low-moderate income persons (must be documented). Please choose 
either subcategory A, B or C. 


A. LIMITED CLIENTELE: 
The project/activity/service serves clientele that will provide documentation of their family size, 
income, and ethnicity.  Identify the procedure you currently have in place to document that at 
least 51% of the clientele you serve are low- moderate income persons. 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 







Page 12  


B. CLIENTELE PRESUMED (to be principally low- and moderate-income persons): 
The following groups are presumed by HUD to meet this criterion.  You will be required to 
submit a certification from the client (s) that they fall into one of the following presumed 
categories and their ethnicity. 
The activity will benefit (check one or more) 


Abused children  


 


Battered spouses  


 


Elderly persons 


 


Severely disabled adults 


 


Homeless persons 


 


Illiterate adults 


 


Persons living with AIDS 


 


Migrant Farm workers 


 


C. Describe your clientele to be served by the project/activity/service. 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


CATEGORY 2: Area Benefit - The project or facility serves, or is available to, ALL persons located 
within an area where at least 51% of the residents are low/moderate-income. This determination is 
based upon 2000 Census data, until further notice. If you need assistance in determining the 
appropriate census data, please call EDA. 


Census Tract and block group numbers: 


CT BG CT BG 
 
CT BG CT BG 
 
CT BG CT BG 
 


Enter Total population in Census Tract(s)/Block Group(s): _____________________________ 
 
Enter % of low-moderate population in Census Tract(s)/Block Group(s): __________________ 


 
 







Page 13  


CATEGORY 3:  Prevention or Elimination of Slums and Blight: The proposed project or activity 
must directly benefit an identified slum and blighted area. 


 
Is the proposed project located in an area with determinable indications of slum and blight? 
(Applicant should contact EDA first if proposing to use this National Objective Category) 


 
Yes  or  No  


 


If yes, attach map of the area with the site highlighted and provide additional documentation of 
the existence of slum/blight, e.g. photos, news stories, reports, etc. 


 


Provide the Percentage of Deteriorated Buildings/Qualified Properties: ____________________ 
 
Slum/Blight Designation Year: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Public Improvement Type and Condition: ___________________________________________ 


 
Describe the Boundaries of the Slum/Blight area(s): 


 


 
 


 
 


 


CATEGORY 4: Activities undertaken to create or retain permanent jobs, at least 51% of 
which will be made available to or held by low/moderate-income persons 


 
Proposed Job Creation/Retention: 


Total jobs expected to Create: ________________________________ 


Total jobs expected to Retain: _________________________________ 


CATEGORY 5:  Activities that provide assistance to micro-enterprise owners/developers who are 
low/moderate-income: 


 
Proposed Assistance to Businesses 
(Clearance and/or rehabilitation activities; financial assistance to manufacture or expansion.) 


 
New Businesses expected to assist: ____________________________________ 


Existing Businesses expected to assist: _________________________________ 


Enter Total Businesses Expected to Assist: ______________________________ 


  







Page 14  


IV. LEVERAGING: 


A. What evidence is there of a long-term commitment to the proposal? Describe how you 
plan to continue the work (project) after the CDBG funds are expended? 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


B. If commitments are pending, indicate amount requested and attach documentation 
regarding previous year’s funding. (Include: Funding Source, Amount Requested, 
Date Available, Type of Commitment and Funding): 


 


Funding 
Source 


Amount 
Requested 


Date 
Available 


Type of 
Commitment 


Funding 


     


     


     


     


     


     


     


 


C. Identify other funding sources (commitments of applications) from other sources to 
assist in the implementation of this activity. 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  







Page 15  


D. Provide a summary, by line item, of your organization’s previous year’s Income and 
Expense Statement (Attach Summary Income and Expense Statement). 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


V. MANAGEMENT CAPACITY: 


A. Describe your organization’s experience in managing and operating projects or 
activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds. 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


B. Attach a resource list (partnerships) in addition to the source and commitment of funds 
for the operation and maintenance of the program. (Include: Source, Activity,  Year, 
Allocation, Amount Expended.) 


 
Source Activity Year Allocation Amount 


Expended 
     


     


     


     


     


     


 
  







Page 16  


C. Management Systems: 
Does your organization have written and adopted management systems (i.e. policies and 
procedures, including personnel, procurement, property management, record keeping, 
financial management, etc.)? 


 


Yes    or      No  


 


D. Capacity (Ability to manage program and grants): 
Please provide a list of the names, phone number, and qualifications of the person(s) that will 
be primarily responsible for the implementation and completion of the proposed project.  In 
addition to the list, provide a detailed organizational chart. (Attach List and Detailed 
Organizational Chart) 


 
 
E. Should the applying entity be awarded City funds, please identify the primary project 


objectives and goals using an Estimated Timeline for Project Implementation (Include 
Objective/Goal, State Date, and Completion Date): 


 


OBJECTIVE/GOAL START DATE COMPLETION DATE 


   


   


   


   


   


   


   


 
  







Page 17  


VI. FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 


 


A. Proposed Project/Activity/Service Budget 
Complete the following annual program budget to begin July 1, 2021.  If your proposed City 
funded activity will start on a date other than July 1, 2021, please indicate starting date. If 
these budget line items are not applicable to your activity, please attach an appropriate 
budget.  Provide total Budget information and distribution of CDBG funds in  the proposed 
budget. 


 


The budgeted items are for the activity for which you are requesting CDBG funding - not for 
the budget of the entire organization or agency. 


 
 


Total Project 
Activity Service 
Budget Wildomar Funds 
(Include CDBG Funds) Requested 


 


I. Personnel 


A. Salaries & Wages $ _______________ $ _______________ 


B. Fringe Benefits $ _______________ $ ________________ 


C. Consultants & Contract Services $ ________________ $ ________________ 


SUB-TOTAL:         $ ________________   $ ________________ 


 
 


II. Non-Personnel 


A. Space Costs $ _________________ $ _______________ 


B. Rental, Lease or Purchase of Equip.      $ _________________    $ _______________ 


C. Consumable Supplies $ _________________ $ ________________ 


D. Travel $ _________________ $ ________________ 


E. Telephone $ _________________ $ ________________ 


F. Utilities $ _________________ $ ________________ 


G. Other Costs $ _________________ $ ________________ 


SUB-TOTAL:         $ ________________   $ ________________ 
 
  







Page 18  


III. Other 


A. Architectural/Engineering Design $ _________________ $ ________________ 


B. Acquisition of Real Property $ _________________ $ ________________ 


C. Construction/Rehabilitation $ _________________ $ ________________ 


D. Indirect Costs $ _________________ $ ________________ 


SUB-TOTAL:         $ ________________   $ ________________ 


 


GRAND TOTAL: $ __________________ $ ___________________ 


 
 
  







Page 19  


APPLICATION CERTIFICATION 
 


Undersigned hereby certifies that (check the box after reading each statement, provide the 
authorized person’s name, and sign the document): 


 
 


The information contained in the project application is complete and accurate. 
 


The applicant agrees to comply with all Federal and City policies and requirements imposed on 
the project funded in full or part. 


 


The applicant acknowledges that the Federal assistance made available through the City’s one-
time funding program will not be used to substantially reduce prior levels of local (NON- CDBG) 
financial support for community development activities. 


 


The applicant fully understands that any facility built, or equipment purchased with these City 
funds shall be maintained and/or operated for the approved use throughout its economic life. 


 


If City funds are approved by Council, the applicant acknowledges that sufficient funds are 
available or will be available to complete the project as described within a reasonable timeframe. 


 


On behalf of the applying organization, I have obtained authorization to submit this application for 
City funding. (Documentation Attached = Minute Action and/or written Board Approval signed by 
the Board President). 


 
 


Print Name/Title 
Authorized Representative:  ______________________________________________________ 


 
 


Signature: ____________________________________________________________________ 


 


 


DATE: __________________   


 







Page 20  


Applicant’s Check-list: 
 


Please check the box for each required document that is attached. Any missing documentation to the 
application will be cause for the application to be reviewed as INELIGIBLE. 


 


Slum Blight Documentation 
 


Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 
 


Project Activity Map 
 


Project Description 
 


Project Benefit, Category 1, Benefit to low income persons, Documentation 
 


Project Benefit, Category 2, Area Benefit, Census Tracts/Block Groups 
 


Project Benefit, Category 3, Slum Blight Prevention, Slum/Blight Documentation 
 


Income and Expense Statement 
 


Management Capacity 
 


Board Written Authorization approving submission of application 







ATTACHMENT E 
 


2021 SPONSORS AGREEMENT TEMPLATE 







NON-PROFIT SPONSOR'S AGREEMENT FOR THE USE OF 
CITY OF WILDOMAR REPLACEMENT FUNDS 


 


This Sponsor’s Agreement (“Agreement”), for the use of City of Wildomar funds, is made 


and entered into this 8th day of September, 2021, by and between, the City of Wildomar, 


hereinafter referred to as “CITY”, and, ____________________, a California non-profit 


Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “SPONSOR”. 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar did not receive its Community Development Block 


Grant (CDBG) public service grant funds for FY 2021/22 and has instead decided to offer a 


“one-time funding opportunity” from the City’s general fund to CDBG-qualified non-profit public 


service providers in lieu of using typical CDBG funds to be used to assist and undertake 


essential community development and housing assistance activities similar to the activities 


that may be funded through the CDBG program; and 


WHEREAS, the SPONSOR understand that this funding is a “one-time funding” grant; 


and 


WHEREAS, after reviewing the SPONSORS proposed application to provide services, 


the City of Wildomar determined that the SPONSOR’s activities meets the criteria for funding 


under the CDBG program; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to provide one-time funding from the City’s general 


fund for SPONSOR’s activities described herein. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the CITY and SPONSOR mutually agree as follows: 


1. PURPOSE. SPONSOR promises and agrees to undertake and assist with City’s 


typical community development activity by utilizing the sum of $________ as specifically 


identified in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, for 


the following project: “__________________.” 







2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall become effective upon the 


Effective Date, as defined herein, and shall continue in full force and effect until June 30, 


2022. 


3. COMPLETION SCHEDULE. SPONSOR shall proceed consistent with the 


schedule set forth in Exhibit A (Sponsor Proposal). 


4. LETTER TO PROCEED. SPONSOR shall not invoice the City for this funded 


project/activity covered under the terms of this Agreement prior to execution of this 


Agreement. 


5. DISPOSITION OF FUNDS. The CITY COUNCIL has determined the final 


disposition and distribution of the funds for said project will be $______ to be paid in two (2) 


installments as follows: 


Payment 1  =  $________.on January 19, 2021 


Payment 2  =  $________.on June 28, 2022; and 


6. PAYMENT OF FUNDS. The CITY shall pay to the SPONSOR the sum specified 


in Section 5 above on a reimbursable basis.  The SPONSOR shall submit no more often than 


quarterly to the Planning Director of CITY a certified statement setting forth in detail the 


expenditures made for which it is asking reimbursement along with pertinent supporting 


documentation.  The CITY shall promptly review the quarterly expenditure statement and 


reimburse the SPONSOR for the approved costs in accordance with its usual accounting 


procedures.  The CITY may require from SPONSOR such supporting documentation as may 


be necessary and appropriate for the CITY to make its determination as to allowable costs.  


Each disbursement of City funds shall be made within thirty (30) days after SPONSOR has 


submitted, to the CITY, a complete and written approved statement of expenditures.   


7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. The SPONSOR shall comply 


with all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances.   







8. COOPERATION WITH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES. 


SPONSOR shall cooperate with CITY in undertaking essential community development and 


housing assistance activities. 


9. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION. SPONSOR shall indemnify and 


hold harmless the CITY of Wildomar, City Council, its Departments and respective directors, 


appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, 


based or asserted upon any services of SPONSOR, its officers, employees, subcontractors, 


agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Agreement, including but 


not limited to property damage, bodily injury, or death or any other element of any kind or 


nature whatsoever arising from the performance of SPONSOR, its officers, agents, 


employees, subcontractors, or representatives from this Agreement.  SPONSOR shall defend, 


at its sole expense, all costs and fees including, but not limited, to attorney fees, cost of 


investigation, defense and settlements or awards, the Indemnitees in any claim or action 


based upon such alleged acts or omissions. 


With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by SPONSOR, 


SPONSOR shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their own choice and shall 


have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior 


consent of CITY; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in 


no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes SPONSOR’S indemnification to CITY as set 


forth herein.   


SPONSOR’S obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when SPONSOR has provided to 


CITY the appropriate form of dismissal relieving CITY from any liability for the action or claim 


involved. 


The specified insurance limits required in this Agreement shall in no way limit or 


circumscribe SPONSOR’S obligations to indemnify and hold harmless the CITY herein from 


third party claims. The hold harmless and indemnification obligations set forth herein shall 


survive the termination and expiration of this Agreement.   







10.  INSURANCE. Without limiting or diminishing the SPONSOR’S obligation to 


indemnify or hold the CITY harmless, SPONSOR shall procure and maintain or cause to be 


maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverage’s during the term 


of this Agreement.  


a. Workers’ Compensation: 


If the SPONSOR has employees as defined by the State of California, the SPONSOR 


shall maintain statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance as prescribed by the laws of the 


State of California. Policy shall include Employers’ Liability including Occupational Disease 


with limits not less than $1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to 


waive subrogation in favor of the CITY.  


b. Commercial General Liability: 


 Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, 


premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal 


and advertising injury, and cross liability coverage, covering claims which may arise from or 


out of SPONSOR’S performance of its obligations hereunder. Policy shall name the CITY of 


Wildomar as Additional Insured.  Policy’s limit of liability shall not be less than $1,000,000 per 


occurrence combined single limit.  If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall 


apply separately to this agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. 


c. Vehicle Liability: 


If vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this 


Agreement, then SPONSOR shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or 


hired vehicles so used in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single 


limit.  If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this 


agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the CITY 


of Wildomar as Additional Insured. 


d. General Insurance Provisions - All lines: 


 (i). Any insurance carrier providing insurance coverage hereunder shall be 


admitted to the State of California and have an A M BEST rating of not less than A: VIII (A:8) 







unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the CITY Risk Manager.  If the City’s Risk 


Manager waives a requirement for a particular insurer such waiver is only valid for that specific 


insurer and only for one policy term. 


 (ii). The SPONSOR’S insurance carrier(s) must declare its insurance self-


insured retentions.  If such self-insured retentions exceed $50,000 per occurrence such 


retentions shall have the prior written consent of the CITY Risk Manager before the 


commencement of operations under this Agreement.  Upon notification of self-insured 


retention unacceptable to the CITY, and at the election of the City’s Risk Manager, 


SPONSOR’S carriers shall either; 1) reduce or eliminate such self-insured retention as 


respects this Agreement with the CITY, or 2) procure a bond which guarantees payment of 


losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense costs and expenses. 


 (iii). SPONSOR shall cause SPONSOR’S insurance carrier(s) to furnish the 


CITY of Wildomar with either 1) a properly executed original Certificate(s) of Insurance and 


certified original copies of Endorsements effecting coverage as required herein, and 2) if 


requested to do so orally or in writing by the CITY Risk Manager, provide original Certified 


copies of policies including all Endorsements and all attachments thereto, showing such 


insurance is in full force and effect. Further, SPONSOR shall provide immediate written notice 


if (1) any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required 


polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event 


of any cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Contractor shall 


forthwith obtain and submit proof of substitute insurance. 


In the event of a material modification, cancellation, expiration, or reduction in coverage, 


this Agreement shall terminate forthwith, unless the CITY of Wildomar receives, prior to such 


effective date, another properly executed original Certificate of Insurance and original copies 


of endorsements or certified original policies, including all endorsements and attachments 


thereto evidencing coverage’s set forth herein and the insurance required herein is in full force 


and effect. SPONSOR shall not commence operations until the CITY has been furnished 


original Certificate (s) of Insurance and certified original copies of endorsements and if 







requested, certified original policies of insurance including all endorsements and any and all 


other attachments as required in this Section.  An individual authorized by the insurance 


carrier to do so on its behalf shall sign the original endorsements for each policy and the 


Certificate of Insurance. 


 (iv). or any claims related to this project, the SPONSOR’s insurance coverage 


shall be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the 


City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 


maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the 


SPONSOR’S insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


 (v). If, during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, there is a 


material change in the scope of services; or, there is a material change in the equipment to 


be used in the performance of the scope of or, the term of this Agreement, including any 


extensions thereof, exceeds five (5) years, the CITY reserves the right to adjust the types of 


insurance required under this Agreement and the monetary limits of liability for the insurance 


coverage’s currently required herein, if; in the CITY Risk Manager's reasonable judgment, the 


amount or type of insurance carried by the SPONSOR  has become inadequate. 


 (vi).  SPONSOR shall pass down the insurance obligations contained herein 


to all tiers of subcontractors working under this Agreement. 


 (vii). The insurance requirements contained in this Agreement may be met 


with a program(s) of self-insurance acceptable to the CITY. 


 (viii). SPONSOR agrees to notify CITY of any claim by a third party or any 


incident or event that may give rise to a claim arising from the performance of this Agreement. 


11 INDEPENDENT CAPACITY. The SPONSOR is, for purposes relating to this 


Agreement, an independent contractor and shall not be deemed an employee, officer, or agent 


of the CITY.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the SPONSOR (including its 


employees, agents and subcontractor’s) shall in no event be entitled to any benefits to which 


the CITY employees are entitled, including but not limited to overtime, any retirement benefits, 


worker's compensation benefits, and injury leave or other leave benefits.  There shall be no 







employer-employee relationship between the parties; and the SPONSOR shall hold the CITY 


harmless from any and all claims that may be made against the CITY based upon any 


contention by a third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this 


Agreement.  It is further understood and agreed by the Parties that the SPONSOR in the 


performance of this Agreement is subject to the control or direction of the CITY merely as to 


the results to be accomplished and not as to the means and methods for accomplishing the 


results. 


12. TERMINATION. 


a. SPONSOR. SPONSOR may not terminate this Agreement except upon 


express written consent of CITY. 


b. CITY. CITY may suspend or terminate this Agreement with or without 


cause upon written notice to SPONSOR.  


13. PUBLICITY. Any publicity generated by SPONSOR for the project funded 


pursuant to this Agreement, during the term of this Agreement, will make reference to the 


contribution of the City of Wildomar in making the project possible. 


14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including any attachments or exhibits 


hereto constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter and 


supersedes all prior and contemporaneous representations, proposals, discussions and 


communications, whether oral or in writing. No oral understanding or agreement not 


incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. Each of the attachments and 


exhibits attached hereto is incorporated herein by this reference. 


15. SEVERABILITY. Each paragraph and provision of this Agreement is severable 


from each other provision, and if any provision or part thereof is declared invalid, the remaining 


provisions shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect. 


26. MINISTERIAL ACTS. The City Manager or designee(s) are authorized to take 


such ministerial actions as may be necessary or appropriate to implement the terms, 


provisions, and conditions of this Agreement as it may be amended from time to time by CITY. 







17. SOURCE OF FUNDING. SPONSOR acknowledges that the source of funding 


pursuant to this Agreement is a City of Wildomar one-time grant. 


18 ASSIGNMENT. The SPONSOR will not make any assignment or transfer in any 


other form with respect to this Agreement, without prior written approval of the CITY. 


19. INTERPRETATION AND GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement and any dispute 


arising hereunder shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 


State of California.  This Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair 


language and common meaning to achieve the objectives and purposes of the parties hereto, 


and the rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting 


party shall not be employed in interpreting this Agreement, all parties having been represented 


by counsel in the negotiation and preparation hereof. 


20. WAIVER. Failure by a party to insist upon the strict performance of any of the 


provisions of this Agreement by the other party, or the failure by a party to exercise its rights 


upon the default of the other party, shall not constitute a waiver of such party’s right to insist 


and demand strict compliance by the other party with the terms of this Agreement thereafter. 


21. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. Any action at law or in equity arising under this 


Agreement or brought by a party hereto for the purpose of enforcing, construing or determining 


the validity of any provision of this Agreement shall be filed only in the Superior Court of the 


State of California, located in Riverside, CA, and the parties hereto waive all provisions of law 


providing for the filing, removal or change of venue to any other court or jurisdiction 


22. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. The persons executing this Agreement or exhibits 


attached hereto on behalf of the parties to this Agreement hereby warrant and represent that 


they have the authority to execute this Agreement and warrant and represent that they have 


the authority to bind the respective parties to this Agreement to the performance of its 


obligations hereunder. 


23. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Agreement is the date the parties 


sign the Agreement. If the parties sign the Agreement on more than one date, then the last 


date the Agreement is signed by a party shall be the effective date. 







24. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be signed by the different parties 


hereto in counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which together shall 


constitute one and the same agreement. 


25. FORCE MAJEURE.   


a. Performance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in default where 


delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, lock-outs, riots, floods, earthquakes, 


fires, casualties, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, 


freight embargoes, lack of transportation, governmental restrictions or priority, litigation, 


unusually severe weather, inability to secure necessary labor, material or tools, delays of any 


contractor, sub-contractor or supplier, acts of the other party, acts or failure to act of a public 


or governmental agency or entity, or any causes beyond the control or without the fault of the 


party claiming an extension of time to perform. 


b. An extension of time for any such cause (a “Force Majeure Delay”) shall be for 


the period of the enforced delay and shall commence to run from the time of the 


commencement of the cause, if notice by the party claiming such extension is sent to the other 


party within thirty (30) calendar days of knowledge of the commencement of the cause. 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, none of the foregoing events shall constitute a Force Majeure 


Delay unless and until the party claiming such delay and interference delivers to the other party 


written notice describing the event, its cause, when and how such party obtained knowledge, 


the date the event commenced, and the estimated delay resulting therefrom. Any party claiming 


a Force Majeure Delay shall deliver such written notice within thirty (30) calendar days after it 


obtains knowledge of the event.  


26. BINDING ON SUCCESSORS.  SPONSOR, its heirs, assigns and successors in 


interest, shall be bound by all the provisions contained in this Agreement, and all of the parties 


thereto shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder. 


27. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement may be modified or 


amended only by a writing signed by the duly authorized and empowered representatives of 


CITY and SPONSOR, respectively.  







IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the authorized 
representatives of the parties hereto. 


CITY: 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


By: ___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


ATTEST:  


By: ________________________ 
Janet Morales, Acting City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


By: ________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 


  







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


[NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT REQUIRED] 


SPONSOR: 


________________________________, a 
California non-profit public benefit corporation  


BY: 
_________________________________ 


Name:______________________________
_ 


Title:________________________________ 


Date: _______________________________ 
 


 


  







 


ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT NOTARY FOR CALIFORNIA 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 
signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity 
of that document. 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 


COUNTY OF ) 


On __________, 200___, before me, __________________, Notary Public, personally appeared 
_______________ 


__________________________, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


__________________________________________ 
(SIGNATURE OF NOTARY) 


OPTIONAL 


Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alternation of the document or 
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 


CAPACITY(IES) CLAIMED BY 
SIGNER(S) 


Signer's Name:  
___________________________ 


DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


 INDIVIDUAL 
 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 ___________________________ 
TITLE(S) 


 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 
   
 GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
 TRUSTEE(S) 
 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
 OTHER_____________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


 
___________________________________ 


NUMBER OF PAGES 
 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


 
___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 


 







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.2 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update  


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the COVID-19 update and 
provide direction as desired. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff will be providing an update on actions taken by the City in response to COVID-19 
and is requesting Council to provide direction as desired.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted & Approved by:      
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager   
     
ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 







Agenda Item #4.1 
 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


AUGUST 11, 2021 
 
CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Regular meeting of August 11, 2021, of the Wildomar Cemetery District was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and electronically pursuant to the 
provisions of Governor’s Executive Orders N-08-21 and was called to order by 
Vice Chair Benoit at 7:05 p.m.  
 
District Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Trustees Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit 
 
Members absent: Chair Nigg 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant General Manager York, District Counsel Jex, Clerk 
of the Board Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director 
Howell, Project Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, 
Associate Engineer Luna and Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no board communications. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Morabito seconded by Trustee Moore, to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried, 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Chair Nigg 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


2 


  
 
4.1 Minutes – July 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 


Approved the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


Approved the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 07-08-2021 in the amount of $525.00; 
2. Warrant Register dated 07-15-2021 in the amount of $2,785.44; 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
 
3. Warrant Register dated 07-08-2021 in the amount of $13,679.00; 
4. Warrant Register dated 07-15-2021 in the amount of $270.23. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for June 2021. 
 


4.4 Authorize use of Cemetery District Property, APN 376-060-031, as a 
Temporary Construction Staging Area for the City of Wildomar’s Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Project (CIP 057-1) and Slurry Seal 
Project (CIP 058) Contractor 
Authorized the General Manager to sign the License Agreement and 
approve the use of District property, APN 376-060-031, as a temporary 
construction staging area for the City of Wildomar’s Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Project (CIP 057-1) and Slurry Seal Project (CIP 058) 
Contractor All American Asphalt. 
  


4.5 Second Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and 
Vaccines 
Approved and authorized the General Manager to sign the second 
amendment to the Use Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE to provide 
COVID-19 testing and vaccinations. 


 
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
5.1 Adopting Cemetery User Fees 
 
 Vice Chair Benoit read the title. 
 
 Assistant General Manager York presented the staff report. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
August 11, 2021 


3 


  
 
 A MOTION was made by Trustee Morabito seconded by Trustee Swanson 


to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. WCD2021 - 02 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WILDOMAR 


CEMETERY DISTRICT ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF USER FEES 
 


MOTION carried, 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Chair Nigg 


 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


There were no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 There was no report given. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 There were no future agenda items added. 
 
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT   
There being no further business, Vice Chair Benoit declared the meeting adjourned 
at 7:07 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
Clerk of the Board    Chair 
 







 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.2 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 


FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 


SUBJECT: Warrant Register 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following: 


For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 


1. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $715.28;


For Fiscal Year 2021-2022


2. Warrant Register dated 08-04-2021 in the amount of $1,224.62;
3. Warrant Register dated 08-19-2021 in the amount of $9,425.15;
4. Warrant Register dated 08-26-2021 in the amount of $410.66.


DISCUSSION: 
The Wildomar Cemetery District requires that the Trustees audit payments of demands 
and direct the General Manager to issue checks.  The Warrant Registers are submitted 
for approval.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant Registers will have a budgetary impact in the amount and fiscal year noted 
in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs are included in the Fiscal Year 
2020/21 and 2021/22 Budgets. 


Submitted by: Approved by: 
Robert Howell Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director General Manager 


ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 08/04/2021 
Voucher List 08/19/2021 
Voucher List 08/26/2021 (2) 







08/26/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:47:16AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214072 8/26/2021 001258  SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. 114125113-0001 CEMETERY EQUIPMENT RENTAL  704.71


 10.57LATE CHARGE116191605-0001


Total :  715.28


Bank total :  715.28 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 715.28Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







08/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:32:21AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213984 8/4/2021 001681  BATES, KIMBERLY HARVEY 80221 PLOTS PURCHASED BACK - OWNER 


MOVING OUT


 500.00


Total :  500.00


 213985 8/4/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4087854699 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


 74.13STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE4090468612


 74.13STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE4091131895


Total :  222.39


 213986 8/4/2021 001338  DEANZA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC573589B PEST CONTROL (07/14/21)  25.00


Total :  25.00


 213987 8/4/2021 000941  FRONTIER 71921 07/19/21-08/18/21 CEMETERY 


VOICE/INTERNE


 65.98


Total :  65.98


 213988 8/4/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 284701 07/05/21-08/01/21 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 411.25


Total :  411.25


Bank total :  1,224.62 5 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,224.62Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 5







08/19/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:27:22AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214041 8/19/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4091795635 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


 74.13STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE4092525665


 74.13STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE4093133289


Total :  222.39


 214042 8/19/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11200324 06/18/21-07/18/21 CEMETERY WATER 


SERVICE


 2,457.82


Total :  2,457.82


 214043 8/19/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 287647 08/02/21-08/29/21 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 411.25


Total :  411.25


 214044 8/19/2021 000094  STAUFFERS LAWN EQUIPMENT 260527 CEMETERY MAINTENANCE/REPAIR  525.00


Total :  525.00


 214045 8/19/2021 001680  STOTZ EQUIPMENT E-3495 0000349 2020 JOHN DEERE X350 SELECT TRACTOR 


& 20


 5,808.69


Total :  5,808.69


Bank total :  9,425.15 5 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 9,425.15Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 5







08/26/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:47:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214073 8/26/2021 000240  ALWAYS RELIABLE BACKFLOW 081121 CEMETERY ANNUAL BACKFLOW TEST  50.00


Total :  50.00


 214074 8/26/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4093843412 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 214075 8/26/2021 000094  STAUFFERS LAWN EQUIPMENT 262183 CEMETERY MAINTENANCE/REPAIR  123.79


Total :  123.79


 214076 8/26/2021 001258  SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. 115788342-0001 CEMETERY EQUIPMENT RENTAL  48.94


 113.80CEMETERY EQUIPMENT RENTAL116264608-0001


Total :  162.74


Bank total :  410.66 4 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 410.66Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 4







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.3 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  September 8, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Treasurer’s Report for July 
2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of July 2021.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.   
  
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 







PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


$ 268,428.23 $ 268,428.23 $ 268,428.23 100.00% 0 Variable


$ 268,428.23 $ 268,428.23 $ 268,428.23 100.00%


+ WITHDRAWALS/
BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


$ 266,557.96 $ 1,870.27                $ 0.00 $ 268,428.23 Variable


$ 266,557.96 $ 1,870.27                $ 0.00 $ 268,428.23


$ 268,428.23              


TOTAL


 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT
   TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
July 2021


DISTRICT INVESTMENT


EDWARD JONES


ISSUER


ISSUER


EDWARD JONES


TOTAL


TOTAL INVESTMENT


Administrative Services Director


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the Wildomar Cemetery District, I hereby certify that sufficient 
investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the District's expenditure requirements for the next six months.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the District's Bank Balances.


Robert Howell 9/1/2021
Robert Howell Date





		09-08-2021- CC Agenda

		1.2 06-09-2021

		1.3 06-30-2021

		1.4 Warrant Reg August 2021

		Meeting Date: September 8, 2021



		1.4 Warrant Reg August 2021 Voucher Listings

		080421 fy 21

		081221 fy 21

		081921 fy 21

		082621 fy 21

		080421 fy 22

		081221 fy 22

		081221 fy 22 part 2

		081921 fy 22

		082621 fy 22



		1.5 Treasurers Report July 2021

		1.5 Treasurers Report July 2021 Detail

		T JULY 2021



		1.6 A Ord No 201-202 2nd Reading CC Report 9-8-21

		1.6 A Ord 201-Exhibit 1 - Oak Springs Ranch Specific Plan-Amended 8-11-21

		Attach C-Ex1 - Oak Springs Ranch SPA Document-July 2021.pdf

		City of Wildomar

		Trammell Crow Residential

		PlaceWorks

		01-Summary_Final.pdf

		1.0 Summary

		1.1 Project Location

		1.2 Project Overview

		1.3 Purpose and Objective

		1.4 Relationship to the California Environmental Quality Act





		02-Introduction_Final.pdf

		2.0 Introduction

		2.1 Purpose and Intent

		2.2 Authority and Scope

		2.3 Specific Plan Consistency with the General Plan

		2.4 Discretionary Actions and Approvals

		2.4.1 Original Entitlement Approvals – County of Riverside

		2.4.2 Subsequent Entitlement Approvals – City of Wildomar







		03-LandUsePlan_Final.pdf

		3.0 Land Use Plan

		3.1 Planning Area 1 – Attached Multi-Family Residential

		3.2 Planning Area 2 – Attached Multi-Family Residential

		3.3 Planning Area 3 – Open Space/Trails/Pedestrian Connections/Amenities





		04-CirculationPlan_Final.pdf

		4.0 Circulation Plan

		4.1 Roadways

		4.2 Regional Community Trail





		05-PubFacilities&Phasing_Final.pdf

		5.0 Public Facilities & Phasing

		5.1 Water Distribution

		5.2 Sewer Services

		5.3 Drainage Plan

		5.3.1 Hydrology

		5.3.2 Detention Analysis







		06-ComprehensiveMaintenancePlan_Final.pdf

		6.0 Comprehensive Maintenance Plan

		6.1 Residential Property Maintenance

		6.2 Project Roadways

		6.3 Open Space and Parks





		07-DesignGuidelines_Final.pdf

		7.0 Design Guidelines

		7.1 Development Guidelines

		7.2 Massing Criteria and Site Planning Concepts

		7.3 Grading Criteria

		7.4 Siting Criteria

		7.5 Fencing/Walls/Gates/Monuments

		7.6 Architectural Features

		Architectural Theme

		Building Form, Mass, and Height

		7.6.3 Shade and Shadow

		7.6.4 Building Relief

		7.6.5 Building Materials

		7.6.6 Roof Form and Materials

		7.6.7 Accessory Structures



		7.7 Landscaping, Open Space, Recreation, and Lighting

		7.7.1 Coverage

		7.7.2 Plant Palette

		7.7.3 Drought Tolerance

		7.7.4 Spaces (Patios, Green Space, Trails, Recreation Areas)

		7.7.5 Special Treatments/Buffer Area

		7.7.6 Lighting

		7.7.7 Site Furnishings







		08-DevelopmentStandards_Final.pdf

		8.0 Development Standards

		8.1 Development Guidelines

		8.2 Planning Areas 1 and 2 Permitted Uses

		8.3 Planning Area 3 Permitted Uses

		8.4 Multifamily, Apartments, and Attached Multi-Family Residential Development Standards (Planning Areas 1 and 2)

		8.4.1 Residential Development Standards

		8.4.2 Parking Standards



		8.5 Conditions of Development for Planned Residential Development

		8.6 Site Layout

		8.7 Pedestrian Access

		8.8 Signs

		8.8.1 Permanent Signs

		8.8.2 Temporary Signs (present until the completion of project construction)

		8.8.3 General Sign Standards and Specifications

		8.8.4 Inappropriate/Prohibited Signs

		8.8.5 Address Numerals

		8.8.6 Directional Signage

		8.8.7 Leasing and Temporary Signs







		Blank Page





		1.6 ATTACHMENT B

		1.7 1 Staff Report ROI Meeting- Annexation 22

		Meeting Date: September 8, 2021

		FISCAL IMPACT:

		ATTACHMENTS:



		1.7 2 Resolution of Intention - Annex 22

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -

		NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ACTING EX OFFICIO AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

		APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:



		1.7 3 Resolution Attachments A-H - Compiled

		Exhibit A.pdf

		EXHIBIT A

		EXHIBIT A



		Exhibit E.pdf

		FM_TR31667_3-22-17.pdf

		FM_SHT_1 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_2 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_3 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_4 ACAD_fm4 (1)

		FM_SHT_5 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_6 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_7 Layout1 (1)

		FM_SHT_8 Layout1 (1)

		ECS Layout1 (1)







		1.8 Staff Report - TR 31667 McVicar Culvert Coop Agreement

		1.8 Attachments combined

		1.10 SR - TUMF Fee Increase

		Meeting Date: September 8, 2021



		1.10 TUMF Fee Resolution

		1.11 SR - Canyon Lake Building MOU

		1.11 MOU - Building Services with Canyon Lake

		1.0 Term.  This MOU shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue in full force until cancelled by a Party or the Parties, as provided herein. Either Party may terminate this MOU with 30 days prior written notice.

		2.0 Building Services & Compensation.

		3.0 Insurance.  Wildomar will provide insurance for its building staff while providing building services to Canyon Lake, including commercial general liability, automobile liability, and worker’s compensation insurance coverages. Wildomar will provide...



		1.12 SR RFQs Municipal Financial Advisor Bond Counsel 9-8-2021

		1.12 Attachment A-RFQ Municipal Advisory Wildomar - Final 7-28-2021

		 Event

		REFERENCES

		EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS



		1.12 Attachment B-RFQ Bond Counsel Wildomar -Final 7-28-2021

		 Event

		REFERENCES

		APPENDIX D

		EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS



		1.12 Attachment C- CSG Advisors Inc - Wildomar RFQ 2021

		1.12 Attachment D-UFI 2021 Wildomar RFPQ_vF_8.16.2021

		RFQ Municipal Advisory Wildomar_Required Forms.pdf

		References.pdf

		REFERENCES

		Page 11







		1.12 Attachment E-Stradling Law RFPQ Response for the City of Wildomar 4850-8686-1046 v.3

		1.12 Attachment F-Nixon Peabody LLP RFPQ Response_City of Wildomar_D.Kim_8.16.21

		1.12 Attachment G-NRF Bid - City of Wildomar submitted on August 16, 2021pdf

		1.13 SR and Reso Weed Abatement Final 9_21

		Meeting Date: September 8, 2021

		SECTION 1. PUBLIC NUISANCE.

		SECTION 2. SPECIFIC PROPERTIES.

		SECTION 3. FIRE CHIEF.

		SECTION 4. HEARING.

		SECTION 5. NOTICES.

		SECTION 6. NOTICE BY MAIL.





		1.13 Round 1 Non_Compliance Parcel List for City Council

		2.1 Redistricting PH 1

		2.1 Wildomar-Presentation-9-8-21

		City of Wildomar�Introduction to Redistricting 2021

		Redistricting Process

		Redistricting Rules and Goals

		Demographic Summary of Existing Districts

		Latino CVAP

		Defining Neighborhoods

		Beyond Neighborhoods:�Defining Communities of Interest

		Beyond Neighborhoods: Communities

		Story Map

		Simple Map Review Tool

		Public Hearing & Discussion

		Share Your Thoughts



		3.1 NonProfit Funding CC Rept-Resolution-Final 8-27-21

		3.1 Attach B-C-D-E Combined 9-8-21

		Attach B - Assistance League Application Pacakge 11-21-20

		Attach C - HOPE Applicaiton Pacakge 11-16-20

		Attach D - NonProfit Press Release Package 11-2-20

		Wildomar Non-Profit Funding Application Package FY 2021-22 [7-6-21].pdf

		Attach B - Supplemental Application Form FY 2021-22 - 7-6-21.pdf

		Total number of unduplicated clients/units to be served with ALL funding sources (e.g., 25 clients x 10 visits = 250 units of service):

		________________________________________________________________________

		D. Provide goals and objectives of the project, service, activity.  How will you measure and evaluate the success of the project/service/activity to meet the goals and objectives?

		G. What methods will be used for community involvement to assure that all who might benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate?

		A. LIMITED CLIENTELE:

		C. Describe your clientele to be served by the project/activity/service.

		CATEGORY 3:  Prevention or Elimination of Slums and Blight: The proposed project or activity must directly benefit an identified slum and blighted area.

		If yes, attach map of the area with the site highlighted and provide additional documentation of the existence of slum/blight, e.g. photos, news stories, reports, etc.

		CATEGORY 4: Activities undertaken to create or retain permanent jobs, at least 51% of which will be made available to or held by low/moderate-income persons

		CATEGORY 5:  Activities that provide assistance to micro-enterprise owners/developers who are low/moderate-income:

		C. Identify other funding sources (commitments of applications) from other sources to assist in the implementation of this activity.

		C. Management Systems:

		Please provide a list of the names, phone number, and qualifications of the person(s) that will be primarily responsible for the implementation and completion of the proposed project.  In addition to the list, provide a detailed organizational chart. ...

		Total Project Activity Service

		SUB-TOTAL:         $ ________________   $ ________________

		SUB-TOTAL:         $ ________________   $ ________________

		SUB-TOTAL:         $ ________________   $ ________________





		ALTV Application Submittal Package 7-30-21.pdf

		ALTV-WILDOMAR PART A-CITY FUND JULY 2021 APPLICATION

		ALTV-WILDOMAR PART B



		NonProfit Press Release for FY 2021-22 - 7-6-21.pdf

		WILDOMAR NOTICE OF FUNDING AVAILABILITY (NOFA) FOR NON-PROFIT PUBLIC SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22





		3.2 COVID-19 Update

		4.1 08-11-2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM August 2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM August 2021 Voucher Listings

		082621 cemetery district fy 21

		080421 cemetery district fy 22

		081921 cemetery district fy 22

		082621 cemetery district fy 22



		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM July 2021

		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM July 2021 Detail

		T JULY 2021



		1.14 Combined.pdf

		1.14 Staff Report ROI Meeting- Annexation 21

		Meeting Date: September 8, 2021

		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS:



		1.14 Resolution of Intention - Annex 21

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -

		NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, ACTING EX OFFICIO AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

		APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:



		1.14 Resolution Attachments A-H - Compiled

		Exhibit A.pdf

		EXHIBIT A

		EXHIBIT A



		Exhibit E.pdf

		Petition and Waiver Form Ekrem

		Petition and Waiver Form Keays

		Petition and Waiver Form Maresca

		Petition and Waiver Form Mudge

		Petition and Waiver Form Orbis

		Petition and Waiver Form Polakoff

		Petition and Waiver Form Wolski Lanes

		Petition_and_Waiver_Form_Auerbacher

		Signed Petition - OMNI



		Revised Ballots Combined.pdf

		Ballot - Auerbacher

		Ballot - Ekram

		Ballot - Keays

		Ballot - Maresca

		Ballot - Mudge

		Ballot - Omni Financial

		Ballot - Orbis-Boone

		Ballot - Polakoff 2

		Ballot - Wolske-Lanes 2









		undefined_2: 

		Applying Entity or Agency: 

		Site Location Address: 

		City State Zip Code: 

		Telephone Number: 

		Fax: 

		Executive Director Name: 

		Title: 

		Email: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 1: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 2: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 3: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 4: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 5: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 6: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 7: 

		What is your organizations mission and vision Limited to the space below 8: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 1: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 2: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 3: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 4: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 5: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 6: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 7: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 8: 

		Wildomar residents Limited to the space below 9: 

		the term of the 202122 fiscal year: 

		Length of funded activities or service to Wildomar clients weeks months year 1: 

		Length of funded activities or service to Wildomar clients weeks months year 2: 

		50 seniors: 

		Units of service Example 25 clients x 10 visits  250 units of service: 

		Men: Off

		Women: Off

		Children  Age Range: Off

		MenWomen: Off

		MenWomenChildren: Off

		Families: Off

		Seniors: Off

		Severely Disabled Adults: Off

		Migrant Farm Workers: Off

		Homeless: Off

		Number of beds of facility: 

		Anticipated number of new beds: 

		clientspersons were served by your program from July 1 2020 through June 30 2021: 

		demand or an unmet need in the community for this service 1: 

		demand or an unmet need in the community for this service 2: 

		demand or an unmet need in the community for this service 3: 

		demand or an unmet need in the community for this service 4: 

		demand or an unmet need in the community for this service 5: 

		30 2022: 

		Wildomar Funds Requested total requested for this project only: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds Only: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds OnlyRow1: 

		AmountRow1: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds OnlyRow2: 

		AmountRow2: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds OnlyRow3: 

		AmountRow3: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds OnlyRow4: 

		AmountRow4: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds OnlyRow5: 

		AmountRow5: 

		Proposed Use of CDBG Funds OnlyRow6: 

		AmountTotal: 

		Leveraging Source of Funds Amount Total: 

		Leveraging Source of Funds: 

		Leveraging Source of FundsRow1: 

		AmountRow1_2: 

		Leveraging Source of FundsRow2: 

		AmountRow2_2: 

		Leveraging Source of FundsRow3: 

		AmountRow3_2: 

		Leveraging Source of FundsRow4: 

		AmountRow4_2: 

		Leveraging Source of FundsRow5: 

		AmountRow5_2: 

		Leveraging Source of FundsRow6: 

		AmountTotal_2: 

		Date Organization founded: 

		Date Organization incorporated as a nonprofit organization Nonprofits only: 

		Federal Tax Identification Number: 

		State Identification Number Nonprofit agency only: 

		DUNS Number: 

		Fiscal Year Ends Date: 

		Organization Web Address: 

		Does your Organization expend 500000 or more a year in Federal Funds: 

		Number of Paid Staff: 

		Number of Volunteers: 

		A Name of ProjectActivityService: 

		ONLY Attach additional sheets if necessary 1: 

		ONLY Attach additional sheets if necessary 2: 

		ONLY Attach additional sheets if necessary 3: 

		ONLY Attach additional sheets if necessary 4: 

		ONLY Attach additional sheets if necessary 5: 

		Activities weeks months years: 

		clients x 10 visits  250 units of service: 

		Number of beds of facility if residential facility: 

		Anticipated increase in number of beds if residential facility: 

		Length of stay if residential facility: 

		undefined: 

		objectives 1: 

		objectives 2: 

		objectives 3: 

		objectives 4: 

		objectives 5: 

		objectives 6: 

		objectives 7: 

		residents 1: 

		residents 2: 

		residents 3: 

		residents 4: 

		residents 5: 

		increased or improved: Off

		undefined_3: 

		benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate 1: 

		benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate 2: 

		benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate 3: 

		benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate 4: 

		benefit from the project are provided an opportunity to participate 5: 

		H Attach Estimated Timeline for Project Implementation 1: 

		H Attach Estimated Timeline for Project Implementation 2: 

		H Attach Estimated Timeline for Project Implementation 3: 

		least 51 of the clientele you serve are lowmoderate income persons 1: 

		least 51 of the clientele you serve are lowmoderate income persons 2: 

		least 51 of the clientele you serve are lowmoderate income persons 3: 

		least 51 of the clientele you serve are lowmoderate income persons 4: 

		least 51 of the clientele you serve are lowmoderate income persons 5: 

		least 51 of the clientele you serve are lowmoderate income persons 6: 

		undefined_4: 

		Abused children: Off

		Battered spouses: Off

		Elderly persons: Off

		Severely disabled adults: Off

		Homeless persons: Off

		Illiterate adults: Off

		Persons living with AIDS: Off

		Migrant Farm workers: Off

		C Describe your clientele to be served by the projectactivityservice 1: 

		C Describe your clientele to be served by the projectactivityservice 2: 

		C Describe your clientele to be served by the projectactivityservice 3: 

		C Describe your clientele to be served by the projectactivityservice 4: 

		C Describe your clientele to be served by the projectactivityservice 5: 

		BG: 

		undefined_5: 

		Enter  of lowmoderate population in Census TractsBlock Groups: 

		Applicant should contact EDA first if proposing to use this National Objective Category: Off

		Yes_3: Off

		Provide the Percentage of Deteriorated BuildingsQualified Properties: 

		SlumBlight Designation Year: 

		Public Improvement Type and Condition: 

		Describe the Boundaries of the SlumBlight areas 1: 

		Describe the Boundaries of the SlumBlight areas 2: 

		Describe the Boundaries of the SlumBlight areas 3: 

		Total jobs expected to Create: 

		Total jobs expected to Retain: 

		New Businesses expected to assist: 

		Existing Businesses expected to assist: 

		Enter Total Businesses Expected to Assist: 

		undefined_6: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 1: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 2: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 3: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 4: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 5: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 6: 

		plan to continue the work project after the CDBG funds are expended 7: 

		Funding SourceRow1: 

		Amount RequestedRow1: 

		Date AvailableRow1: 

		Type of CommitmentRow1: 

		FundingRow1: 

		Funding SourceRow2: 

		Amount RequestedRow2: 

		Date AvailableRow2: 

		Type of CommitmentRow2: 

		FundingRow2: 

		Funding SourceRow3: 

		Amount RequestedRow3: 

		Date AvailableRow3: 

		Type of CommitmentRow3: 

		FundingRow3: 

		Funding SourceRow4: 

		Amount RequestedRow4: 

		Date AvailableRow4: 

		Type of CommitmentRow4: 

		FundingRow4: 

		Funding SourceRow5: 

		Amount RequestedRow5: 

		Date AvailableRow5: 

		Type of CommitmentRow5: 

		FundingRow5: 

		Funding SourceRow6: 

		Amount RequestedRow6: 

		Date AvailableRow6: 

		Type of CommitmentRow6: 

		FundingRow6: 

		Funding SourceRow7: 

		Amount RequestedRow7: 

		Date AvailableRow7: 

		Type of CommitmentRow7: 

		FundingRow7: 

		assist in the implementation of this activity 1: 

		assist in the implementation of this activity 2: 

		assist in the implementation of this activity 3: 

		assist in the implementation of this activity 4: 

		undefined_7: 

		Expense Statement Attach Summary Income and Expense Statement 1: 

		Expense Statement Attach Summary Income and Expense Statement 2: 

		Expense Statement Attach Summary Income and Expense Statement 3: 

		Expense Statement Attach Summary Income and Expense Statement 4: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 1: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 2: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 3: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 4: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 5: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 6: 

		activities funded with CDBG or other Federal funds 7: 

		SourceRow1: 

		ActivityRow1: 

		YearRow1: 

		AllocationRow1: 

		Amount ExpendedRow1: 

		SourceRow2: 

		ActivityRow2: 

		YearRow2: 

		AllocationRow2: 

		Amount ExpendedRow2: 

		SourceRow3: 

		ActivityRow3: 

		YearRow3: 

		AllocationRow3: 

		Amount ExpendedRow3: 

		SourceRow4: 

		ActivityRow4: 

		YearRow4: 

		AllocationRow4: 

		Amount ExpendedRow4: 

		SourceRow5: 

		ActivityRow5: 

		YearRow5: 

		AllocationRow5: 

		Amount ExpendedRow5: 

		SourceRow6: 

		ActivityRow6: 

		YearRow6: 

		AllocationRow6: 

		Amount ExpendedRow6: 

		undefined_8: 

		Yes_4: Off

		No_3: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow1: 

		START DATERow1: 

		COMPLETION DATERow1: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow2: 

		START DATERow2: 

		COMPLETION DATERow2: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow3: 

		START DATERow3: 

		COMPLETION DATERow3: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow4: 

		START DATERow4: 

		COMPLETION DATERow4: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow5: 

		START DATERow5: 

		COMPLETION DATERow5: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow6: 

		START DATERow6: 

		COMPLETION DATERow6: 

		OBJECTIVEGOALRow7: 

		START DATERow7: 

		COMPLETION DATERow7: 

		undefined_9: 

		undefined_10: 

		undefined_11: 

		undefined_12: 

		undefined_13: 

		undefined_14: 

		undefined_15: 

		undefined_16: 

		undefined_17: 

		undefined_18: 

		undefined_19: 

		undefined_20: 

		undefined_21: 

		undefined_22: 

		undefined_23: 

		undefined_24: 

		undefined_25: 

		undefined_26: 

		undefined_27: 

		undefined_28: 

		undefined_29: 

		undefined_30: 

		undefined_31: 

		undefined_32: 

		undefined_33: 

		undefined_34: 

		undefined_35: 

		undefined_36: 

		undefined_37: 

		undefined_38: 

		undefined_39: 

		undefined_40: 

		undefined_41: 

		undefined_42: 

		undefined_43: 

		undefined_44: 

		GRAND TOTAL: 

		undefined_45: 

		undefined_46: 

		undefined_47: 

		The applicant agrees to comply with all Federal and City policies and requirements imposed on: 

		The applicant acknowledges that the Federal assistance made available through the Citys one: 

		undefined_48: 

		If City funds are approved by Council the applicant acknowledges that sufficient funds are: 

		On behalf of the applying organization I have obtained authorization to submit this application for: 

		Authorized Representative: 

		DATE: 

		undefined_49: 

		Signature1_es_:signer:signature: 

		undefined_50: 

		undefined_51: 

		undefined_52: 

		undefined_53: 

		undefined_54: 

		undefined_55: 

		undefined_56: 

		undefined_57: 

		undefined_58: 

		undefined_59: 

		undefined_60: 






